
 

Page 1 of 360 

 

AGENDA 
CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
MONDAY, SEPTEMBER 16, 2019 

7:00 PM AT CITY HALL 

 

 
 
Call to Order by the Mayor 

Roll Call 

Approval of Minutes 

1. Regular Meeting of September 3, 2019. 

Agenda Revisions 

Special Order of Business 

2. Public hearing on a proposed amendment to the Future Land Use Map by changing the designation 
from Greenways/Floodplain and Neighborhood Commercial/Mixed Use to Low Density Residential 
for property located in the vicinity of 1700-2000 Union Road. 
 
a) Receive and file proof of publication of notice of hearing. (Notice published September 6, 2019) 
 
b) Written communications filed with the City Clerk. 
 
c) Oral comments. 

3. Resolution amending the Future Land Use Map, by changing the designation from 
Greenways/Floodplain and Neighborhood Commercial/Mixed Use to Low Density Residential, for 
property located in the vicinity of 1700-2000 Union Road. 

4. Public hearing on the proposed rezoning from A-1, Agricultural District, to R-1, Residential District, of 
property located in the vicinity of 1700-2000 Union Road. 
 
a) Receive and file proof of publication of notice of hearing. (Notice published September 6, 2019) 
 
b) Written communications filed with the City Clerk. 
 
c) Oral comments. 

5. Pass an ordinance amending Section 26-118 of the Code of Ordinances by removing property 
located in the vicinity of 1700-2000 Union Road from the A-1, Agricultural District, and placing the 
same in the R-1, Residence District, upon its first consideration. 

Old Business 

6. Pass Ordinance #2950, granting a partial property tax exemption to ACOH, LLC for construction of 
an industrial use manufacturing and office facility at 6601 Development Drive, upon its third & final 
consideration. 

7. Pass Ordinance #2952, granting a partial property tax exemption to FN Investors, LLC for 
construction of an industrial use lab and office facility at 3019 Venture Way, upon its third & final 
consideration. 

1



 

Page 2 of 360 

8. Pass Ordinance #2954, amending Chapter 23, Traffic and Motor Vehicles, of the Code of 
Ordinances relative to 48-hour parking on city streets, upon its second consideration. 

New Business 

Consent Calendar: (The following items will be acted upon by voice vote on a single motion without separate 
discussion, unless someone from the Council or public requests that a specific item be considered separately.) 

9. Approve the recommendation of the Mayor relative to the appointment of Amanda Lynch to the 
Planning & Zoning Commission, term ending 11/01/2020. 

10. Receive and file the Committee of the Whole minutes of September 3, 2019 relative to the following 
items: 
a) Planning & Zoning Commission Interview - Amanda Lynch.  
b) Bills & Payroll. 

11. Receive and file the FY19 Annual Report of the Public Works & Parks Division. 

12. Approve the following applications for beer permits and liquor licenses:  
a) Metro Mart, 103 Franklin Street, Class C beer - renewal. 
b) Just Dough, 6607 University Avenue, Class B beer - renewal. 
c) Escapology Cedar Falls, 2518 Melrose Drive, Special Class C liquor - renewal. 
d) Doughy Joey's Peetza Joynt, 126 Brandilynn Boulevard, Class C liquor & outdoor service - 
renewal. 
e) Little Bigs, 2210 College Street, Class C liquor - renewal. 
f) The Brass Tap, 421 Main Street, Class C liquor & outdoor service - renewal. 
g) The Landmark, 107 Main Street, Class C liquor & outdoor service - renewal. 
h) Casey's General Store, 1225 Fountains Way, Class E liquor - renewal. 

Resolution Calendar: (The following items will be acted upon by roll call vote on a single motion without 
separate discussion, unless someone from the Council or public requests that a specific item be considered 
separately.) 

13. Resolution approving and authorizing submission of the City's FY19 Official Financial Report for 
Streets. 

14. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of an Integrated Supply Agreement with Motor Parts 
& Equipment Corporation, d/b/a NAPA Auto Parts - Waterloo, relative to a Vendor Managed 
Inventory (VMI) Parts Management Program at the Fleet Maintenance Facility. 

15. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of a Yard Waste Management Service Agreement 
with T&W Grinding relative to management of the City's compost facility. 

16. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of a Professional Service Agreement with Black & 
Veatch Corporation for Wastewater Treatment Alternative Evaluation. 

17. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of a Joint Funding Agreement with the U.S. 
Geological Survey relative to the Cedar River Streamgage Station. 

18. Resolution approving and accepting the contract and bond of Feldman Concrete for the 2019 
Sidewalk Assessment Project, Zone 2. 

19. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of Supplemental Agreement No. 1A to the 
Professional Service Agreement with Clapsaddle-Garber Associates for construction observation 
and testing services relative to Gateway Business Park. 

20. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of a Professional Service Agreement with Foth 
Infrastructure & Environment, LLC relative to the 2019 University Avenue Traffic Counts Project. 

2



 

Page 3 of 360 

21. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of a License Agreement with ARVIG Enterprises Inc. 
relative to installing a fiber optic telecommunications system within the Cedar Heights Drive and 
Greenhill Road public right-of-way. 

22. Resolution approving a Central Business District Overlay Zoning District site plan for façade 
improvements at 311 Main Street, as recommended by the Planning & Zoning Commission. 

23. Resolution approving a College Hill Neighborhood Overlay Zoning District site plan for façade 
improvements at 2211 College Street. 

24. Resolution approving a Professional Office (PO-1) Zoning District site plan for signage at 915 
Hudson Road. 

25. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of a Professional Service Agreement with Foth 
Infrastructure and Environment, LLC relative to the Center Street Corridor Streetscape Project. 

26. Resolution approving a College Hill Neighborhood Overlay Zoning District site plan for multiple 
temporary mural installations in the College Hill Business District. 

27. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of an amended HOME Investment Partnership 
Program Consortium Cooperation Agreement with the City of Waterloo for FY2020-2022. 

Ordinances 

28. Pass an ordinance amending Chapter 19, Streets and Sidewalks, of the Code of Ordinances relative 
to monument mailboxes, upon its first consideration. 

Allow Bills and Payroll 

29. Allow Bills and Payroll of September 16, 2019. 

City Council Referrals 

City Council Updates 

Public Forum. (Speakers will have one opportunity to speak for up to 5 minutes on topics germane to City 

business.) 

Adjournment 

  

3



CITY HALL 
CEDAR FALLS, IOWA, SEPTEMBER 3, 2019 

REGULAR MEETING, CITY COUNCIL 
MAYOR JAMES P. BROWN PRESIDING 

  
The City Council of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, met in Regular Session, 
pursuant to law, the rules of said Council and prior notice given each member 
thereof, in the City Hall at Cedar Falls, Iowa, at 7:00 P.M. on the above date. 
Members present: Miller, deBuhr, Kruse, Blanford, Darrah, Wieland, Green. 
Absent: None. 

 
52481 - It was moved by Kruse and seconded by Wieland that the minutes of the Regular 

Meeting of August 19, 2019 be approved as presented and ordered of record. 
Motion carried unanimously. 

 
Mayor Brown read a proclamation declaring September 2019 as Hunger Action 
Month and Northeast Iowa Food Bank President Kirsten Juhl commented. 

 
52482 - It was moved by Darrah and seconded by Blanford that Ordinance #2953, 

amending Ordinance No. 1923, 2122, 2461, 2696, 2785 and 2923, providing that 
general property taxes levied and collected each year on all property located 
within the amended Cedar Falls Unified Highway 58 Corridor Urban Renewal 
Area, by and for the benefit of the State of Iowa, City of Cedar Falls, County of 
Black Hawk, Cedar Falls Community School District, Hudson Community School 
District, Dike-New Hartford Community School District and other taxing districts, 
be paid to a special fund for payment of principal and interest on loans, monies 
advanced to and indebtedness, including bonds issued or to be issued, incurred 
by the City in connection with Amendment No. 5 to the Cedar Falls Unified 
Highway 58 Corridor Urban Renewal Area, be passed upon its third and final 
consideration. Following due consideration by the Council, the Mayor put the 
question on the motion and upon call of the roll, the following named 
Councilmembers voted. Aye: Miller, deBuhr, Kruse, Blanford, Darrah, Wieland, 
Green. Nay: None. Motion carried. The Mayor then declared Ordinance #2953 
duly passed and adopted. 

 
52483 - It was moved by Wieland and seconded by Miller that the following items and 

recommendations on the Consent Calendar be received, filed and approved: 
 

Approve the recommendation of the Mayor relative to the appointment of Craig 
Schwerdtfeger to the Community Center & Senior Services Board, term ending 
06/30/2022. 
 
Receive and file the Committee of the Whole minutes of August 19, 2019 relative 
to the following items:  
a) Cedar River Recreation Enhancement.  
b) Visitors & Tourism Division Update.  
c) Cultural Programs Annual Update.  
d) Bills & Payroll. 
 

4

ITEM  1.



 
 

 

- 2 - 

 

Receive and file a communication from the Civil Service Commission relative to a 
certified list for the position of Planner II. 
 
Receive and file Departmental Monthly Reports of July 2019. 
 
Approve the application of Cypress Lounge, 209 State Street, for a 
cigarette/tobacco/nicotine/vapor permit. 
 
Approve the following applications for beer permits and liquor licenses:  
a) Sidecar Coffee, 2215 College Street, Special Class C liquor & outdoor service 

- renewal.  
b) Hilton Garden Inn, 7213 Nordic Drive, Class B liquor, Class B native wine & 

outdoor service - renewal.  
c) Wilbo, 118 Main Street, Class C liquor - renewal. 
d) Great Wall, 2125 College Street, Class E liquor - renewal.  

 e) Casey's General Store, 5908 Nordic Drive, Class C beer & Class B wine - 
change in ownership.  

f)  Casey's General Store, 601 Main Street, Class E liquor - change in ownership.  
g) Casey's General Store, 1225 Fountains Way, Class E liquor - change in 

ownership.  
h) Casey's General Store, 2425 Center Street, Class E liquor - change in 

ownership.  
i)  Casey's General Store, 5226 University Avenue, Class E liquor - change in 

ownership.  
j)  Amvets, 1934 Irving Street, Class A liquor & outdoor service - temporary 

expansion of outdoor service area. (September 13-15, 2019) 
 
Motion carried unanimously. 

 
52484 - It was moved by Green and seconded by Darrah that the following resolutions be 

introduced and adopted: 
 

Resolution #21,686, approving and authorizing execution of a Landlord Estoppel, 
Consent and Agreement between the City, the Board of Trustees of the 
Municipal Electric Utility, and Cedar Falls Solar Farm, LLC, relative to a Lease 
Agreement for the use of certain city-owned property located at 800 Viking Road 
as a solar garden. 
 
Resolution #21,687, approving and authorizing execution of a Standard Form of 
Agreement with Failor Hurley Construction for The Falls Aquatic Center - Pump 
Building and Dumpster Enclosure Renovation Project. 
 
Resolution #21,688, approving and adopting the Cedar Falls Tourism & Visitors 
Bureau Strategic Plan for 2019-2022. 
 
Resolution #21,689, approving and authorizing execution of a Professional 
Service Agreement with Zimmerman, Laurent & Richardson, Inc., d/b/a ZLR 
Ignition, for digital advertising. 
 

5

ITEM  1.



 
 

 

- 3 - 

 

Resolution #21,690, approving and authorizing the expenditure of funds for the 
purchase of an aerial boom truck. 
 
Resolution #21,691, approving and authorizing execution of an agreement with 
INVISION Architecture, LTD for design services relative to the City Hall Remodel 
Project. 
 
Resolution #21,692, receiving and filing the bids, and approving and accepting 
the low bid of Vieth Construction Corporation, in the amount of $224,575.00, for 
the 2019 Peter Melendy Park Renovation Project. 
 
Resolution #21,693, approving and accepting the contract and bond of Vieth 
Construction Corporation for the 2019 Peter Melendy Park Renovation Project. 
 
Resolution #21,694, approving and authorizing execution of a Storm Water 
Maintenance and Repair Agreement with Owen5, LLC relative to a post-
construction stormwater management plan for Lot 16, Northern Cedar Falls 
Industrial Park Phase I. 
 
Resolution #21,695, approving a public improvement, authorizing acquisition of 
private property for said project, and establishing just compensation, in 
conjunction with the 2018 Street Construction Project. 
 
Resolution #21,696, approving and accepting a Lien Notice and Special 
Promissory Note for property located at 1931 Iowa Street relative to the Rental to 
Single Family Owner Conversion Incentive Program. 
 
Resolution #21,697, approving and authorizing execution of a Transportation 
Services Agreement with Metropolitan Transit Authority of Black Hawk County 
(MET Transit) for downtown shuttle services from September 5, 2019 thru 
January 18, 2020. 
 
Resolution #21,698, approving and authorizing execution of a Memorandum of 
Agreement for Professional Support for Housing Choice Voucher Program with 
the Iowa Northland Regional Council of Governments (INRCOG) relative to the 
City's Section 8 Housing Choice Voucher Program. 
 
Resolution #21,699, approving and authorizing execution of a Termination of 
Real Estate Purchase Agreement with DS Warehouse, LLC relative to Lot 1, 
West Viking Road Industrial Park, Phase I. 
 
Resolution #21,700, supplementing Resolution #21,663, being a resolution 
approving the voluntary annexation of property to the City of Cedar Falls which 
lies within two (2) miles of the corporate boundaries of the City of Hudson. 
 
Resolution #21,701, setting September 16, 2019 as the date of public hearing on 
a proposed amendment to the Future Land Use Map by changing the 
designation from Greenways/Floodplain and Neighborhood Commercial to Low 
Density Residential for property located in the vicinity of 1700-2000 Union Road. 

6

ITEM  1.



 
 

 

- 4 - 

 

 
Resolution #21,702, setting September 16, 2019 as the date of public hearing on 
the proposed rezoning from A-1, Agricultural, to R-1, Residential District, of 
property located in the vicinity of 1700-2000 Union Road. 

 
Following due consideration by the Council, the Mayor put the question on the 
motion and upon call of the roll, the following named Councilmembers voted. 
Aye: Miller, deBuhr, Kruse, Blanford, Darrah, Wieland, Green. Nay: None. Motion 
carried. The Mayor then declared Resolutions #21,686 through #21,702 duly 
passed and adopted. 

 
52485 -  It was moved by Kruse and seconded by deBuhr that Ordinance #2954, 

amending Chapter 23, Traffic and Motor Vehicles, of the Code of Ordinances 
relative to 48-hour parking on city streets, be passed upon its first consideration.  

 
    Following a comment by Councilmember Kruse, it was then moved by Kruse and 

seconded by Green to amend the absence period from 2 hours to 4 hours. 
Motion to amend carried unanimously. 

 
The Mayor then put the question on the amended ordinance and upon call of the 
roll, the following named Councilmembers voted.  Aye: Miller, deBuhr, Kruse, 
Blanford, Darrah, Wieland, Green.  Nay: None.  Motion carried unanimously.   

 
52486 -     It was moved by Wieland and seconded by deBuhr that the bills and payroll of 

September 3, 2019 be allowed as presented, and that the Controller/City 
Treasurer be authorized to issue City checks in the proper amounts and on the 
proper funds in payment of the same. Upon call of the roll, the following named 
Councilmembers voted. Aye: Miller, deBuhr, Kruse, Blanford, Darrah, Wieland, 
Green. Nay: None. Motion carried.  

 
52487 - It was moved by Green and seconded by Blanford to refer to city staff and 

Committee of the Whole a request to develop a policy which names city streets 
after the annually-awarded Representative Citizens of Cedar Falls. Following 
comments by Councilmembers Green, Wieland and Kruse, questions by 
Councilmembers Blanford, Kruse and Darrah and a response by City 
Administrator Gaines, the motion to refer the naming of city established streets 
carried 6-1, with Councilmember Miller voting nay. 

 
52488 - It was moved by Green and seconded by Miller to refer to the Committee of the 

Whole a request to designate the Public Safety Building as Cedar Falls Public 
Safety Center. Following comments by Councilmember Green, questions by 
Councilmembers Wieland, Blanford and deBuhr, and responses by Public Safety 
Services Director Olson, Finance and Business Operations Director Rodenbeck 
and Mayor Brown, the motion to refer carried 5-2, with Councilmembers Miller 
and Wieland voting nay. 

 
52489 - It was moved by Blanford and seconded by deBuhr to refer to the Art & Culture 

Board/Public Art Committee, to work with the Community Development 
Department to incorporate a plaque in honor of Barbara Brown into the Main 

7

ITEM  1.



 
 

 

- 5 - 

 

Street streetscape design. Motion to refer carried unanimously. 
 
52490 - Community Development Director Sheetz announced the ‘Bands of America 

Championships’ coming to the University of Northern Iowa on September 28, 
2019. 

  
52491 - Public Safety Services Director Olson responded to questions by Sharon 

Regenold, 108 Lilliput Lane, regarding future staffing of traditional firefighters. 
 
52492 - It was moved by Kruse and seconded by Wieland that the meeting be adjourned 

at 7:23 P.M.  Motion carried unanimously. 
 
     _________________________________ 

  Jacqueline Danielsen, MMC, City Clerk 

8

ITEM  1.



DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-273-8600 
Fax: 319-273-8610 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 
MEMORANDUM 

Planning & Community Services Division 

  

   

 

 

 
 
 
 
 

 TO: Mayor and Council 

 FROM: David Sturch, Planner III 

 DATE: September 11, 2019 

 SUBJECT: Land Use Map Amendment 
 

 
REQUEST: 
 

Land Use Map Amendment from Greenways/Floodplain and Neighborhood 
Commercial to Low Density Residential (Case #LU19-002) 
 

PETITIONER: 
 

West Fork Crossing, ISG Engineering 

LOCATION: 
 

1700-2000 Block of Union Road 

 

 
PROPOSAL 
Land use map amendment from Greenways/Floodplain and Neighborhood Commercial/Mixed 
use to Low Density Residential for the West Fork Crossing development on portions of 119 
acres of land along Union Road. The land use map amendment and rezoning will allow the 
development of a new residential subdivision. Zoning considerations normally involve evaluation 
of three main criteria: 
 

1. Is the rezoning request consistent with the Future Land Use Map and the Comprehensive 
Plan? 

2. Is the property readily accessible to sanitary sewer service?  
3. Does the property have adequate roadway access? 

 
This staff report will focus on the first criteria, an amendment to the Future Land Use Map and 
Comprehensive Plan. 
 
BACKGROUND 
This property has been zoned as agricultural since adoption of the Zoning Ordinance in 1970.  
The Future Land Use Map was adopted in the spring of 2012 as a part of the Cedar Falls 
Comprehensive Plan. The current land use is greenways/floodplain, neighborhood 
commercial/mixed use and low density residential. Prior to the adoption of the Comprehensive 
Plan in 2012, the majority of the property was designated as low density residential. 
 

9

ITEM  2.



The University Branch of Dry Run Creek runs along the north edge of the property which 
encompasses the special flood hazard area (SFHA) or general floodplain. The greenway 
designation shown on the future land use map was intended to reflect the extent of the flood 
hazard area including a green buffer. This buffer serves an important function for natural 
stormwater drainage and mitigates flood risk. As part of the platting process, storm water 
detention will be collected throughout the subdivision and released into Dry Run Creek. The 
adjoining development to the northwest (New Aldaya site for The Terraces) created a storm 
water detention plan that utilizes Dry Run Creek to channel the detained stormwater down the 
creek and eventually into the area wide detention basin located north of the UNI Dome. As this 
section of property develops, a continued storm water management plan will be formalized to 
further control the stormwater in this area of the city. 
 
ANALYSIS 
As stated in the Comprehensive Plan, land use is the central element of the Plan because it 
establishes the overall physical configuration of the city, including the mix and location of uses 
and community systems (utilities).  
 
This 119-acre property is surrounded by residential development on the northeast with large lot 
acreages on the west. A manufactured home neighborhood is located southwest of the site and 
the future Cedar Falls High School is to the southeast. The University of Northern Iowa owns the 
property to the east.  

 
Generally speaking, the future land use for this area is low density residential. However, there is 
a section of land along the east side of Union Road that shows a neighborhood 
commercial/mixed use designation and a strip of greenways/floodplain along the University 
Branch of Dry Run Creek. Therefore, the land use analysis is the first step in the rezoning and 
development process. 
 
The neighborhood commercial/mixed use category is identified in the Comprehensive Plan for 
low impact commercial with residential in the upper floors located on major streets. It is 

 
 

Existing Future Land Use 

10

ITEM  2.



proposed to reduce this commercial area through the petitioner’s property to low density 
residential. Maintaining a small commercial land use along Union Road may provide an 
opportunity for future commercial uses that will benefit the surrounding neighborhood.  
 
The greenways/floodplain category is reserved for passive open spaces and environmentally 
sensitive areas for floodplain and stormwater management. A drainageway flows through the 
north side of the site in a northwesterly to southeasterly direction. The floodplain boundary 
buffers this drainage way but only encompasses a portion of the area depicted on the future 
land use map and amending the greenways/floodplain land use to low density residential 
reflects a more accurate depiction of the future growth in 

this area. 
 
The land use amendment corresponds to the proposed rezoning from A-1, agriculture to R-1, 
residence district. The intent is to develop the 119 acres into single family residential lots with 
stormwater detention basins and floodplain buffers. One important feature of the stormwater 
management plan is to account for the additional stormwater that is received into this site from 
surrounding developments to the west and north. That stormwater, coupled with the stormwater 
generated on the site will be confined into detention basins and new storm sewers and released 
at a controlled rate into the existing drainageway. The proposed map above reflects the location 
of the greenways/floodplain. These areas provide a good opportunity to place the detention 
basins along the University Branch of Dry Run Creek to the north and within the drainage way 
near the southwest corner of the site. This particular drainage way represents the flow from the 
southwest corner of the site easterly to W. 27th Street. The Comprehensive Plan states as an 
essential component to the quality of life in Cedar Falls, park services should be offered within a 
comfortable walking distance (typically ¼ to ½ mile) from homes in the neighborhood. The 
design of this southern basin should consider elements like open space, natural areas and 
greenbelts that create a “parklike” setting for the residents of the neighborhood.    
 
 

  
Proposed Future Land Use 

11

ITEM  2.



Additional elements to this development include trails and sidewalks within and adjacent to the 
property. The Comprehensive Plan shows east/west and north/south trails near the University 
Branch of Dry Run Creek corridor. This corridor is part of the floodplain district and portions of 
this area have been developed with detention basins and buffers through the existing and 
planned subdivisions. Future trail locations are important in this development in order to provide 
the connections from the planned Union Road trail to the west, the W. 12th Street trail and 
Robinson-Dresser Sports Complex to the north and the W. 27th Street trail to the south as well 
as connections to the east into the proposed high school site on W. 27th Street.    
 
The Comprehensive Plan provides a summary of the Western Growth Area of Cedar Falls. This 
portion of the city extends westerly from Hudson Road to the city limits and from W. 1st Street to 
Viking Road. The section of land between W. 12th and W. 27th Street near the Union Road 
corridor shows this concept described below with staff comments in underlined, red text: 
 

 A system of greenways following the University Branch of Dry Run Creek. This corridor 
shall be preserved as open space, floodplain, storm water drainage, wildlife habitats and 
natural amenity for the nearby residents. This section of the University Branch of Dry Run 
Creek shall be maintained as described. 
 

 Street connections that provide connections throughout residential neighborhoods and 
adjoining street arterials (W. 12th and Union) and collectors (W. 27th) and move traffic 
more efficiently. As this project runs through the development process, the preliminary 
plat should provide a well-connected street pattern within the new neighborhood and to 
the existing neighborhoods and the surrounding streets and future important destinations, 
such as the new high school. 
 

 Extending Greenhill Road to the northwest, intersecting with University Avenue, W. 27th 
Street and Union Road. Greenhill Road terminates at W. 27th Street east of this property. 
Therefore, Greenhill Road will not extend through this site. 
 

 Extending Erik Road with a westerly extension and turning north to eventually connect 
into W. 12th Street and Birdsall Park. The extension of Erik Road or other similarly 
situated street is a long term concept that may eventually extend to the north and into this 
site. A north/south connection is planned with the future development of this site that will 
provide a future connection into the recently approved Terraces at West Glen. 
 

 A system of modified cul-de-sac or looping streets to maintain connectivity while 
providing a low-traffic street for the residents. This street layout includes pedestrian/bike 
connections through a greenway system with multiple street entrances to each 
neighborhood to serve the “local” traffic and minimize the “cut-through” traffic. The 
concept of modified cul-de-sac and looping streets illustrated in the plan is an unusual 
concept that may not be realistic, but the principal of creating a pattern of well-connected 
streets is a well-documented best practice. When the preliminary plat is presented to staff 
and the Planning and Zoning Commission, a street network of modest size blocks and a 
well-connected pattern that will help to distribute the traffic and not overburden any one 
street should be carefully considered throughout the site and adjoining neighborhoods. 
This will provide an opportunity to create pedestrian/bike connections off the planned 
Union Road Trail to the existing W. 27th Street bike lanes and future extensions to the 
east into the proposed school site and the UNI campus. 

12

ITEM  2.



Based on the factors stated in this report, staff finds that it is appropriate to amend the future 
land use map to allow reasonable development of the property while still preserving and 
protecting the floodplain and natural drainage ways. The proposed amendment would maintain 
the location of the current greenway/floodplain and add the designation of “Low Density 
Residential to the rest of the property. The other details noted in the Plan regarding good 
neighborhood design, such as adequate parks and open space and a well-connected street 
pattern should be incorporated into future subdivision plats.   
 
A notice was mailed to the adjoining property owners on September 11, 2019 regarding this 
request.  
 
PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION 
Introduction 
8/14/19 

The Planning and Zoning Commission considered a land use map amendment for 
the West Fork Crossing development in the 1800 block of Union Road. Acting Chair 
Saul introduced the item and Mr. Sturch provided background information. He 
explained that the property is 119 acres off Union Road and north of 27th Street in 
the A-1 Zoning District. He displayed the current land use map from the 2012 Cedar 
Falls Comprehensive Plan and discussed the characteristics of the land use 
categories. The proposed land use map amendment includes a reduction of the 
greenways and floodplain areas that follows more closely to the actual flood zone 
where these areas can be used for open space and parkland. Other amendments 
include changing the neighborhood commercial area along Union Road to low 
density residential. Staff would like to gather comments from the Commission and 
the public and schedule a public hearing for the August 28th Planning and Zoning 
Commission meeting. 
 
The developer’s engineer, Tim Verheyen feels that it makes sense to keep the 
entire area as R-1, low density and retain the higher density to the south. He also 
commented on the floodplain and greenway areas of the development. A 
neighboring property owner at 1712 Union Road, Mr. Mike Goyen has some 
concerns about the existing storm water running across his property. 
 
The Commission will discuss the amendment to the land use map. There were 
some questions by the commissioners. Ms. Prideaux asked how we are analyzing 
the water flow in the stormwater management and Ms. Saul asked about the street 
design that was mentioned in public comments. Ms. Howard stated that those things 
will all be considered when they submit the subdivision plat. As there was no further 
discussion, the item was continued to the next meeting. 
 

Discussion/Vote 
8/28/19 

Chair Holst introduced the item and Mr. Sturch provided background information. He 
explained the land use map amendment is for 119 acres of land in the A-1 District in 
the western part of the City along Union Road. The proposed land use amendment 
includes the following: reduction of greenways/floodplain to follow current floodplain 
and drainage areas; creation of areas for open space and parkland; opportunity to 
create area for neighborhood park; change neighborhood commercial to low density 
residential. Staff recommends approval of the amendment to the future land use 
map from Greenways/Floodplain and Neighborhood Commercial to Low Density 
Residential with conformance to all staff recommendations and comments from the 
Planning and Zoning Commission. 
 
Mike Girsch, 1608 Union Road, expressed objection to the removal of the 
commercial area on his property as it reduces options for future sale. He feels there 
is potential for a small business to be built in the future. 

13

ITEM  2.



 
The Commission discussed the existing land use in the immediate area with a staff 
summary. Ms. Howard suggested maintaining the neighborhood commercial land 
use to the north of the petitioner’s property. Mr. Leeper asked if there has been any 
contact from the property owners to the south. Mr. Sturch stated that a notification 
was sent out and he has not heard anything from those property owners. Mr. Holst 
stated that he would be supportive of the change to low density residential while 
maintaining the small neighborhood commercial land use. 
 
Ms. Saul moved to approve the land use map amendment from neighborhood 
commercial and greenways/floodplain to low density residential and maintain the 
neighborhood commercial to the north of the petitioner’s property on Union Road. 
Ms. Adkins seconded the motion. 
 
The Commission discussed parks, trails and greenspace for this area of Cedar 
Falls. Ms. Prideaux noted that she would like to see parkland added. Ms. Saul 
asked how that would affect what the developer does on that land. Ms. Howard 
stated that developers typically look at the piece of land to include elements of a 
healthy neighborhood and it can all be determined when the actual preliminary plat 
is submitted for review by staff and the Commission. She clarified that the current 
request is to change the land use map designations and the zoning would be 
discussed during the rezoning hearing. 
 
The discussion ended and the Commission approved the motion for the City Council 
to recommend approval of the land use map amendment. 

 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
The Community Development Department recommends approval of an amendment to the 
Future Land Use Map from Greenways/Floodplain and Neighborhood Commercial/Mixed Use to 
Low Density Residential. 

14

ITEM  2.



Robinson-Dresser
Sports Complex

Pheasant
Ridge Golf

Course

Walters Ridge
Golf Course

Concord Cir

W Sunshine Ln

Beaver Rd

S
k
y
lin

e
 D

r

P
o
s
s
u
m

 R
d

C
h

e
rr

y
w

o
o

d
 D

r

Sonoma Dr

Cobblestone Ct

Waterbury Dr

Stratford Ct

R

ocky Rid
g

e
R

d

L
e
xi

ng
to

n
D

r

Jakob Cir

Q
u
a

il
R

id
g
e

R

d

B
ir

d
s
al

l P
ar

k

Dr

Meadow Ln

Alexis Blvd

Wellington Dr

Granite Ridge Rd

Newland Dr

W 12th St

Wild Horse Dr

Frontier Rd

Pendleton Dr

Prairie Rd

K
e
a

g
l e s Xing (Planned)

P
e
te

rs
P

kw
y

(Planned)

W 12th St
U

n
io

n
 R

d

W 27th St

R-1

R-1

C-2

R-4

RP

P

R-2

A-1

A-1

Cedar Falls City Council
September 16, 2019

Future Land Use Map Amendment

Cedar Falls
Rainbow Dr

W 18th St

C
ent e

r
S

t

S
 M

a
in

 S
t

H
u

d
s
o
n

R
d

M
a
in

S
t

W 1st St

W 12th St

E V i k in
g

Rd

University Ave

Orchard Dr

W Viking Rd

W
aterloo

R
d

U
n

io
n
 R

d

E 1st St

E Greenhill Rd

W 27th St

Lincoln St
N

U
nion

R
d

E Lone Tree Rd

L
e

v
e

r s
e

e
R

d

W Ridgeway Ave

W
G

re
e

n
hill Rd

®¬57

®¬58

®¬27

£¤63

£¤20

£¤218

^

Location
Map

15

ITEM  2.



Proposed Land Use

Existing Land Use

W. 27th St

Waterbury Dr

U
n

io
n

 R
d

Wild Horse Dr

Wild Horse Dr

U
n

io
n

 R
d

Waterbury Dr

W. 27th St

Change from Greenways/Floodplan
and Low/Medium Density

Change from Neighborhood
Commercial to Low Density

West Fork Crossing - Proposed Land Use Map Amendment

16

ITEM  2.



 
RESOLUTION NO. ______________ 

 

RESOLUTION AMENDING THE FUTURE LAND USE MAP  

BY CHANGING THE DESIGNATION FROM GREENWAYS/FLOODPLAIN AND 

NEIGHBORHOOD COMMERCIAL/MIXED USE TO LOW DENSITY RESIDENTIAL 

 

 WHEREAS, the City Planning and Zoning Commission of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, 

has recommended to the City Council of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa to amend the Future Land 

Use Map from Greenways/Floodplain and Neighborhood Commercial/Mixed Use to Low 

Density Residential, for property located in the vicinity of 1700-2000 Union Road, and 

 

 WHEREAS, said Commission has recommended approval of said change in the land use, 

and 

 

 WHEREAS, said land use map serves as a guide for future development, and 

 

 WHEREAS, said land use map amendment will allow the development of a new 

residential subdivision, and    

 

WHEREAS, notice of public hearing has been published, as provided by law, and such 

hearing held on the proposed amendment. 

 

 NOW THEREFORE, be it resolved by the City Council of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, 

that the Future Land Use Map is hereby amended to change the designation found on the City 

Schematic Land Use Map from Greenways/Floodplain and Neighborhood Commercial/Mixed 

Use to Low Density Residential. 

 

 INTRODUCED AND ADOPTED this 16th day of September, 2019. 

 

 

_________________________ 

                                                                            James P. Brown, Mayor 

 

ATTEST: 

 

        

Jacqueline Danielsen, MMC, City Clerk 

17

ITEM  2.



DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-273-8600 
Fax: 319-273-8610 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 
MEMORANDUM 

Planning & Community Services Division 

  

   

 

 

 
 
 
 
 

 TO: Mayor and Council 

 FROM: David Sturch, Planner III 

 DATE: September 11, 2019 

 SUBJECT: Rezoning Request 
 

 
REQUEST: 
 

Rezone property from A-1, Agricultural to R-1, Residential District (Case 
#RZ19-002) 
 

PETITIONER: 
 

West Fork Crossing, ISG Engineering 

LOCATION: 
 

119 acre parcel between Union Road and Waterbury Drive 

 

 
PROPOSAL 
The petitioner has submitted a request to 
rezone 119 acres of land between Union 
Road and Waterbury Drive from A-1, 
Agricultural to R-1, Residential District. The 
rezoning will allow the development of a 
neighborhood of primarily single-unit homes. 
 
BACKGROUND 
This property has been zoned as agricultural 
since adoption of the Zoning Ordinance in 
1970. The land is surrounded by an R-1 
residential district and a P, public district on 
the east; an R-4, residential district to the 
southwest; and an R-P, planned residence 
district to the west and north. The current 
owner recently purchased this property with 
the intent of developing single family 
dwellings. The rezoning of this property must 
be carefully considered by evaluating the characteristics of the land and surrounding properties. 
This staff report will outline a number of these elements in order to have a firm understanding of 
the future use of this property. 

 

18

ITEM  4.



ANALYSIS 
The purpose of the A-1, agricultural zoning district is to act as a “holding zone” for future 
development until municipal services (sanitary sewer, water, roads) are accessible to the site.  
When these services are available, the development of the land is threefold, beginning with the 
rezoning of the land, platting and construction. 
 
This 119-acre property is surrounded by residential development on the west, southwest and 
northeast. The University of Northern Iowa owns property to the east along with the future high 
school site to the southeast. The northern edge of the property is bounded by the western reach 
of the University branch of Dry Run Creek. This portion of the property is located in the 100-year 
floodplain that runs along Dry Run Creek to the northeast corner of the site. With the exception 
of the floodplain, there are no other sensitive areas within the area proposed for rezoning. 
 
Zoning considerations normally involve evaluation of three main criteria: 
 

1) Is the rezoning request consistent with the Future Land Use Map and the Comprehensive 
Plan? 
The current land use map is designated as low density residential, commercial/mixed use 
and greenways/floodplain. A proposed amendment outlined in a separate staff report, if 
approved, would remove the commercial/mixed use designation and reduce the 
greenways/floodplain area to align more closely with the current floodplain and drainage 
pattern. These areas would be designated on the future land use map as low density 
residential. The greenways/floodplain will serve as buffers for storm water management 
and detention. These areas also provide an opportunity, through thoughtful subdivision 
design, to create open spaces, natural areas, and neighborhood park space to serve the 
residents of this and surrounding developments.  
 
As part of the platting process, a stormwater management system will be designed to 
accept the stormwater runoff from the west and north. The stormwater will be directed 
toward multiple detention basins on the site and released at a controlled rate into the 
floodplain. The stormwater management system must be designed so that it will not 
adversely affect the current and future residents surrounding and within this development. 
Details of the stormwater management plan will be reviewed during the platting process to 
ensure that it meets all Code requirements. 
 
If the Planning and Zoning Commission agrees to the land use map amendment, as 
described in a separate staff report under Case #LU19-002, the proposed rezoning of this 
property can continue. 

 
2) Is the property readily accessible to sanitary sewer service?  

Yes, sanitary sewer is readily available to the site. This sewer is located through the 
northern boundary of the property within the aforementioned floodplain and drainage way 
of Dry Run Creek. This sanitary sewer is located in the Cherrywood Interceptor Sewer 
District which includes a sewer tapping fee as part of the development. The sewer tapping 
fee is $294.63 per acre of development. This fee is paid by the developer at the time of 
final platting. This sewer will accommodate the proposed 119 acre development. 
 

3) Does the property have adequate roadway access?  
The property currently has access from Union Road and Waterbury Drive. Future 
connections to the north through the NewAldaya development, to the east and to the south 

19

ITEM  4.



onto W. 27th Street will accommodate the movement of traffic into and out of this site. A 
well-connected network of local streets within any future subdivision will be essential to 
help distribute traffic and create efficient routes for neighborhood residents. These street 
connections will be important for general traffic circulation and connections between 
neighborhoods and future neighborhoods. For example, while there may be no 
development planned for the property to the east of this site, at some point in the future 
there may be reasons to provide a connection to PE Center Drive. Similarly, several 
connections to the property to the south will provide access to W. 27th Street as this area 
develops over time. 
 
The annual average daily traffic for Union Road is approximately 3,000 vehicles per day. 
Depending on the circumstances and corridor constraints, a rural two-lane roadway could 
handle capacities up to 1,700 vehicles per hour during peak times. The rezoning of this 
property will allow the development of single family dwellings within 119 acres. More than 
likely, the development will be in phases starting off of Union Road and moving in an 
easterly direction. The proposed development will generate traffic when the lots are sold 
and construction with single family dwellings. At the onset of development, this traffic will 
utilize the internal roads and access Union Road. As development continues easterly, 
connections will be made with the existing subdivisions to provide alternative routes for the 
residents in the area. As developments more forward, City staff will continue to monitor 
traffic volumes along Union Road and when warranted, make improvements to Union Road 
as necessary. 
   

As part of the technical review of this proposal, Cedar Falls Utilities personnel, have no 
concerns with the proposed rezoning request. Water, electric, gas, and communication utilities 
are all available to this site from Union Road and Cross Creek Drive in the Lexington Heights 
subdivision. There is a water connection fee for this property based on the street lineal footage 
of Union Road. This connection fee is part of the cost of the original water main installations on 
Union Road. The sewer service serving this area is subject to the Cherrywood Interceptor 
Sewer District tapping fee of $294.63 per acre which was established by the City Council 
several years ago. All utility services will be extended into this property as part of the platting 
process. 
 
A notice was mailed to the adjoining property owners on August 22, 2019 regarding this request. 
A public notice was published in the Waterloo Courier on, Wednesday, August 21, 2019. 
 
PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION REQUESTS FOR ADDITIONAL INFORMATION 
This item was introduced to the Planning and Zoning Commission on August 14, 2019. The 
Commission members wanted additional information to address the following issues: 
 

 Projected population growth. The western portion of Cedar Falls has a large amount of 
undeveloped land along the Union Road corridor, especially the area between W. 12th 
Street and University Avenue. Staff relies on the Cedar Falls Comprehensive Plan to 
dictate the future growth of the city. The future land use in this area is mostly comprised 
of low to medium density residential. The proposed rezoning will accommodate low 
density residential development within the 119 acres. Low density is defined as 1 to 6 
units per acre depending on the size of the lots and medium density is 6-12 units per 
acre. Based on the Census data, the average household size throughout Cedar Falls is 
2.93 people per dwelling unit. 
 

20

ITEM  4.



In order to gain a perspective on the similar developments in the city, a typical downtown 
city block is approximately 2 acres in area. For a low density development, this may yield 
8-10 units in total or 4-5 units per acre. The recent New Aldaya planned development at 
the corner of Union Road and W. 12th Street includes approximately 140 units in 42 acres 
or 3 units per acre. 
 
The change in population over the last two Census counts in 2000 and 2010 are 
summarized in the following table: 
 

Year Population Decade Percent Change 

2000 36,145 1990-2000 5.4% 

2010 39,260 2000-2010 8.6% 

2018 Estimate 41,048 2000-2018 4.5% 

  
Cedar Falls typically grows at a 0.5-1.0% per year in population. This population is 
distributed around the entire town with higher averages in the undeveloped portions of 
the city in western and southern Cedar Falls. It should be noted that the student 
population at the University of Northern Iowa is included in the population count for Cedar 
Falls. Since 2010, there has been an average of 240 dwelling units constructed in Cedar 
Falls. Of these dwelling units, 125 have been single family detached units with the 
remaining 115 units as condos, townhomes, and multi-family dwellings. 
 
In summary, the current growth rate of residential units constructed in any given year will 
accommodate the average growth rate (population) between 2000 and 2018 of 0.6%.  
 

 Projected traffic growth. The existing street network is designed to accommodate the 
current and future increase in traffic. As western and southern Cedar Falls continues to 
grow, these areas will have similar traffic patterns and vehicle counts as the rest of the 
developed portions of the city. In order to disperse and circulate the traffic, city streets 
must be carefully planned with connections to adjacent neighborhoods and 
developments. This will accommodate the traffic flow into and out of the neighborhoods 
to the adjacent collector and arterial street network. A planned high school is located 
adjacent to the southeast corner of the proposed rezoning. Aligning streets so they can 
be extended along the north and west edge of the school site will be important to 
neighborhood traffic circulation for the residents of this development and adjacent 
subdivisions to get to the new school without having to drive out to the arterial streets to 
get to school. These westerly connections will also accommodate any future growth into 
the UNI property to the west of their athletic fields and facilities. Additional stub streets to 
the west and south will help disperse traffic with other connections to the nearby arterial 
streets. This will also allow some of the larger properties along Union Road to redevelop. 
 
Traffic calming techniques, such as traffic circles or roundabouts can be used to slow 
traffic through this area. For an efficient delivery of public services, the planned street 
network should be made up of block lengths that generally do not exceed 600 feet in 
length. This will create a well-connected street pattern that will distribute the traffic 
throughout the neighborhood and avoid congestion on just one or two streets.  In 
addition, a well-connected street network will provide for efficient delivery of public 
services, including must accommodate the garbage collection, snow removal and 
emergency response.  

21

ITEM  4.



 
Other modes of transportation include bike and pedestrian accommodations. Public 
sidewalks will be included as a part of the subdivision platting process. Future trail 
locations within this development are important in order to provide the connections from 
the planned Union Road trail to the west, the W. 12th Street trail and Robinson-Dresser 
Sports Complex to the north and the W. 27th Street trail to the south as well as 
connections to the east into the proposed high school site on W. 27th Street. 
 

 Stormwater Management. The proposed development must be designed to the natural 
topography and drainage of the area. The stormwater management areas can be 
designed as neighborhood amenities to help meet the open space needs and trail 
connections to serve this new neighborhood. The Comprehensive Plan illustrates the 
drainage ways as greenways so will need to be taken into account with the design of the 
plat. 

 
The Comprehensive Plan includes an analysis regarding the community needs for park land 
including geographic distribution. Since this will be a new area for residential growth, there will 
be a need for neighborhood park space.  
 
In summary, the upzoning of the land from agriculture to residential zoning causes a need for 
neighborhood infrastructure that ensures the health and welfare of future residents, which 
includes parks and trails, as well as streets, stormwater management facilities, sewer and water 
lines. All of these elements should be considered when this land is proposed for subdivision. 
 
A notice was mailed to the adjoining property owners on September 11, 2019 regarding this 
request. 
 
PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION 
Introduction 
8/14/19 

The Planning and Zoning Commission considered a rezoning request for the West 
Fork Crossing development in the 1800 block of Union Road. Acting Chair Saul 
introduced the item and Mr. Sturch provided background information. The request is 
to rezone 119 acres of land from A-1, agricultural to R-1, residential. He summarized 
the criteria for rezoning. He explained that the Commission will need to approve the 
Land Use Amendment before a rezoning request can be approved. Mr. Sturch also 
provided information regarding sanitary sewer availability and public utilities. Finally, 
he discussed adequate roadway access, noting that the existing arterial roadways 
support the proposed developments and that it is important not to be isolated from 
other existing and future developments. Traffic volumes will also need to be 
monitored for future improvements to W. 27th Street and Union Road. Staff would like 
to gather comments from the Commission and the public and schedule a public 
hearing for the August 28th Planning and Zoning Commission meeting. 
 
Ms. Prideaux asked about the projected population growth in the next several years. 
Ms. Saul stated she was interested in the traffic flow and how it will work with a new 
school coming, as well as the potential stormwater management issues. 

  

22

ITEM  4.



 
Discussion/Vote 
8-28-19 

Chair Holst introduced the item and Mr. Sturch provided background information. He 
explained that it is a rezoning request of 119 acres from A-1, Agriculture to R-1, 
Residential and explained the rezoning criteria used in the process. He noted that the 
request must be consistent with the Future Land Use Map and Comprehensive Plan, 
the property must be readily accessible to sanitary sewer service and have adequate 
roadway access. He summarized the area for development and the needs that will be 
caused by rezoning. Rezoning is the first step in the developmental process, which is 
followed by subdivision platting and stormwater review. Staff recommends approval 
with conformance with all staff recommendations and comments from the Planning 
and Zoning Commission. 
 
Mike Girsch asked how this will affect his property and concerns with the stormwater 
runoff from the development. Mr. Holst stated that his property is not included in the 
request. 
 
Mr. Wingert noted that he will be abstaining from the item. Mr. Larson made a motion 
to approve the rezoning request as submitted. Ms. Saul seconded the motion. 
 
Mr. Leeper feels that this is an appropriate change and supports the rezoning. Ms. 
Saul agreed. Ms. Prideaux asked what the City’s requirements are for setting aside 
land for parks. Ms. Howard noted a clause in the subdivision code to set aside 
adequate open space to meet neighborhood needs. Mr. Leeper encouraged the 
developer to consider the traffic for the development with the high school. 
 
The discussion ended and the Commission approved the motion for the City Council 
to recommend approval of the rezoning request. 

 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
The Community Development Department recommends approval of the rezoning from A-1, 
Agriculture to R-1, Low Density Residential. 
 

23

ITEM  4.



Robinson-Dresser
Sports Complex

Pheasant
Ridge Golf

Course

Walters Ridge
Golf Course

Concord Cir

W Sunshine Ln

Beaver Rd

S
k
y
lin

e
 D

r

P
o
s
s
u
m

 R
d

C
h

e
rr

y
w

o
o

d
 D

r

Sonoma Dr

Cobblestone Ct

Waterbury Dr

Stratford Ct

R

ocky Rid
g

e
R

d

L
e
xi

ng
to

n
D

r

Jakob Cir

Q
u
a

il
R

id
g
e

R

d

B
ir

d
s
al

l P
ar

k

Dr

Meadow Ln

Alexis Blvd

Wellington Dr

Granite Ridge Rd

Newland Dr

W 12th St

Wild Horse Dr

Frontier Rd

Pendleton Dr

Prairie Rd

K
e
a

g
l e s Xing (Planned)

P
e
te

rs
P

kw
y

(Planned)

W 12th St
U

n
io

n
 R

d

W 27th St

R-1

R-1

C-2

R-4

RP

P

R-2

A-1

A-1

Cedar Falls City Council
September 16, 2019

Rezoning request, A-1 Agriculture to
R-1, Residential

Waterloo
Regional
Airport

Falls
Access

Cedar Falls

Rainbow Dr

H
u

d
s
o

n
R

d

University Ave

Orchard Dr

E Dunkerton Rd

W 18th St

C

ente
r

S
t

S
 M

a
in

 S
t

M
a

in
S

t

W 1st St

W 12th St

E Vik in
g

Rd

W Viking Rd

W
aterloo

R
d

U
n

io
n
 R

d

E 1st St

W 27th St

E Greenhill Rd

Lincoln St

N U
n

ion
R
d

E Lone Tree Rd

L
e

v
e

rs
e

e
R

d

W Ridgeway Ave

W
G

re
e

n
hill Rd

®¬57

®¬58

®¬27 £¤63
£¤20

£¤218

^

Location
Map

24

ITEM  4.



“C-2”

“R-2”“R-2”“R-2”

“P”

REZONING REQUEST

“A-1” TO “R-1”
119.25 ACRES

25

ITEM  4.



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
Prepared by: David Sturch, Planner III, 220 Clay Street, Cedar Falls, IA 50613 (319) 273-8600 

 

ORDINANCE NO._____________ 

 

AN ORDINANCE REPEALING SECTION 26-118,  

DISTRICT BOUNDARIES OF DIVISION I GENERALLY  

OF ARTICLE III DISTRICT AND DISTRICT  

REGULATIONS OF CHAPTER TWENTY-SIX (26) 

ZONING, OF THE CODE OF ORDINANCES, OF THE 

COTY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA, AND RE-ENACTING 

SAID SECTION 26-118 OF SAID ORDINANCE, AS 

AMENDED, SO AS TO APPLY AND INCLUDE TO THE  

CHANGE IN THE ZONING MAP OF THE CITY OF  

CEDAR FALLS, IOWA, AS PROVIDED BY THIS 

ORDINANCE (Case #RZ19-002) 

 

 WHEREAS, the City Planning and Zoning Commission of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, 

finds that the rezoning is consistent with the adopted Comprehensive Plan of the City of Cedar 

Falls and therefore has recommended to the City Council of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, that 

all that area described as follows shall be removed from the A-1 Agricultural Zoning District and 

placed in the R-1 Residence Zoning District, as follows: 

 

Commencing at the Southeast (SE) corner of the West Half of the Southeast Quarter (W 1/2 SE 

1/4) of said Section 15; thence along the East line of said West Half of the Southeast Quarter (W 

1/2 SE 1/4) North 00° 08' 50" West for a distance of 1326.32 feet to the North line of the 

Southwest Quarter of the Southeast Quarter (SW 1/4 SE 1/4), the Point of Beginning; thence 

continuing along said East line, North 00° 08' 50" West for a distance of 1326.18 feet to the 

North line of said Southeast Quarter (SE 1/4); thence along said North line, South 89° 46' 03" 

West for a distance of 1815.80 feet to the Southwest (SW) corner of Lexington Heights 5th 

Addition, Cedar Falls, Iowa; thence continuing along said North line,  North 87° 41' 43" West 

for a distance of 17.43 feet to the East line of Lot 2, Robinson’s Minor Plat; thence along said 

East line North 00° 02' 29" West for a distance of 796.84 feet; thence North 50° 48' 28" West for 

a distance of 1057.37 feet; thence South 01° 17' 24" West for a distance of 145.38 feet to 

Northeast (NE) corner of the Southwest Quarter of the Northwest Quarter (SW 1/4 NW 1/4) of 

said Section 15 being a westerly line of said Lot 2; thence along said westerly line, South 00° 09' 

03" East for a distance of 675.40 feet to a point 648 feet distant northerly from the East/West 

Quarter line; thence along the line 648 feet distant northerly from the East/West Quarter line, 

26

ITEM  4.



South 89° 44' 19" West for a distance of 1254.18 feet to a point on the easterly right of way line 

of Union Road; thence along said right of way line, South 00° 00' 10" East for a distance of 

648.01 feet to the North line of the Southwest Quarter of said Section 15; thence along said 

North line,  North 89° 44' 19" East for a distance of 1255.85 feet to the West line of the East Half 

of the Southwest Quarter (E 1/2 SW 1/4) of said Section 15 per Robinson’s Minor Plat; thence 

along said West line, South 00° 00' 22" East for a distance of 1326.46 feet to the South line of 

the North Half of the Southwest Quarter (N 1/2 SW 1/4) of said Section 15; thence along said 

South line, North 89° 46' 52" East a distance of 1337.37 feet to the West line of said Southeast 

Quarter (SE 1/4); thence along the South line of the North Half of said Southeast Quarter (N 1/2 

SE 1/4), North 89° 45' 30" East a distance of 1318.98 feet to the Point of Beginning. 

 

Containing 119 acres, subject to easements of record. 

 

And 

 

 WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, deems it to the best 

interests of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, that said proposal be made and approved; and 

 

  WHEREAS, the said Section 26-118, District Boundaries of Division I, Generally, of 

Article III, Districts and District Regulations, of Chapter Twenty-six (26), Zoning, of the Code of 

Ordinances of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, provides that the zoning map of the City of Cedar 

Falls, Iowa, attached thereto, is incorporated into and made a part of said Ordinance; 

 

 WHEREAS, notice of public hearing has been published, as provided by law, and such 

hearing held on the proposed amendment; now, therefore, 

 

 BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, 

IOWA: 

 

 Section 1.  That the following described real estate: 

 

Commencing at the Southeast (SE) corner of the West Half of the Southeast Quarter (W1/2 SE 

1/4) of said Section 15; thence along the East line of said West Half of the Southeast Quarter (W 

1/2 SE 1/4) North 00° 08' 50" West for a distance of 1326.32 feet to the North line of the 

Southwest Quarter of the Southeast Quarter (SW 1/4 SE 1/4), the Point of Beginning; thence 

continuing along said East line, North 00° 08' 50" West for a distance of 1326.18 feet to the 

North line of said Southeast Quarter (SE 1/4); thence along said North line, South 89° 46' 03" 

West for a distance of 1815.80 feet to the Southwest (SW) corner of Lexington Heights 5th 

Addition, Cedar Falls, Iowa; thence continuing along said North line,  North 87° 41' 43" West 

for a distance of 17.43 feet to the East line of Lot 2, Robinson’s Minor Plat; thence along said 

East line North 00° 02' 29" West for a distance of 796.84 feet; thence North 50° 48' 28" West for 

a distance of 1057.37 feet; thence South 01° 17' 24" West for a distance of 145.38 feet to 

Northeast (NE) corner of the Southwest Quarter of the Northwest Quarter (SW 1/4 NW 1/4) of 

said Section 15 being a westerly line of said Lot 2; thence along said westerly line, South 00° 09' 

03" East for a distance of 675.40 feet to a point 648 feet distant northerly from the East/West 

Quarter line; thence along the line 648 feet distant northerly from the East/West Quarter line, 

27

ITEM  4.



South 89° 44' 19" West for a distance of 1254.18 feet to a point on the easterly right of way line 

of Union Road; thence along said right of way line, South 00° 00' 10" East for a distance of 

648.01 feet to the North line of the Southwest Quarter of said Section 15; thence along said 

North line,  North 89° 44' 19" East for a distance of 1255.85 feet to the West line of the East Half 

of the Southwest Quarter (E 1/2 SW 1/4) of said Section 15 per Robinson’s Minor Plat; thence 

along said West line, South 00° 00' 22" East for a distance of 1326.46 feet to the South line of 

the North Half of the Southwest Quarter (N 1/2 SW 1/4) of said Section 15; thence along said 

South line, North 89° 46' 52" East a distance of 1337.37 feet to the West line of said Southeast 

Quarter (SE 1/4); thence along the South line of the North Half of said Southeast Quarter (N 1/2 

SE 1/4), North 89° 45' 30" East a distance of 1318.98 feet to the Point of Beginning. 

 

Containing 119 acres, subject to easements of record. 

 

Be and the same is hereby removed from the A-1 Agricultural District and added to the R-1 

Residence District. 

 

Section 2. That the zoning map of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, be and the same is 

hereby amended to show the property described in Section 1, above, as now being in the R-1 

Residence District, and the amended map is hereby ordained to be the zoning map of the City of 

Cedar Falls, Iowa, as amended. 

 

 Section 3. That said Section 26-118, District Boundaries of Division I, Generally, of 

Article III, Districts and District Regulations, of Chapter Twenty-six (26), Zoning, of the Code of 

Ordinances of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, be and the same is hereby repealed and hereby re-

enacted in the identical language as the same now is, in order that the same shall apply to and 

include the change hereby made in the zoning map of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa. 

 

 
INTRODUCED:     September 16, 2019   

PASSED 1ST CONSIDERATION:      

PASSED 2ND CONSIDERATION:      

PASSED 3RD CONSIDERATION:      

ADOPTED:         

 

 

____________________________ 

       James P. Brown, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

 

________________________________ 

Jacqueline Danielsen, MMC, City Clerk  

28

ITEM  4.



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Prepared by: Shane Graham, Economic Development Coordinator, 220 Clay Street, Cedar Falls, IA 50613, (319) 273-8600 

 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 2950 
 

AN ORDINANCE ESTABLISHING A PARTIAL PROPERTY TAX EXEMPTION OF THE 
ACTUAL VALUE ADDED TO REAL ESTATE BY NEW CONSTRUCTION CONSISTING 

OF A 30,000 SQUARE FOOT INDUSTRIAL USE MANUFACTURING AND OFFICE 
FACILITY TO BE CONSTRUCTED ON PROPERTY OWNED BY ACOH, LLC, LOCATED 

AT 6601 DEVELOPMENT DRIVE, CEDAR FALLS, IOWA  
 
 WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, has by ordinance 
provided a partial exemption from property taxation of the actual value added to real estate 
by certain new construction, as authorized in Section 427B.1, Code of Iowa, with said 
exemption being provided for in Division 2, Partial Exemptions for Industrial Property, of 
Article II, Tax Exemptions, of Chapter 21, Taxation, of the Code of Ordinances of the City of 
Cedar Falls, Iowa; and 
 
 WHEREAS, ACOH, LLC, will complete and own an approximate 30,000 square foot 
industrial use manufacturing and office facility by December 31, 2019, to be constructed on 
property owned by ACOH, LLC, located at 6601 Development Drive Cedar Falls, Iowa, and 
legally described as: 
 
Lots 14, 15 and 16, West Viking Road Industrial Park Phase III, City of Cedar Falls, Black 
Hawk County, Iowa (Contains 3.94 acres more or less), 
 
and has requested a partial property tax exemption as provided in the Iowa Code and the 
Cedar Falls Code of Ordinances; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City Council conducted a public hearing on the proposal for said 
exemption on the 5th day of August, 2019, and more than thirty (30) days have elapsed 
since the date of public hearing, as required by Section 427B.1, Code of Iowa; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City Council deems it appropriate pursuant to state law and city 
ordinance to grant said exemption. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
CEDAR FALLS, IOWA: 
 
 Section 1. The City Council of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, by this Ordinance 
hereby grants a partial exemption from property taxation of the actual value added to real 

29

ITEM  6.



estate by new construction of an approximate 30,000 square foot industrial use 
manufacturing and office facility to be constructed by ACOH, LLC, on property owned by 
ACOH, LLC, located at 6601 Development Drive, Cedar Falls, Iowa, and legally described 
as: 
 
Lots 14, 15 and 16, West Viking Road Industrial Park Phase III, City of Cedar Falls, Black 
Hawk County, Iowa (Contains 3.94 acres more or less), 
 
by December 31, 2019, to the extent and upon the terms and conditions provided for in 
Sections 427B.1 through 427B.7 of the Code of Iowa, and Sections 21-48 through 21-57 of 
the Code of Ordinances of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa. Responsibility for the proper and 
timely filing of an application for exemption with the Black Hawk County Assessor is that of 
the property owner. The amount of actual value added which is eligible to be exempt from 
taxation shall be as follows: 
 

1. For the first assessment year after the Minimum Improvements are fully 
assessed, 75% exemption of the actual value added. 

 
2. For the second assessment year after the Minimum Improvements are fully 

assessed, 60% exemption of the actual value added. 
 
3. For the third assessment year after the Minimum Improvements are fully 

assessed, 45% exemption of the actual value added. 
 
4. For the fourth assessment year after the Minimum Improvements are fully 

assessed, 30% exemption of the actual value added. 
 
5. For the fifth assessment year after the Minimum Improvements are fully 

assessed, 15% exemption of the actual value added. 
 
 
INTRODUCED: August 5, 2019 

1ST CONSIDERATION: August 5, 2019 

2ND CONSIDERATION: August 19, 2019 

3RD CONSIDERATION:  

ADOPTED:  

 
 
  ________________________ 
  James P. Brown, Mayor 
ATTEST:   
   
_______________________________   
Jacqueline Danielsen, MMC, City Clerk   

 

30

ITEM  6.



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

Prepared by: Shane Graham, Economic Development Coordinator, 220 Clay Street, Cedar Falls, IA 50613, (319) 273-8600 

 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 2952 
 
AN ORDINANCE ESTABLISHING A PARTIAL PROPERTY TAX EXEMPTION OF THE 

ACTUAL VALUE ADDED TO REAL ESTATE BY NEW CONSTRUCTION 
CONSISTING OF A 20,600 SQUARE FOOT INDUSTRIAL USE LAB AND OFFICE 
FACILITY TO BE CONSTRUCTED ON PROPERTY OWNED BY FN INVESTORS, 

LLC, LOCATED AT 3019 VENTURE WAY, CEDAR FALLS, IOWA  
 
  WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, has by 
ordinance provided a partial exemption from property taxation of the actual value added 
to real estate by certain new construction, as authorized in Section 427B.1, Code of 
Iowa, with said exemption being provided for in Division 2, Partial Exemptions for 
Industrial Property, of Article II, Tax Exemptions, of Chapter 21, Taxation, of the Code of 
Ordinances of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa; and 
 
 WHEREAS, FN Investors, LLC, will complete and own an approximate 20,600 
square foot industrial use lab and office facility by December 31, 2019, to be 
constructed on property owned by FN Investors, LLC, located at 3016 Venture Way 
Cedar Falls, Iowa, and legally described as: 
 
Lot 12, West Viking Road Industrial Park Phase I, and Lot 7, West Viking Road 
Industrial Park Phase II, City of Cedar Falls, Black Hawk County, Iowa (Contains 4.6 
acres more or less), 
 
and has requested a partial property tax exemption as provided in the Iowa Code and 
the Cedar Falls Code of Ordinances; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City Council conducted a public hearing on the proposal for said 
exemption on the 5th day of August, 2019, and more than thirty (30) days have elapsed 
since the date of public hearing, as required by Section 427B.1, Code of Iowa; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City Council deems it appropriate pursuant to state law and city 
ordinance to grant said exemption. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 
OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA: 

31

ITEM  7.



 
 Section 1. The City Council of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, by this Ordinance 
hereby grants a partial exemption from property taxation of the actual value added to 
real estate by new construction of an approximate 20,600 square foot industrial use lab 
and office facility to be constructed by FN Investors, LLC, on property owned by FN 
Investors, LLC, located at 3016 Venture Way, Cedar Falls, Iowa, legally described as: 
 
Lot 12, West Viking Road Industrial Park Phase I, and Lot 7, West Viking Road 
Industrial Park Phase II, City of Cedar Falls, Black Hawk County, Iowa (Contains 4.6 
acres more or less), 
 
by December 31, 2019, to the extent and upon the terms and conditions provided for in 
Sections 427B.1 through 427B.7 of the Code of Iowa, and Sections 21-48 through 21-
57 of the Code of Ordinances of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa. Responsibility for the 
proper and timely filing of an application for exemption with the Black Hawk County 
Assessor is that of the property owner. The amount of actual value added which is 
eligible to be exempt from taxation shall be as follows: 
 

1. For the first assessment year after the Minimum Improvements are fully 
assessed, 75% exemption of the actual value added. 

 

2. For the second assessment year after the Minimum Improvements are 
fully assessed, 60% exemption of the actual value added. 

 

3. For the third assessment year after the Minimum Improvements are fully 
assessed, 45% exemption of the actual value added. 

 

4. For the fourth assessment year after the Minimum Improvements are fully 
assessed, 30% exemption of the actual value added. 

 

5. For the fifth assessment year after the Minimum Improvements are fully 
assessed, 15% exemption of the actual value added. 

 
 
INTRODUCED: August 5, 2019 

1ST CONSIDERATION: August 5, 2019 

2ND CONSIDERATION: August 19, 2019 

3RD CONSIDERATION:  

ADOPTED:  

 
 
  ________________________ 
ATTEST: 
 

 
 

James P. Brown, Mayor 
 

_______________________________   
Jacqueline Danielsen, MMC, City Clerk   
 

32

ITEM  7.



1 
 

 

 

Prepared by: Kevin Rogers, City Attorney, 220 Clay Street, Cedar Falls, IA  50613, (319)273-8600 

 

ORDINANCE NO. 2954 

AN ORDINANCE:  (1).  REPEALING SUBSECTION (A)(17), OF SECTION 23-366, 

PARKING PROHIBITED IN SPECIFIC PLACES AND ENACTING A NEW SUBSECTION 

(A)(17) IN LIEU THEREOF; AND (2).  REPEALING SECTION 23-374, PARKING OF 

LARGE TRUCKS IN STREETS AND MUNICIPAL PARKING LOTS IN ITS ENTIRETY; ALL 

OF DIVISION 1, GENERALLY, OF ARTICLE IV, STOPPING, STANDING AND PARKING, 

OF CHAPTER 23, TRAFFIC AND MOTOR VEHICLES, OF THE CODE OF ORDINANCES 

OF THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA. 

      

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA: 

       Section 1.  Subsection (a)(17) of Section 23-366, Parking Prohibited in Specific Places, of 

Division 1, Generally, of Article IV, Stopping, Standing and Parking, of Chapter 23, Traffic and 

Motor Vehicles, of the Code of Ordinances of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, is hereby repealed 

in its entirety and a new Subsection (a)(17) is enacted in lieu thereof, as follows: 

Sec. 23-366.   Parking prohibited in specified places. 

(a)  No person shall stop, stand or park a vehicle, except when necessary to avoid conflict with other 
traffic or in compliance with the law or the directions of a police officer or traffic control device, in any 
of the following places:  

(1)  On a sidewalk.  

(2)  In front of a public or private driveway.  

(3)  Within an intersection.  

(4)  Within five feet of a fire hydrant.  

(5)  On a crosswalk.  

(6)  Within ten feet upon the approach to any flashing beacon, stop sign or traffic control signal 
located at the side of a roadway.  

(7)  Between a safety zone and the adjacent curb or within ten feet of points on the curb 
immediately opposite the ends of a safety zone, unless the traffic division has indicated a 
different length by signs or markings.  

(8)  Within 50 feet of the nearest rail or a railroad crossing, except when parked parallel with such 
rail and not exhibiting a red light.  

(9)  Within 20 feet of the driveway entrance of any fire station, and on the side of a street opposite 
the entrance to any fire station, within 75 feet of such entrance, only when properly 
signposted.  

33

ITEM  8.



2 
 

(10)  Alongside or opposite any street excavation or obstruction when stopping, standing or parking 
would obstruct traffic.  

(11)  On the roadway side of any vehicle stopped or parked at the edge or curb of a street.  

(12)  Upon any bridge or other elevated structure upon a highway or within a highway tunnel.  

(13)  At any place where official signs prohibit stopping or parking.  

(14)  Upon any street within the corporate limits of the city when parking is prohibited by a general 
ordinance of uniform application relating to the removal of snow and ice from the streets.  

(15)  In front of a curb cut or ramp which is located on public or private property, in a manner which 
blocks access to the curb cut or ramp.  

(16)  On that part of any street in the city between the curb line, if there be a curb, and the sidewalk 
line of the abutting property, nor shall any vehicle be parked on that part of any street not 
having a curb between the edge of the traveled portion of such street and the sidewalk line of 
the abutting property.  

(17)  On any street in the city for a continuous period of more than 48 hours. For purposes of this 
subsection, parking for a continuous period includes any absence for less than four hours.  
Upon expiration of the 48 hour period of continuous parking, a vehicle parked closer than 
2500 feet from the prior location or returned to the prior location in less than 48 hours, is a 
violation of this subsection.  A vehicle in violation of this subsection shall constitute a 
nuisance to be abated as provided by law, or members of the police operations division may 
impound such vehicle as provided in this article.  

 (Code 2017, § 26-261) 

       Section 2.  Section 23-374, Parking of Large Trucks in Streets and Municipal Parking Lots, 

of Division 1, Generally, of Article IV, Stopping, Standing and Parking, of Chapter 23, Traffic and 

Motor Vehicles, of the Code of Ordinances of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, is hereby repealed 

in its entirety. 

 

INTRODUCED:     September 3, 2019   

PASSED 1ST CONSIDERATION:   September 3, 2019   

PASSED 2ND CONSIDERATION:      

PASSED 3RD CONSIDERATION:     

ADOPTED:        

 

 

____________________________ 

       James P. Brown, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

 

________________________________ 

Jacqueline Danielsen, MMC, City Clerk  

34

ITEM  8.



   MAYOR JIM BROWN 

 
CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 
220 CLAY STREET 
CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 50613 
319-273-8600 

FAX 319-268-5126 
M E M O R A N D U M 

Office of the Mayor 
  

 TO: City Council 

 FROM: Mayor Jim Brown 

 DATE: September 6, 2019 

 SUBJECT: Appointment 

 

I am recommending the following appointment: 

 

Name: Board/Commission: Term Ending: 
   
Amanda Lynch Planning & Zoning Commission (fills vacancy) 11/01/2020 
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   

   
 

 
 

35

ITEM  9.



36

ITEM  9.



37

ITEM  9.



COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE 
City Hall – Council Chambers  

September 3, 2019 
 

The Committee of the Whole met in the Council Chambers at 6:25 p.m. on September 
3, 2019, with the following Committee persons in attendance:  Mayor Jim Brown, Tom 
Blanford, Susan deBuhr, Rob Green, Mark Miller, and David Wieland.   Frank Darrah 
and Daryl Kruse were absent.  Staff members attended from all City Departments.  
Amanda Lynch also attended as well as members of the community. 

Mayor Brown called the meeting to order and introduced the first item on the agenda, 
Planning and Zoning Commission Interview – Amanda Lynch.  Ms. Lynch introduced 
herself and stated she has been a lifelong member of the community.  A brief 
discussion was held. 

Mayor Brown introduced the final item on the agenda, bills and payroll. Rob Green 
moved to approve the bills and two payrolls as presented, Mark Miller seconded the 
motion.  The motion carried unanimously.  

There being no further discussion, Mayor Brown adjourned the meeting at 6:27 p.m.  

Minutes by Lisa Roeding, Controller/City Treasurer 

38

ITEM  10.



39

ITEM  11.



40

ITEM  11.



41

ITEM  11.



42

ITEM  11.



43

ITEM  11.



44

ITEM  11.



45

ITEM  11.



46

ITEM  11.



47

ITEM  11.



48

ITEM  11.



49

ITEM  11.



50

ITEM  11.



51

ITEM  11.



52

ITEM  11.



53

ITEM  11.



54

ITEM  11.



55

ITEM  11.



56

ITEM  11.



57

ITEM  11.



58

ITEM  11.



59

ITEM  11.



60

ITEM  11.



61

ITEM  11.



62

ITEM  11.



63

ITEM  11.



64

ITEM  11.



65

ITEM  11.



66

ITEM  11.



67

ITEM  11.



68

ITEM  11.



69

ITEM  11.



70

ITEM  11.



71

ITEM  11.



72

ITEM  11.



73

ITEM  11.



74

ITEM  11.



75

ITEM  11.



76

ITEM  11.



77

ITEM  11.



78

ITEM  11.



79

ITEM  11.



80

ITEM  11.



   DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC SAFETY SERVICES 

  POLICE OPERATIONS 
CITY OF CEDAR FALLS 

  4600 SOUTH MAIN STREET 
  CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 50613 
 

  319-273-8612 
 

MEMORANDUM 

To:  Mayor Brown and City Councilmembers 

From:  Jeff Olson, Public Safety Services Director/Chief of Police 

Date:  September 12, 2019 

Re:  Beer/Liquor License Applications 

Police Operations has received applications for liquor licenses and/ or wine or beer 
permits. We find no records that would prohibit these license and permits and 
recommend approval. 

Name of Applicants:  

a) Metro Mart, 103 Franklin Street, Class C beer - renewal. 

b) Just Dough, 6607 University Avenue, Class B beer - renewal. 

c) Escapology Cedar Falls, 2518 Melrose Drive, Special Class C liquor - renewal. 

d) Doughy Joey's Peetza Joynt, 126 Brandilynn Boulevard, Class C liquor & outdoor 
service - renewal. 

e) Little Bigs, 2210 College Street, Class C liquor - renewal. 

f) The Brass Tap, 421 Main Street, Class C liquor & outdoor service - renewal. 

g) The Landmark, 107 Main Street, Class C liquor & outdoor service - renewal. 

h) Casey's General Store, 1225 Fountains Way, Class E liquor - renewal. 

81

ITEM  12.



82

ITEM  13.



83

ITEM  13.



84

ITEM  13.



85

ITEM  13.



86

ITEM  13.



87

ITEM  13.



88

ITEM  13.



89

ITEM  13.



90

ITEM  13.



91

ITEM  13.



92

ITEM  13.



93

ITEM  13.



94

ITEM  13.



95

ITEM  14.



96

ITEM  14.



97

ITEM  14.



98

ITEM  14.



99

ITEM  14.



100

ITEM  14.



101

ITEM  14.



102

ITEM  14.



103

ITEM  14.



104

ITEM  14.



105

ITEM  14.



106

ITEM  14.



107

ITEM  14.



108

ITEM  15.



109

ITEM  15.



110

ITEM  15.



111

ITEM  15.



112

ITEM  15.



113

ITEM  15.



114

ITEM  15.



115

ITEM  15.



116

ITEM  15.



117

ITEM  15.



DEPARTMENT PUBLIC WORKS 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
501 E. 4th Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-273-8633 
Fax: 319-268-5566 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 

MEMORANDUM 

Water Reclamation Division 

  

  

 

 
 
  

 

 

 

 

 

 TO: Honorable Mayor James P. Brown and City Council Members 

 FROM: Mike Nyman, Manager, Water Reclamation Division 

 DATE: September 9, 2019 

 SUBJECT: Nutrient Reduction Strategy Update 

 

The City’s wastewater treatment facility operates through a permit system managed by 

the Iowa Department of Natural Resources which allows the discharge of treated water 

to ‘Waters of the State’. As part of this permit system all major facilities are required to 

conduct a ‘Nutrient Reduction Strategy’, identifying options, timing, and costs 

associated with reducing nitrogen and phosphorus discharges. An initial report was 

submitted to the IDNR in 2016. This report identified options and costs for nutrient 

reductions, as well as additional improvements needed at the current treatment plant. 

As part of our newest permit, issued August 1, 2019, we are required to complete an 

update to this report.  

 

The original report completed by Black and Veatch looked only at the options to improve 

the current plant.  As part of this update, I feel it is important to look closely at all options 

we could pursue with wastewater treatment, with the goals of providing high quality 

treatment, controlling user rates, and providing long range capacity for industrial, 

commercial, and residential growth. Looking closely at options for potential 

improvements at the current location, the costs of building a new Cedar Falls treatment 

facility, as well as the full costs associated with a combined regional system will be 

included in this update to the original report. 

118

ITEM  16.



Attached is a proposal from Black and Veatch for a Professional Service Agreement to 

meet the goals and requirements mentioned above. The costs for this study are 

expected to be $130,000, with potential contingency work adding another $30,000. This 

comprehensive study will identify all costs associated with the future of the City’s 

wastewater treatment and will be helpful in guiding the decision making process. 

 

If you would like further details or have any questions, please contact me. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

c:  Ron Gaines, City Administrator 

     Chase Schrage, Director of Public Works   

     Jennifer Rodenbeck, Director of Finance and Business Operations 

119

ITEM  16.



120

ITEM  16.



121

ITEM  16.



122

ITEM  16.



123

ITEM  16.



124

ITEM  16.



125

ITEM  16.



126

ITEM  16.



127

ITEM  16.



128

ITEM  16.



129

ITEM  16.



130

ITEM  16.



131

ITEM  16.



132

ITEM  16.



133

ITEM  16.



134

ITEM  16.



135

ITEM  16.



136

ITEM  16.



137

ITEM  16.



138

ITEM  16.



139

ITEM  16.



140

ITEM  16.



141

ITEM  16.



142

ITEM  16.



143

ITEM  16.



144

ITEM  16.



145

ITEM  16.



146

ITEM  16.



DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-268-5161 
Fax: 319-268-5197 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 
MEMORANDUM 

Engineering Division 

  

  

 

 

 
 
 

 

 

 
 TO: Honorable Mayor James P. Brown and City Council 

 FROM: Ben Claypool, Civil Engineer II, PhD, EI 

 DATE: September 10, 2019 

SUBJECT: USGS Streamgaging Station for the Cedar River in Cedar Falls 
  Project No. MC-039-1653 
 
Attached is the Joint Funding Agreement with the U.S. Geological Survey for the federal 
fiscal year 2020 for the continuing support, operation, and maintenance of the 
streamgage site on the Cedar River in Cedar Falls. The agreement also includes the 
continued development of real–time stream flow data at the streamgage site. This is a 
cooperative agreement whereby the U.S. Geological Survey and the City of Cedar Falls 
cost share the operation and maintenance of the streamgage site. 
 
The streamgage is known locally as the “river gauge” and provides the stage readings 
that are the basis for the public alerts given during high water events on the Cedar 
River. The stage readings enable flood forecasts to be generated for Cedar Falls by the 
River Forecast Center of the National Weather Service. The streamgage is located on 
south side of the Highway 57/1st Street Bridge over the Cedar River. 
 
Funding for the continued operation of the streamgage was budgeted for in the 
Engineering Services Budget. 
 
It is recommended that this agreement be approved and returned to me for further 
processing.  If you have any questions or comments regarding this matter, feel free to 
contact me. 
 
 
xc:  Chase Schrage, Director of Public Works 
 David Wicke, City Engineer 
 
 
 
 

147

ITEM  17.



148

ITEM  17.



149

ITEM  17.



150

ITEM  17.



151

ITEM  17.



   DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS 
 

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 
220 CLAY STREET 
CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 50613 
319-268-5161 
FAX 319-268-5197 

 M E M O R A N D U M 
Engineering Division 

 

 TO: Honorable Mayor James P. Brown and City Council 
 
 FROM: Matthew Tolan, EI, Civil Engineer II 
 
 DATE: September 12, 2019 
 
 RE: 2019 Sidewalk Assessment Project, Zone 2 
  Project No. SW-000-3164 
  Contract Documents 
 
 
 
Attached for your approval are the Contract, Bid Tab, Contractor’s Bond, and Certificate 
of Liability Insurance from Feldman Concrete for the construction of the 2019 Sidewalk 
Assessment Project. 
 
The Department of Public Works recommends approving and executing the contract 
with Feldman Concrete for the construction of the 2019 Sidewalk Assessment Project 
for Zone 2. This project will repair deficient sidewalk adjacent to property owners and 
assess the cost of repair to the property owner. 
 
  
If you have any questions or comments feel free to contact me.  
 
 
xc:  Chase Schrage, Director of Public Works 
 David Wicke, City Engineer  
 

152

ITEM  18.



153

ITEM  18.



154

ITEM  18.



155

ITEM  18.



156

ITEM  18.



157

ITEM  18.



158

ITEM  18.



159

ITEM  18.



160

ITEM  18.



161

ITEM  18.



162

ITEM  18.



163

ITEM  18.



164

ITEM  18.



165

ITEM  18.



166

ITEM  18.



167

ITEM  18.



168

ITEM  18.



169

ITEM  18.



DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS  
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-268-5161 
Fax: 319-268-5197 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 
MEMORANDUM 

Engineering Division 

  

  

 

 

 
 
 
 TO: Honorable Mayor James P. Brown and City Council 
 
 FROM: Matthew Tolan, EI, Civil Engineer II 
 
 DATE: September 12, 2019  
 
 SUBJECT: Supplemental Agreement No. 1A  
  Clapsaddle Garber Associates, Inc. 
  Gateway Business Park 
  Construction Related Services 
 
The City of Cedar Falls entered into a Professional Services Agreement with 
Clapsaddle-Garber Associates (CGA) on June 4th, 2018 for construction related 
services.  
 
The Engineering Division requests approval of the attached Supplemental Agreement 
No. 1A for the additional construction related engineering services on the Gateway 
Business Park. 
 
In accordance with subdivision chapter of the City Code, Section 24-5.2 - Inspection 
states that “all improvements shall be inspected to ensure compliance with the 
requirements of this ordinance. The cost of such inspection shall be borne by the 
subdivider, and shall be the actual cost of the inspection to the city.”  The cost of the 
construction related services under this agreement will be billed to the developers. 
 
The Engineering Division requests your consideration and approval of the Supplemental 
Agreement No. 1A with Clapsaddle-Garber Associates, Inc. for construction related 
engineering services during the construction of the public improvements for the 2019 
construction season. If you have any questions or comments feel free to contact me.  
 
att 
 
xc:  Chase Schrage, Director of Public Works  
 David Wicke, City Engineer  
  

170

ITEM  19.



DEPARTMENT OF DEVELOPMENTAL SERVICES
City of Cedar Falls
220 Clay Street
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613
www.cedarfalls.com

Administration Division  Community Services Division  Planning Division
Phone: 319-273-8606  Fax: 319-273-8610

Engineering Division  Inspection Services Division
Phone: 319-268-5161  Fax: 319-268-5197

Supplemental Agreement No. 1A

2018 Construction Observation and Testing Services Agreement for 
Gateway Business Park, 

Cedar Falls, Iowa

WHEREAS, a Professional Services Agreement was entered into by the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa (Client), 
and Clapsaddle-Garber Associates (Consultant), of Marshalltown, Iowa, dated June 4, 2018 for construction 
observation and testing services; and

WHEREAS, the Client and Consultant desire to amend the previous agreement to increase the original not to 
exceed amounts of the Professional Services Agreement outlined above, 

NOW THEREFORE, it is mutually agreed to amend the original Professional Services Agreement as follows: 

I. SCOPE OF SERVICES

The Scope of Services and basis for Compensation derivation are as follows:

A. Gateway Business Park construction period was assumed to be 20 weeks, with approximately 20 
hours of construction observation per week. Construction began in June 2018.  Estimated 
additional construction observation from 7/14/2019 to project completion is 175 hours, not 
including expenses.

B. All other services listed in the Scope of Service shall be provided as originally presented in the 
Professional Services Agreement dated June 4, 2018.

II. COMPENSATION

Compensation for the Services shall be on an hourly basis in accordance with the hourly fees and 
other direct expenses in effect at the time the services are performed.  

A. Total compensation for Gateway Business Park is an increase in the not to exceed fee of
$12,250.00.

III. In all other aspects, the obligations of the Client and Consultant shall remain as specified in the 
Professional Services Agreement dated June 4, 2018. 

171

ITEM  19.



Clapsaddle-Garber Associates Construction Observation and Testing Services
Project No. 5557 Cedar Falls, Iowa

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this agreement on the day and year written below.

APPROVED FOR CLIENT APPROVED FOR CONSULTANT

By: By:

Printed Name: Printed Name:                

Title: Title:                             

Date: Date:

Adam C. Daters

Project Manager

August 27, 2019

172

ITEM  19.



DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-268-5161 
Fax: 319-268-5197 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 
MEMORANDUM 

Engineering Division 

  

  

 

 

 
 
 

 

 

 
 TO: Honorable Mayor James P. Brown and City Council 
 
 FROM: Matthew Tolan, EI, Civil Engineer II 
 
 DATE: September 12, 2019 
 
 SUBJECT: Professional Service Agreement 
  University Avenue Traffic Counts 
  Project No. EN-000-3211 
 
The City of Cedar Falls has completed its final stages of University Avenue. Upon 
completion of this project, traffic will be analyzed in the corridor. The previous traffic 
analysis in this corridor was performed in 2015.   
 
Attached please find the Professional Service Agreement for the 2019 University 
Avenue Traffic Counts Project. The Agreement is for the collection of traffic counts from 
the completed University Avenue Reconstruction Project from Highway 58 to the east 
City limits. The agreement request is for the data collection of turning movements,  
Average Daily Traffic (ADT) counts, and a memo summarizing of the data collected.  
 
The cost of this project falls under our Capital Improvements Program, No. 83, and will 
be funded by the Street Construction Fund.  
 
The Engineering Division requests approval of the attached Professional Services  
Agreement with Foth Infrastructure and Environment, LLC. for the University Ave Traffic 
Counts.  
 
 
If you have any questions or comments feel free to contact me.  
 
 
xc:  Chase Schrage, Director of Public Works 
 David Wicke, City Engineer 

 

173

ITEM  20.



� � � � � � � � � � 	 
 � � � �  � � � � � � � 	 � � �� � � � 	 
 � � � � � � � � � � � � � �� � � � � � � � 	 � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � �  ! "  � # � $ � % � � � # �
w & ' " � � � � ( ) * # � � + � �  , - . ! % � / . � $ � % � � � # �& 0 # � . 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 2 5 8 9 : : ; " < 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 2 5 8 9 3 := � ( � � . . ! � � ( $ � % � � � # �

w > � � ? . /  � # � - . ! % � / . � $ � % � � � # �& 0 # � . 1 2 3 4 5 6 9 8 5 @ 3 9 3 ; " < 1 2 3 4 5 6 9 8 5 @ 3 4 7A "  . ! B . / ' " � "  � # � $ � % � � � # �& 0 # � . 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 2 5 8 9 2 2 ; " < 1 2 3 4 5 6 9 8 5 @ @ 9 9
C D E F G H I J J K J L M N O P Q R S Q T R S T U S V S R W X Q T R W S U Y S S T Z [ U \ ] T ^ V Q O U V _ ` U _ V S a b T c N V [ T P S T U d e e f d g h h i j kl c S T _ S m b d m _ N U S g n n d f S R Q V o Q p N R O d ] l q n g n h d r s t s u v w x y s t t s x s t t s z y { w | } ~ � � � � � � � � � � w v z ~ u y � { x~ s z w t � w � � | � � � � ~ � w � � y t s s y � ~ s z w t � w � � | � � { � w � r s t s u v w x y s t t s x s t t s z y { w | � ~ � � � � � � �� � � � � � � � � � G C � � � [ ^ U \ S ` [ c S T Q T U O \ S V S N T Q ^ U S V O S U ^ [ V U \ d U \ S p Q V U N S O \ S V S U [ P _ U _ Q � � X Q � V S S Q O ^ [ � � [ Y O �� � � � � � � � � � � �   � � � �f ¡ ¢ m £ e ¤ l ¢ ¤ O \ Q � � p S V ^ [ V P p V [ ^ S O O N [ T Q � m S V c N ` S O ¥ U \ S ¦ m S V c N ` S O ¦ § N T ` [ T T S ` U N [ T Y N U \ f e ] b ¢ ¤ ¨ O^ Q ` N � N U N S O N T Q ` ` [ V R Q T ` S Y N U \ U \ S m ` [ p S [ ^ m S V c N ` S O O S U ^ [ V U \ N T b © \ N W N U l Q U U Q ` \ S R \ S V S U [ ª� � � � � � � « ¬ C G � C  � � � � � � � � � ® � ¬ � C � � �f ¡ ¢ m £ e ¤ l ¢ ¤ O \ Q � � d O _ W ¯ S ` U U [ U \ S U S V P O Q T R p V [ c N O N [ T O [ ^ U \ N O l � V S S P S T U �¥ Q § l p p [ N T U [ T S [ V P [ V S N T R N c N R _ Q � O Y \ [ O \ Q � � W S Q _ U \ [ V N ° S R U [ Q ` U [ T W S \ Q � ^ [ ^ f ¡ ¢ m £ e ¤ l ¢ ¤Q T R Y N U \ Y \ [ P f e ] b ¢ ¤ P Q X ` [ T O _ � U Q U Q � � V S Q O [ T Q W � S U N P S O d Q T R Y \ [ O S N T O U V _ ` U N [ T O dV S ± _ S O U O d Q T R R S ` N O N [ T O Y N � � W S W N T R N T � _ p [ T f ¡ ¢ m £ e ¤ l ¢ ¤ Q O U [ Q � � P Q U U S V O p S V U Q N T N T � U [U \ N O l � V S S P S T U Q T R U \ S p S V ^ [ V P Q T ` S [ ^ U \ S p Q V U N S O \ S V S _ T R S V ª¥ W § £ O S Q � � V S Q O [ T Q W � S S ^ ^ [ V U O U [ ` [ P p � S U S U \ S m S V c N ` S O Y N U \ N T U \ S U N P S p S V N [ R P _ U _ Q � � X Q � V S S R_ p [ T d S © ` S p U ^ [ V V S Q O [ T O W S X [ T R N U O ` [ T U V [ � d Q O O S U ^ [ V U \ N T b © \ N W N U l ª¥ ` § ² S V ^ [ V P U \ S m S V c N ` S O N T Q ` ` [ V R Q T ` S Y N U \ � S T S V Q � � X Q ` ` S p U S R p V [ ^ S O O N [ T Q � S T � N T S S V N T �O U Q T R Q V R O N T S © N O U S T ` S Q U U \ S U N P S [ ^ p S V ^ [ V P Q T ` S [ ^ U \ S m S V c N ` S O ª ] ^ R _ V N T � U \ S U Y [ X S Q Vp S V N [ R ^ [ � � [ Y N T � U \ S ` [ P p � S U N [ T [ ^ m S V c N ` S O d N U N O O \ [ Y T U \ Q U U \ S V S N O Q T S V V [ V N T U \ S m S V c N ` S OO [ � S � X Q O Q V S O _ � U [ ^ f ¡ ¢ m £ e ¤ l ¢ ¤ ¨ O ^ Q N � _ V S U [ P S S U U \ S O S O U Q T R Q V R O d f ¡ ¢ m £ e ¤ l ¢ ¤ O \ Q � �V S ³ p S V ^ [ V P O _ ` \ O _ W O U Q T R Q V R m S V c N ` S O Q O P Q X W S T S ` S O O Q V X U [ V S P S R X O _ ` \ S V V [ V Q U T [` [ O U U [ f e ] b ¢ ¤ ª m N T ` S f ¡ ¢ m £ e ¤ l ¢ ¤ \ Q O T [ ` [ T U V [ � [ c S V � [ ` Q � ` [ T R N U N [ T O d U \ S ` [ O U [ ^ � Q W [ VQ T R P Q U S V N Q � O d [ V [ c S V ` [ P p S U N U N c S W N R R N T � Q T R P Q V ´ S U ` [ T R N U N [ T O d f ¡ ¢ m £ e ¤ l ¢ ¤ R [ S O T [ U� _ Q V Q T U S S U \ S Q ` ` _ V Q ` X [ ^ Q T X ` [ T O U V _ ` U N [ T ` [ O U S O U N P Q U S O Q O ` [ P p Q V S R U [ ` [ T U V Q ` U [ V ¨ O W N R O[ V U \ S Q ` U _ Q � ` [ O U U [ U \ S f e ] b ¢ ¤ ª f ¡ ¢ m £ e ¤ l ¢ ¤ P Q ´ S O T [ [ U \ S V Y Q V V Q T U N S O S N U \ S V S © p V S O O{ t u µ ¶ � u s z w v z y r s ¶ w t y u s | · t u ¸ r y | � � u w ¹ u � u y u s | � t s | ¶ { v | u ¹ u � u y u s | w v z t s µ s z u s | � u y r t s | ¶ s º y y { U \ S± _ Q � N U X [ ^ m S V c N ` S O d N T ` � _ R N T � ` � Q N P O Q � � S � N T � T S � � N � S T ` S d W V S Q ` \ [ ^ Y Q V V Q T U X Q T R W V S Q ` \ [ ^

174

ITEM  20.



` [ T U V Q ` U d O \ Q � � W S S © ` � _ O N c S � X U \ [ O S O S U ^ [ V U \ \ S V S N T ª¥ R § f ¡ ¢ m £ e ¤ l ¢ ¤ O \ Q � � d N ^ V S ± _ S O U S R N T Y V N U N T � W X f e ] b ¢ ¤ d ^ [ V U \ S p V [ U S ` U N [ T [ ^ f e ] b ¢ ¤ dV S ± _ N V S ^ V [ P Q � � c S T R [ V O Q T R O _ W ` [ T U V Q ` U [ V O ^ V [ P Y \ N ` \ f ¡ ¢ m £ e ¤ l ¢ ¤ p V [ ` _ V S OS ± _ N p P S T U d P Q U S V N Q � O [ V O S V c N ` S O ^ [ V U \ S p V [ ¯ S ` U d � _ Q V Q T U S S O Y N U \ V S O p S ` U U [ O _ ` \S ± _ N p P S T U d P Q U S V N Q � O Q T R O S V c N ` S O ª l � � O _ ` \ � _ Q V Q T U S S O O \ Q � � W S P Q R S Q c Q N � Q W � S U [ f e ] b ¢ ¤U [ U \ S ^ _ � � S © U S T U [ ^ U \ S U S V P O U \ S V S [ ^ ª f ¡ ¢ m £ e ¤ l ¢ ¤ ¨ O � N Q W N � N U X Y N U \ V S O p S ` U U [ O _ ` \S ± _ N p P S T U d Q T R P Q U S V N Q � O [ W U Q N T S R ^ V [ P c S T R [ V O [ V O S V c N ` S O ^ V [ P O _ W ` [ T U V Q ` U [ V O d O \ Q � � W S� N P N U S R U [ p V [ ` _ V N T � � _ Q V Q T U S S O ^ V [ P O _ ` \ c S T R [ V O [ V O _ W ` [ T U V Q ` U [ V O Q T R V S T R S V N T � Q � �V S Q O [ T Q W � S Q O O N O U Q T ` S U [ f e ] b ¢ ¤ ^ [ V U \ S p _ V p [ O S [ ^ S T ^ [ V ` N T � U \ S O Q P S ª¥ S § f ¡ ¢ m £ e ¤ l ¢ ¤ Y N � � W S p V [ c N R N T � S O U N P Q U S O [ ^ ` [ O U O U [ U \ S f e ] b ¢ ¤ ` [ c S V N T � Q T S © U S T R S Rp S V N [ R [ ^ U N P S ª f ¡ ¢ m £ e ¤ l ¢ ¤ R [ S O T [ U \ Q c S ` [ T U V [ � [ c S V Q T X O _ ` \ ` [ O U O d N T ` � _ R N T � d W _ U T [ U� N P N U S R U [ d ` [ O U O [ ^ � Q W [ V d P Q U S V N Q � d S ± _ N p P S T U [ V O S V c N ` S O ^ _ V T N O \ S R W X [ U \ S V O [ V [ c S Vº { µ ¶ s y u y u » s ¹ u z z u v ¸ � µ w t ¼ s y u v ¸ { t v s ¸ { y u w y u v ¸ º { v z u y u { v | � { t º { v | y t ½ º y u { v º { v y t w º y { t | ·P S U \ [ R O [ ^ R S U S V P N T N T � U \ S N V p V N ` S O ª l ` ` [ V R N T � � X d N U N O Q ` ´ T [ Y � S R � S R Q T R _ T R S V O U [ [ R U \ Q UQ T X S O U N P Q U S O d p V [ ¯ S ` U N [ T O [ V [ p N T N [ T O [ ^ p V [ W Q W � S p V [ ¯ S ` U ` [ O U O p V [ c N R S R \ S V S N T W X~ � � � � � � � � � w t s s | y u µ w y s | { v � � � µ w z s { v y r s ¹ w | u | { x ~ � � � � � � � � � · | s ¾ ¶ s t u s v º s w v zt s ¶ t s | s v y ~ � � � � � � � � � · | t s w | { v w ¹ � s ¿ ½ z ¸ µ s v U Q O Q ± _ Q � N ^ N S R p V [ ^ S O O N [ T Q � ªf ¡ ¢ m £ e ¤ l ¢ ¤ R [ S O T [ U � _ Q V Q T U S S U \ Q U p V [ p [ O Q � O d W N R O [ V Q ` U _ Q � p V [ ¯ S ` U ` [ O U O Y N � � T [ U c Q V X^ V [ P U \ S [ p N T N [ T O [ ^ p V [ W Q W � S ` [ O U O p V S p Q V S R W X f ¡ ¢ m £ e ¤ l ¢ ¤ d Q T R U \ S f e ] b ¢ ¤ Y Q N c S OQ T X Q T R Q � � ` � Q N P O U \ Q U N U P Q X \ Q c S Q � Q N T O U f ¡ ¢ m £ e ¤ l ¢ ¤ Q O Q V S O _ � U [ ^ Q T X O _ ` \ c Q V N Q T ` S ª� � � � À Á Â Ã Ä Å Æ Ç È Ã Ç É Ê Ä Ç Â Ë Â Á Â Å Â Ã Çf e ] b ¢ ¤ O \ Q � � Q U O _ ` \ U N P S O Q O P Q X W S V S ± _ N V S R ^ [ V U \ S O _ ` ` S O O ^ _ � Q T R S © p S R N U N [ _ O ` [ P p � S U N [ T [ ^ U \ Sm S V c N ` S O �¥ Q § Ì t { » u z s w � � º t u y s t u w w v z u v x { t µ w y u { v w | y { ~ � � � � � · | t s Í ½ u t s µ s v y | Î { ¹ y w u v w � � v s º s | | w t �Q p p V [ c Q � O Q T R p S V P N U O V S ± _ N V S R ^ V [ P Q � � � [ c S V T P S T U Q � Q _ U \ [ V N U N S O \ Q c N T � ¯ _ V N O R N ` U N [ T [ c S Vy r s ¶ t { ¿ s º y Î w v z z s | u ¸ v w y s w ¶ s t | { v � u y r w ½ y r { t u y � y { w º y { v ~ � � � � � · | ¹ s r w � x { v w � � µ w y y s t |` [ T ` S V T N T � U \ S m S V c N ` S O ª¥ W § Z _ V T N O \ U [ f ¡ ¢ m £ e ¤ l ¢ ¤ Q � � S © N O U N T � O U _ R N S O d V S p [ V U O Q T R [ U \ S V Q c Q N � Q W � S R Q U Q p S V U N T S T U U [U \ S m S V c N ` S O d Q T R [ W U Q N T Q R R N U N [ T Q � V S p [ V U O d R Q U Q Q T R O S V c N ` S O Q O P Q X W S V S ± _ N V S R ^ [ V U \ Sp V [ ¯ S ` U ª f ¡ ¢ m £ e ¤ l ¢ ¤ O \ Q � � W S S T U N U � S R U [ V S � X _ p [ T Q � � O _ ` \ N T ^ [ V P Q U N [ T d R Q U Q Q T R U \ SV S O _ � U O [ ^ O _ ` \ [ U \ S V O S V c N ` S O N T p S V ^ [ V P N T � N U O m S V c N ` S O \ S V S _ T R S V ª�   � � � � « � G � � � � � Ï « � � � Ð � � C � � � � � � � C � G � C � � � � � � C Ñ � � � C Ò � � � � � G � � G ¬ ¬ �¤ \ S p V [ c N O N [ T O [ ^ U \ S R [ ` _ P S T U S T U N U � S R d ¦ ] T O _ V Q T ` S o S ± _ N V S P S T U O ^ [ V f [ T U V Q ` U [ V O ^ [ V U \ S f N U X [ ^f S R Q V Z Q � � O d ¦ Y \ N ` \ Q V S Q U U Q ` \ S R \ S V S U [ d P Q V ´ S R b © \ N W N U Ó d Q V S \ S V S W X P Q R S Q p Q V U [ ^ U \ N Ol � V S S P S T U Q O N ^ O S U [ _ U Y [ V R ^ [ V Y [ V R \ S V S N T ªf ¡ ¢ m £ e ¤ l ¢ ¤ O \ Q � � ^ _ V T N O \ U [ f e ] b ¢ ¤ Q ` S V U N ^ N ` Q U S [ V ` S V U N ^ N ` Q U S O [ ^ N T O _ V Q T ` S ` [ T U Q N T N T � Q � �` [ c S V Q � S O d S T R [ V O S P S T U O Q T R [ U \ S V p V [ c N O N [ T O V S ± _ N V S R W X U \ S ] T O _ V Q T ` S o S ± _ N V S P S T U O O S U ^ [ V U \N T b © \ N W N U Ó ª ] T U \ S S c S T U [ ^ Q T X ` [ T ^ � N ` U W S U Y S S T U \ S p V [ c N O N [ T O [ ^ b © \ N W N U Ó Q T R U \ S [ U \ S V U S V P O [ ^U \ N O l � V S S P S T U d U \ S p V [ c N O N [ T O [ ^ b © \ N W N U Ó O \ Q � � ` [ T U V [ � ªf ¡ ¢ m £ e ¤ l ¢ ¤ O \ Q � � [ W U Q N T Q T R P Q N T U Q N T Q T N T O _ V Q T ` S p [ � N ` X [ V p [ � N ` N S O U \ Q U P S S U U \ S p V [ c N O N [ T OO S U [ _ U N T U \ S ] T O _ V Q T ` S o S ± _ N V S P S T U O ^ [ V f [ T U V Q ` U [ V O ^ [ V U \ S f N U X [ ^ f S R Q V Z Q � � O d Q U U Q ` \ S R \ S V S U [Q T R P Q V ´ S R b © \ N W N U Ó ª
175

ITEM  20.



  � � C G � � G � � C � � Ð � G � � � � � � � C � � � � � � � � � � C � G � C � ® � C Ô � � � � � � C � G � C � � � Ô Ñ �� � � � � � Ð � � � � � � � � � � G ¬ � � �   � � � � G � � C Ñ � � � C Ò � � � � � G � � G ¬ ¬ �¤ \ S p V [ c N O N [ T O [ ^ U \ S R [ ` _ P S T U O s v y u y � s z } � y w v z w t z � s t µ | w v z ~ { v z u y u { v | x { t ~ { v y t w º y | Õ s y � s s v~ { v y t w º y { t | Ö r { Ì s t x { t µ Ì t { x s | | u { v w � � s t » u º s | w v z y r s ~ u y � { x ~ s z w t � w � � | � � º { v | u | y u v ¸ { x y � {p Q � S O Q V S N T ` [ V p [ V Q U S R N T U [ U \ N O l � V S S P S T U W X U \ S f � N S T U Q T R Q U U Q ` \ S R Q O b © \ N W N U f ª  � � � � Ð � � � � G C � � � G � � C � � Ð � � � � G Ò Ð � � Cf [ P p S T O Q U N [ T ^ [ V U \ S O S V c N ` S O O \ Q � � W S [ T Q T \ [ _ V � X W Q O N O N T Q ` ` [ V R Q T ` S Y N U \ U \ S \ [ _ V � X ^ S S O Q T R[ U \ S V R N V S ` U S © p S T O S O N T S ^ ^ S ` U Q U U \ S U N P S U \ S O S V c N ` S O Q V S p S V ^ [ V P S R ª ¤ [ U Q � ` [ P p S T O Q U N [ T N O QT [ U U [ S © ` S S R Q ^ S S [ ^ Z [ _ V U S S T U \ [ _ O Q T R R [ � � Q V O ¥ × h g d n n n ª n n § ªf ¡ ¢ m £ e ¤ l ¢ ¤ P Q X W N � � U \ S f e ] b ¢ ¤ P [ T U \ � X ^ [ V O S V c N ` S O ` [ P p � S U S R Q U U \ S U N P S [ ^ W N � � N T � ª f e ] b ¢ ¤Q � V S S O U [ p Q X f ¡ ¢ m £ e ¤ l ¢ ¤ U \ S ^ _ � � Q P [ _ T U [ ^ O _ ` \ N T c [ N ` S Y N U \ N T U \ N V U X ¥ Ø n § R Q X O Q ^ U S V V S ` S N p UU \ S V S [ ^ ª ] T U \ S S c S T U f e ] b ¢ ¤ R N O p _ U S O Q T X N T c [ N ` S N U S P d f e ] b ¢ ¤ O \ Q � � � N c S f ¡ ¢ m £ e ¤ l ¢ ¤ Y V N U U S TT [ U N ` S [ ^ O _ ` \ R N O p _ U S R N U S P Y N U \ N T U S T ¥ h n § R Q X O Q ^ U S V V S ` S N p U [ ^ N T c [ N ` S Q T R O \ Q � � p Q X U [f ¡ ¢ m £ e ¤ l ¢ ¤ U \ S _ T R N O p _ U S R p [ V U N [ T [ ^ U \ S N T c [ N ` S Q ` ` [ V R N T � U [ U \ S p V [ c N O N [ T O \ S V S [ ^ ª f e ] b ¢ ¤Q � V S S O U [ Q W N R S W X Q T X Q p p � N ` Q W � S O U Q U _ U [ V X p V [ P p U p Q X p V [ c N O N [ T O ` _ V V S T U � X N T S ^ ^ S ` U ª  � � � C � � Ð � � G C � � �f e ] b ¢ ¤ P Q X d Y N U \ [ V Y N U \ [ _ U ` Q _ O S d U S V P N T Q U S U \ S m S V c N ` S O Q U Q T X U N P S _ p [ T ^ [ _ V U S S T ¥ h g § R Q X OY V N U U S T T [ U N ` S U [ f ¡ ¢ m £ e ¤ l ¢ ¤ ª ¤ \ S [ W � N � Q U N [ T U [ p V [ c N R S ^ _ V U \ S V m S V c N ` S O _ T R S V U \ N O l � V S S P S T UP Q X W S U S V P N T Q U S R W X S N U \ S V p Q V U X _ p [ T ^ [ _ V U S S T ¥ h g § R Q X O ¨ Y V N U U S T T [ U N ` S N T U \ S S c S T U [ ^ O _ W O U Q T U N Q �^ Q N � _ V S W X U \ S [ U \ S V p Q V U X U [ p S V ^ [ V P N T Q ` ` [ V R Q T ` S Y N U \ U \ S U S V P O \ S V S [ ^ U \ V [ _ � \ T [ ^ Q _ � U [ ^ U \ SU S V P N T Q U N T � p Q V U X d p V [ c N R N T � O _ ` \ R S ^ Q _ � U N T � p Q V U X \ Q O T [ U ` _ V S R O _ ` \ ^ Q N � _ V S d [ V d N T U \ S S c S T U [ ^ QT [ T ³ P [ T S U Q V X R S ^ Q _ � U d ` [ P P S T ` S R V S Q O [ T Q W � S Q ` U N [ T O U [ ` _ V S O _ ` \ ^ Q N � _ V S ª ] T S N U \ S V ` Q O S df ¡ ¢ m £ e ¤ l ¢ ¤ Y N � � W S p Q N R ^ [ V Q � � S © p S T O S O N T ` _ V V S R Q T R m S V c N ` S O V S T R S V S R U [ U \ S R Q U S [ ^ U \ SU S V P N T Q U N [ T N T Q ` ` [ V R Q T ` S Y N U \ ` [ P p S T O Q U N [ T U S V P O [ ^ l V U N ` � S Ù ] ª  � � � � � Ô � � � � Ñ � � � � � � � « Ð � � C �¥ Q § m S Q � S R [ V N � N T Q � R V Q Y N T � O d O p S ` N ^ N ` Q U N [ T O d ^ N T Q � p V [ ¯ S ` U O p S ` N ^ N ` ` Q � ` _ � Q U N [ T O Q T R [ U \ S VN T O U V _ P S T U O [ ^ O S V c N ` S Y \ N ` \ f ¡ ¢ m £ e ¤ l ¢ ¤ p V S p Q V S O Q T R R S � N c S V O U [ f e ] b ¢ ¤ p _ V O _ Q T U U [U \ N O l � V S S P S T U O \ Q � � W S ` [ P S U \ S p V [ p S V U X [ ^ f e ] b ¢ ¤ Y \ S T f ¡ ¢ m £ e ¤ l ¢ ¤ \ Q O W S S T` [ P p S T O Q U S R ^ [ V m S V c N ` S O V S T R S V S R ª f e ] b ¢ ¤ O \ Q � � \ Q c S U \ S V N � \ U U [ _ O S O _ ` \ N T O U V _ P S T U O[ ^ O S V c N ` S O [ � S � X ^ [ V U \ S p _ V p [ O S [ ^ U \ S ` [ T O U V _ ` U N [ T d [ p S V Q U N [ T Q T R P Q N T U S T Q T ` S [ ^ U \ S� w º u � u y u s | � � v � { y r s t ½ | s { t t s ½ | s { x { t u ¸ u v w � { t w � y s t s z x u � s | | r w � � ¹ s w y ~ � � � � � · | | { � s t u | ¼Y N U \ [ _ U � N Q W N � N U X [ V � S � Q � S © p [ O _ V S U [ f ¡ ¢ m £ e ¤ l ¢ ¤ Q T R f e ] b ¢ ¤ Q � V S S O U [ V S � S Q O S d R S ^ S T RQ T R \ [ � R f ¡ ¢ m £ e ¤ l ¢ ¤ \ Q V P � S O O ^ V [ P Q T R Q � Q N T O U Q � � ` � Q N P O [ V O _ N U O Q O O S V U S R Q � Q N T O Uf ¡ ¢ m £ e ¤ l ¢ ¤ N T U \ S S c S T U O _ ` \ R [ ` _ P S T U O Q V S _ O S R ^ [ V Q p _ V p [ O S R N ^ ^ S V S T U U \ Q T [ V N � N T Q � � Xp V S p Q V S R S c S T U \ [ _ � \ O _ ` \ ` � Q N P O [ V O _ N U O P Q X W S W Q O S R [ T Q � � S � Q U N [ T O [ ^ T S � � N � S T ` S W Xf ¡ ¢ m £ e ¤ l ¢ ¤ ª ¢ [ U \ N T � ` [ T U Q N T S R N T U \ N O p Q V Q � V Q p \ O \ Q � � W S ` [ T O U V _ S R Q O � N P N U N T � [ VR S p V N c N T � f ¡ ¢ m £ e ¤ l ¢ ¤ [ ^ N U O V N � \ U O U [ _ O S N U O W Q O N ` ´ T [ Y � S R � S Q T R O ´ N � � O U [ R S O N � T [ V` Q V V X [ _ U [ U \ S V p V [ ¯ S ` U O [ V Y [ V ´ ^ [ V N U O S � ^ [ V [ U \ S V O d Y \ S U \ S V [ V T [ U O _ ` \ [ U \ S V p V [ ¯ S ` U O [ VY [ V ´ Q V S O N P N � Q V U [ U \ S Y [ V ´ U [ W S p S V ^ [ V P S R p _ V O _ Q T U U [ U \ N O l � V S S P S T U ª¥ W § l T X ^ N � S O R S � N c S V S R N T S � S ` U V [ T N ` P S R N _ P P Q X T [ U Y [ V ´ [ T O X O U S P O Q T R O [ ^ U Y Q V S R N ^ ^ S V S T UU \ Q T U \ [ O S Y N U \ Y \ N ` \ U \ S X Y S V S [ V N � N T Q � � X p V [ R _ ` S R Q T R f ¡ ¢ m £ e ¤ l ¢ ¤ P Q ´ S O T [Y Q V V Q T U X Q O U [ U \ S ` [ P p Q U N W N � N U X [ ^ U \ S O S ^ N � S O Y N U \ Q T X [ U \ S V O X O U S P [ V O [ ^ U Y Q V S ª Ó S ` Q _ O S [ ^U \ S p [ U S T U N Q � R S � V Q R Q U N [ T [ ^ S � S ` U V [ T N ` P S R N _ P [ c S V U N P S d N T U \ S S c S T U [ ^ Q ` [ T ^ � N ` U W S U Y S S TU \ S O S Q � S R [ V N � N T Q � R V Q Y N T � O Q T R U \ S S � S ` U V [ T N ` ^ N � S O d U \ S O S Q � S R R V Q Y N T � O Y N � � � [ c S V T ª� Ú � Ð � G � � G � � Ð � C Ñ � � �
176

ITEM  20.



¥ Q § f ¡ ¢ m £ e ¤ l ¢ ¤ O \ Q � � T [ U \ Q c S ` [ T U V [ � [ V ` \ Q V � S [ ^ Q T R O \ Q � � T [ U W S V S O p [ T O N W � S ^ [ V` [ T O U V _ ` U N [ T P S Q T O d P S U \ [ R O d U S ` \ T N ± _ S O d O S ± _ S T ` S O [ V p V [ ` S R _ V S O d [ V ^ [ V O Q ^ S U XP S Q O _ V S O Q T R p V [ � V Q P O N T ` � _ R N T � S T ^ [ V ` S P S T U [ ^ Z S R S V Q � Q T R m U Q U S O Q ^ S U X V S ± _ N V S P S T U O dN T ` [ T T S ` U N [ T Y N U \ ` [ T O U V _ ` U N [ T Y [ V ´ p S V ^ [ V P S R W X f e ] b ¢ ¤ ¨ O ` [ T O U V _ ` U N [ T ` [ T U V Q ` U [ V O ª ¢ [ VO \ Q � � f ¡ ¢ m £ e ¤ l ¢ ¤ W S V S O p [ T O N W � S ^ [ V U \ S O _ p S V c N O N [ T [ ^ f e ] b ¢ ¤ ¨ O ` [ T O U V _ ` U N [ T` [ T U V Q ` U [ V O d O _ W ` [ T U V Q ` U [ V O [ V [ ^ Q T X [ ^ U \ S N V S P p � [ X S S O d Q � S T U O Q T R V S p V S O S T U Q U N c S O [ ^O _ ` \ ` [ T U V Q ` U [ V O Û [ V ^ [ V N T O p S ` U N T � P Q ` \ N T S V X d ` [ T O U V _ ` U N [ T S ± _ N p P S T U Q T R U [ [ � O _ O S R Q T RS P p � [ X S R W X ` [ T U V Q ` U [ V O Q T R O _ W ` [ T U V Q ` U [ V O [ T f e ] b ¢ ¤ ¨ O ` [ T O U V _ ` U N [ T p V [ ¯ S ` U O Q T R O \ Q � �T [ U \ Q c S U \ S V N � \ U U [ O U [ p [ V V S ¯ S ` U Y [ V ´ Y N U \ [ _ U U \ S U \ [ V [ _ � \ S c Q � _ Q U N [ T Q T R Q p p V [ c Q � [ ^ U \ Sf e ] b ¢ ¤ ª ] T T [ S c S T U O \ Q � � f ¡ ¢ m £ e ¤ l ¢ ¤ W S � N Q W � S ^ [ V U \ S Q ` U O [ V [ P N O O N [ T O [ ^ f e ] b ¢ ¤ ¨ O` [ T O U V _ ` U N [ T ` [ T U V Q ` U [ V O d O _ W ` [ T U V Q ` U [ V O [ V Q T X p S V O [ T O [ V S T U N U N S O p S V ^ [ V P N T � Q T X [ ^ U \ S` [ T O U V _ ` U N [ T Y [ V ´ d [ V ^ [ V U \ S ^ Q N � _ V S [ ^ Q T X [ ^ U \ S P U [ ` Q V V X [ _ U ` [ T O U V _ ` U N [ T Y [ V ´ _ T R S V` [ T U V Q ` U O Y N U \ f e ] b ¢ ¤ ªÚ � � � � � � � � � � � C � � � C � G � C � �f ¡ ¢ m £ e ¤ l ¢ ¤ O \ Q � � W S Q T N T R S p S T R S T U ` [ T U V Q ` U [ V Y N U \ V S O p S ` U U [ U \ S m S V c N ` S O U [ W S p S V ^ [ V P S R\ S V S _ T R S V ª ¢ S N U \ S V f ¡ ¢ m £ e ¤ l ¢ ¤ T [ V N U O O _ W ` [ T U V Q ` U [ V O d T [ V U \ S S P p � [ X S S O [ ^ S N U \ S V d O \ Q � � W SR S S P S R U [ W S U \ S O S V c Q T U O d S P p � [ X S S O d [ V Q � S T U O [ ^ f e ] b ¢ ¤ ªÚ � � � � � Ü � Ú � � C � � Ý � � � � � C � � � �l T X U \ N T � \ S V S N T U [ U \ S ` [ T U V Q V X T [ U Y N U \ O U Q T R N T � d f ¡ ¢ m £ e ¤ l ¢ ¤ O \ Q � � \ Q c S T [ � S � Q � V S O p [ T O N W N � N U X [ V� N Q W N � N U X ^ [ V Q T X Q T R Q � � p V S ³ S © N O U N T � ` [ T U Q P N T Q U N [ T ª ¦ ² V S ³ S © N O U N T � ` [ T U Q P N T Q U N [ T ¦ N O Q T X \ Q ° Q V R [ _ O [ VU [ © N ` O _ W O U Q T ` S p V S O S T U Q U U \ S O N U S [ V O N U S O ` [ T ` S V T S R Y \ N ` \ Y Q O T [ U W V [ _ � \ U [ T U [ O _ ` \ O N U S [ V O N U S OW X f ¡ ¢ m £ e ¤ l ¢ ¤ ª f e ] b ¢ ¤ Q � V S S O U [ V S � S Q O S f ¡ ¢ m £ e ¤ l ¢ ¤ ^ V [ P Q T R Q � Q N T O U Q T X Q T R Q � � � N Q W N � N U XU [ U \ S f e ] b ¢ ¤ Y \ N ` \ P Q X N T Q T X P Q T T S V Q V N O S N T Q T X Y Q X R N V S ` U � X [ V N T R N V S ` U � X ` Q _ O S R W X O _ ` \ p V S ³S © N O U N T � ` [ T U Q P N T Q U N [ T S © ` S p U N ^ O _ ` \ � N Q W N � N U X Q V N O S O ^ V [ P f ¡ ¢ m £ e ¤ l ¢ ¤ ¨ O O [ � S T S � � N � S T ` S [ V Y N � � ^ _ �P N O ` [ T R _ ` U ª~ � � � � � | r w � � � w y ~ � � � � � · | | { � s s ¾ ¶ s v | s w v z t u | ¼ � w t t w v ¸ s x { t r w v z � u v ¸ � | y { t w ¸ s � y t w v | ¶ { t y w y u { v �U V S Q U P S T U Q T R R S � N c S V X ^ [ V R N O p [ O Q � [ ^ p V S ³ S © N O U N T � ` [ T U Q P N T Q U N [ T ª f e ] b ¢ ¤ O \ Q � � W S O [ � S � XV S O p [ T O N W � S ^ [ V [ W U Q N T N T � Q R N O p [ O Q � O N U S ^ [ V O _ ` \ P Q U S V N Q � ª f e ] b ¢ ¤ O \ Q � � � [ [ ´ U [ U \ S R N O p [ O Q � ^ Q ` N � N U XQ T R Þ [ V U V Q T O p [ V U S V ^ [ V Q T X V S O p [ T O N W N � N U X [ V � N Q W N � N U X Q V N O N T � ^ V [ P N P p V [ p S V R N O p [ O Q � [ V U V Q T O p [ V U Q U N [ T [ ^| ½ º r � w | y s � ~ � � � � � � � � � | r w � � v { y r w » s { t s ¾ s t y w v � º { v y t { � { » s t ~ � � � � � u v ~ � � � � � · |[ W � N � Q U N [ T O [ V V S O p [ T O N W N � N U N S O Q O Q � S T S V Q U [ V N T U \ S O U [ V Q � S d U V Q T O p [ V U Q U N [ T d U V S Q U P S T U [ V R N O p [ O Q � [ ^Q T X p V S ³ S © N O U N T � ` [ T U Q P N T Q U N [ T ª f e ] b ¢ ¤ O \ Q � � ` [ P p � S U S Q T R S © S ` _ U S Q T X � [ c S V T P S T U Q � � X V S ± _ N V S R^ [ V P O V S � Q U N T � U [ V S � _ � Q U S R Q ` U N c N U N S O N T ` � _ R N T � d W _ U T [ U � N P N U S R U [ � S T S V Q U N [ T d O U [ V Q � S d \ Q T R � N T � dU V S Q U P S T U d U V Q T O p [ V U Q U N [ T d [ V R N O p [ O Q � [ ^ p V S ³ S © N O U N T � ` [ T U Q P N T Q U N [ T ªZ [ V f ¡ ¢ m £ e ¤ l ¢ ¤ ¨ O m S V c N ` S O V S ± _ N V N T � R V N � � N T � d W [ V N T � d S © ` Q c Q U N [ T [ V O [ N � O O Q P p � N T � d f e ] b ¢ ¤ O \ Q � �Q p p V [ c S O S � S ` U N [ T [ ^ U \ S ` [ T U V Q ` U [ V O U [ p S V ^ [ V P O _ ` \ O S V c N ` S O d Q � � O N U S � [ ` Q U N [ T O d Q T R p V [ c N R Sf ¡ ¢ m £ e ¤ l ¢ ¤ Y N U \ Q � � T S ` S O O Q V X N T ^ [ V P Q U N [ T V S � Q V R N T � U \ S p V S O S T ` S [ ^ _ T R S V � V [ _ T R \ Q ° Q V R O d_ U N � N U N S O d O U V _ ` U _ V S O Q T R ` [ T R N U N [ T O Q U U \ S O N U S ªÚ � � � � � � � « C � � � � � ¬ « C � � �] ^ Q R N O p _ U S Q V N O S O [ _ U [ ^ d [ V V S � Q U S O U [ d U \ S W V S Q ` \ [ ^ U \ N O l � V S S P S T U Q T R N ^ U \ S R N O p _ U S ` Q T T [ U W SO S U U � S R U \ V [ _ � \ T S � [ U N Q U N [ T d U \ S T U \ S f ¡ ¢ m £ e ¤ l ¢ ¤ Q T R U \ S f e ] b ¢ ¤ Q � V S S U [ O _ W P N U U \ S R N O p _ U S U [P S R N Q U N [ T ª ] T U \ S S c S T U f ¡ ¢ m £ e ¤ l ¢ ¤ [ V U \ S f e ] b ¢ ¤ R S O N V S O U [ P S R N Q U S Q T X R N O p _ U S d U \ Q U p Q V U XO \ Q � � T [ U N ^ X U \ S [ U \ S V p Q V U X N T Y V N U N T � [ ^ U \ S R N O p _ U S R S O N V S R U [ W S P S R N Q U S R ª ] ^ U \ S p Q V U N S O Q V S _ T Q W � SU [ V S O [ � c S U \ S N V R N ^ ^ S V S T ` S O Y N U \ N T h n R Q X O [ ^ U \ S V S ` S N p U [ ^ O _ ` \ T [ U N ` S d O _ ` \ R N O p _ U S O \ Q � � W SO _ W P N U U S R ^ [ V P S R N Q U N [ T N T Q ` ` [ V R Q T ` S Y N U \ U \ S p V [ ` S R _ V S O Q T R V _ � S O [ ^ U \ S l P S V N ` Q T l V W N U V Q U N [ Tl O O [ ` N Q U N [ T ¥ [ V Q T X O _ ` ` S O O [ V [ V � Q T N ° Q U N [ T § U \ S T N T S ^ ^ S ` U ª ¤ \ S R S Q R � N T S ^ [ V O _ W P N U U N T � U \ S R N O p _ U SU [ P S R N Q U N [ T ` Q T W S ` \ Q T � S R N ^ U \ S p Q V U N S O P _ U _ Q � � X Q � V S S N T Y V N U N T � U [ S © U S T R U \ S U N P S W S U Y S S T
177

ITEM  20.



V S ` S N p U [ ^ T [ U N ` S Q T R O _ W P N O O N [ T U [ P S R N Q U N [ T ª ¤ \ S S © p S T O S O [ ^ U \ S P S R N Q U [ V O \ Q � � W S O \ Q V S R q np S V ` S T U W X f ¡ ¢ m £ e ¤ l ¢ ¤ Q T R q n p S V ` S T U W X U \ S f e ] b ¢ ¤ ª ¤ \ N O V S ± _ N V S P S T U U [ O S S ´ P S R N Q U N [ T O \ Q � �W S Q ` [ T R N U N [ T V S ± _ N V S R W S ^ [ V S ^ N � N T � Q T Q ` U N [ T Q U � Q Y [ V N T S ± _ N U X ª ß [ Y S c S V d p V N [ V U [ [ V R _ V N T � U \ ST S � [ U N Q U N [ T O [ V U \ S P S R N Q U N [ T S N U \ S V p Q V U X P Q X N T N U N Q U S � N U N � Q U N [ T U \ Q U Y [ _ � R [ U \ S V Y N O S W S W Q V V S R W X QO U Q U _ U S [ ^ � N P N U Q U N [ T O d Q T R f ¡ ¢ m £ e ¤ l ¢ ¤ P Q X p _ V O _ S Q T X p V [ p S V U X � N S T O [ V [ U \ S V V N � \ U O N U P Q X \ Q c SU [ [ W U Q N T O S ` _ V N U X ^ [ V U \ S p Q X P S T U [ ^ N U O N T c [ N ` S O ª¤ \ N O l � V S S P S T U O \ Q � � W S � [ c S V T S R W X U \ S � Q Y O [ ^ U \ S m U Q U S [ ^ ] [ Y Q Q T R Q T X Q ` U N [ T Q U � Q Y [ V [ U \ S V¯ _ R N ` N Q � p V [ ` S S R N T � Q V N O N T � ^ V [ P U \ N O l � V S S P S T U O \ Q � � W S N T O U N U _ U S R N T Ó � Q ` ´ ß Q Y ´ f [ _ T U X à N O U V N ` Uf [ _ V U d á Q U S V � [ [ d ] [ Y Q ªÚ � � � � Ð � � � � ¬ ¬ G � � � « �¥ Q § ¤ \ N O l � V S S P S T U ` [ T O U N U _ U S O U \ S S T U N V S Q � V S S P S T U W S U Y S S T U \ S p Q V U N S O \ S V S U [ Q T RO _ p S V O S R S O Q T X [ V Q � [ V Y V N U U S T V S p V S O S T U Q U N [ T O d _ T R S V O U Q T R N T � O d p V [ p [ O Q � O d [ V` [ P P _ T N ` Q U N [ T O \ S V S U [ ^ [ V S S T U S V S R N T U [ W X [ V [ T Q ` ` [ _ T U [ ^ U \ S p Q V U N S O Q T R P Q X T [ U W S` \ Q T � S R d P [ R N ^ N S R d [ V Q P S T R S R S © ` S p U N T Y V N U N T � O N � T S R W X U \ S p Q V U N S O \ S V S U [ ª ] T U \ S S c S T U[ ^ Q T X ` [ T ^ � N ` U W S U Y S S T U \ N O ` [ T U V Q ` U R [ ` _ P S T U Q T R Q T X [ ^ U \ S S © \ N W N U O \ S V S U [ d U \ S U S V P OQ T R ` [ T R N U N [ T O [ ^ b © \ N W N U f O \ Q � � ` [ T U V [ � ª ] T U \ S S c S T U [ ^ Q T X ` [ T ^ � N ` U Q P [ T � U \ S S © \ N W N U O db © \ N W N U f O \ Q � � ` [ T U V [ � ª¥ W § ¤ \ N O l � V S S P S T U O \ Q � � W S � [ c S V T S R W X U \ S � Q Y O [ ^ U \ S m U Q U S [ ^ ] [ Y Q ª¥ ` § f ¡ ¢ m £ e ¤ l ¢ ¤ P Q X O _ W ` [ T U V Q ` U Q T X p [ V U N [ T [ ^ U \ S m S V c N ` S O U [ Q O _ W ` [ T U V Q ` U [ V Q p p V [ c S RW X f e ] b ¢ ¤ ª ] T T [ ` Q O S O \ Q � � f e ] b ¢ ¤ ¨ O Q p p V [ c Q � [ ^ Q T X O _ W ` [ T U V Q ` U V S � N S c S f ¡ ¢ m £ e ¤ l ¢ ¤[ ^ Q T X [ ^ N U O [ W � N � Q U N [ T O _ T R S V U \ N O l � V S S P S T U ª¥ R § ] T U \ S S c S T U f e ] b ¢ ¤ _ O S O Q p _ V ` \ Q O S [ V R S V ^ [ V P U [ Q R P N T N O U S V U \ N O l � V S S P S T U d U \ S _ O S [ ^O _ ` \ ^ [ V P O \ Q � � W S ^ [ V ` [ T c S T N S T ` S p _ V p [ O S O [ T � X d Q T R Q T X U X p S R p V [ c N O N [ T N T ` [ T ^ � N ` U Y N U \U \ S U S V P O [ ^ U \ N O l � V S S P S T U Q T R Q � � p V S p V N T U S R U S V P O Q T R ` [ T R N U N [ T O ` [ T U Q N T S R N T [ V [ T O _ ` \^ [ V P O O \ Q � � W S R S S P S R O U V N ` ´ S T Q T R T _ � � Q T R c [ N R ª¥ S § ¤ \ N O l � V S S P S T U � N c S O T [ V N � \ U O [ V W S T S ^ N U O U [ Q T X [ T S [ U \ S V U \ Q T f e ] b ¢ ¤ Q T Rf ¡ ¢ m £ e ¤ l ¢ ¤ Q T R R [ S O T [ U ` V S Q U S Q T X U \ N V R p Q V U X W S T S ^ N ` N Q V N S O U [ U \ S l � V S S P S T U ª¥ ^ § b © ` S p U Q O P Q X W S S © p � N ` N U � X O S U ^ [ V U \ Q W [ c S d T [ U \ N T � ` [ T U Q N T S R N T U \ N O l � V S S P S T U [ V N U OS © \ N W N U O � N P N U O U \ S V N � \ U O Q T R V S P S R N S O d N T ` � _ R N T � V S P S R N S O V S � Q U S R U [ R Q P Q � S O d [ ^ S N U \ S Vp Q V U X U \ Q U Q V S Q c Q N � Q W � S U [ S N U \ S V p Q V U X _ T R S V U \ S � Q Y ª� � Ô � C � � � � Ô Ñ � � � � � d U \ S p Q V U N S O \ S V S U [ \ Q c S S © S ` _ U S R U \ N O Q � V S S P S T U [ T U \ S R Q X Q T R X S Q V Y V N U U S TW S � [ Y ªG � � � �   � � � � � � ¬ � � � C G � � � �   � � � � � � � � � « ¬ C G � CÓ X � Ó X �f N U X [ ^ f S R Q V Z Q � � O Z [ U \ ] T ^ V Q O U V _ ` U _ V S a b T c N V [ T P S T U d e e f² V N T U S R ¢ Q P S � ² V N T U S R ¢ Q P S � l Q V [ T â [ T N ° Q¤ N U � S � ¤ N U � S � m S T N [ V f � N S T U â Q T Q � S Và Q U S � à Q U S � ã Þ h h Þ h ã
178

ITEM  20.



ä å æ ç è é ê ë ë ì í î ï ð ñ ò ó ô õ ñ ì ö ÷ é ó ì ò ø ù ö ÷ ñ ð ÷î ÷ ú ê é û ê ü ü ó ý þ ï ÿ êî ì ò ø � é ï � ÷ í ò � ï � � � ô å å å ô � ä æ æ
� � � � � 	
 
 
 � �  � � � � � � � � � � � � �  � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � �  � � � � � � �  �  � � � � � � � 	 � � � � �  � � � � � � �  ! �  � � � �  � " # � � � � � $ � � % � � � & ' ( ) * ) + , - . / 0 1 2 3 ' 4 0 ' 5 � � � � � �  � � �  � � � � � � � � �� � � � � 6 � � � �  � � � � � � � � � � �  7 � � � � � � � � � � � 8 9 � � � : � � � � � � � � � � � � � ; < � �  � � � � � � � => > � ? � � � � @  � � 6 � � � � � � � �  � 7 @ � � A � � � � � � �  � " � � � � � � � 9 � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � =( ) + ) B C D E * ) + F * ( ) - . G ' H 5 F I C J ) + K L C * + D K * &# & $ � � % � � � M � � � �  � �  � �� � � 	 � � � � �  � � � � � � �  ! �  � � � �  � " # � � � � �N & O � � � � � � P � � � � � � Q � � A� � � @ � � A � � 6 � � � � � � � � � � 6 " � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � �  � � 7 � � � � � � � � � � � �� � � � � � � � � � � �  � � � � � � � � � �  � � � @ � � A = � � � �  � � � = � � � � �  � � � = � R �  � � � � � � � �� � � � �  � � � � � � � � � � " � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � @  � 7 � � � � � � � � � � �  � � � � � � � � � � � � % � � � &� � � � � � % � � � � � � �  � � � � � � � � � � � �  � 7  � � � � � � � �  � � � � � �  � 7 � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � �� � � �  � � � � � � � � 7 � � �  � " � � � � �  � 8 # M � ? � � � � � � � � � � � �  �  � � � � � � �  � � � & # � � � �� � � � � �  S  � 7 � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � @  � � 6 � � � � �  � � � &� � � � � � � � � � � � � @  � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � @  � 7 � � � � � � � � � � �  � � � � �  �  �  � � &� � � A � T � � � �  � 7 U � � � � � � � � � � � � �$ � � � � � � � � � � � � @  � � � � � � � � �  � � � � � � 6  � " � �  � � �� � � �  � 7 � � � � � � � � � � � � � � @  � � 6 � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � @  � 7 � � � � � � � � � � 6 � � � � � � � � � � �  � � � 8 � � � � � � � � � � �  � � � � � � � �  � � ? V

·
! �  � � � �  � " # � � � � � ; Q � � � � � � � W � � �

·
! �  � � � �  � " # � � � � � ; X � �  � � " W � � �

·
! �  � � � �  � " # � � � � � ; N � � � � � � M �  � �

·
! �  � � � �  � " # � � ; Y N Z � W � � � �� � � A � T # M � � � � � � �M � � � @  � � 6 � � � � � � � � � � @  � � � @ � 8 � ? �  � �  �  � � � � � � � � �  � � � � � [ � � � � � & � � � �  � � �# M � � � � � � � @  � � 6 � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � @  � 7 � � � �  � � � � � 7 � � � � � V

179

ITEM  20.



ä å æ ç è é ê ë ë ì í î ï ð ñ ò ó ô õ ñ ì ö ÷ é ó ì ò ø ù ö ÷ ñ ð ÷î ÷ ú ê é û ê ü ü ó ý þ ï ÿ êî ì ò ø � é ï � ÷ í ò � ï � � � ô å å å ô � ä æ æ
·

M � � � � � T � � � � � �
·

X  � � � � � � � T U � � � �  �
· \ � � � � � � T N  � � � � � � �  � �
·

� � � � � X �  7 � � � T � � � � � � �� � � A ] T P � � � � � " U � � �� � � � � � � � � � � � � @  � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � �  S  � 7 � � � � � � � �  � � � � � � � � � � � � � � &� � � � � � � @  � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � 	 � � � � �  � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � �  � � � � � � � �  �� � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � �  � � � � [ � � � � � � � � � � � � � �  � � � &� & P � � � � � � �M � � � � � � � � � �  � � P � � � � � 6 � � � � � 	P � � � � � " U � � � ^ � � � 6 � � � � � 	M & M � �  � � � � 6 � � �� � � � � � � � � � � � � �  � � � � � � � � 6 � � � � �  � � � � � � � 6 � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � �  � �� � � � � �  � � � " � � � � � � � � � � @  � 7  � � � � � � � � � � � �  � � � � �  � � � � � � � �  � " V
·

� � � � �  � � � � � � P � � � � � " U � � �< & � � � �  � 7 � � � ": � � � � � " �  � � � � �  � 7 � � � @ � � A � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � �  � � � � � � �  � � � � � � � � � � � � �@  � � � _ � � � � � � � � � �  � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � = � � � � � � � � � �  � � �  � 7 � � � � � � � � �K L C * B C ` ) C K a D , L I C * F B * b B c c d + L , d * c a e L C L * B E a * ( ) . B * a f e g + L h ) K * i D C D ` ) + B C@ �  �  � 7 � � � � � � � �  6 � @ � � � � � � � � � � � � � � �  � 7 � � � � � � � � 7 � � � � � � � � � � � � � & � � �� � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � _ � � � � � � � � � �  � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � @  � � � � � � �  � � @ �  � � � �D d d + L j D c E + L , * ( ) . B * a f e g + L h ) K * i D C D ` ) + D C J . L C * + D K * 4 J , B C B e * ) + k: � � � � � � � � � � " � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � �  �  S � � � � � � � �  � 7 � � � "  � � � � � � 6 � � � � � � � �� � � � � � � �  � " �  �  � � � � � � � � � � � � � @  � 7 V M � �  7 � � � � � 7 � � = � � � � �  �  � � � � � �  � � �� � � �  �  � � � 8 � & 7 & � � A � � @ � � �  �  � " � � � � �  � � � ? =  � � � � � � � �  � � � � � �  � � � R � � � �  �  � �6 � " � � � � � � � � �  � � � � � � � �  � = � � � � � � � � � � � � � � �  � � " � R �  � � � � � � � � � 7 � � =� � � � � � � � � � � � � � 7 � � = � � � � � � � � � � � � � � 6 " � � 6 � � � � � � � � � � � = � � � &9 & # � �  �  � � � � P � � �  � � �Y � � � �  �  � � � � � � � �  � � � � � �  � � � � � � � � � � �  � �  � � & : � � � R � � � � � � = � � �  �  � � � �� � � �  � � � � � " 6 � � � � � � � � � _ � � � @ � � A 6 " P � � � � � � � � � � � # 7 � � � � � � � &
180

ITEM  20.



l m n o p q r s s t u v w x y z { | } y t ~ � q { t z � � ~ � y x �v � � r q � r � � { � � w � rv t z � � q w � � u z � w � � � | m m m | � l n n
� � � � � �

� � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � �   ¡ � � �   � ¢ � �   � � � � � � £ �   ¡ � � ¤ � � �   ¡ � � �   � ¥ � �¦ § ¨ © ª ¨ « ¬ ª ¨  © ª ¨ ® ¯ § ° ± ® ² ª © ° § ³ ´ ¨ µ ´ ¶ ¶ · ¸ ¹ ¯ § ® § ¨ « º » ª ¼ ® ¨ ´ » ® ª ¨ ½ ´ · ¾ · § ³ ± ¼ ® ¯ ± ·� � � � � � � � � � ¡ � � ¿ � � � £ � � � � ¡ � � � � À � � �   ¡ � � � � �   ¡ � � �   Á ¡   � � � ¡ � � � � �   ¡ � � �   Á �   � � � � À �� � � �   ¡ � � �   � � ¡ � ¥ � � � ¿ � Â �   £ �   � � � À ¥ �   Ã £ �   � � � ¤ � � Ä � £ ¤ � � ¡   Å ¡ � � � � � � �   � � � �   ¡ � � Æ� Æ Ç � � Â � � � � � � � � £ � � � �   ¡ � � �   � ¢ � �   � � � �   � � � � �   � � ¡ � � ¿ � ¥ � � � ¡ � � � � �   �  ¡ � � � �   � È � � ¿ Ä � ¡ ¥ � � � � ¿ � � � � � � � � � É � ¥ ¡ Æ Ç � � � � � �   ¡ � � � Â � � � � � � � � � ¡ � � ¿ �� � � Â ¡ � � � � � ¡ � � � £ ¡ � � �   Ä � � � � � ¤ � � Ä ¡ � � � ¡ Ê � ¡   ¡ � � � À � £ Ç Ë Á Ì É É �   ¿ � � � �   � � � � �� �     � � � Ç Æ Í Æ Î � � � Ï ¡ � � � À Ð � � � � ÆÑ Æ Ç � � ¤ �   � � £ � � ¡ � � � � £ É � � �   ¡ � � �   � ¢ � �   � � � �   � � � � �   � � ¡ � � � � � � � � � � � �¤ ¡ � � � � � ¡ � � � � Ò Í ¡ � �   � ¡ � ¤ � ¡ � À � Ó � � �   � � � � � � Æ Ç � � Â Ä � £ � � � � � � � �   � � � � � � � �¡ � � ¡ � � � � � � Ó Ô � � ¿ � � � ÆÕ Æ ¤ � � �   ¡ � � �   � � ¡ � � £ �   � � � � ¡ � � À � � � ¤ �   � � £ � � ¡ � � � £ É � � �   ¡ � � � � � � � � ¤ � � Ä � £¤ � � ¡   Å ¡ � � � Á É � ¥ ¡ £ �   � � � � � Ê �   ¡ À �   � ¢ � �   � � � � Ó Ô � � ¿ � � � Æ Ö � � � ¤ �   � � £ � � ¡ � � � � � ¡ � �� � � � � � � � � Â � � � � £ � � � £ � � � � ¥ � � À � � � �   � � � � � � � ×¡ Ø ¤ � � � �   � � ¡ � Ð � � �   ¡ � Ù � ¡ ¿ � � � � Ä Â � � � � Ä � � Â   � � ¡   Ä ¡ � � � � � Ë � � � �   � ¿ � � � � À¿ Ø ¤ � � � �   � � ¡ � Ð � � �   ¡ � Ù � ¡ ¿ � � � � Ä ¡ � � � � � � � ¡ � � � � �   � � � � � �   � � � � � � Ú Ö � �Ó Ô � � ¿ � � �� Ø Ð � Ê �   � � � � � ¡ � É � � � � � � � � � Ó � � �   � � � � � � Ú Ö � � Ó Ô � � ¿ � � �¤ � Â � � � � £ ¡ � � � � � � � ¡ � � � � �   � � � � � �   � � � � � � � Á � Ô � � � � � � ¿ Ä ¡ � ¡ � � � �   � È � �  � Â   � � � � � ¡ � � Ê � £   � � ¡ � É � � �   �   � � � Ä � � � � � � � � � � �   ¡ � � ¡ � � ¿ � � � � � � � ¡ � � � � � � � ¡ � � � �� £ � � � Û � ¿ � � � � Á � � � � ¿ � Â   � Ê � � � � Â   � �   � � � � � £ �   � � Â ¡ Ä � � � � Æ¤ � � �   ¡ � � �   � � ¡ � � Á � Â � �   � ¢ � � � � ¿ Ä � � � ¤ � � Ä Á Â   � Ê � � � ¤ �   � � £ � � ¡ � � � � £ É � � �   ¡ � � � £ �  ¡ � � � � ¿ � � � �   ¡ � � �   � ¡ � � � � ¿ Ë � � ¿ � � � �   ¡ � � �   � ¥ � � Â �   £ �   � ¥ �   Ã �   � �   Ê � � � �Â �   � � ¡ � � � � � � � Â   � Ê � � � � � � � £ � � � � � � � �   ¡ � � ÆÜ Æ Ó ¡ � � � �   � � £ � � ¡ � � � � ¡ � � ¿ � � � ¿ � � � � � � � � � � � ¤ � � Ä � £ ¤ � � ¡   Å ¡ � � � Æ
181

ITEM  20.



l m n o p q r s s t u v w x y z { | } y t ~ � q { t z � � ~ � y x �v � � r q � r � � { � � w � rv t z � � q w � � u z � w � � � | m m m | � l n nÝ Æ Å ¡ � � �   � � � Â   � Ê � � � � � � � � � � � � Ê �   ¡ À � � � ¡ � � � � � ¿ � � � � � � � ¡ ¥ ¡ � Ê �   � £� � � � �   � ¢ � �   � � � � � � ¿ Ä � � � ¤ � � Ä � £ ¤ � � ¡   Å ¡ � � � Æ Å ¡ � � �   � � � � ¿ � ¡ � � �   � ¡ � � � ¡ � � � � �  � ¢ � �   � � � � � �   ¡ � � � � � ¡ � � ¿ � � � � � � � �   � � ¡ � ¡ � �   � ¡ � ¿   � ¡ � � � £ � � � � ¡ À   � � � � � � ÆÞ Æ Å ¡ � � �   � � £ � � � ¤ � � �   ¡ � � �   � � � ¡ � � � ¡ � � � � �   � ¢ � �   � � � � � �   ¡ � � � � � ¡ � �» ª ¼ · ® ± ® ¾ ® § ´ ³ § © ´ ¾ ¶ ® ¾ ¼ ³ § ¨ ® ¯ ± · ° ª ¼ ® ¨ ´ » ® ß ´ ¼ ³ ´ ® ° ± ® ² à · ª ¦ ® ± ª ¼ ß · ¯ ´ ¶ ¶ ´ ¶ ¶ ª ¬ ° ± ® ² ® ª� �   � � � ¡ � � ® ¯ ± · ° ª ¼ ® ¨ ´ » ® © ª ¨ » ´ ¾ · § ´ ¼ ³ á ª ¨ ¦ ¾ ¨ » ¯ ´ · § · ´ ± ³ ± ¼ · ¾ ¨ ´ ¼ » § ´ ® ° ª ¼ ® ¨ ´ » ® ª ¨ à ·� Ô Â � � � � Æâ Æ ¤ � � �   ¡ � � �   � � ¡ � � ¿ �   � ¢ � �   � � � � � ¡     Ä � � � £ � � � � ¥ � � À � � � � � � �� � Ê �   ¡ À � � � � � � � � �   À   � ¡ � �   Á � £   � ¢ � �   � � ¿ Ä � ¡ ¥ �   � � � �   � � À ¡ � ¡ À   � � � � � � ã ¡ � Â �  Ó Ô � � ¿ � � � ×
Ø

� � � � � � Ê �   ¡ À � � � ¡ � � ¿ � ¥   � � � � � � � ¡ � � � � �     � � � � Á � � � � � ¡ � � � � ¡ � � £ �   � ÆÇ � � � � Ê � ¡ � � � � � �   � Ô � � � � � � � � £   � � � � � � � ¡ � � ¡   � É Ö ä � � � � �   � � ¡ � À � � �   ¡ �� � ¡ ¿ � � � � Ä £ �   � ¤ Ð å å � � � ¡ � � ¿ � � � � ¡   � Ä � � � � � � £ � � � ¡ � � � � ¡ � � ¿ � � � ¿ Û � � � � � � � �  � Ê � � ¥ ¡ � � ¡ Â Â   � Ê ¡ � � £ � � � ¤ � � Ä Æ
Ø

¤ � � �   ¡ � � �   � � ¡ � � � ¡ � � � ¡ � � � � À � � � À ¤ Ð Ù � � Ê �   ¡ À � £ �   ¡ � � � ¡ � � Ñ Ä � ¡   �£ � � � � ¥ � � À � � ¿ � � ¡ � � � ¡ � � � � Â � � � � � � � £ � � � æ �   Ã � � � � Ê �   � � ¡ ¿ � � � � Ä ¡   � � � � À £   � �� � � Â   � � � � � � Ë � � � Â � � � � � � Â �   ¡ � � � � � � ¡ È ¡   � ¡ � � � � ¡ ¿ � � � � Ä ¡ � � � � � � � � � �   ¡ �� � � �   � � � � � �   ¡ � � Æ
Ø

Ð � Ê �   � � � � � ¡ � É � � � � � � Ä � � � �   � � � � � � � � � � � � � ¡ � �   � ¢ � � Ê ¡ � � � � � � £ �   �¡ � � ¡ � � � � Æ
Ø

Ç � � � � � � � ¡ � É � � �   � � Ï � ¢ � �   � � � � � Ú Ö � � Ó Ô � � ¿ � � � Æ� � � ¤ � � Ä � £ ¤ � � ¡   Å ¡ � � � Á � � � � � � � � À ¡ � � � � � � � � � � � � ¡ � � ¡ Â Â � � � � � � � £ £ � � � ¡ � � Á ¡ � �� � � � � Â � � Ä � � � ¡ � � Ê � � � � � � �   � Á ¡ � � � � � ¿ � ¡   � � Á � � � � � � � � � � � ¡ � � � �  ¡ � � � �   � � � � � ¡ � � � � � �   ¿ � ¡   � � � � ¿ �   � Á � � Â � � Ä � � � ¡ � � Ê � � � � � � �   � � � ¡ � � ¿ �� ¡ � � � ¡ � ¡ � ¡ � � � � � � � ¡ � � � � �   � � � � Ð � � �   ¡ � Ù � ¡ ¿ � � � � Ä ç � � � � � � � £ �   ¡ � � � � ¡ � � � �� £ � � � �   ¡ � � �   � Æ¤ � � �   ¡ � � �   � � � ¡ � � � � � � � � � � � Ê �   ¡ À � £ �   � � � ¤ � � Ä � £ ¤ � � ¡   Å ¡ � � � ¡ � ¡ �¡ � � � � � � � ¡ � � � � �   � � � � � � � � � � À � � À � � � À ¡ � � � � � Â � � � � � � Â �   ¡ � � � � � � � Ê �   ¡ À �� ¢ � � Ê ¡ � � � � � � × É Ö ä ¤ Ð Ñ å � å å â å Ü � ¡ � � É Ö ä ¤ Ð Ñ å Õ â å â å Ü � �è é ê ë ° ì í î ï î î ð î ñ º ò ³ ³ ± ® ± ª ¼ ´ ¶ é ¼ · ¾ ¨ § ³ Ú ä ¥ � �   � Á Ù � � � � � � �  ¤ � � �   ¡ � � �   � Ú ê » ¯ § ³ ¾ ¶ § ³ ó § ¨ · ª ¼ ª ¨ ë ¨ ô ´ ¼ ± õ ´ ® ± ª ¼ ½è è é ê ë ° ì í î ö ð î ð î ñ º ò ³ ³ ± ® ± ª ¼ ´ ¶ é ¼ · ¾ ¨ § ³ Ú ä ¥ � �   � Á Ù � � � � � � �  ¤ � � �   ¡ � � �   � Ú ° ª « ¦ ¶ § ® § ³ ë ¦ § ¨ ´ ® ± ª ¼ · ½
182

ITEM  20.



l m n o p q r s s t u v w x y z { | } y t ~ � q { t z � � ~ � y x �v � � r q � r � � { � � w � rv t z � � q w � � u z � w � � � | m m m | � l n n� Æ Ó     �   � Ò ä � � � � � � � � × é © ® ¯ § » ª ¼ ® ¨ ´ » ® à · · » ª ¦ § ª © · § ¨ ÷ ± » § · ± ¼ » ¶ ¾ ³ § · ³ § · ± ô ¼¥ �   Ã �   � � � �   Â   � £ � � � � � � ¡ � � �   Ê � � � � Á � � � � ¤ � � �   ¡ � � �   � � ¡ � � � ¡ � � � ¡ � � � � � �   ¡ � � �� � Ê �   ¡ À � £ �   �     �   � Á � � � � � � � � � ¡ � � � � � �   ¥   � � À £ � � ¡ � � � �   � � � � � � � � � ø � Ô � � Â � £ �  � � � � � � � � � ¡ � ¡ � � � �   � � � � � � � � � Ø Á ¡   � � � � À � � � � £ � � � Â   � £ � � � � � � ¡ � � �   Ê � � � � Â �   £ �   � � �¿ Ä ¤ � � �   ¡ � � �   Æ ¤ � � �   ¡ � � �   � � ¡ � � � ¡ � � � ¡ � � � � � � � � � � � � Ó     �   � Ò ä � � � � � � � �� � Ê �   ¡ À � £ �   ¡ Â �   � � � � � � � � � � � � À � � � ¡ � �   � � ¡ � � � � � ¡ � � � £ � � � � � � �   ¡ � � Á ¡ � �� � � � � � � � � À £ �   ¡ Â �   � � � � £ � � � � � � � � ¡ � Ñ Ä � ¡   � £   � � � � � � ¡ � � � £ � � � Â � � � � � � � £ ¡ � �¥ �   Ã � � � Â � � � � � �   � �   Ê � � � � Â �   £ �   � � � � � � �   � � � � � � �   ¡ � � Æ � � � � � � � � � £ � � ¡ ¿ � � � � Ä� � ¡ � � � � � ¿ � � � � � � � ¡ � ù � Á å å å Á å å å Æ� Æ ê § ¦ ´ ¨ ´ ® ± ª ¼ ª © é ¼ · ¾ ¨ § ³ à · ó ¨ ª ÷ ± · ± ª ¼ ú é © ° ª ¼ ® ¨ ´ » ® ª ¨ à · ¶ � ¡ ¿ � � � � Ä Â � � � � � � � � � � � �» ª ¼ ® ´ ± ¼ ® ¯ § · ® ´ ¼ ³ ´ ¨ ³ é ê ë · § ¦ ´ ¨ ´ ® ± ª ¼ ª © ± ¼ · ¾ ¨ § ³ à · ¦ ¨ ª ÷ ± · ± ª ¼ ß ª ¨ ´ · ¾ û · ® ´ ¼ ® ± ´ ¶ ¶ ²� � � � � ¡   � � ¡ � � � Á � � � Ä � � ¡ � � ¿ � � � � �   � � � � � Â   � Ê � � � �   � � � Ë � � ¡ ¿ � � � � Ä � � Ê �   ¡ À � Æ� å Æ Ù � � � � � × Î Ä   � ¢ � �   � � À � � � � � � �   ¡ � � � ¡ � � � � � � � � � � � � � ¤ � � �   ¡ � � Á ¤ � � Ä � � � � � � �  � Â   � � � � � � � ¡ � � � Ê �   ¡ À � ¡ � � � � � � � � ¥ � � � � � � � � � ¡   � � Ä ¿ � ¡ � � ¢ � ¡ � � � � Â   � � � � �¤ � � �   ¡ � � �   ¡ � � � � � � � � Ê �   ¡ À � ¡ � � � � � � � � � � ¡ � � � � � ¿ � � � � � � � ¡ � ¡ � � � � � ¡ � � � � � �° ª ¼ ® ¨ ´ » ® ª ¨ à · ¶ ± ´ û ± ¶ ± ® ² ¾ ¼ ³ § ¨ ® ¯ § ± ¼ ³ § « ¼ ± ® ± § · ¦ ¨ ª ÷ ± ³ § ³ ® ª ° ± ® ² ± ¼ ® ¯ ± · ° ª ¼ ® ¨ ´ » ® ¸ ¹ ¯ §¤ � � Ä ¥ � � � � ¡ Ê � � � �   � À � � ¡ � ¡ � Ä � � � � � �   � ¢ � �   � � � ¡ ¿ � � � � Ä � � � �   ¡ � � � À   � ¡ � �   � � ¡ � � � ¡ �� � � �   ¥ � � � � Â � � � £ � � � � � Ó Ô � � ¿ � � � Æ É £   � ¢ � �   � � Á � � � ¡ � � � � � � � ¡ � Â   � � � � � �   Â   � � � � � �Â ¡ Ä ¡ ¿ � � � � ¡ � � ¿ � ¡ � � � � � � � � � ¿ � � Â   � � � Æ� � Æ É � � � � � � £ � � ¡ � � � � ø ü � � � ü ¡   � � � � � Ø ç   � Ê � � � � � × � � � � � £ � � � � � � � Ô � � � � Â �   � � � � � �¿ Ä � ¡ ¥ Á � � � ¤ � � �   ¡ � � �   ¡ À   � � � � � � � £ � � � Á Â ¡ Ä � � ¿ � � ¡ � £ � £ Á � � � � � � � £ Ä Á ¡ � � � � � �� ¡   � � � � � � � � ¤ � � Ä � £ ¤ � � ¡   Å ¡ � � � Á É � ¥ ¡ Á � � � � � � � � � � ¡ � � ¡ Â Â � � � � � � � £ £ � � � ¡ � � Á� �   � � � �   � Á � � Â � � Ä � � � Á ¡ À � � � � ¡ � � Ê � � � � � � �   � ¥ �   Ã � � À � � ¿ � � ¡ � £ � £ � � � ¤ � � Ä � £¤ � � ¡   Å ¡ � � � Á É � ¥ ¡ ¡ À ¡ � � � � ¡ � Ä ¡ � � ¡ � � � � ¡ � � � Á � � � ¡ � � � Á � � � � � �   � � � � Á � � � � � � � � À¡ � Ä ¡ � � ¡ � � � � � � ¡ Ä ¡ � � � Ô Â � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � �   � ¥ � � � Á ¡ � � £ �   � ¡ � ¡ À � � ¥ � � � �� ¡ Ä ¿ � ¡ � � �   � � � Á � � ¡ � � � � �     � � � Ê �   � � ¡ À ¡ � � � � �   £   � � � � � ¤ � � Ä � £ ¤ � � ¡   Å ¡ � � � ÁÉ � ¥ ¡ Á � � � � � � � � � � ¡ � � ¡ Â Â � � � � � � � £ £ � � � ¡ � � Á � �   � � � �   � Á � � Â � � Ä � � � Á ¡ À � � � � ¡ � �Ê � � � � � � �   � ¥ �   Ã � � À � � ¿ � � ¡ � £ � £ � � � ¤ � � Ä � £ ¤ � � ¡   Å ¡ � � � Á É � ¥ ¡ Á � � � � � � � � À Á ¿ � � � � �� � � � � � � � � Á � ¡ � ¡ À � � ¡   � � � � À ¿ Ä   � ¡ � � � � £ Â �   � � � ¡ � � � Û �   Ä Á � � � � � � � � À ¿ � � � � Ä � � Û �   Ä �  � � ¡ � � Á ¡ � � Â   � Â �   � Ä � ¡ � ¡ À � � Á ¥ � � � � ¡   � � � � � � � � £ �   � � � � ¡ � Ä ¥ ¡ Ä � � � � � � � � � �  ¡ � � � � � ¡ � � � ¥ � � � � � � ¥ �   Ã ¡ � � � �   � �   Ê � � � � Â   � Ê � � � � ¿ Ä � � � ¤ � � �   ¡ � � �   � � � � � ¤ � � Ä � £¤ � � ¡   Å ¡ � � � Á É � ¥ ¡ Â �   � � ¡ � � � � � � � Â   � Ê � � � � � � � £ � � � � � � � �   ¡ � � � � � � � � Ô � � � � ¡   � � � � À� � � � £ � � � �     �   � Á � � � � � � � � � �   � � À � � À � � � ¡ � � � � £ � � � ¤ � � �   ¡ � � �   Á � � � ¡ À � � � � Á� � Â � � Ä � � � Á � � ¿ � � � �   ¡ � � �   � �   � � � �   � ¥ �   Ã � � À � � ¿ � � ¡ � £ � £ � � � ¤ � � �   ¡ � � �   Æ É � � �� � � � � � � � � � � � � £ � � � Â ¡   � � � � � � ¡ � � � � ¤ � � Ä � £ ¤ � � ¡   Å ¡ � � � Á É � ¥ ¡ Á � � � � � � � � � � ¡ � �¡ Â Â � � � � � � � £ £ � � � ¡ � � Á � �   � � � �   � Á � � Â � � Ä � � � Á ¡ À � � � � ¡ � � Ê � � � � � � �   � ¥ �   Ã � � À � �¿ � � ¡ � £ � £ � � � ¤ � � Ä � £ ¤ � � ¡   Å ¡ � � � Á É � ¥ ¡ � � ¡ � � � � � ¿ � � � ¡ ¿ � � �   � � ¡ � Ä ¥ ¡ Ä  � � Â � � � � ¿ � � £ �   � � � � � Û �   Ä Á � ¡ � ¡ À � Á � � ¡ ¿ � � � � Ä Á � � � � �   � Ô Â � � � � � � � �     � � ¿ Ä � � �¤ � � �   ¡ � � �   Á � � � � £ £ � � �   � Á � � Â � � Ä � � � Á � � ¿ � � � �   ¡ � � �   � Á ¡ � � � � � �   � ¡ £ £ � � � ¡ � � � ¥ � � � � � �¤ � � �   ¡ � � �   � � � � � ¡ � � � � � � � � Á � � � � ¡ Â � Á � � � � � � � � � � Á � � À � � À � � � � �   � � Û �   � � � � � � � �   � �Â �   � � � �   Â   � Â �   � Ä   � � � � � � � À £   � � � � � ¥ �   Ã ¡ � � � �   � �   Ê � � � � Â �   £ �   � � � ¿ Ä � � �
183

ITEM  20.



l m n o p q r s s t u v w x y z { | } y t ~ � q { t z � � ~ � y x �v � � r q � r � � { � � w � rv t z � � q w � � u z � w � � � | m m m | � l n n¤ � � �   ¡ � � �   Â �   � � ¡ � � � � � � � Â   � Ê � � � � � � � £ � � � � � � � �   ¡ � � Á � Ô � � Â � £ �   ¡ � � � � � � � � Ô � � � �� ¡ � � � � ¿ Ä � � � � � À � � À � � � � � £ � � � ¤ � � Ä � £ ¤ � � ¡   Å ¡ � � � Á É � ¥ ¡ Æ� � � ¤ � � �   ¡ � � �   � Ô Â   � � � � Ä ¡ � � � � � � £ � � �   � � Â � � � � ¿ � � � � Ä £ �   � ¡ � ¡ À � � �   � � Û �   � � �¥ � � � � � ¡ Ä   � � � � � � � ¡ � Ä Â �   � � � �   Â   � Â �   � Ä ¿ Ä   � ¡ � � � � £ �   � � � � � � � � � � � � ¥ � � � � � �¥ �   Ã ¡ � � � �   � �   Ê � � � � Â   � Ê � � � � ¿ Ä � � � ¤ � � �   ¡ � � �   � � � � � ¤ � � Ä � £ ¤ � � ¡   Å ¡ � � � Á É � ¥ ¡Â �   � � ¡ � � � � � � � � � � � �   ¡ � � � � � � � � Ô � � � � ¡   � � � � À � � � � £ � � � �     �   � Á � � � � � � � � � �  � � À � � À � � � ¡ � � � � £ � � � ¤ � � �   ¡ � � �   Á � � � ¡ À � � � � Á � � Â � � Ä � � � Á � � ¿ � � � �   ¡ � � �   � �   � � � �   �¥ �   Ã � � À � � ¿ � � ¡ � £ � £ � � � ¤ � � �   ¡ � � �   Á ¡ � � ¡ À   � � � � � Â ¡ Ä � � � ¤ � � Ä � £ ¤ � � ¡   Å ¡ � � � ÁÉ � ¥ ¡ £ �   ¡ � � � ¡ � ¡ À � � � ¡ � � � � � � � � � ¤ � � Ä � £ ¤ � � ¡   Å ¡ � � � Á É � ¥ ¡ Â   � � � � � �   � � � � � � � À£   � � � � � ¥ �   Ã ¡ � � � �   � �   Ê � � � � � £ � � � ¤ � � �   ¡ � � �   Á � � � � £ £ � � �   � Á � � Â � � Ä � � � Á� � ¿ � � � �   ¡ � � �   � Á ¡ � � � � � �   � ¡ £ £ � � � ¡ � � � ¥ � � � � � � ¤ � � �   ¡ � � �   � � � � � � Ô � � � � ¡   � � � � À � � �� £ � � � � �     �   � Á � � � � � � � � � �   � � À � � À � � � ¡ � � � Æ� � � ¤ � � �   ¡ � � �     � Â   � � � � � � � � ¡ � � � � ¡ � � � Ê � � � � � Â �   � � ¡ � � � � � � � Â   � Ê � � � � � � � £ � � � �� � � �   ¡ � � ¥ � � � ¿ � Â �   £ �   � � � ¡ � � � � Â �   Ê � � � � ¿ Ä ¡ � � ¢ � ¡ � � � Ä �   ¡ � � � � ¡ � � ¢ � ¡ � � £ � � �Â �   � � � � � � Á ¡ � � � � � ¤ � � �   ¡ � � �   ¥ � � � � ¿ � �   Ê � Á ¡ � � � ¡ � � � � � � � £ £ � � �   � Á � � Â � � Ä � � � Á� � ¿ � � � �   ¡ � � �   � ¡ � � � � � �   � ¡ £ £ � � � ¡ � � � ¥ � � � � � � ¤ � � �   ¡ � � �   � � � ¿ � �   Ê � ¡ � � ¡ Â Â � � � ¡ ¿ � �� ¡ £ � � Ä   � � � � Æ� Ñ Æ ç �   £ �   � ¡ � � � ¡ � � ç ¡ Ä � � � � Î � � � � × � � � ¤ � � Ä � � ¡ � � � ¡ Ê � � � �   � À � � � �   � ¢ � �   �� � � ¤ � � �   ¡ � � �   � � £ �   � � � � Â �   £ �   � ¡ � � � ¡ � � Â ¡ Ä � � � � ¿ � � � � £ �   � � � £ � � � ¡ � � � � � � £� � � ¤ � � �   ¡ � � Â   � � � Æ � � � ¤ � � �   ¡ � � �   � � ¡ � � £ �   � � � � Á ¿ Ä ¡ � �   � � Ä ¡ � � � � ¡ £ �   �· ´ ® ± · © ´ » ® ª ¨ ² ® ª ® ¯ § ° ± ® ² ß · ¾ » ¯ û ª ¼ ³ · ® ª ® ¯ § ° ± ® ² ß ¦ ¨ ± ª ¨ ® ª ® ¯ § · ® ´ ¨ ® ª © ° ª ¼ ® ¨ ´ » ® ª ¨ à ·æ �   Ã Á � � Ê �   � � À � � � Â �   £ �   � ¡ � � � � £ � � � ¤ � � �   ¡ � � �   ¡ � � � � � Â ¡ Ä � � � � � £ ¡ � �� ¿ � � À ¡ � � � � � ¡   � � � � À � �   � � � � �   Æ � � � ¤ � � �   ¡ � � �   Á � Â � �   � � � � Â � � £ � � � ¿ � � � � ¡ � �� � Ê � � � � £   � � � � � � �   � � Ä Á � � ¡ � � Â ¡ Ä £ �   � � � � � � � � £ � ¡ � � ¿ � � � � Æ Ç � � � � � � � ¡ � ¿ � � �Â   � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � £ � � ¡ � � � � � � � � � � ¤ � � �   ¡ � � � � ¡ � � ¿ � � � � � � � � � � � � � �� � � � £ � � ¡ � � � � ¡ � � � � � � � ¿ � � � � � � ¿ Ä ¤ � � �   ¡ � � �   Á ¡ � � Â ¡ � � ¿ Ä ¤ � � �   ¡ � � �   Æ� Õ Æ æ ¡ � Ê �   � £ Ö � ¿   � À ¡ � � � � × � � � � � � Ô � � � � Â �   � � � � � � ¿ Ä � ¡ ¥ Á ¤ � � �   ¡ � � �   � �   � ¿ Ä  � � � ¡ � � � � � � ¤ � � Ä � £ ¤ � � ¡   Å ¡ � � � Á É � ¥ ¡ Á � � � � � � � � � � ¡ � � ¡ Â Â � � � � � � � £ £ � � � ¡ � � Á � � �� �   � � � �   � Á � � Â � � Ä � � � Á ¡ À � � � � ¡ � � Ê � � � � � � �   � ¥ �   Ã � � À � � ¿ � � ¡ � £ � £ � � � ¤ � � Ä � £¤ � � ¡   Å ¡ � � � Á É � ¥ ¡ Á £   � � ¡ � � ¡ À ¡ � � � � ¡ � Ä ¡ � � ¡ � � � � ¡ ¿ � � � � Ä �     � � Â � � � � ¿ � � � � Ä � � � � �¤ � � �   ¡ � � �   �   ¡ � Ä � � � � � ¡ � � � � À � �   � � À � �   � � � �   � � � ¤ � � �   ¡ � � �   ¿ Ä ¥ ¡ Ä � £� � ¿   � À ¡ � � � � �   � � � �   ¥ � � � Á £ �   ¡ � Ä � � � � �   � ¡ � ¡ À � � � Â   � Â �   � Ä � ¡ � � � � ¿ Ä £ �   � �  ´ ¼ ² ª ® ¯ § ¨ » ´ · ¾ ´ ¶ ® ² ´ ¼ ³ © ª ¨ ´ ¼ ² ¶ ª · · ³ ¾ § ® ª û ª ³ ± ¶ ² ± ¼ ý ¾ ¨ ² ® ª ° ª ¼ ® ¨ ´ » ® ª ¨ à ·� � Â � � Ä � � � Æ � � � � Â   � Ê � � � � � � � ¡ � � ¿ � ¡ Â Â � � � ¡ ¿ � � ¡ � � � � £ � � � £ �   � � ¡ � � � £ £ � � � � � � Ä ¥ � � �  � � Â � � � � � � � � � �   � ¡ � ¡ À � � � � �     � � À � �   � � À � � � � � � � � £ � � � � � � � �   ¡ � � �   ¡   � � � � À � � �� £ � � � ¥ ª ¨  ¦ § ¨ © ª ¨ « § ³ ¾ ¼ ³ § ¨ ® ¯ ± · » ª ¼ ® ¨ ´ » ® ¸ ¹ ¯ § ° ª ¼ ® ¨ ´ » ® ª ¨ à · ¦ ª ¶ ± » ± § · ª © ± ¼ · ¾ ¨ ´ ¼ » §� � ¡ � � � � � � ¡ � � ¡ � � ¡ � � � �   � � � �   � � � � � � � � � � � � £ £ � � � � � ¡ � � � � �   � � � ¡ � � � � ¡ � � � � �¡ � Ê �   � � � Ä ¡ £ £ � � � �   � � Â ¡ �   � � � � Â � � � � � � � �   Â   � Û � � � � � � � �   � À � � � £ � � � ¤ � � �   ¡ � � �   � �  � � � Ê �   � � �   � � � � �   Æ
184

ITEM  20.



l m n o p q r s s t u v w x y z { | } y t ~ � q { t z � � ~ � y x �v � � r q � r � � { � � w � rv t z � � q w � � u z � w � � � | m m m | � l n nþ ÿ � � � � � � ÿ � þ � � � 	 � � 
 �
q

¤ �   � � £ � � ¡ � � � £ Ù � ¡ ¿ � � � � Ä É � � �   ¡ � � � ø Ñ Â ¡ À � � Ø
q

Ç � � � � � � � ¡ � É � � �   � � ¤ Ð Ñ å � å å â å Ü
q

Ç � � � � � � � ¡ � É � � �   � � ¤ Ð Ñ å Õ â å â å Ü
q

Ð � Ê �   � � � � � ¡ � É � � � � � � � � � Ó � � �   � � � � � �

185

ITEM  20.



l m n o p q r s s t u v w x y z { | } y t ~ � q { t z � � ~ � y x �v � � r q � r � � { � � w � rv t z � � q w � � u z � w � � � | m m m | � l n n
¤ � � � �   � � ¡ � Ð � � �   ¡ � Ù � ¡ ¿ � � � � ÄÐ � � �   ¡ � Ç À À   � À ¡ � � ù Ñ Á å å å Á å å åç   � � � � � � Ë ¤ � � Â � � � � � ä Â �   ¡ � � � � � Ç À À   � À ¡ � � Ù � � � � ù Ñ Á å å å Á å å åç �   � � � ¡ � ¡ � � Ç � Ê �   � � � � � À É � Û �   Ä Ù � � � � ù � Á å å å Á å å åÓ ¡ � � ä � � �     � � � � Ù � � � � ù � Á å å å Á å å åÅ �   � � ¡ � ¡ À � Ù � � � � ø ¡ � Ä � � � � � � �     � � � � Ø ù Ý å Á å å åÍ � � � � ¡ � ç ¡ Ä � � � � � ù Ý Á å å å× �  � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � ù � Á å å å Á å å åÉ £ � � � ¤ � � �   ¡ � � �   � � � � � � � � ¥ � ¡ � Ä Ê � � � � � � � Á � � Ê �   ¡ À � � �   � ¢ � �   � � � � � � � Ë � ¥ � � �¡ � � � �   � � Ê � � � � � � � ÆÖ � ¡ � � � �   Ä £ �   ¤ � Ê �   ¡ À � ÇÓ � Â � � Ä �   � Ù � ¡ ¿ � � � � Ä ×Ó ¡ � � Ç � � � � � � � ù Ý å å Á å å åÓ ¡ � � Ó � Â � � Ä � � Ú � � � � ¡ � � ù Ý å å Á å å åç � � � � Ä Ù � � � � Ú � � � � ¡ � � ù Ý å å Á å å åù Õ Á å å å Á å å å� � � � � ¿   � � � ¡ � Ó Ô � � � � É � � �   ¡ � � � � � ¡ � � ¿ � ¥   � � � � � � � ¡ Â �   � � � �     � � � � ¿ ¡ � � � ¡ � � � £� � � � � ¿   � � � ¡ � Ó Ô � � � � � � � � � ¥   � � � � � � � ¡ £ � � � � ¥ £ �   � ¿ ¡ � � � � � � � ¡ � � � ¡ Ê � � � � � ¡ � �� � � �   � � � � � � � ¡ �   � ¢ � �   � � � £ � � � Â   � � ¡   Ä Â � � � � Ä ø � � � Ø Æ ù � Á å å å Á å å å

186

ITEM  20.



l m n o p q r s s t u v w x y z { | } y t ~ � q { t z � � ~ � y x �v � � r q � r � � { � � w � rv t z � � q w � � u z � w � � � | m m m | � l n n� � � ¤ � � Ä � £ ¤ � � ¡   Å ¡ � � � Á É � ¥ ¡ Á � � � � � � � � À ¡ � � � � � � � � � � � � ¡ � � ¡ Â Â � � � � � � � £ £ � � � ¡ � � Á ¡ � �� � � � � Â � � Ä � � � ¡ � � Ê � � � � � � �   � Á ¡ � � � � � ¿ � ¡   � � Á � � � � � � � � � � � ¡ � � � �   ¡ � � � �   � � � � � ¡ � �� � � �   ¿ � ¡   � � � � ¿ �   � Á � � Â � � Ä � � � Á ¡ � � Ê � � � � � � �   � Á ¡   � � � � � � � � � ¡ � Ç � � � � � � � ¡ �É � � �   � � � Á � � � � � � � � À � � À � � � À � Â �   ¡ � � � � � ¤ Ð Ñ å � å å â å Ü �   � ¢ � � Ê ¡ � � � � Á ¡ � �� � � Â � � � � � � Â �   ¡ � � � � � ¤ Ð Ñ å Õ â å â å Ü �   � ¢ � � Ê ¡ � � � � Æ Ö � � Ö Â � � � � � � � Æ� � � � � � Ê �   ¡ À � � � ¡ � � ¿ � Â   � � ¡   Ä � � � � � Ç � � � � � � � ¡ � É � � �   � � � Á ¡ � � � � � � � � �   � ¿ � � � � À¥ � � � ¡ � Ä � � � �   � � � �   ¡ � � � �   � � � � � ¡   Â   � � � � � � � � ¡ Ê ¡ � � ¡ ¿ � � � � � � � Ç � � � � � � � ¡ � É � � �   � � � Á¥ � � � � �   � � � �   ¡ Ê ¡ � � ¡ ¿ � � � � Ê �   ¡ À � ¿ � Â   � � ¡   Ä Á � � � �   � ¿ � � � � À �   � Ô � � � � Æ
� � � � � � � � �� Æ � � � ¥ ¡ � Ê �   � £ Ð � Ê �   � � � � � É � � � � � � Ä Æ � � � � � � �   ¡ � � � � ¡     � �   � Ô Â   � � � � Ä¡ À   � � � ¡ � � � � ¡ � � � � � ¡ � � � � Â �   � � ¡ � � � £ � � � � Â � � � � Ä ¡ � � � � � � � � � � � � � À � £ � � � ¤ � � Ä � £¤ � � ¡   Å ¡ � � � Á É � ¥ ¡ ¡ � ¡ � Ç � � � � � � � ¡ � É � � �   � � � � � � � � � ¥ ¡ � Ê � ¡ � Ä � £ � � � � � £ � � � � � � £À � Ê �   � � � � � ¡ � � � � � � � � Ä ¡ Ê ¡ � � ¡ ¿ � � � � � � � ¤ � � Ä � £ ¤ � � ¡   Å ¡ � � � Á É � ¥ ¡ � � � �   ¤ � � � � £É � ¥ ¡ Ö � � � � � � Þ â å Æ Ü ¡ � � � � � ¥ � Ô � � � � ¡ � � ¡ � � � � ¡ Ä ¿ � ¡ � � � � � � £   � � � � � � � � � � � � ÆÑ Æ ¤ � ¡ � � � ¤ � Ê �   ¡ À � Æ � � � � � � �   ¡ � � � � ¡     � �   £ �   � � �   ¡ À   � � � � � ¡ � � � � � Â � � � � Ä � £� � � �   ¡ � � � � � ¡ � � � � Ê �   � � � Ä � � � � � � � ¡ � � � � � � � � ¿ Û � � � � � � � � � � £ � � � � � £À � Ê �   � � � � � ¡ � � � � � � � � Ä � � � �   � � � ¤ � � � � £ É � ¥ ¡ Ö � � � � � � Þ â å Æ Ü ¡ � � � � � ¥ � Ô � � � �¡ � � ¡ � � � � ¡ Ä ¿ � ¡ � � � � � � £   � � � � � � � � � � � � ÆÕ Æ Ç � � �   � � � � � £ Ð � Ê �   � � � � � É � � � � � � Ä Æ � � � ¤ � � Ä � £ ¤ � � ¡   Å ¡ � � � Á É � ¥ ¡ � � ¡ � � ¿ �  � � Â � � � � ¿ � � £ �   ¡ � � �   � � � À ¡ � Ä � � £ � � � � � £ À � Ê �   � � � � � ¡ � � � � � � � � Ä Á ¡ � � � ¡ Ä � � � �¡ � ¡ � Ä � � � � ¡ � � � � ¡ � � � � � � � Â � � � � � � � � � � Ä ¥   � � � � �   � ¢ � � � � � £ � � � � � � �   ¡ � � �� ¡     � �   Æ � � � � � � À � � � � ¡ � � � � � � � � � � � � � �   � � � � � � � � ¡ � � Â   � Ê � � � � � � � ¡     � �   £   � �¡ � � �   � � � À � � � � � £ � � � � � £ À � Ê �   � � � � � ¡ � � � � � � � � Ä � � ¿ � � ¡ � £ � £ � � � ¤ � � Ä � £ ¤ � � ¡  Å ¡ � � � Á É � ¥ ¡ ÆÜ Æ � � � Ë � � � � ¡ � � £ ¤ � Ê �   ¡ À � Æ � � � � � � �   ¡ � � � � ¡     � �   � � ¡ � � � � � � � � Ä � � Ê �   ¡ À �� � � �   � � � � Â � � � � Ä ¡ � � � � � � � � �   ¡ � � � � ¡     � �   � � ¡ � � � � � � � � Ä ¡ � Ä � £ � � �   � À � � � ¡ � �¿ � � � £ � � � ¡ � �   � � � À � � � � � ¤ � � Ä � £ ¤ � � ¡   Å ¡ � � � Á É � ¥ ¡ � � � �   � � � � Â � � � � Ä £ �     � ¡ � � � � � £À � Ê �   � � � � � ¡ � � � � � � � � Ä � � � � � � ¡ � � � � � � � ¡ � � �   � � £ � � � Â � � � � � Û �   � � � � � � � � � � ¡ �  � � � � � � £ ¡ Ê �   � £ � � � � � £ � � � � ø � Ø � £ À � Ê �   � � � � � ¡ � � � � � � � � Ä ¡ � � �   � � � ¿ Ä � � � ¤ � � Ä � £¤ � � ¡   Å ¡ � � � Á É � ¥ ¡ Æ

187

ITEM  20.



l m n o p q r s s t u v w x y z { | } y t ~ � q { t z � � ~ � y x �v � � r q � r � � { � � w � rv t z � � q w � � u z � w � � � | m m m | � l n nÝ Æ � � ä � � �   ¤ � ¡ � À � � � ç � � � � Ä Æ � � � � � � �   ¡ � � � � ¡     � �   ¡ � � � � � ¤ � � Ä � £ ¤ � � ¡  Å ¡ � � � Á É � ¥ ¡ ¡ À   � � � � ¡ � � � � ¡ ¿ � Ê � Â   � � �   Ê ¡ � � � � � £ À � Ê �   � � � � � ¡ � � � � � � � � � � � � � ¡ � �� � � � � � �   ¥ � � � � � ¡ � À � �   ¡ � � �   � � � � � Ê �   ¡ À � ¡ Ê ¡ � � ¡ ¿ � � � � � �   � � � Â � � � � Ä Æ� � �   � Ä ø Õ å Ø � ¡ Ä � Ç � Ê ¡ � � � æ   � � � � � � � � � � � � £ ¤ ¡ � � � � � ¡ � � � � Á � � � Ë Ï � � � ¥ ¡ � ÁÏ � � � � � � � � � � � � Ê �   ¡ À � ¡ � � � �   � � � � � � ¡ � � � � � ø � å Ø � ¡ Ä � ¥   � � � � � � � � � � � � £ � � � ËÂ ¡ Ä � � � � � £ Â   � � � � � � � ¡ � � ¿ � � � � � � � × Ï � � Ã Í ¡ � ¡ À � � � � � ä £ £ � � � Á ¤ � � Ä � £ ¤ � � ¡  Å ¡ � � � Á ¤ � � Ä ü ¡ � � Á Ñ Ñ å ¤ � ¡ Ä Ö �   � � � Á ¤ � � ¡   Å ¡ � � � Á É � ¥ ¡ Ý å Þ � Õ Æ � � � � � � � �   � � � � � �� � Â �   � � � � � � � � � � ¡ � � ¡   � � ¡ � � � � � ¡ � � � � � � ¡ � � � � � � � � � � � ¤ �   � � £ � � ¡ � � � £ É � � �   ¡ � � � � �¥ � � � � � � � � � � � �   � � � � � � � � ¡ � � ¡ � � � � Æ ¤ � � �   ¡ � � �   ¡ À   � � � � � £ �   � � � � � � � ¤ � � Ä ¥ � � � Õ å� ¡ Ä � ¡ � Ê ¡ � � � ¥   � � � � � � � � � � � � £ � ¡ � � � � � ¡ � � � � Á � � � Ë   � � � ¥ ¡ � Á   � � � � � � � � � � � � Ê �   ¡ À �¡ � � � �   � � � � � � Á ¡ � � � å � ¡ Ä � ¡ � Ê ¡ � � � ¥   � � � � � � � � � � � � £ � � � Ë Â ¡ Ä � � � � � £ Â   � � � � � Æ

188

ITEM  20.



l m n o p q r s s t u v w x y z { | } y t ~ � q { t z � � ~ � y x �v � � r q � r � � { � � w � rv t z � � q w � � u z � w � � � | m m m | � l n n

 ! " # # # " # # #

189

ITEM  20.



l m n o p q r s s t u v w x y z { | } y t ~ � q { t z � � ~ � y x �v � � r q � r � � { � � w � rv t z � � q w � � u z � w � � � | m m m | � l n n

190

ITEM  20.



l m n o p q r s s t u v w x y z { | } y t ~ � q { t z � � ~ � y x �v � � r q � r � � { � � w � rv t z � � q w � � u z � w � � � | m m m | � l n n

191

ITEM  20.



l m n o p q r s s t u v w x y z { | } y t ~ � q { t z � � ~ � y x �v � � r q � r � � { � � w � rv t z � � q w � � u z � w � � � | m m m | � l n n

192

ITEM  20.



$ % & ' ( ) * + + , - . / 0 1 2 3 4 5 1 , 6 7 ) 3 , 2 8 9 6 7 1 0 7. 7 : * ) ; * < < 3 = > / ? *. , 2 8 @ ) / A 7 - 2 B / C D B 4 % % % 4 E $ & &
F G H G H IJ K L M N L O N K P O Q J L M N R S M N T K T S M J U S O R S M K O L R K J V P K W P P MR S M K O L R K S O J W X S Y P O U S O Q Y O S U P J J T S M L Z J P O [ T R P J L M N K X P R T K \ S UR P N L O U L Z Z J] ^ _ ` a b c d e f g h b d h i _ g f ` h ^ f j h k g a k l a ] f l e ` k g a m b g a _ h _ b g ` n b l k i i m b g h l k c h b l `o ^ b p f l n b l e o b l q b l ` f l r _ c f ` n b l h ^ f m _ h s b n m f a k l t k i i ` d g a f l k c b g h l k c h u ] ^ f h f l e vw x y z { | } ~ { y | � � } � � � � � � z { � � � � y ~ � � � z { � _ g c i d a f ` k g f g � _ g f f l v k g k l c ^ _ h f c h v k g a k g s b h ^ f la f ` _ � g p l b n f ` ` _ b g k i p l b r _ a _ g � p l b n f ` ` _ b g k i ` f l r _ c f ` h b h ^ f m _ h s b n m f a k l t k i i ` v � b o k vd g a f l k c b g h l k c h � � d h f � c i d a f ` c b g ` h l d c h _ b g c b g h l k c h b l ` � u� u ] ^ _ ` m b g h l k c h e k s g b h � f e b a _ n _ f a b l k e f g a f a f � c f p h � s k o l _ h _ g � ` _ � g f a� s k g k d h ^ b l _ � f a l f p l f ` f g h k h _ r f b n h ^ f m _ h s b n m f a k l t k i i ` k g a b n h ^ f m b g h l k c h b l u� u ] _ e f _ ` b n h ^ f f ` ` f g c f b n h ^ _ ` m b g h l k c h u� u m b g h l k c h b l ` ^ k i i � f k g _ g a f p f g a f g h c b g h l k c h b l o _ h ^ l f ` p f c h h b h ^ f ` f l r _ c f `h b � f p f l n b l e f a d g a f l h ^ _ ` m b g h l k c h u � f _ h ^ f l m b g h l k c h b l g b l _ h ` ` d � c b g h l k c h b l ` v k � f g h ` vb l f e p i b s f f ` v ` ^ k i i � f a f f e f a h b � f f e p i b s f f ` b l k � f g h ` b n h ^ f m _ h s u� u m b g h l k c h b l ` ^ k i i p f l n b l e k i i a d h _ f ` _ g k c c b l a k g c f o _ h ^ k i i k p p i _ c k � i fn f a f l k i v ` h k h f k g a i b c k i i k o ` k g a l f � d i k h _ b g ` u� u � n m b g h l k c h b l � l f k c ^ f ` h ^ _ ` m b g h l k c h v h ^ f m _ h s ` ^ k i i ^ k r f k i i l f e f a _ f `k r k _ i k � i f h b _ h k h i k o b l _ g f � d _ h s u� u j f r f l k � _ i _ h s u � n k g s p l b r _ ` _ b g b n h ^ _ ` m b g h l k c h _ ` a f c i k l f a _ g r k i _ a v _ i i f � k i v b l_ g c k p k � i f b n � f _ g � f g n b l c f a � s k g s c b d l h b n c b e p f h f g h � d l _ ` a _ c h _ b g v k i i b n h ^ f l f e k _ g _ g �p l b r _ ` _ b g ` b n h ^ _ ` m b g h l k c h ` ^ k i i g f r f l h ^ f i f ` ` c b g h _ g d f _ g n d i i n b l c f k g a f n n f c h v k g a g bp l b r _ ` _ b g ` ^ k i i � f a f f e f a a f p f g a f g h d p b g k g s b h ^ f l p l b r _ ` _ b g d g i f ` ` ` b f � p l f ` ` f a^ f l f _ g u � u � ` ` _ � g e f g h u m b g h l k c h b l e k s g b h k ` ` _ � g h ^ _ ` m b g h l k c h b l k g s b n _ h ` l _ � ^ h `b l b � i _ � k h _ b g ` ^ f l f d g a f l v o _ h ^ b d h h ^ f p l _ b l o l _ h h f g c b g ` f g h b n h ^ f m _ h s v o ^ _ c ^ c b g ` f g he k s � f o _ h ^ ^ f i a _ g h ^ f ` b i f k g a k � ` b i d h f a _ ` c l f h _ b g b n h ^ f m _ h s u� u j d l r _ r k i b n � � i _ � k h _ b g ` u � i i b � i _ � k h _ b g ` k g a a d h _ f ` o ^ _ c ^ � s h ^ f _ l g k h d l ff � h f g a � f s b g a h ^ f h f l e b n h ^ _ ` m b g h l k c h ` ^ k i i ` d l r _ r f h ^ f f � p _ l k h _ b g b l h f l e _ g k h _ b g b n h ^ _ `m b g h l k c h u

193

ITEM  20.



$ % & ' ( ) * + + , - . / 0 1 2 3 4 5 1 , 6 7 ) 3 , 2 8 9 6 7 1 0 7. 7 : * ) ; * < < 3 = > / ? *. , 2 8 @ ) / A 7 - 2 B / C D B 4 % % % 4 E $ & &� u � b r f l g _ g � � k o �   d l _ ` a _ c h _ b g � ¡ f g d f k g a ] l _ k i u ] ^ _ ` m b g h l k c h ` ^ k i i � fc b g ` h l d f a _ g k c c b l a k g c f o _ h ^ v k g a k i i a _ ` p d h f ` ^ f l f d g a f l ` ^ k i i � f � b r f l g f a � s v h ^ f i k o `b n h ^ f j h k h f b n � b o k v f � c i d a _ g � _ h ` c b g n i _ c h ` b n i k o l d i f ` u ] ^ f p k l h _ f ` ^ f l f h b k � l f f h ^ k hh ^ f f � c i d ` _ r f � d l _ ` a _ c h _ b g k g a r f g d f ` ^ k i i � f _ g h ^ f � b o k ¢ _ ` h l _ c h m b d l h n b l £ i k c q ¤ k o qm b d g h s v k g a _ g g b b h ^ f l � d l _ ` a _ c h _ b g b l i b c k h _ b g v k g a ` ^ k i i g b h � f l f e b r f a h b n f a f l k ic b d l h u ] ^ f p k l h _ f ` ^ f l f � s k � l f f h b o k _ r f h ^ f l _ � ^ h h b h l _ k i � s � d l s k g a k � l f f h b ` d � e _ h k i ia _ ` p d h f ` h b k h l _ k i � s � d a � f k i b g f u ] ^ f p k l h _ f ` k � l f f h ^ k h g b a _ ` p d h f ` d g a f l h ^ _ ` m b g h l k c h` ^ k i i � f ` d � e _ h h f a h b � _ g a _ g � k l � _ h l k h _ b g v � d h e k s � f ` d � e _ h h f a h b e f a _ k h _ b g � s e d h d k ic b g ` f g h b n � b h ^ p k l h _ f ` u� ¥ u � g s n k _ i d l f b n m b g h l k c h b l h b c b e p i s o _ h ^ h ^ f � g ` d l k g c f ¦ f � d _ l f e f g h ` n b lm b g h l k c h b l ` n b l h ^ f m _ h s b n m f a k l t k i i ` ` f h n b l h ^ b g � h h k c ^ e f g h � v ` ^ k i i c b g ` h _ h d h f ka f n k d i h d g a f l h ^ _ ` m b g h l k c h u� � u § { { y | z � ¨ � © ª � � � « ¬ z { � � �  � z { y ® ¯ � { � ° } { � y z � { � � x � { ¨ � � } ¯ ¯ � z � � | z y~ � | ~ � � � { } z ~ � � ± � y ± ¯ � ° } { � � ® y | ² } ¨ � � z { y ® } z ¨ } { { y | z � ¨ � © ® � � � y ® x y z { | } ~ { y | y | } z ¨ y { � � |p k l h s v k l _ ` _ g � b d h b n ` d c ^ i _ h _ � k h _ b g u� � u ³ } ¨ � � z { « ³ } ¨ � � z { y ® x y z { | } ~ { y | © � � z  y � ~ � � � � } ¯ ¯ � f a d f g b ` b b g f l h ^ k gh ^ _ l h s � � ¥ � a k s ` n l b e h ^ f a k h f b n _ g r b _ c f u � g h ^ f f r f g h k g s _ g r b _ c f ` k l f g b h p k _ a o _ h ^ _ gh ^ _ l h s � � ¥ � a k s ` v h ^ f m _ h s ` ^ k i i p k s _ g h f l f ` h h ^ f l f b g k h h ^ f l k h f p l b r _ a f a n b l � sj f c h _ b g � � � u � � � � � v m b a f b n � b o k v c b e p d h f a e b g h ^ i s u� � u ] ^ f m _ h s ` ^ k i i g b h � f b � i _ � k h f a h b e k _ g h k _ g c b g n _ a f g h _ k i _ h s b n m b g h l k c h b la b c d e f g h ` b l l f c b l a ` h ^ k h k l f n d l g _ ` ^ f a h b h ^ f m _ h s _ n ` d c ^ a b c d e f g h ` k l f p d � i _ c l f c b l a `d g a f l h ^ f � b o k � p f g ¦ f c b l a ` � k o v m ^ k p h f l � � v m b a f b n � b o k v k g a h ^ f m _ h s ` ^ k i i ^ k r fg b l f ` p b g ` _ � _ i _ h s h b m b g h l k c h b l n b l a _ ` c i b ` d l f b n ` d c ^ l f c b l a ` u� � u ´ g a f l g b c _ l c d e ` h k g c f ` ` ^ k i i h ^ f m _ h s o k _ r f k g s a k e k � f ` k � k _ g ` h h ^ fm b g h l k c h b l b l k g s b h ^ f l p k l h s k l _ ` _ g � b d h b n k g s � l f k c ^ b n h ^ _ ` m b g h l k c h v o ^ f h ^ f lc b g ` f � d f g h _ k i v _ g a _ l f c h v ` p f c _ k i v b l p d g _ h _ r f a k e k � f ` u� � u µ z � � | z y ~ � | ~ � � � { } z ~ � � � � } ¯ ¯ { � � x y z { | } ~ { y | © � ¯ � } ± � ¯ � { ¨ { y { � � x � { ¨ ± �i _ e _ h f a h b k g s ` p f c _ n _ c k e b d g h b l ` d e v o ^ f h ^ f l h ^ k h k e b d g h _ ` h ^ f c b e p f g ` k h _ b g p k _ a � sh ^ f m _ h s h b h ^ f m b g h l k c h b l d g a f l h ^ _ ` m b g h l k c h v b l h ^ f a b i i k l k e b d g h b n c b r f l k � f p l b r _ a f an b l _ g h ^ f � g ` d l k g c f ¦ f � d _ l f e f g h ` n b l m b g h l k c h b l ` n b l h ^ f m _ h s b n m f a k l t k i i ` v � h h k c ^ e f g h� u � � u ¶ y · } �  � | y ® { � � x � { ¨ © � � � ± | y ° } { � y z | � ° � { � } ° } � z � { { � � x y z { | } ~ { y | y | } z ¨b h ^ f l p k l h s ` ^ k i i c b g n i _ c h o _ h ^ h ^ f p l b r _ ` _ b g ` b n h ^ f m _ h s � g ` d l k g c f ¦ f � d _ l f e f g h ` v� h h k c ^ e f g h � u� � u � _ e _ h k h _ b g ` ¸ f l _ b a u ] ^ f l f ` ^ k i i � f g b i _ e _ h k h _ b g v f � c f p h k ` p l b r _ a f a n b l � s� b o k i k o v b g h ^ f p f l _ b a b n h _ e f o _ h ^ _ g o ^ _ c ^ h ^ f m _ h s e k s e k q f k g s c i k _ e k � k _ g ` h h ^ fm b g h l k c h b l b l b h ^ f l p k l h s d g a f l h ^ f p l b r _ ` _ b g ` b n h ^ _ ` m b g h l k c h u� � u ] ^ _ ` m b g h l k c h ` ^ k i i g b h � f � _ g a _ g � b g h ^ f m _ h s d g i f ` ` k g a d g h _ i k p p l b r f a� s h ^ f m _ h s m b d g c _ i b n h ^ f m _ h s k h k a d i s c b g ` h _ h d h f a e f f h _ g � v k g a ` _ � g f a � s h ^ f ¹ k s b lk g a m _ h s m i f l q b n h ^ f m _ h s u
194

ITEM  20.



$ % & ' ( ) * + + , - . / 0 1 2 3 4 5 1 , 6 7 ) 3 , 2 8 9 6 7 1 0 7. 7 : * ) ; * < < 3 = > / ? *. , 2 8 @ ) / A 7 - 2 B / C D B 4 % % % 4 E $ & &� � u º k l l k g h _ f ` u m b g h l k c h b l l f p l f ` f g h ` k g a o k l l k g h ` h ^ k h k i i ` f l r _ c f `n d l g _ ` ^ f a h b h ^ f m _ h s d g a f l h ^ _ ` m b g h l k c h ` ^ k i i � f n d l g _ ` ^ f a _ g k ` q _ i i f a k g a o b l q e k g i _ q fe k g g f l v _ g k c c b l a k g c f o _ h ^ h ^ f a f � l f f b n ` q _ i i k g a c k l f h ^ k h _ ` l f � d _ l f a � s c d l l f g h v � b b a} z � � y � z � ² | } ~ { � ~ � � } ² ² ¯ � ~ } ± ¯ � { y { � � x y z { | } ~ { y | © � � z � � � { | ¨ y | ² | y ® � � � � y z � k g a k `b h ^ f l o _ ` f l f � d _ l f a � s k p p i _ c k � i f i k o u� ¥ u t b l c f ¹ k � f d l f u � f _ h ^ f l p k l h s h b h ^ _ ` m b g h l k c h ` ^ k i i � f i _ k � i f h b h ^ f b h ^ f lp k l h s n b l a f i k s ` _ g p f l n b l e _ g � h ^ f ` f l r _ c f ` v b l n b l h ^ f a _ l f c h b l _ g a _ l f c h c b ` h l f ` d i h _ g � n l b e` d c ^ a f i k s ` v h ^ k h e k s l f ` d i h n l b e k c h ` b n � b a v k c h ` b n � b r f l g e f g h k i k d h ^ b l _ h _ f ` vf � h l k b l a _ g k l s o f k h ^ f l c b g a _ h _ b g ` b l b h ^ f l g k h d l k i c k h k ` h l b p ^ f ` v b l k g s b h ^ f l c k d ` f� f s b g a h ^ f l f k ` b g k � i f c b g h l b i b l c b g h f e p i k h _ b g b n f _ h ^ f l p k l h s u » k c ^ p k l h s o _ i i h k q fl f k ` b g k � i f ` h f p ` h b e _ h _ � k h f h ^ f _ e p k c h b n k g s n b l c f e k � f d l f u

195

ITEM  20.



DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-268-5161 
Fax: 319-268-5197 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 
MEMORANDUM 

Engineering Division 

  

  

 

 

 
 
 

 

 

 
 TO: Honorable Mayor James P. Brown and City Council 
 
 FROM: Matthew Tolan, EI, Civil Engineer II 
 
 DATE: September 12, 2019 
 
 SUBJECT: Fiber Optic License Agreement 
   ARVIG Enterprises, Inc. 
   Cedar Heights Drive 
 
 
Enclosed is a proposed License Agreement between the City of Cedar Falls and ARVIG 
Enterprises Inc. to install a long distance telecommunications system consisting of fiber 
optic cable within the public right-of way of the City, in order to extend services owned 
by Verizon Communications Inc. along Cedar Heights Drive and Greenhill Road.  
 
The proposed License Agreement follows the terms and conditions set forth in previous 
agreements and is intended to protect the City of Cedar Falls right-of way and manage 
and regulate in a manner consistent with federal and state law. 
 
The Engineering Division recommends your approval of this proposed License 
Agreement. 
 
 
 
 
 
xc:  Chase Schrage, Director of Public Works 

David Wicke, City Engineer 
 

196

ITEM  21.



197

ITEM  21.



198

ITEM  21.



199

ITEM  21.



200

ITEM  21.



201

ITEM  21.



202

ITEM  21.



203

ITEM  21.



204

ITEM  21.



205

ITEM  21.



206

ITEM  21.



207

ITEM  21.



Page 1 of 5 
 

EXHIBIT A  

 

Text description of alignment for Arvig Orchard Hill fiber optic cable installation 

 

Commencing at the Cedar Falls/Waterloo line along west side of Deere Rd/Cedar Heights Dr at our 

stationing 0+00, 54’ from CL west of Cedar Heights Dr, vibratory plow in a northerly direction of (1) 1.25” 

HDPE and 48F at a minimum depth of 42” at station 0+32, 54’ from CL at station 1+19, 55’ from CL at 

station 1+84, 56’ from CL at station 3+88, 57’ from CL at station 4+87, 56’ from CL at station 5+90, 43’ 

from CL at station 6+88, 42’ from CL at station 7+88, 40’ from CL at station 8+88, 37’ from CL at station 

9+81, 33’ from CL at station 10+28, 34’ from CL at station 10+61, 32’ from CL a bore pit (5’x8’x5’) will be 

placed (and restored). 

Continuing in a northerly direction on the west side of Cedar Heights Drive at station 10+61, 32’ from CL 

a bore pit (5’x8’x5’) will be placed (and restored), a directional bore (1) 48F fiber pulled through (1) 

1.25” HDPE duct at minimum depth 48” crossing the John Deere PEC entrance to station 11+95, 43’ from 

CL a bore pit (5’x8’x5’) will be placed (and restored). 

Continuing in a northerly direction on the west side of Cedar Heights Drive at station 11+95, 43’ from CL 

a bore pit (5’x8’x5’) will be placed (and restored), vibratory plow (1) 1.25” HDPE and 48F at a minimum 

depth of 42” at station 12+85, 45’ from CL at station 13+36, 46’ from CL 4’ radius turn to station 13+51. 

41’ from CL4’ radius turn to station 13+84, 40’ from CL 4’ radius turn to station 41+01, 45’ from CL 

4’radius turn to station 14+91, 44’ from CL at station 15+86, 48’ from CL at station 16+90,62’ from CL at 

station 17+89, 64’ from CL at station 18+84, 64’ from CL at station 20+89, 63’ from CL at station 21+22, 

61’ from CL bore pit (5’x8’x5’) with hand hole added at restoration. 

Continuing in a northerly direction on the west side of Cedar Heights Drive at station 21+22, 61’ from CL 

bore pit (5’x8’x5’) with hand hole added at restoration; a directional bore (1) 48F fiber pulled through (1) 

1.25” HDPE duct at minimum depth 48” crossing the John Deere PEC secondary entrance and crossing 

box culvert to station 21+75, 63’ from CL 30’ radius turn to station 23+16, 98’ from CL 30’ radius turn to 

station23+88, 87’ from CL at station 25+16, 68’ from CL at station 25+47, 61’ from CL bore pit (5’x8’x5’) 

with hand hole added at restoration. 

Continuing in a northerly direction on the west side of Cedar Heights Drive at station 25+47, 61’ from CL 

a bore pit (5’x8’x5’) will be placed (and restored), vibratory plow (1) 1.25” HDPE and 48F at a minimum 

depth of 42” at station 25+87, 62 from CL at station 26+88, 61’ from CL at station 27+88, 60’ from CL at 

station 28+88, 59’ from CL at station 29+87, 58 from CL at station 30+88, 58’ from CL at station 31+88, 

56’ from CL at station 32+80, 55’ from CL at station 36+85, 56’ from CL at station 38+82, 57 from CL at 

station 39+80, 58’ from CL 4’ radius turn to station 40+10, 71’ from CL 4’ radius turn to station 40+83, 

69’ from CL at station 41+83, 68’ from CL at station 42+84, 67’ from CL at station 43+88, 66 from CL at 

station 44+87, 68’ from CL at station 45+85, 68’ from CL at station 48+88, 67’ from CL at station 50+83, 

62’ from CL at station 51+78, 55’ from CL at station 52+42, 49’ from CL 4’ radius turn to station 52+89, 

51’ from CL at station 53+57, 49’ from CL bore pit (5’x8’x5’) will be placed (and restored). 

208

ITEM  21.



Page 2 of 5 
 

Turning easterly at station 53+57, 49’ from CL bore pit (5’x8’x5’) will be placed (and restored), 

directional bore (1) 48F fiber pulled through (1) 1.25” HDPE duct at minimum depth 60” crossing Cedar 

Heights Drive to station 54+87, 72’ from CL bore pit (5’x8’x5’) with hand hole added at restoration. 

Continuing in a northerly direction on the east side of Cedar Heights Drive at station 54+87, 72’ from CL 

bore pit (5’x8’x5’) with hand hole added at restoration; vibratory plow (1) 1.25” HDPE and 48F at a 

minimum depth of 42” at station 55+81, 78’ from CL at station 56+85, 81’ from CL at station 57+20,77’ 

from CL bore pit (5’x8’x5’) will be placed (and restored). 

Continuing in a northerly direction on the east side of Cedar Heights Drive at station 57+20,77’ from CL 

bore pit (5’x8’x5’) will be placed (and restored), directional bore (1) 48F fiber pulled through (1) 1.25” 

HDPE duct at minimum depth 48” crossing existing gas main at a minimum of 2’ below at station 57+46, 

77’ from CL at station 58+45, 61’ from CL bore pit (5’x8’x5’) will be placed (and restored). 

Continuing in a northeasterly direction on the south east side of Cedar Heights Drive at station 58+45, 

61’  from CL bore pit (5’x8’x5’) will be placed (and restored), vibratory plow (1) 1.25” HDPE and 48F at a 

minimum depth of 42” at station 58+78, 77’ from CL at station 60+16, 82’ from CL at station 60+75, 81’ 

from CL at station 62+84, 82’ from CL at station 63+86, 79’ from Cl at station 64+15, 79’ from CL 4’ 

radius turn to station 65+13, 79’ from CL at station 65+93, 57’ from CL at station 66+89, 53’ from CL at 

station 67+88, 57’ from CL at station 69+05, 58’ from CL bore pit (5’x8’x5’) will be placed (and restored). 

Continuing in a northeasterly direction on the east side of Cedar Heights Drive at station 69+05, 58’ from 

CL bore pit (5’x8’x5’) will be placed (and restored), directional bore (1) 48F fiber pulled through (1) 1.25” 

HDPE duct at minimum depth 60” crossing Prairie Street, box culvert, 21” R.C.P., and 16” force main  at 

station 69+77, 64’ from CL a 30’ radius turn to station 69+88, 64’ from CL at station 71+00, 70’ from CL a 

30’ radius turn to station 71+16, 70’ from CL at station 72+20, 76’ from CL a 30’ radius turn to station 

72+61, 74’ from CL to station 73+74, 62’ from CL bore pit (5’x8’x5’) will be placed (and restored). 

Continuing in a northeasterly direction on the east side of Cedar Heights Drive at station 73+74, 62’ from 

CL bore pit (5’x8’x5’) will be placed (and restored), directional bore (1) 48F fiber pulled through (1) 1.25” 

HDPE duct at minimum depth 60” at station 73+94, 60’ from CL at station 74+95, 45’ from CL at station 

75+54, 39’ from CL a 30’ radius turn to station 75+78, 45’ from CL a 30’ radius turn to station 76+49, 50’ 

from CL bore pit (5’x8’x5’) will be placed (and restored). 

Turning in a northerly direction on the east side of Cedar Heights Drive at station 76+49, 50’ from CL 

bore pit (5’x8’x5’) will be placed (and restored), directional bore (1) 48F fiber pulled through (1) 1.25” 

HDPE duct at minimum depth 60” at station 76+93, 48’ from CL at station 77+11, 44’ from CL bore pit 

(5’x8’x5’) will be placed (and restored). 

Continuing in a northerly direction on the east side of Cedar Heights Drive at station 77+11, 44’ from CL 

bore pit (5’x8’x5’) will be placed (and restored), vibratory plow (1) 1.25” HDPE and 48F at a minimum 

depth of 48” at station 78+91, 43’ from CL at station 84+91, 44’ from CL at station 88+58, 42’ from CL 

bore pit (5’x8’x5’) will be placed (and restored). 

Continuing in a northerly direction on the east side of Cedar Heights Drive at station 88+58, 42’ from CL 

bore pit (5’x8’x5’) will be placed (and restored), directional bore (1) 48F fiber pulled through (1) 1.25” 

HDPE duct at minimum depth 48” crossing three driveways at 4710 Cedar Heights Drive at station 

209

ITEM  21.



Page 3 of 5 
 

88+91, 44’ from CL at station 90+91, 45’ from CL at station 91+28, 43’ from CL bore pit (5’x8’x5’) will be 

placed (and restored). 

 

Continuing in a northerly direction on the east side of Cedar Heights Drive at station 91+28, 43’ from CL 

bore pit (5’x8’x5’) will be placed (and restored), vibratory plow (1) 1.25” HDPE and 48F at a minimum 

depth of 42” at station 91+91, 45’ from CL at station 92+91, 46’ from CL at station 93+90, 47’ from CL at 

station 94+91, 48’ from CL at station 95+92, 47’ from CL bore pit (5’x8’x5’) will be placed (and restored). 

Continuing in a northerly direction on the east side of Cedar Heights Drive at station 95+92, 47’ from CL 

bore pit (5’x8’x5’) will be placed (and restored), directional bore (1) 48F fiber pulled through (1) 1.25” 

HDPE duct at minimum depth 48” crossing driveway at 4616 Cedar Heights Drive at station 96+71, 48’ 

from CL bore pit (5’x8’x5’) will be placed (and restored). 

Continuing in a northerly direction on the east side of Cedar Heights Drive at station 96+71, 48’ from CL 

bore pit (5’x8’x5’) will be placed (and restored), vibratory plow (1) 1.25” HDPE and 48F at a minimum 

depth of 42” at station 97+08, 51’ from CL at station 98+16, 52’ from CL at station 98+89, 49’ from CL 

bore pit (5’x8’x5’) with hand hole added at restoration. 

Turning westerly on east side of Cedar Heights Drive at station 98+89, 49’ from CL bore pit (5’x8’x5’) 

with hand hole added at restoration; directional bore (1) 48F fiber pulled through (1) 1.25” HDPE duct at 

minimum depth of 60” crossing Cedar Heights Drive to station 100+04, 64’ from CL bore pit (5’x8’x5’) 

will be placed (and restored). 

Turning northerly on west side of Cedar Heights Drive at station 100+04, 64’ from CL bore pit (5’x8’x5’) 

will be placed (and restored), directional bore (1) 48F fiber pulled through (1) 1.25” HDPE duct at 

minimum depth of 60” at station 100+81, 59’ from CL bore pit (5’x8’x5’) will be placed (and restored). 

Turning northwesterly on west side of Cedar Heights Drive and south side of E. Greenhill Road at station 

100+81, 59’ from CL bore pit (5’x8’x5’) will be placed (and restored), directional bore (1) 48F fiber pulled 

through (1) 1.25” HDPE duct at minimum depth of 60” at station 101+51, 75’ from CL on E. Greenhill 

Road bore pit (5’x8’x5’) will be placed (and restored). 

Turning westerly on the south side of E. Greenhill Road at station 101+51, 75’ from CL bore pit (5’x8’x5’) 

will be placed (and restored), directional bore (1) 48F fiber pulled through (1) 1.25” HDPE duct at 

minimum depth of 60” at station102+10, 82’ from CL at station 103+10, 89’ from CL at station 104+10, 

100’ from CL at station 105+11, 112’ from CL at station 105+76, 120’ from CL at station 106+00, 121’ 

from CL  bore pit (5’x8’x5’) will be placed (and restored). 

Continuing westerly on the south side of E. Greenhill Road at station 106+00, 121’ from CL bore pit 

(5’x8’x5’) will be placed (and restored), directional bore (1) 48F fiber pulled through (1) 1.25” HDPE duct 

at minimum depth 60” crossing box culvert, 16” forced main, and 21” R.C.P at station 107+10, 125’ from 

CL at station 107+51, 98’ from CL at station 108+10, 126’ from CL at station 109+04, 124’ from CL at 

station 109+70, 123’ from CL bore pit (5’x8’x5’) will be placed (and restored). 

Continuing westerly on the south side of E. Greenhill Road at station 109+70, 123’ from CL bore pit 

(5’x8’x5’) will be placed (and restored), directional bore (1) 48F fiber pulled through (1) 1.25” HDPE duct 

210

ITEM  21.



Page 4 of 5 
 

at minimum depth of 60” crossing Green Creek Rd at station 110+92, 123’ from CL bore pit (5’x8’x5’) will 

be placed (and restored). 

 

Continuing westerly on the south side of E. Greenhill Road at station 110+92, 123’ from CL bore pit 

(5’x8’x5’) will be placed (and restored), vibratory plow (1) 1.25” HDPE and 48F at a minimum depth of 

42” at station 111+43, 126’ from CL 4’ radius turn to station 111+68, 121’ from CL at station 112+78, 

101’ from CL at station 113+66, 85’ from CL 4’ radius turn to station 114+07, 85’ from CL to station 

116+80, 86’ from CL at station 119+78, 87’ from CL at station 124+26, 85’ from CL bore pit (5’x8’x5’) will 

be placed (and restored). 

Continuing westerly on the south side of E. Greenhill Road at station 124+26, 85’ from CL bore pit 

(5’x8’x5’) will be placed (and restored), directional bore (1) 48F fiber pulled through (1) 1.25” HDPE duct 

at minimum depth 60” crossing sidewalk from the parking lot at 4520 E. Greenhill Road at station 

124+75, 85’ from CL bore pit (5’x8’x5’) will be placed (and restored). 

Continuing westerly on the south side of E. Greenhill Road at station 124+75, 85’ from CL bore pit 

(5’x8’x5’) will be placed (and restored), vibratory plow (1) 1.25” HDPE and 48F at a minimum depth of 

42” at station 125+08, 88’ from CL at station 126+66, 85’ from CL bore pit (5’x8’x5’) will be placed with 

hand hole added at restoration. 

Continuing westerly on the south side of E. Greenhill Road at station 126+66, 85’ from CL bore pit 

(5’x8’x5’) will be placed with hand hole added at restoration, directional bore (1) 48F fiber pulled 

through (1) 1.25” HDPE duct at minimum depth 60” crossing Rownd Street at station 127+39, 107’ from 

CL bore pit (5’x8’x5’) will be placed (and restored). 

Continuing westerly on the south side of E. Greenhill Road at station 127+39, 107’ from CL bore pit 

(5’x8’x5’) will be placed (and restored), directional bore (1) 48F fiber pulled through (1) 1.25” HDPE duct 

at minimum depth 60” at station 128+04, 105’ from CL at station 128+94, 100’ from CL bore pit 

(5’x8’x5’) will be placed (and restored). 

Continuing westerly on the south side of E. Greenhill Road at station 128+94, 100’ from CL bore pit 

(5’x8’x5’) will be placed (and restored), vibratory plow (1) 1.25” HDPE and 48F at a minimum depth of 

42” at station 129+05, 103’ from CL at station 129+78, 101’ from CL at station 131+11, 99’ from CL at 

station 131+44, 99’ from CL 4’ radius turn to station 132+05, 92’ from CL at station 133+07, 81’ from CL 

at station 133+46, 78’ from CL 4’ radius turn to station 133+82, 78’ from CL at station 134+78, 78’ from 

CL at station 136+77, 79’ from CL at station 139+40, 77’ from CL  bore pit (5’x8’x5’) will be placed (and 

restored). 

Continuing westerly on the south side of E. Greenhill Road at station 139+40, 77’ from CL, bore pit 

(5’x8’x5’) will be placed (and restored), directional bore (1) 48F fiber pulled through (1) 1.25” HDPE duct 

at minimum depth of 60” crossing Oster Parkway at station 141+09, 80’ from CL at station 141+21, 78’ 

from CL bore pit (5’x8’x5’) will be placed (and restored). 

Continuing westerly on the south side of E. Greenhill Road at station 141+21, 78’ from CL bore pit 

(5’x8’x5’) will be placed (and restored), vibratory plow (1) 1.25” HDPE and 48F at a minimum depth of 

42” at station 141+76, 80’ from CL at station 145+80, 81’ from CL at station 146+42, 81’ from CL 4’ 

211

ITEM  21.



Page 5 of 5 
 

radius turn to station 164+78, 87’ from CL at station 147+76, 103’ from CL at station 148+43, 115’ from 

CL 4’ radius turn to station 148+82, 115’ from CL at station 149+79, 116’ from Cl at station 150+78, 117’ 

from Cl at station 153+79, 118’ from CL at station 154+16, 115’ from CL bore pit (5’x8’x5’) will be placed 

(and restored). 

Continuing westerly on the south side of E. Greenhill Road at station 154+16, 115’ from CL bore pit 

(5’x8’x5’) will be placed (and restored,), directional bore (1) 48F fiber pulled through (1) 1.25” HDPE duct 

at minimum depth 60” crossing driveway for 1405 Greenhill Road at station 155+73, 115’ from CL bore 

pit (5’x8’x5’) will be placed with hand hole added at restoration. 

Turning southerly on the south side of E. Greenhill Road at station 155+73, 115’ from CL bore pit 

(5’x8’x5’) will be placed with hand hole added at restoration; directional bore (1) 48F fiber pulled 

through (1) 1.25” HDPE duct at minimum depth 60” at station 155+73, 125’ from CL leaving right of way 

to an existing hand hole in utility easement. 

Continuing southerly on the south side of E. Greenhill Road at station 155+73, 125’ from CL from existing 

hand hole approximately 747’ of (1) 48F fiber pulled through existing duct in utility easement. 

The owner of the fiber will be: 

Arvig Enterprises Inc 

160 2nd St SW 

Perham, MN 56573 

Andy Klinnert – Director of Network Operations 

 

212

ITEM  21.



Exhibit B

213

ITEM  21.



214

ITEM  21.



215

ITEM  21.



216

ITEM  21.



217

ITEM  21.



218

ITEM  21.



219

ITEM  21.



220

ITEM  21.



221

ITEM  21.



222

ITEM  21.



223

ITEM  21.



224

ITEM  21.



225

ITEM  21.



226

ITEM  21.



227

ITEM  21.



228

ITEM  21.



229

ITEM  21.



230

ITEM  21.



231

ITEM  21.



232

ITEM  21.



233

ITEM  21.



234

ITEM  21.



235

ITEM  21.



236

ITEM  21.



237

ITEM  21.



238

ITEM  21.



239

ITEM  21.



240

ITEM  21.



241

ITEM  21.



242

ITEM  21.



243

ITEM  21.



244

ITEM  21.



245

ITEM  21.



246

ITEM  21.



247

ITEM  21.



248

ITEM  21.



249

ITEM  21.



250

ITEM  21.



251

ITEM  21.



252

ITEM  21.



253

ITEM  21.



254

ITEM  21.



255

ITEM  21.



256

ITEM  21.



257

ITEM  21.



258

ITEM  21.



259

ITEM  21.



260

ITEM  21.



DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-273-8600 
Fax: 319-273-8610 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 

MEMORANDUM
Planning & Community Services Division 

 TO:
� � � � � � � � � � � 	 � � 
 � � � �  � � � � � � � � � � � � 	 � � � � � � �

 

 FROM: � � � � � � � � � � � � � � �  �  � � � � � � � �
 DATE: � � � � � � � � � � � �  ! �
 SUBJECT: " � # � � � � � $ � � � � % � � � � � � � 	 � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � & � � � � � � � ' $ � � � � 	( ) * + ) � , - ( � . � � � � � � � � � � � $ � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � & � � � � � � � ' $ � � � � 	 � � � �  � � � % � � � � �% � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � / ! ! � � � � � � � � � � ) , � , � ' 0 ) ( - ' � � � � - � � 
 � 1 � � � � � � � 2 �� ' � � , � ' 0 - ( ' 
 ) � , 3 - / ! ! � � � � � � � � � �& ( ! � 4   5 ( '  ' � � �, � � � � � � � � %  � � � � � � � � / ! ! � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � . � � � � � � 2 � � � � � � � � � � � $ � � � � � � � � � � � � � � �� 6 � � � � � 2 � � � � � % � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � 2 � � � � 2 � � � 2 � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � �  1 � 	 !  1 � � � � � � � � � � �� � � � � 2 � $ � � � � � � � � � � 	 � � � � � $ � � � � � � � � � 7 � � % 8 9 � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � % � � � � �� � � � � � � 7 � � % 8 � � 	 � � � � , � � � � � � � � � 	 � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � & � � � � � � � ' $ � � � � 	 � � � �� � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � % � � � � � � � � 2 � � � � � � � : � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � $ � � � � � � � 2 � � % � � �� � � � � � � � % � # � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � 7 � � % 8 � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � 2 ; �

� � � � � � �  � � � � � � �
261

ITEM  22.



� � � < = ( ' + 0 &, � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � 6 � � � � � 2� � � � � % � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � % � # � � � � % / ! ! � � � �� � � � � � � � � � � � � 2 � � � � 2 � � � 2 � � � � � � � � � � � � � �� � � � � � � � �  1 � 	 !  1 � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � 2 � $ � � �� � � � � � � 	 � � � � � $ � � � � � � � � � � � % 8 � , � � � � � � � � � 	 � �� � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � % � � � /   � � � � 7 � %� � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � 2 � � � � � � � � 2 � � �/ ! ! � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � 2 � � � � � 	 � � � � � � � � � � � � �! > � / � , � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � $ � � � � � � � � � �% � # � � � � % � � � � � � � � � � � 2 � � � � � � � � � �   ? � � � � �� � � � � � � � � � � @ � � � 6 � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � $ � � � � � �& � � � � 2 � � � � � � � � � � � � � $ � � � � � 	 � % � � � � � � � � � � �� � � � � � � � � � � �  ! 5 � � � � � % � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � 2� � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � 2 � � � � � � � � � � " � � � � & � � � � � � �� � � � � � � � & � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � 2 � � % � � � � �� � � � % � � � � � � � � � � � � � � $ � � � � � � � � � � � � � �% � # � � � �, � � � � � � � � � � 	 � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � 4 / � � � � � � � � � � � & � � � � � � � A � � � : � � � � � � � � B 4 ! ? � ; � � � � � � � � �� � � @ � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � & � � � � � � � ' $ � � � � 	 � � 2 � � � � � � � � : � � � � � � � � B 4 ! > � ; � � � � � � � C � � � � � � 	D � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � $ � � � � � E � � � � � 6 � � � � � � % � # � � � � � � � � � � � � 2 � � � � $ � � 2 � 6 � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � �� � � � � � � � � % � � � � � � � � 2 � � � � . � � � � � � � � � 2 � � � $ � � � � 	 � � �  � � � � � � 2 � � � A � � � � 2 � � � � � � � � � � � � �� � � 	 � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � $ � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � & � � � � � � � ' $ � � � � 	 � �� � % � � � � � � � � � � � � � � B 4 ! > � : % ; � � � � � � � � � � % � � � � � � -F � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � $ � � � � � F � � � � � � � � � � 	 � � � � � � � � � � 2 � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � $ � � � � 	� � � � � � � � � � � � 	 � � � � $ � � � � � � % � � � 6 � � � � � 2 � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � $ � � $ � � � � 	 � � � � % � � � � � � � � % � � �� 6 � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � % � � � � � � � � � � � � � 	 $ � � � � � � % � � � � � 2 � � � � � � $ � � 2 � 6 � � � � � � � � � � � � � � �� � � � � � � � � � � � � � 2 � � � � � � � � � � � 6 � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � % � 6 � � � � � 2 � � � � � � � � � % � � � � � � � � � � $ � � � � � � �� � � � 2 � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � % � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � % � 6 � � � � � 2 % � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � �� � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � $ � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � % � � � � � � � � � � � � 	 � � � � � � � � % � � � � �� � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � 2 � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � 6 � � � � � � � � � $ � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � 7� � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � $ � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � 	 � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � 6 � � � � � 2� � � � � � � 2 � � � 2 � � � � � G � � � � � � � � � � � � � % � � � � 6 � � � � � 2 � � � % � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � E� 0 � � H � � �" � � � � � � � 2 � � � � � $ � � � � � � � � � % � � � � � � � � � � � % � # � � � � � � � 2 � � � � � � � � � � 2 � � � � � � � $ � � � � � � � � � � � � � �� � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � & � � � � � � � ' $ � � � � 	 A � � � -!
.  

 � � � � � � � � � - , � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � 2 � � � � � � � � � � �  % � � � � 	 !  % � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � 2 � , � � � � � � � 2 � � � � � �� � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � 2 !  % � � � � � � $ � � � � � � � � � � � 7� � $ � � � � � � � � � � 6 � � � � !  % � � � � $ � � � � � � � � � � � � 7 � �� � $ � � � � � � � % � � � � � � � � � � 7 � � % 8 � , � � � � 2 � � % � � �� � � � � � � 7 � � % 8 � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � 2 � � � � � % � � � � �� � � � � � � � � � � � $ � � � � � � � � � � � � � % % � � � � 6 � � � � � � � � � �� � � � � 2 � � � � � � $ � � � � � � � � � � � � % > % � � � � % % � % � � �� � � � � � � 7 : � � � � � � 2 � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � I J K L M N O P Q M R P M P S O T K U V W V X
262

ITEM  22.



� � . � � � � � � � � � ; � � � � � � � � � � � � � 2 � � � � � � � � � $ � � � � � � 2 � � , � � � � � � � 2 � � � � � � � � � � � � C � � � � �� � � � � � � � � � � � � % � # � � � � � � � � � 2 � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � �� � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � 	 � � � @ � � � � � � � $ � � � � � � � � � � � � � 2 � � 4 � % 4 � � 	 � � � � � � � � � � � 5 % � � � � � � � � %� � � � � � � � � % � � � � � � � � � � 7 � � % � � � � � % � � � � � � � � � � 2 � � � � � � � $ � � � � � � � � � � � � � $ � � � � � � � � � � � � % � � � �� � � � � � � � � � � 2 � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � 7 � � % 8 � , � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � 2� � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � 7 � � % � � � � � � � � � � � � 6 � � � � � $ � � � � � � � � � � � � � 2 � � � 7 � � 	 �, � � � � � � � � � � % � � � � � � � 2 � � � � � � � $ � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � 	 � � � 2 �� � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � 2 � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � % � � � � � � � � % � � � � � � % � � � � � � � � % % � � � % � � � � � � � � � � � � � �� � � � � 	 � � � % � � � � � $ � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � 2 � � � � � � � � � � 2 � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � 7 � �� � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � 7 � � % 8 � � � � � � $ � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � % � � 	 � � � 	� � � @ � � � � � � � � $ � � � � � � � 2 � � 4 � % 4 � � 	 � � � � � � � � $ � � � � � � � � � � � � � $ � � � 	 � � � � � � � � � � 2 ' % % � � � � � � �� � � � � � � � � � � � � 	 � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � 	 � � � � � � � � � � 2 � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � �� 6 � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � % � � � � � � � � � 2 � % � � � � 	 � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � �� � � � � � � � � � % � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � �
Discussion needed., � � � � � � � � � % � # � � � � � � � � � � � � � � 2 � � � � � � 4� � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � % � � � � � � � � � � 	 � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � �� 	 � � � $ � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � �� � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � 2 � � % � � � � � � � � � � 7 � � � � � � � � , � �� � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � 2 � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � �� � � � � % � � � � � � � � � � � 2 � � � � 2 � � � 2 � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � �� � � 2 � � % � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � 2 � � � , � � � � � � �� � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � 2 � � � � � � $ � � � � � � � � � � � � 2 �� � � � � � 	 � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � $ � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � �� � � � � � � � 	 � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � % � � � � � � �� � � � � � � � � � � $ � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � % � � �� � � � � � 2 � , � � 7 � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � % %� � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � �� � � � � � � � $ � % � � � � � � % � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � 2 � � � � � � � � �� � � � � � � � � � � $ � � � � � � � % � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � �� � � � � � � � % � � � � � % � � � � � � � � 2 � � � � � � � � � 2 � � � � � � � 	� � � � � � � � � � � 2 � � � � � � � 	 � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � % � �� � � � � � � 2 � � � � � � � � � $ � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � % � � �� � � � � � � � � � � � � � 7 � � � � � % � � � � � � 	 � � � � % � � � � � � � � �� � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � 2 � � 2 � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � % � � � �� � � � � � � � � % � 2 � � � � � � � � 	 � � � � � � � � 2 � � � � � � � � � 	� � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � 2 � � � 2 �� � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � 2 � � � � � � � � � � � �7 � � � � � 2 � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � % � � � � � � � � � � 2 � �� � � � � � � � � � � � � 	 � � 7 � � � � � � � � � � % � � � � � � � � � � � � �� � � � � � � � $ � % � � � � 	 � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � , � � � � � � � � � � � � � % � � � 2 � � � 2 � � � � �� � � � � � 2 � � � � � � % � � � � � � � � � � 6 � � � � � 2 � � � � � � � � � � � � % � � � � % � # � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � 2 � � � � � � � �� � � � � � � � � � � 7 � � � � � � � � , � � � � � � � � � � � � � 	 � � � � % � � � � � % � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � �� � � $ � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � 2 � � 6 � � � � � � % 2 � � � � � 	 � � � � � � % � � � � � � % � � � �� � � � � � 	 � � � � � � � Y � � � � � � � � � � � � � % � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � % � � � � $ � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � �� � � � � � � � � % � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � % � � � � � � � � 2 � � � � � % % � � � � � � � � � � 2 � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � 6 � � � � � � � � � �� � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � $ � � � � 2 � � � � % � � � � � � � � � � G � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � �� � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � 7 � � � � � 2 � � � � � � � � 6 � � � � � 2 � � � � � � � � � � � � � % � � � � � � � � � � 2 �

Criterion not 
met with the proposed garage door.

I J K L M N O P Q Z R P M P S O T [ K R K X O \ P P R

] ^ R R O V _ S _ P R O Q R P V _ P Q ` a a b K W V c _ R O O _

263

ITEM  22.



�
. 

( � � % � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � - � � � � � � � � � � � � 2 1 � � � � % � � � � � � � � � 2 � � � � � � � �
this criterion

does not apply for this review. / �  � � � � � � - , � � � � � � � � � � % � � � � � � � � % � � � � � � � � � � � � � 2 � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � �� % � � � � � � � � 2 � , � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � 2 � � � � � � $ � � � � � � � $ � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � % � � � � � �� � � � � % � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � % � � � � � � � � � 2 � � � � � � � 2 � � � � � � � � � � � � 2 � � � 2 �� � � � � � � � � � $ � 2 � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � 2 � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � 	 � � � � � � � � �� � � � � � � � � � � � 	 � � � � � % � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � 2 � � � � � � � � � � �� � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � % � � � � � � � � � � � 2 � , � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � �� � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � % � � � � � � � � � � � 2 � � � � � � � � � � � � � % � � � � � � � � % � � � � � � � � � � � � � 2 � � % � � �� � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � % � � � � � � � � � 2 � � � � � � � � � � �
Criterion not met.d � � � � � � � � 2 � � � � � � � � � � � - � � � � $ � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � % � � � � � � � � � � 2 � � � � � � � � � � � 2 � 9

this criterion
does not apply for this review.5 � Y � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � - � � � � � � 2 � � � � � � � � � � � � 2 � � � 2 � � � � � � � � � � � $ � 2 � � � � � � � � � � � � �� � � 	 � � � � � � � � � � � � 7 � � � � � � � � � � � � � � 2 � � � 2 � � � � � � � � 7 � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � �� � � � � � � � 6 � � � � � 2 � � � � 2 � � � � � � � � � � 2 � � � � � C � � � � 2 � � � � � � . � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � % ?  � � � � � � � � % � � � � � � � � % � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � % � � � � � � � � 2 � � � � � $ � � � � � � @ � � � � � 2 � � � � �� � $ � � � � � � � � � � � � � � % � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � % � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � $ � � � �� � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � % � � � � � � � � � , � � � � � � � � � � � � � � % � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � 2 � � � � � � � � � . � � � � �� � � � � � � � 2 � � % 2 � � � � � ( � � � � � � 2 � � � � � � � � $ � � � 2 � � � � � � � � � % � � � � � � � � 2 � � 	 � � � � � � � � 2 � � �
Criterion not met.B � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � 6 � � � � � - , � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � 2 � � � � � � � % � � 2 � � � � � 2 � � � � � $ � � � , � � � � � � � � � �2 � � � 2 � � � � � � � � � � � % � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � % � � � � � � � � % � � � $ � � � 2 � � � � � , � � � � � � � � � � �� � � � � � � � % � � � � � � � � � � � � � � 2 � � � 2 � � � 2 � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � 2 � � % � � � % � # � � � �� � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � �

Criterion met.? � � � � � � - , � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � 2 � � � � � � 2 � � 	 � , � � � � � � � � � � � % � � � 2 � � � 2 � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � 7 �� � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � 6 � � � � � 2 � � � � � � � % � � � � � � � � � � � �
 Criterion 

met. > � � � � � � � � � � � � � � % � � � � � � � - , � � � � � � � � � % � # � � � � � � � � � � � � � � 2 � � � � � � 4 � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � % � � � �� � � � � � 	 � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � 	 � � � $ � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � �� � � � 2 � � % � � � � � � � � � � 7 � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � 2 � � � � % � � � � � � � � % � � � � � � � � � � 2 �� � � � 2 � � 2 � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � % � � � � � � � � � � � � � % � 2 � � � � � � � � 	 � � � � � � � � 2 � � � � � � � � � 	 � � � � � � �� � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � 2 � � � 2 � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � 2 � � � � � � � � � �� � 7 � � � � � 2 � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � % � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � % � � � � � � � � � � � 2 � � � � % % � � � � �� � � � � � � � � � � � � % 2 � � � � 2 � � � 2 � � � � � � � � 2 � � � � � � � , � � 	 � � 	 � � $ � � 	 � � � � � � � � $ � % � � � � � � � � %� � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � % � � � � � � � 2 � � � � � � � 2 � � � � � � � � � � 2 � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � �� � � � � � � � � � � 2 � � � � � � � � % � � � � � � � � 2 � � � � � � � � � � � � � 2 � � � � � 	 � � � % � 2 � � � � � � � � � � � � % � � � � � , � � � �� � � � � � � � � � � % � � � � � � � 2 � � � � % � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � % � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � �� � � � $ � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � 2 � � � 2 � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � 6 � � � � � 2� � � � � � � � � � � � � % � � � � � � � � % � � � � � � � � � � � 2 � � � � � � � � � � % � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � % � � � �� � � � � � � 2 � � � � � 2 � � � � � � � � � � �
Criterion not met.� � � � � � � � � 2 � � � � � � � - , � � � � � � 	 � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � 2 � � � � � � � � � 2 � � 2 9

this criterion does not apply 
for this review.

264

ITEM  22.



!  � ) 6 � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � 2 � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � 7 � � 6 � � � � � � � � � � � � � 2 - 0 � � � � � � � � � � � � 2 � � � � � � � � 9
this criterion does not apply for this review.! ! � � � 2 � � 2 � - 0 � � � � � � 2 � � 2 � � � � � � � 2 � � � � � � � � �

this criterion does not apply for this review., ) � � 0 � � � � � ' � � ) 0 , �, � � � � � 	 1 � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � $ � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � 2 � � � 2 � � � � � � � / ! ! � � � � � � � � � � � � � � % % 1 �� � � � � � � � � � � % � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � 	 � � � � � � � � � � � % � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � �! � � % � � � � � � � � 2 � � � � � � � $ � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � 	 1 � � � � � � � � 2& � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � % � � 	 � � � � � � � � � � � � 2 � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � �� � � � � � � � � �� , � " " ( ) � ' � � ) 0 & � , � ' 0, � � � � � � � � � � 	 & � $ � � � � � � � � & � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � % & ( ! � 4   5 � � � � . � � � �� � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � % � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � 2 � � � � 2 � � � 2 � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � 2 � � / ! ! � � � � � � � � � � �, � � � � � � � � � � 	 & � $ � � � � � � � � & � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � $ � � � � � � � � � � � % & ( ! � 4   5 � �� � . � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � 2 � � � � � � � � � � � � 2 � � / ! ! � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � % � � � � � � � 2 � � � � � � � � � � -! � , � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � 	 1 � � � � � � � � 2 & � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � �� � � � � 2 � � � � � � � � � � � � % � � 	 � � � � � � � � � � � � 2 � � � � � � % � . � � � � � 	 � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � �� � � � � � � � � �� � , � � � � � � � 2 � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � @ � � � � � � � � � � � � � 5 % � � � � � � � 7 � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � 7� � % 8 � � � � � � $ � � � � � 0 0 � 0 = � 0 & A ' 0 � 0 = � ' � � � � � � ' 0 ( ) � ' � � ) 0 & � , � ' 0, � �  � � � � � � 2 � � � A � � � � 2 � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � & ( ! � 4   5 � � � � � > G � > G ! � � � 2 � � � �� � � � � � 2 � � � � � � � � � � % � � � � � � � 2 � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � -! � � � � � � $ � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � 2 � � � @ � � � � � � � � % � � � � � � � 2 � � � � � � � � � � -� � , � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � 	 1 � � � � � � � � 2 & � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � �� � � � � � � � 2 � � � � � � � � � � � � % � � 	 � � � � � � � � � � � � 2 � � � � � � % � . � � � � � 	 � � � � � � � � � � � � �� � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � �� � , � � � � � � � 2 � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � @ � � � � � � � � � � � � � 5 % � � � � � � � 7 � � � � � � � � � � � � �� � � � � � � 7 � � % 8 � � � � � � $ � � �� � � � � � � � � � � � . � � � � % � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � > G � > G ! �  � � � � � � 2 � � � A � � � � 2� � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � 2 � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � $ � � � % � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � % � � �2 � � � 2 � � � � � � � � � � � � � % � � � � � � 2 � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � 0 0 � 0 = e A ' 0 � 0 = � ' � � � � � � ' 0& � � � � � � � � � G f � � �> G � > G �  ! � , � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � % � � � � � � � $ � � � % � � , � �  � � � � � � � � � / ! !� � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � 2 % � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � �� � � � � � � � � 2 � � � � � � � � � � f � � � 4 � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � �� � � � � � � � � � $ � � � � � � � 7 2 � � � � � � � % � � � � � � � � � � � � � 6 � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � �� � . � � � � � � 2 � � � � � � � � � � � $ � � � % � � � � � � � � � � � % � # � � � � � � � 2 � � � � � � % � � � � � % � � �� � � � � � � 2 � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � % � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � 2 � � � �� � � � � � � � � � 2 � � � 2 � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � 2 � $ � � � � � � � � � � � � 	� � � � � $ � � � � � � � � � 7 � � % 8 � , � � � � � � � � � 	 % � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � �' $ � � � � 	 & � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � 2 2 � � �  � � � � � � 2 � � � A � � � � 2 � � � � � � 	 � � � � � � �� � � � � $ � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � 	 � � � � � � � � � � � 2 � % � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � % � � � � � � �� � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � % � � � � � � � � � 6 � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � 	 � � � � � � � � � � ! > � /� � � � � � � � � � � % � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � $ � � � � � � � � $ � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � 9
265

ITEM  22.



� � � � � � � � � 2 � � � � $ � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � 4 � � � � � � � � � � � 2 � � � � � � � � � � � � �� � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � % � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � 	 �� � � � � � � 2 � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � % � � � � � 2 � � � 2 � � � � � � �� � � � 6 � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � % � � � � � � � � % � � � � � � � � � � � 2 � � �� 2 � � � � � � � � � � � � � % � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � 2 � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � 2 - � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � �� � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � 	 � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � % � � � � � � � � � � � 2 � � � � � � � 	� � � � � � � � � � � � % � � � � � � � � � � � $ � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � % � � � � � � � 2 � � � � � � � � �� � � � � % � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � %� � � � � � � 2 � � � � 2 � � % � � � � � % � � � � � � , � � � � � � � � � 2 � � � � � � � � � � � � � � 2 � � � 2 � � � � � � � � �� � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � 	 � � � � � � � � � � % � � � � � � � � � � � � � % � � � � � � � % � � �� � � � � � � � � � � � � � � 2 � � � � � � % � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � % % � � � � � � � � � � � � � � �� � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � $ � % � � � � � � % � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � 2� � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � $ � � � � � � % % � � � � �� � � � � 6 � � � � � � � � � � � � 2 � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � % � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � 	� 6 � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � 2 � � � � � $ � � � � � � � 2 � � 2 � � � � � � � � � � � � �� � � � � % � � � � � � � � � � � � � % � 2 � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � 2 � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � 2 � � � 2 � � � � � �� � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � 2 � � � � � � � � � � � � 7 � � � � � 2 � � � � � � � � � � � � � � �� � � � � � � � � � % � � � � � � � � � � 2 � � � � � � � � � � � � � � , � � � � � � � � � � � � � � % � � � 2 � � � 2 � � � � � �� � � � � % � � � � � � � � � � � � 6 � � � � � 2 � � � � � � � � � � � � % � � � % � # � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � �� � � � � � � � � � � � � % � � � � � � � � � � � � � � 2 � � % � � � � � � � � � � 2 � � � � % % � � � � � � � � � � 2 � � � � �� � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � $ � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � �� � � � � � � � � � 6 � � � � � 2 � � � � � � 2 � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � % % � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � %2 � � � � 2 � � � 2 � � � � � � � � 2 � � � � � � � � � � � $ � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � �� � � � � % � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � �� � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � % � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � 2 � � �� � � � � � � � � � � � � � � !  1 6 �  1 2 � � 	 � � � 2 � � � � � 2 � � � � � $ � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � 2� � � % � � � � � � $ � � � � � � � � � � � 7 � � � � � � � � � $ � � � � � � � � � � � � % > 1 � % % � � � � � � � � � � 7 � �� � � � � � � � � % % � � � � 6 � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � �� � . � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � 2 � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � $ � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � �� � � . � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � . � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � 	 � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � % % % � � � �� � � � � � � � 7 � � � � % � � � � � $ � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � . � � � � � � � � � � � �� % � � � � � � � � � � 7 � � % 8 � � � � � $ � � � � � � $ � � � � � � � � � � � 2 � � � � � � � � � � � � � 5 % � � � � �� � 7 � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � % � � � � � $ � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � 7� � � � � � 	 � � � � � � � � � � � � � � 2 � % % � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � 2 � � � % � � � � � � � � � �. � � � � � 	 � � � � � � � % � � 	 � � � � � � � � � � 	 � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � �� � � % % � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � % � � � 2 � � � 2 � � � � � � � � � � � � � % � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � �� � � � % � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � % % � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � $ � � � % � � � � � � � � � � �� � � � � 2 � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � 2& � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � . � � � � � 	 � � � � � % � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � 2 � �� � � � � � � � � � � � � 7 � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � % 8 � � � � � � $ � � �� � � � � � � � 
 � � � �  � � � � � � � � ! B  ? ( � $ � � � � � % % & � � $ � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � 	 � � � � 2 � �� � � � � � � � 2 � � � � � � � � 2 � % � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � % % � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � $ � � �� � � � � � � � � � , � � 	 % � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � 2 � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � 2 � $ � � � $ � � � � � � % � � �� � � � � � � � � � 2 � � � � � � � % � � � � � 7 � � � � 	 � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � �  � � � � � � �� � � � � � � � � � � % � � � � � � � � � � � � 	 � % � � � � � � � � 	 � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � %� � � � � � � � & � � � � � � � � � 	 � � 6 � � � � � � � 2 � � � � � � � � � 7 � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � %
266

ITEM  22.



2 � � � 2 � � � � � � 	 � � � � � � � � 2 � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � 2 �� � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � $ � � � � � � � � � � � � 6 � � � � � � � � � � & � � � � � � �' $ � � � � 	 & � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � �� � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � 2 � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � 2 � � � � �� � � � � � � � � � � � �  � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � 	 � � � � � � � 7 � � � � � � 	 � � � � � � � � � � � � 4� � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � 	 � � � � � $ � � � % � � � � � 2 � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � �� � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � $ � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � $ � � � � � � � � � � � � � 2 �� � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � $ � � � 2 � �� � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � % � � � � � � @ � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � �� � � � � � � � � � � � 	 � � � � � � � $ � � � � � � � � � � 2 � � � 2 � � � � � � � � � � � � � � 2 � � � � � � � � � � �� � 7 � � � � � � � � @ � � � � � � � � � � � � % � � � � � � 2 � � � 2 � � � � � � � � �  � � � � � � 6 � � � � � � � � � �� � � % � � � � � � � � � � � � � � 2 � � 2 � � � 2 � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � 7 � � �� � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � 2 � $ � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � 	 � � � � �  � � � � � � � � � � � � � �$ � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � 2 � � � 2 � � � � � � �� � � � � � � � � � 	 � � � � � % � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � 7 � � � � � � � 2 � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � �� � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � % � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � 	 � � 2 � � % � � � � � � � � � � �� � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � % � � � � � � � � � � � � 2 � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � % � � � � 1 �� � � � � � � � � � � 2 � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � 	 � � � % � � � � � $ � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � $ � � � � �� � � � � � � � 	 � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � 7 � � � � � � � � � � % � � � � � � � � � 2 � � 2 � � � 2 � � � � � � � �% � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � % � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � 	 � � � � � � � � � � � � � � 7 � � � 1 � � 2 � � � � � � � � �� � � � � � � � 1 � � � 7 � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � % � � � � � � � � � � � � 	 � � � � � � � � 2 � � � � �� � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � % � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � 2 � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � �� � � � � � � � � � 2 � � � � � � � � $ � @ � � � � � � � � � � � 2 � $ � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � 7 � � � %� � � � � � � � � 	 � � � � 2 � � � � � � � � � 7 � � � � % � � � � � 2 � � � � 2 � � � � 2 � � � � � � � � � � � � �� � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � 7 � � � � � � @ � � � � � � � � $ � � � � � � � � � � � � 7 � � � �� � � 	 � � � � � 	 � � � � � % � � � � � 2 � � 2 � � � � � � � 2 � � � � � � � � $ � � � � � � % � � � � � 2 � � 2 � � � � � � �� � � � � � � � � � % % � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � % � � � � � � � � � � � � � �� � � 7 � � � � � � 	 � , � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � % � � � � . � � � � � � � � � % � � � � � � � � � 7 � � % 8 � � � � � � �� � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � % � � �� � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � 2 � � � � � � � � � � � � � � $ � � � 	 � � �  � � � � � � 2 � � � A � � � � 2� � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � 	 � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � 6 � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � 	 � � �� � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � . � � � � � 	 � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � �� � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � $ � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � 2 � � � � � � � % � # � � � �� � � � � � � � � � � 2 � � % � � 7 � � 2 � � � � � � 2 � � 2 � � � 2 � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � �� � � � � � � � � � � � � % % � � � � � � % � � � � � � � � � � 2 � � � � � � 7 � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � �, � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � $ � � � � � � B � 	 � � : � � 7 � � � � � � � � � � 	 � � � � � � � �  � � � � � � 6 �� � � � � � � Y � � 2 � � � ; � ! � � � � � � � � � � : � � � � � ; � � � ! � � 	 : � � � � � � ; �

267

ITEM  22.



 

 

July 18, 2019 

Planning & Zoning 

The Pump Haus Pub & Grill is planning to replace existing front windows with new windows in a garage 

door that will open and close.  This change has been approved by the building owner, B.J.’s Holdings 

owned by Bruce and Johna Petersen.  The picture attached is what it will look like and specs on the door 

have been delivered. 

This is not a façade change or structure change, it’s the windows only that will change.  There will be an 

air curtain installed under the overhang to protect from flying insects entering the building, this has 

been approved by the Black hawk County Health Department, email attached from Sandra Heinen with 

the Black Hawk County Health Department as well as the specs on the air curtain.  The garage door does 

not go all the way to the ground there is a knee wall that stands 42” tall from ground up to protect from 

crawling insects and or rodents entering at ground level. 

We will also be installing a retractable awning for protection from rain and sun that will be 20’x 10’, this 

will cover our outdoor café that has been approved, picture attached. 

If you have any questions please feel free to contact me at 319-404-3700. 

Thank you, 

 

 

G. Bruce Petersen 

 

268

ITEM  22.



269

ITEM  22.



270

ITEM  22.



271

ITEM  22.



DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-273-8600 
Fax: 319-273-8610 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 

MEMORANDUM 
Planning & Community Services Division 

  

   

 

 

 
 
 
 

 TO: Mayor and Council 

 FROM: David Sturch, Planner III 

 DATE: September 12, 2019 

 SUBJECT: Facade review of property in the College Hill Neighborhood Overlay District 
 

 
REQUEST: 

 
Request to approve a College Hill Neighborhood Overlay District Site Plan for 
new facade treatments at 2211 College Street (Project #DR19-006) 
 

PETITIONER: 
 

Owner: Emaad LLC 

LOCATION: 2211 College Street 
 

 

 
PROPOSAL 
This request involves a new facade at 2211 
College Street. The property is located in the 
College Hill Neighborhood Overlay Zoning 
District and a design review by the Planning 
and Zoning Commission and City Council is 
required for facade renovations to 
commercial buildings in the district. 
 
BACKGROUND 
The petitioner purchased this property in 
January 2019 with the intent to create a new 
business on College Street. The property owner is currently 
remodeling the interior portion of the building for a new Hookah 
Lounge and wants to update portions of the exterior facade facing 
College Street. 
 
This property is located within the C-3, Commercial District of the 
College Hill Neighborhood Overlay Zoning District (Section 26-
181) and is also subject to the design review regulations. Design 
review applies to any new construction, building additions, facade 
renovations or structural alternations to commercial or residential 
structures in the district. 

 

 

272

ITEM  23.



ANALYSIS 
The existing building at 2211 College Street is 
a single story structure approximately 12 feet 
in height. The existing building is 24 feet wide 
by 64 feet deep (1,616 ft²) that resides on a 
lot that is 24 feet wide by 97 feet deep (2,328 
ft²). The plan is to remove the existing roof 
over the sidewalk and repurpose the wall with 
new exterior materials and signage. Following 
is an evaluation of the proposed facade 
changes according to the review standards in 
the College Hill Neighborhood Overlay Zoning 
District: 
 
1.  Architectural/neighborhood character: The 

building is being altered by removing the 
shingled portion of the roof extension 
above the windows and doorway. The 
frame underneath the roof structure will be 
repurposed for a new awning. Simply 
removing this roof structure does not alter 
the character of the building or the neighborhood. The building will still maintain its current 
use as a commercial structure. Criterion met. 

 
2. Roof shape, pitch and direction: The building’s roof is not being altered. The existing parapet 

wall will be extended approximately 16 inches higher to match the wall extension of the 
neighboring building to the south. Criterion met.  

 
3.  Pattern, Materials and Textures: The pattern of solid surfaces and openings are not 

changing with the new facade of a building. The existing shingle roof extension will be 
removed and the exposed wall behind the roof awning will be refurbished and covered with a 
granite tile along with the rest of the facade. The other buildings along College Street include 
brick, EIFS, wood and stone facades. Utilizing a granite panel to cover the facade at 2211 
College Street will provide a high quality material that is similar to other buildings in the area.  

 
 The existing roof extension is supported by a steel frame overhang that projects two feet 

over the sidewalk. The plan is to refurbish this steel frame for a covered overhang that is 
similar to other buildings along College Street. The property slopes downward from the south 
to the north. This projection maintains an 8-foot vertical clearance above the sidewalk at the 
southeast corner of the building and a 9.3’ vertical clearance above the sidewalk at the 
northeast corner of the building. Criterion met. 

 
4.  Color: The granite tiles are gray, copper, and brown tones that 

swirl together to create a multi-color panel. The awning and 
fascia will be silver to match the window and door frames. Both 
are neutral colors that are compatible with the existing colors in 
the district. Criterion met. 

 
5. Windows and transparencies: The windows and front entry of 

the building will not change; this criterion does not apply. 

 

 

273

ITEM  23.



 
7. Architectural features: As previously mentioned, the existing steel frame that holds the 

shingled roof will be refurbished to match the color of the window and door frames. This two 
foot projection over the sidewalk will provide a break in the facade from a flat vertical plane. 
The top of the parapet wall will create a new cornice that will provide a nice contrast between 
the silver aluminum fascia and granite tiles. Criterion met. 

 
9.  Building entries: The entry into this building is not changing; this criterion does not apply. 
 
10. Signage: A new wall sign is proposed for this project that satisfies the wall signage 

requirements of the district. There will be an LED downcast lighting above the sign. Criterion 
met. 

 

PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION 
Discussion/Vote 
9/11/2019 

Chair Holst introduced this item and Mr. Sturch provided background information on 
the proposed façade plan at 2211 College Street. The property owner wants to 
improve the front of the building for a new business. The project includes the 
removal of a small mansard roof over the entry. New granite tiles will cover the 
facade and the openings (windows and door) will remain intact. The awning 
structure will be refurbished to maintain its extension over the sidewalk. The 
business signage will be added to the top of the facade. 
 
Chair Holst asked if there was anyone in the audience to comment on this façade 
project. The property owner, Shahid Chatha provided some comments and his plan 
to improve the building’s appearance. Kathyrn Sogard from the College Hill 
Partnership provided some comments on the project. 
 
The Commission favored the project and approved a motion for the City Council to 
approve this facade improvement project at 2211 College Street. 

  
STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
The proposed facade plan meets all of the College Hill Neighborhood Overlay Zoning District 
and Zoning Ordinance requirements and would not be out of character for this neighborhood. 
Staff recommends approval of the submitted facade site plan for 2211 College Street. 

 

274

ITEM  23.



DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-273-8600 
Fax: 319-273-8610 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 

MEMORANDUM 
Planning & Community Services Division 

  

   

 

 

 
 
 
 

  

 TO: Mayor and Council  

 FROM: David Sturch, Planner III 

 DATE: September 12, 2019 

 SUBJECT: PO-1 Site Plan Review – All Smiles Sign Amendment 
 

 
REQUEST: 

 
PO-1 Site plan amendment; All Smiles signage plan 

PETITIONER: 
 

All Smiles Family Dentistry; owner and Levi Architecture; architect 

LOCATION: 
 

915 Hudson Road 
 

 

 
PROPOSAL 
It is proposed to amend the site plan for the All 
Smiles project at 915 Hudson Road. The property 
owner wishes to add a freestanding monument sign 
near the southeast corner of their property. 
 
BACKGROUND 
The All Smiles site plan was reviewed by the 
Planning and Zoning Commission on 
May 8, 2019. The Commission recommended 
approval of the site plan and forwarded this request 
to the City Council. The City Council approved the 
plan on May 20, 2019. This site plan included the 
design of the new building, parking lot, landscaping 
and signage. The signage plan included wall signs 
on the proposed building with no monument signs by 
their driveway. The original plan was to include 
signage on the existing monument sign at the south 
driveway into the development. Upon further review 
of the existing monument sign, there is no more 
room to accommodate additional signage. The owner of the new dental clinic is asking for a 
separate monument sign to be located along the north side of their driveway. 
 
 

 

Existing Sign 

Proposed Sign 

275

ITEM  24.



ANALYSIS 
Since this request is a change from the approved site plan, review by the Planning and Zoning 
Commission and City Council is required. The Planning and Community Services Division have 
the following comments regarding the proposed monument sign for the All Smiles Family 
Dentistry: 
 
1) Signage: The PO-1 District permits 

freestanding signs not to exceed 8 feet in 
height and 40 square feet in area for single 
use signs on their own property. Multiple 
use signs containing three or more uses 
may be established at a maximum height of 
12 feet and a maximum area of 60 square 
feet. The existing sign at the south 
driveway satisfies this requirement.  

 

The architect indicated that they wish to amend their signage plan to include a second 
monument sign for the new dental clinic on their property. Since a new driveway was 
added for this development, a separate monument sign in front of the building makes 
sense for the owner and their clients. The proposed sign will be 8 feet in height and 40 
square feet in area placed upon a 3.4 foot tall brick base. A brick column is included for 
aesthetic purposes and will support one 
side of the sign. The materials used in 
the sign will match the materials found on 
the building. Proposed sign satisfies the 
PO-1 district size and design standards. 
 

2) Setbacks: The setbacks apply to the 
building, parking lot and signage. The 
PO-1 District requires a 10-foot setback 
from Hudson Road. The site plan shows 
a 20-foot setback from the east lot line 
along Hudson Road which is in line with 
the existing sign at the south driveway. 
The sign setback satisfies the PO-1 
district standards. 

 
PLANNING & ZONING SUMMARY 
Vote 
9/11/2019 

Chair Holst introduced this item and Mr. Sturch provided background information on 
the proposed site plan amendment for the new All Smiles Dental Clinic at 915 Hudson 
Road. Since this project is located in a PO-1 district the proposed sign must be 
reviewed by the Planning and Zoning Commission and City Council since this was not 
on the approved site plan. 

There was no one in the audience to speak on the project. The Commission favored 
the project and approved a motion for the City Council to approve this signage plan 
amendment at 915 Hudson Road. 

 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
The Community Development Department recommends approval of the All Smiles amended 
signage plan. 

 

 

276

ITEM  24.



DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-273-8600 
Fax: 319-273-8610 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 
MEMORANDUM 

Planning & Community Services Division 

  

   

 

 

   
 
  

 TO: Mayor and Council 

 FROM: David Sturch, Planner III 

 DATE: September 12, 2019 

 SUBJECT: Center Street Corridor Streetscape Project 
  Professional Services Agreement 
  Foth Infrastructure & Environment 
  City Project No. MC-000-3206 
 
Please find attached an agreement that outlines the scope of services for the design and 
construction plan preparation for the Center Street Corridor Streetscape Project. This 
agreement is between the City of Cedar Falls and Foth Infrastructure & Environment. 
  
Foth is an engineering and planning firm from Cedar Rapids, Iowa that was selected through 
a consultant selection process for the Center Street project. This design consultant will work 
with city staff, the North Cedar Neighborhood Association and the general public to develop 
plans for streetscaping and drainage improvements along Center Street from Lone Tree 
Road to N. Cottage Row Road. The roadway itself will remain intact and the improvements 
will be from the edge of the road to the property line along the corridor.  These plans will be 
developed from the Center Street Framework Plan that outlines a phased improvement plan 
for the corridor. The objectives for this project include following elements: 
  

 Create a sense of place in a core area of Northern Cedar Falls. 

 Integrate natural systems, construction methods that are low impact green 

infrastructure, sustainable and artful manner. 

 Complete street principles for users of all modes of transportation. 

 Preserve open space, natural beauty and critical environmental areas that will 

strengthen the surrounding neighborhoods. 

 Streetscaping elements that may include, pavers, landscaping, decorative lights, 

signs, benches, etc. 

 Improve street crossings as key intersections. 

 Improve stormwater management along the corridor with the focus on green 

infrastructure. 

The attached professional services agreement with Foth Infrastructure & Environment is a full 
service contract from the plan preparation with final design plans to project letting. The 
project schedule includes a meeting with the North Cedar Neighborhood Association to 

277

ITEM  25.



provide an overview of the goals and objectives of the project. After the preliminary plans are 
developed, a second public meeting will be scheduled for community “buy-in” of the project 
followed by a presentation to City Council. The development of the preliminary and final plans 
is anticipated through the spring of 2020 followed by a construction letting in the summer of 
2020. City staff has reviewed this agreement and found it to be in order. This project is 
budgeted in the Cedar Falls Capital Improvements Program and will be placed in FY20 for 
design and FY21 for construction under item number 70. 
 
The Department of Community Development recommends that the City Council approve and 
execute the attached consultant agreement for the design of the Center Street Corridor 
Streetscape Project. 
 
If you have any questions or need additional information, please feel free to contact me. 
 
xc: Stephanie Sheetz, Director, Community Development 
 Karen Howard, Planning and Community Services Manager 

278

ITEM  25.



� � � � � � � � � � 	 
 � � � �  � � � � � � � 	 � � �� � � � 	 
 � � � � � � � � � � � � � �� � � � � � � � 	 � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � �  ! "  � # � $ � % � � � # �
w & ' " � � � � ( ) * # � � + � �  , - . ! % � / . � $ � % � � � # �& 0 # � . 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 2 5 8 9 : : ; " < 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 2 5 8 9 3 := � ( � � . . ! � � ( $ � % � � � # �

w > � � ? . /  � # � - . ! % � / . � $ � % � � � # �& 0 # � . 1 2 3 4 5 6 9 8 5 @ 3 9 3 ; " < 1 2 3 4 5 6 9 8 5 @ 3 4 7A "  . ! B . / ' " � "  � # � $ � % � � � # �& 0 # � . 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 2 5 8 9 2 2 ; " < 1 2 3 4 5 6 9 8 5 @ @ 9 9
C D E F G H I J J K J L M N O P Q R S Q T R S T U S V S R W X Q T R W S U Y S S T Z [ U \ ] T ^ V Q O U V _ ` U _ V S a b T c N V [ T P S T U d e e f d g h h i j kl c S T _ S m b d m _ N U S g n n d f S R Q V o Q p N R O d ] l q n g n h d r s t s u v w x y s t t s x s t t s z y { w | } ~ � � � � � � � � � � w v z ~ u y � { x~ s z w t � w � � | � � � � ~ � w � � y t s s y � ~ s z w t � w � � | � � { � w � r s t s u v w x y s t t s x s t t s z y { w | � ~ � � � � � � �� � � � � � � � � � G C � � � [ ^ U \ S ` [ c S T Q T U O \ S V S N T Q ^ U S V O S U ^ [ V U \ d U \ S p Q V U N S O \ S V S U [ P _ U _ Q � � X Q � V S S Q O ^ [ � � [ Y O �� � � � � � � � � � � �   � � � �f ¡ ¢ m £ e ¤ l ¢ ¤ O \ Q � � p S V ^ [ V P p V [ ^ S O O N [ T Q � m S V c N ` S O ¥ U \ S ¦ m S V c N ` S O ¦ § N T ` [ T T S ` U N [ T Y N U \ f e ] b ¢ ¤ ¨ O^ Q ` N � N U N S O N T Q ` ` [ V R Q T ` S Y N U \ U \ S m ` [ p S [ ^ m S V c N ` S O O S U ^ [ V U \ N T b © \ N W N U l Q U U Q ` \ S R \ S V S U [ ª� � � � � � � « ¬ C G � C  � � � � � � � � � ® � ¬ � C � � �f ¡ ¢ m £ e ¤ l ¢ ¤ O \ Q � � d O _ W ¯ S ` U U [ U \ S U S V P O Q T R p V [ c N O N [ T O [ ^ U \ N O l � V S S P S T U �¥ Q § l p p [ N T U [ T S [ V P [ V S N T R N c N R _ Q � O Y \ [ O \ Q � � W S Q _ U \ [ V N ° S R U [ Q ` U [ T W S \ Q � ^ [ ^ f ¡ ¢ m £ e ¤ l ¢ ¤Q T R Y N U \ Y \ [ P f e ] b ¢ ¤ P Q X ` [ T O _ � U Q U Q � � V S Q O [ T Q W � S U N P S O d Q T R Y \ [ O S N T O U V _ ` U N [ T O dV S ± _ S O U O d Q T R R S ` N O N [ T O Y N � � W S W N T R N T � _ p [ T f ¡ ¢ m £ e ¤ l ¢ ¤ Q O U [ Q � � P Q U U S V O p S V U Q N T N T � U [U \ N O l � V S S P S T U Q T R U \ S p S V ^ [ V P Q T ` S [ ^ U \ S p Q V U N S O \ S V S _ T R S V ª¥ W § £ O S Q � � V S Q O [ T Q W � S S ^ ^ [ V U O U [ ` [ P p � S U S U \ S m S V c N ` S O Y N U \ N T U \ S U N P S p S V N [ R P _ U _ Q � � X Q � V S S R_ p [ T d S © ` S p U ^ [ V V S Q O [ T O W S X [ T R N U O ` [ T U V [ � d Q O O S U ^ [ V U \ N T b © \ N W N U l ª¥ ` § ² S V ^ [ V P U \ S m S V c N ` S O N T Q ` ` [ V R Q T ` S Y N U \ � S T S V Q � � X Q ` ` S p U S R p V [ ^ S O O N [ T Q � S T � N T S S V N T �O U Q T R Q V R O N T S © N O U S T ` S Q U U \ S U N P S [ ^ p S V ^ [ V P Q T ` S [ ^ U \ S m S V c N ` S O ª ] ^ R _ V N T � U \ S U Y [ X S Q Vp S V N [ R ^ [ � � [ Y N T � U \ S ` [ P p � S U N [ T [ ^ m S V c N ` S O d N U N O O \ [ Y T U \ Q U U \ S V S N O Q T S V V [ V N T U \ S m S V c N ` S OO [ � S � X Q O Q V S O _ � U [ ^ f ¡ ¢ m £ e ¤ l ¢ ¤ ¨ O ^ Q N � _ V S U [ P S S U U \ S O S O U Q T R Q V R O d f ¡ ¢ m £ e ¤ l ¢ ¤ O \ Q � �V S ³ p S V ^ [ V P O _ ` \ O _ W O U Q T R Q V R m S V c N ` S O Q O P Q X W S T S ` S O O Q V X U [ V S P S R X O _ ` \ S V V [ V Q U T [` [ O U U [ f e ] b ¢ ¤ ª m N T ` S f ¡ ¢ m £ e ¤ l ¢ ¤ \ Q O T [ ` [ T U V [ � [ c S V � [ ` Q � ` [ T R N U N [ T O d U \ S ` [ O U [ ^ � Q W [ VQ T R P Q U S V N Q � O d [ V [ c S V ` [ P p S U N U N c S W N R R N T � Q T R P Q V ´ S U ` [ T R N U N [ T O d f ¡ ¢ m £ e ¤ l ¢ ¤ R [ S O T [ U� _ Q V Q T U S S U \ S Q ` ` _ V Q ` X [ ^ Q T X ` [ T O U V _ ` U N [ T ` [ O U S O U N P Q U S O Q O ` [ P p Q V S R U [ ` [ T U V Q ` U [ V ¨ O W N R O[ V U \ S Q ` U _ Q � ` [ O U U [ U \ S f e ] b ¢ ¤ ª f ¡ ¢ m £ e ¤ l ¢ ¤ P Q ´ S O T [ [ U \ S V Y Q V V Q T U N S O S N U \ S V S © p V S O O{ t u µ ¶ � u s z w v z y r s ¶ w t y u s | · t u ¸ r y | � � u w ¹ u � u y u s | � t s | ¶ { v | u ¹ u � u y u s | w v z t s µ s z u s | Y N U \ V S O p S ` U U [ U \ S± _ Q � N U X [ ^ m S V c N ` S O d N T ` � _ R N T � ` � Q N P O Q � � S � N T � T S � � N � S T ` S d W V S Q ` \ [ ^ Y Q V V Q T U X Q T R W V S Q ` \ [ ^

279

ITEM  25.



` [ T U V Q ` U d O \ Q � � W S S © ` � _ O N c S � X U \ [ O S O S U ^ [ V U \ \ S V S N T ª¥ R § f ¡ ¢ m £ e ¤ l ¢ ¤ O \ Q � � d N ^ V S ± _ S O U S R N T Y V N U N T � W X f e ] b ¢ ¤ d ^ [ V U \ S p V [ U S ` U N [ T [ ^ f e ] b ¢ ¤ dV S ± _ N V S ^ V [ P Q � � c S T R [ V O Q T R O _ W ` [ T U V Q ` U [ V O ^ V [ P Y \ N ` \ f ¡ ¢ m £ e ¤ l ¢ ¤ p V [ ` _ V S OS ± _ N p P S T U d P Q U S V N Q � O [ V O S V c N ` S O ^ [ V U \ S p V [ ¯ S ` U d � _ Q V Q T U S S O Y N U \ V S O p S ` U U [ O _ ` \S ± _ N p P S T U d P Q U S V N Q � O Q T R O S V c N ` S O ª l � � O _ ` \ � _ Q V Q T U S S O O \ Q � � W S P Q R S Q c Q N � Q W � S U [ f e ] b ¢ ¤U [ U \ S ^ _ � � S © U S T U [ ^ U \ S U S V P O U \ S V S [ ^ ª f ¡ ¢ m £ e ¤ l ¢ ¤ ¨ O � N Q W N � N U X Y N U \ V S O p S ` U U [ O _ ` \S ± _ N p P S T U d Q T R P Q U S V N Q � O [ W U Q N T S R ^ V [ P c S T R [ V O [ V O S V c N ` S O ^ V [ P O _ W ` [ T U V Q ` U [ V O d O \ Q � � W S� N P N U S R U [ p V [ ` _ V N T � � _ Q V Q T U S S O ^ V [ P O _ ` \ c S T R [ V O [ V O _ W ` [ T U V Q ` U [ V O Q T R V S T R S V N T � Q � �V S Q O [ T Q W � S Q O O N O U Q T ` S U [ f e ] b ¢ ¤ ^ [ V U \ S p _ V p [ O S [ ^ S T ^ [ V ` N T � U \ S O Q P S ª¥ S § f ¡ ¢ m £ e ¤ l ¢ ¤ Y N � � W S p V [ c N R N T � S O U N P Q U S O [ ^ ` [ O U O U [ U \ S f e ] b ¢ ¤ ` [ c S V N T � Q T S © U S T R S Rp S V N [ R [ ^ U N P S ª f ¡ ¢ m £ e ¤ l ¢ ¤ R [ S O T [ U \ Q c S ` [ T U V [ � [ c S V Q T X O _ ` \ ` [ O U O d N T ` � _ R N T � d W _ U T [ U� N P N U S R U [ d ` [ O U O [ ^ � Q W [ V d P Q U S V N Q � d S ± _ N p P S T U [ V O S V c N ` S O ^ _ V T N O \ S R W X [ U \ S V O [ V [ c S Vº { µ ¶ s y u y u » s ¹ u z z u v ¸ � µ w t ¼ s y u v ¸ { t v s ¸ { y u w y u v ¸ º { v z u y u { v | � { t º { v | y t ½ º y u { v º { v y t w º y { t | ·P S U \ [ R O [ ^ R S U S V P N T N T � U \ S N V p V N ` S O ª l ` ` [ V R N T � � X d N U N O Q ` ´ T [ Y � S R � S R Q T R _ T R S V O U [ [ R U \ Q UQ T X S O U N P Q U S O d p V [ ¯ S ` U N [ T O [ V [ p N T N [ T O [ ^ p V [ W Q W � S p V [ ¯ S ` U ` [ O U O p V [ c N R S R \ S V S N T W X~ � � � � � � � � � w t s s | y u µ w y s | { v � � � µ w z s { v y r s ¹ w | u | { x ~ � � � � � � � � � · | s ¾ ¶ s t u s v º s w v zt s ¶ t s | s v y ~ � � � � � � � � � · | t s w | { v w ¹ � s ¿ ½ z ¸ µ s v U Q O Q ± _ Q � N ^ N S R p V [ ^ S O O N [ T Q � ªf ¡ ¢ m £ e ¤ l ¢ ¤ R [ S O T [ U � _ Q V Q T U S S U \ Q U p V [ p [ O Q � O d W N R O [ V Q ` U _ Q � p V [ ¯ S ` U ` [ O U O Y N � � T [ U c Q V X^ V [ P U \ S [ p N T N [ T O [ ^ p V [ W Q W � S ` [ O U O p V S p Q V S R W X f ¡ ¢ m £ e ¤ l ¢ ¤ d Q T R U \ S f e ] b ¢ ¤ Y Q N c S OQ T X Q T R Q � � ` � Q N P O U \ Q U N U P Q X \ Q c S Q � Q N T O U f ¡ ¢ m £ e ¤ l ¢ ¤ Q O Q V S O _ � U [ ^ Q T X O _ ` \ c Q V N Q T ` S ª� � � � À Á Â Ã Ä Å Æ Ç � � � � � � � � ® � ¬ � C � � �f e ] b ¢ ¤ O \ Q � � Q U O _ ` \ U N P S O Q O P Q X W S V S ± _ N V S R ^ [ V U \ S O _ ` ` S O O ^ _ � Q T R S © p S R N U N [ _ O ` [ P p � S U N [ T [ ^ U \ Sm S V c N ` S O �¥ Q § È t { » u z s w � � º t u y s t u w w v z u v x { t µ w y u { v w | y { ~ � � � � � · | t s É ½ u t s µ s v y | Ê { ¹ y w u v w � � v s º s | | w t �Q p p V [ c Q � O Q T R p S V P N U O V S ± _ N V S R ^ V [ P Q � � � [ c S V T P S T U Q � Q _ U \ [ V N U N S O \ Q c N T � ¯ _ V N O R N ` U N [ T [ c S Vy r s ¶ t { ¿ s º y Ê w v z z s | u ¸ v w y s w ¶ s t | { v � u y r w ½ y r { t u y � y { w º y { v ~ � � � � � · | ¹ s r w � x { v w � � µ w y y s t |` [ T ` S V T N T � U \ S m S V c N ` S O ª¥ W § Z _ V T N O \ U [ f ¡ ¢ m £ e ¤ l ¢ ¤ Q � � S © N O U N T � O U _ R N S O d V S p [ V U O Q T R [ U \ S V Q c Q N � Q W � S R Q U Q p S V U N T S T U U [U \ S m S V c N ` S O d Q T R [ W U Q N T Q R R N U N [ T Q � V S p [ V U O d R Q U Q Q T R O S V c N ` S O Q O P Q X W S V S ± _ N V S R ^ [ V U \ Sp V [ ¯ S ` U ª f ¡ ¢ m £ e ¤ l ¢ ¤ O \ Q � � W S S T U N U � S R U [ V S � X _ p [ T Q � � O _ ` \ N T ^ [ V P Q U N [ T d R Q U Q Q T R U \ SV S O _ � U O [ ^ O _ ` \ [ U \ S V O S V c N ` S O N T p S V ^ [ V P N T � N U O m S V c N ` S O \ S V S _ T R S V ª�   � � � � « � G � � � � � Ë « � � � Ì � � C � � � � � � � C � G � C � � � � � � C Í � � � C Î � � � � � G � � G ¬ ¬ �¤ \ S p V [ c N O N [ T O [ ^ U \ S R [ ` _ P S T U S T U N U � S R d ¦ ] T O _ V Q T ` S o S ± _ N V S P S T U O ^ [ V f [ T U V Q ` U [ V O ^ [ V U \ S f N U X [ ^f S R Q V Z Q � � O d ¦ Y \ N ` \ Q V S Q U U Q ` \ S R \ S V S U [ d P Q V ´ S R b © \ N W N U Ï d Q V S \ S V S W X P Q R S Q p Q V U [ ^ U \ N Ol � V S S P S T U Q O N ^ O S U [ _ U Y [ V R ^ [ V Y [ V R \ S V S N T ªf ¡ ¢ m £ e ¤ l ¢ ¤ O \ Q � � ^ _ V T N O \ U [ f e ] b ¢ ¤ Q ` S V U N ^ N ` Q U S [ V ` S V U N ^ N ` Q U S O [ ^ N T O _ V Q T ` S ` [ T U Q N T N T � Q � �` [ c S V Q � S O d S T R [ V O S P S T U O Q T R [ U \ S V p V [ c N O N [ T O V S ± _ N V S R W X U \ S ] T O _ V Q T ` S o S ± _ N V S P S T U O O S U ^ [ V U \N T b © \ N W N U Ï ª ] T U \ S S c S T U [ ^ Q T X ` [ T ^ � N ` U W S U Y S S T U \ S p V [ c N O N [ T O [ ^ b © \ N W N U Ï Q T R U \ S [ U \ S V U S V P O [ ^U \ N O l � V S S P S T U d U \ S p V [ c N O N [ T O [ ^ b © \ N W N U Ï O \ Q � � ` [ T U V [ � ªf ¡ ¢ m £ e ¤ l ¢ ¤ O \ Q � � [ W U Q N T Q T R P Q N T U Q N T Q T N T O _ V Q T ` S p [ � N ` X [ V p [ � N ` N S O U \ Q U P S S U U \ S p V [ c N O N [ T OO S U [ _ U N T U \ S ] T O _ V Q T ` S o S ± _ N V S P S T U O ^ [ V f [ T U V Q ` U [ V O ^ [ V U \ S f N U X [ ^ f S R Q V Z Q � � O d Q U U Q ` \ S R \ S V S U [Q T R P Q V ´ S R b © \ N W N U Ï ª
280

ITEM  25.



  � � C G � � G � � C � � Ì � G � � � � � � � C � � � � � � � � � � C � G � C � ® � C Ð � � � � � � C � G � C � � � Ð Í �� � � � � � Ì � � � � � � � � � � G ¬ � � �   � � � � G � � C Í � � � C Î � � � � � G � � G ¬ ¬ �� r s ¶ t { » u | u { v | { x y r s z { º ½ µ s v y | s v y u y � s z } � y w v z w t z � s t µ | w v z ~ { v z u y u { v | x { t ~ { v y t w º y | Ñ s y � s s v~ { v y t w º y { t | Ò r { È s t x { t µ È t { x s | | u { v w � � s t » u º s | w v z y r s ~ u y � { x ~ s z w t � w � � | � � º { v | u | y u v ¸ { x y � {p Q � S O Q V S N T ` [ V p [ V Q U S R N T U [ U \ N O l � V S S P S T U W X U \ S f � N S T U Q T R Q U U Q ` \ S R Q O b © \ N W N U f ª  � � � � Ì � � � � G C � � � G � � C � � Ì � � � � G Î Ì � � Cf [ P p S T O Q U N [ T ^ [ V U \ S O S V c N ` S O O \ Q � � W S [ T Q T \ [ _ V � X W Q O N O N T Q ` ` [ V R Q T ` S Y N U \ U \ S \ [ _ V � X ^ S S O Q T R[ U \ S V R N V S ` U S © p S T O S O N T S ^ ^ S ` U Q U U \ S U N P S U \ S O S V c N ` S O Q V S p S V ^ [ V P S R ª ¤ [ U Q � ` [ P p S T O Q U N [ T N O QT [ U U [ S © ` S S R Q ^ S S [ ^ ¤ Y [ \ _ T R V S R U Y S T U X ³ O N © U \ [ _ O Q T R U Y [ \ _ T R V S R S N � \ U X ³ U \ V S S R [ � � Q V O¥ Ó Ô Ô i d Ô Õ Ö ª n n § ªf ¡ ¢ m £ e ¤ l ¢ ¤ P Q X W N � � U \ S f e ] b ¢ ¤ P [ T U \ � X ^ [ V O S V c N ` S O ` [ P p � S U S R Q U U \ S U N P S [ ^ W N � � N T � ª f e ] b ¢ ¤Q � V S S O U [ p Q X f ¡ ¢ m £ e ¤ l ¢ ¤ U \ S ^ _ � � Q P [ _ T U [ ^ O _ ` \ N T c [ N ` S Y N U \ N T U \ N V U X ¥ Ö n § R Q X O Q ^ U S V V S ` S N p UU \ S V S [ ^ ª ] T U \ S S c S T U f e ] b ¢ ¤ R N O p _ U S O Q T X N T c [ N ` S N U S P d f e ] b ¢ ¤ O \ Q � � � N c S f ¡ ¢ m £ e ¤ l ¢ ¤ Y V N U U S TT [ U N ` S [ ^ O _ ` \ R N O p _ U S R N U S P Y N U \ N T U S T ¥ h n § R Q X O Q ^ U S V V S ` S N p U [ ^ N T c [ N ` S Q T R O \ Q � � p Q X U [f ¡ ¢ m £ e ¤ l ¢ ¤ U \ S _ T R N O p _ U S R p [ V U N [ T [ ^ U \ S N T c [ N ` S Q ` ` [ V R N T � U [ U \ S p V [ c N O N [ T O \ S V S [ ^ ª f e ] b ¢ ¤Q � V S S O U [ Q W N R S W X Q T X Q p p � N ` Q W � S O U Q U _ U [ V X p V [ P p U p Q X p V [ c N O N [ T O ` _ V V S T U � X N T S ^ ^ S ` U ª  � � � C � � Ì � � G C � � �f e ] b ¢ ¤ P Q X d Y N U \ [ V Y N U \ [ _ U ` Q _ O S d U S V P N T Q U S U \ S m S V c N ` S O Q U Q T X U N P S _ p [ T ^ [ _ V U S S T ¥ h g § R Q X OY V N U U S T T [ U N ` S U [ f ¡ ¢ m £ e ¤ l ¢ ¤ ª ¤ \ S [ W � N � Q U N [ T U [ p V [ c N R S ^ _ V U \ S V m S V c N ` S O _ T R S V U \ N O l � V S S P S T UP Q X W S U S V P N T Q U S R W X S N U \ S V p Q V U X _ p [ T ^ [ _ V U S S T ¥ h g § R Q X O ¨ Y V N U U S T T [ U N ` S N T U \ S S c S T U [ ^ O _ W O U Q T U N Q �^ Q N � _ V S W X U \ S [ U \ S V p Q V U X U [ p S V ^ [ V P N T Q ` ` [ V R Q T ` S Y N U \ U \ S U S V P O \ S V S [ ^ U \ V [ _ � \ T [ ^ Q _ � U [ ^ U \ SU S V P N T Q U N T � p Q V U X d p V [ c N R N T � O _ ` \ R S ^ Q _ � U N T � p Q V U X \ Q O T [ U ` _ V S R O _ ` \ ^ Q N � _ V S d [ V d N T U \ S S c S T U [ ^ QT [ T ³ P [ T S U Q V X R S ^ Q _ � U d ` [ P P S T ` S R V S Q O [ T Q W � S Q ` U N [ T O U [ ` _ V S O _ ` \ ^ Q N � _ V S ª ] T S N U \ S V ` Q O S df ¡ ¢ m £ e ¤ l ¢ ¤ Y N � � W S p Q N R ^ [ V Q � � S © p S T O S O N T ` _ V V S R Q T R m S V c N ` S O V S T R S V S R U [ U \ S R Q U S [ ^ U \ SU S V P N T Q U N [ T N T Q ` ` [ V R Q T ` S Y N U \ ` [ P p S T O Q U N [ T U S V P O [ ^ l V U N ` � S × ] ª  � � � � � Ð � � � � Í � � � � � � � « Ì � � C �¥ Q § m S Q � S R [ V N � N T Q � R V Q Y N T � O d O p S ` N ^ N ` Q U N [ T O d ^ N T Q � p V [ ¯ S ` U O p S ` N ^ N ` ` Q � ` _ � Q U N [ T O Q T R [ U \ S VN T O U V _ P S T U O [ ^ O S V c N ` S Y \ N ` \ f ¡ ¢ m £ e ¤ l ¢ ¤ p V S p Q V S O Q T R R S � N c S V O U [ f e ] b ¢ ¤ p _ V O _ Q T U U [U \ N O l � V S S P S T U O \ Q � � W S ` [ P S U \ S p V [ p S V U X [ ^ f e ] b ¢ ¤ Y \ S T f ¡ ¢ m £ e ¤ l ¢ ¤ \ Q O W S S T` [ P p S T O Q U S R ^ [ V m S V c N ` S O V S T R S V S R ª f e ] b ¢ ¤ O \ Q � � \ Q c S U \ S V N � \ U U [ _ O S O _ ` \ N T O U V _ P S T U O[ ^ O S V c N ` S O [ � S � X ^ [ V U \ S p _ V p [ O S [ ^ U \ S ` [ T O U V _ ` U N [ T d [ p S V Q U N [ T Q T R P Q N T U S T Q T ` S [ ^ U \ S� w º u � u y u s | � � v � { y r s t ½ | s { t t s ½ | s { x { t u ¸ u v w � { t w � y s t s z x u � s | | r w � � ¹ s w y ~ � � � � � · | | { � s t u | ¼Y N U \ [ _ U � N Q W N � N U X [ V � S � Q � S © p [ O _ V S U [ f ¡ ¢ m £ e ¤ l ¢ ¤ Q T R f e ] b ¢ ¤ Q � V S S O U [ V S � S Q O S d R S ^ S T RQ T R \ [ � R f ¡ ¢ m £ e ¤ l ¢ ¤ \ Q V P � S O O ^ V [ P Q T R Q � Q N T O U Q � � ` � Q N P O [ V O _ N U O Q O O S V U S R Q � Q N T O Uf ¡ ¢ m £ e ¤ l ¢ ¤ N T U \ S S c S T U O _ ` \ R [ ` _ P S T U O Q V S _ O S R ^ [ V Q p _ V p [ O S R N ^ ^ S V S T U U \ Q T [ V N � N T Q � � Xp V S p Q V S R S c S T U \ [ _ � \ O _ ` \ ` � Q N P O [ V O _ N U O P Q X W S W Q O S R [ T Q � � S � Q U N [ T O [ ^ T S � � N � S T ` S W Xf ¡ ¢ m £ e ¤ l ¢ ¤ ª ¢ [ U \ N T � ` [ T U Q N T S R N T U \ N O p Q V Q � V Q p \ O \ Q � � W S ` [ T O U V _ S R Q O � N P N U N T � [ VR S p V N c N T � f ¡ ¢ m £ e ¤ l ¢ ¤ [ ^ N U O V N � \ U O U [ _ O S N U O W Q O N ` ´ T [ Y � S R � S Q T R O ´ N � � O U [ R S O N � T [ V` Q V V X [ _ U [ U \ S V p V [ ¯ S ` U O [ V Y [ V ´ ^ [ V N U O S � ^ [ V [ U \ S V O d Y \ S U \ S V [ V T [ U O _ ` \ [ U \ S V p V [ ¯ S ` U O [ VY [ V ´ Q V S O N P N � Q V U [ U \ S Y [ V ´ U [ W S p S V ^ [ V P S R p _ V O _ Q T U U [ U \ N O l � V S S P S T U ª¥ W § l T X ^ N � S O R S � N c S V S R N T S � S ` U V [ T N ` P S R N _ P P Q X T [ U Y [ V ´ [ T O X O U S P O Q T R O [ ^ U Y Q V S R N ^ ^ S V S T UU \ Q T U \ [ O S Y N U \ Y \ N ` \ U \ S X Y S V S [ V N � N T Q � � X p V [ R _ ` S R Q T R f ¡ ¢ m £ e ¤ l ¢ ¤ P Q ´ S O T [Y Q V V Q T U X Q O U [ U \ S ` [ P p Q U N W N � N U X [ ^ U \ S O S ^ N � S O Y N U \ Q T X [ U \ S V O X O U S P [ V O [ ^ U Y Q V S ª Ï S ` Q _ O S [ ^U \ S p [ U S T U N Q � R S � V Q R Q U N [ T [ ^ S � S ` U V [ T N ` P S R N _ P [ c S V U N P S d N T U \ S S c S T U [ ^ Q ` [ T ^ � N ` U W S U Y S S TU \ S O S Q � S R [ V N � N T Q � R V Q Y N T � O Q T R U \ S S � S ` U V [ T N ` ^ N � S O d U \ S O S Q � S R R V Q Y N T � O Y N � � � [ c S V T ª
281

ITEM  25.



� Ø � Ì � G � � G � � Ì � C Í � � �¥ Q § f ¡ ¢ m £ e ¤ l ¢ ¤ O \ Q � � T [ U \ Q c S ` [ T U V [ � [ V ` \ Q V � S [ ^ Q T R O \ Q � � T [ U W S V S O p [ T O N W � S ^ [ V` [ T O U V _ ` U N [ T P S Q T O d P S U \ [ R O d U S ` \ T N ± _ S O d O S ± _ S T ` S O [ V p V [ ` S R _ V S O d [ V ^ [ V O Q ^ S U XP S Q O _ V S O Q T R p V [ � V Q P O N T ` � _ R N T � S T ^ [ V ` S P S T U [ ^ Z S R S V Q � Q T R m U Q U S O Q ^ S U X V S ± _ N V S P S T U O dN T ` [ T T S ` U N [ T Y N U \ ` [ T O U V _ ` U N [ T Y [ V ´ p S V ^ [ V P S R W X f e ] b ¢ ¤ ¨ O ` [ T O U V _ ` U N [ T ` [ T U V Q ` U [ V O ª ¢ [ VO \ Q � � f ¡ ¢ m £ e ¤ l ¢ ¤ W S V S O p [ T O N W � S ^ [ V U \ S O _ p S V c N O N [ T [ ^ f e ] b ¢ ¤ ¨ O ` [ T O U V _ ` U N [ T` [ T U V Q ` U [ V O d O _ W ` [ T U V Q ` U [ V O [ V [ ^ Q T X [ ^ U \ S N V S P p � [ X S S O d Q � S T U O Q T R V S p V S O S T U Q U N c S O [ ^O _ ` \ ` [ T U V Q ` U [ V O Ù [ V ^ [ V N T O p S ` U N T � P Q ` \ N T S V X d ` [ T O U V _ ` U N [ T S ± _ N p P S T U Q T R U [ [ � O _ O S R Q T RS P p � [ X S R W X ` [ T U V Q ` U [ V O Q T R O _ W ` [ T U V Q ` U [ V O [ T f e ] b ¢ ¤ ¨ O ` [ T O U V _ ` U N [ T p V [ ¯ S ` U O Q T R O \ Q � �T [ U \ Q c S U \ S V N � \ U U [ O U [ p [ V V S ¯ S ` U Y [ V ´ Y N U \ [ _ U U \ S U \ [ V [ _ � \ S c Q � _ Q U N [ T Q T R Q p p V [ c Q � [ ^ U \ Sf e ] b ¢ ¤ ª ] T T [ S c S T U O \ Q � � f ¡ ¢ m £ e ¤ l ¢ ¤ W S � N Q W � S ^ [ V U \ S Q ` U O [ V [ P N O O N [ T O [ ^ f e ] b ¢ ¤ ¨ O` [ T O U V _ ` U N [ T ` [ T U V Q ` U [ V O d O _ W ` [ T U V Q ` U [ V O [ V Q T X p S V O [ T O [ V S T U N U N S O p S V ^ [ V P N T � Q T X [ ^ U \ S` [ T O U V _ ` U N [ T Y [ V ´ d [ V ^ [ V U \ S ^ Q N � _ V S [ ^ Q T X [ ^ U \ S P U [ ` Q V V X [ _ U ` [ T O U V _ ` U N [ T Y [ V ´ _ T R S V` [ T U V Q ` U O Y N U \ f e ] b ¢ ¤ ªØ � � � � � � � � � � � C � � � C � G � C � �f ¡ ¢ m £ e ¤ l ¢ ¤ O \ Q � � W S Q T N T R S p S T R S T U ` [ T U V Q ` U [ V Y N U \ V S O p S ` U U [ U \ S m S V c N ` S O U [ W S p S V ^ [ V P S R\ S V S _ T R S V ª ¢ S N U \ S V f ¡ ¢ m £ e ¤ l ¢ ¤ T [ V N U O O _ W ` [ T U V Q ` U [ V O d T [ V U \ S S P p � [ X S S O [ ^ S N U \ S V d O \ Q � � W SR S S P S R U [ W S U \ S O S V c Q T U O d S P p � [ X S S O d [ V Q � S T U O [ ^ f e ] b ¢ ¤ ªØ � � � � � Ú � Ø � � C � � Û � � � � � C � � � �l T X U \ N T � \ S V S N T U [ U \ S ` [ T U V Q V X T [ U Y N U \ O U Q T R N T � d f ¡ ¢ m £ e ¤ l ¢ ¤ O \ Q � � \ Q c S T [ � S � Q � V S O p [ T O N W N � N U X [ V� N Q W N � N U X ^ [ V Q T X Q T R Q � � p V S ³ S © N O U N T � ` [ T U Q P N T Q U N [ T ª ¦ ² V S ³ S © N O U N T � ` [ T U Q P N T Q U N [ T ¦ N O Q T X \ Q ° Q V R [ _ O [ VU [ © N ` O _ W O U Q T ` S p V S O S T U Q U U \ S O N U S [ V O N U S O ` [ T ` S V T S R Y \ N ` \ Y Q O T [ U W V [ _ � \ U [ T U [ O _ ` \ O N U S [ V O N U S OW X f ¡ ¢ m £ e ¤ l ¢ ¤ ª f e ] b ¢ ¤ Q � V S S O U [ V S � S Q O S f ¡ ¢ m £ e ¤ l ¢ ¤ ^ V [ P Q T R Q � Q N T O U Q T X Q T R Q � � � N Q W N � N U XU [ U \ S f e ] b ¢ ¤ Y \ N ` \ P Q X N T Q T X P Q T T S V Q V N O S N T Q T X Y Q X R N V S ` U � X [ V N T R N V S ` U � X ` Q _ O S R W X O _ ` \ p V S ³S © N O U N T � ` [ T U Q P N T Q U N [ T S © ` S p U N ^ O _ ` \ � N Q W N � N U X Q V N O S O ^ V [ P f ¡ ¢ m £ e ¤ l ¢ ¤ ¨ O O [ � S T S � � N � S T ` S [ V Y N � � ^ _ �P N O ` [ T R _ ` U ª~ � � � � � | r w � � � w y ~ � � � � � · | | { � s s ¾ ¶ s v | s w v z t u | ¼ � w t t w v ¸ s x { t r w v z � u v ¸ � | y { t w ¸ s � y t w v | ¶ { t y w y u { v �U V S Q U P S T U Q T R R S � N c S V X ^ [ V R N O p [ O Q � [ ^ p V S ³ S © N O U N T � ` [ T U Q P N T Q U N [ T ª f e ] b ¢ ¤ O \ Q � � W S O [ � S � XV S O p [ T O N W � S ^ [ V [ W U Q N T N T � Q R N O p [ O Q � O N U S ^ [ V O _ ` \ P Q U S V N Q � ª f e ] b ¢ ¤ O \ Q � � � [ [ ´ U [ U \ S R N O p [ O Q � ^ Q ` N � N U XQ T R Ü [ V U V Q T O p [ V U S V ^ [ V Q T X V S O p [ T O N W N � N U X [ V � N Q W N � N U X Q V N O N T � ^ V [ P N P p V [ p S V R N O p [ O Q � [ V U V Q T O p [ V U Q U N [ T [ ^| ½ º r � w | y s � ~ � � � � � � � � � | r w � � v { y r w » s { t s ¾ s t y w v � º { v y t { � { » s t ~ � � � � � u v ~ � � � � � · |[ W � N � Q U N [ T O [ V V S O p [ T O N W N � N U N S O Q O Q � S T S V Q U [ V N T U \ S O U [ V Q � S d U V Q T O p [ V U Q U N [ T d U V S Q U P S T U [ V R N O p [ O Q � [ ^Q T X p V S ³ S © N O U N T � ` [ T U Q P N T Q U N [ T ª f e ] b ¢ ¤ O \ Q � � ` [ P p � S U S Q T R S © S ` _ U S Q T X � [ c S V T P S T U Q � � X V S ± _ N V S R^ [ V P O V S � Q U N T � U [ V S � _ � Q U S R Q ` U N c N U N S O N T ` � _ R N T � d W _ U T [ U � N P N U S R U [ � S T S V Q U N [ T d O U [ V Q � S d \ Q T R � N T � dU V S Q U P S T U d U V Q T O p [ V U Q U N [ T d [ V R N O p [ O Q � [ ^ p V S ³ S © N O U N T � ` [ T U Q P N T Q U N [ T ªZ [ V f ¡ ¢ m £ e ¤ l ¢ ¤ ¨ O m S V c N ` S O V S ± _ N V N T � R V N � � N T � d W [ V N T � d S © ` Q c Q U N [ T [ V O [ N � O O Q P p � N T � d f e ] b ¢ ¤ O \ Q � �Q p p V [ c S O S � S ` U N [ T [ ^ U \ S ` [ T U V Q ` U [ V O U [ p S V ^ [ V P O _ ` \ O S V c N ` S O d Q � � O N U S � [ ` Q U N [ T O d Q T R p V [ c N R Sf ¡ ¢ m £ e ¤ l ¢ ¤ Y N U \ Q � � T S ` S O O Q V X N T ^ [ V P Q U N [ T V S � Q V R N T � U \ S p V S O S T ` S [ ^ _ T R S V � V [ _ T R \ Q ° Q V R O d_ U N � N U N S O d O U V _ ` U _ V S O Q T R ` [ T R N U N [ T O Q U U \ S O N U S ªØ � � � � � � � « C � � � � � ¬ « C � � �] ^ Q R N O p _ U S Q V N O S O [ _ U [ ^ d [ V V S � Q U S O U [ d U \ S W V S Q ` \ [ ^ U \ N O l � V S S P S T U Q T R N ^ U \ S R N O p _ U S ` Q T T [ U W SO S U U � S R U \ V [ _ � \ T S � [ U N Q U N [ T d U \ S T U \ S f ¡ ¢ m £ e ¤ l ¢ ¤ Q T R U \ S f e ] b ¢ ¤ Q � V S S U [ O _ W P N U U \ S R N O p _ U S U [P S R N Q U N [ T ª ] T U \ S S c S T U f ¡ ¢ m £ e ¤ l ¢ ¤ [ V U \ S f e ] b ¢ ¤ R S O N V S O U [ P S R N Q U S Q T X R N O p _ U S d U \ Q U p Q V U XO \ Q � � T [ U N ^ X U \ S [ U \ S V p Q V U X N T Y V N U N T � [ ^ U \ S R N O p _ U S R S O N V S R U [ W S P S R N Q U S R ª ] ^ U \ S p Q V U N S O Q V S _ T Q W � SU [ V S O [ � c S U \ S N V R N ^ ^ S V S T ` S O Y N U \ N T h n R Q X O [ ^ U \ S V S ` S N p U [ ^ O _ ` \ T [ U N ` S d O _ ` \ R N O p _ U S O \ Q � � W SO _ W P N U U S R ^ [ V P S R N Q U N [ T N T Q ` ` [ V R Q T ` S Y N U \ U \ S p V [ ` S R _ V S O Q T R V _ � S O [ ^ U \ S l P S V N ` Q T l V W N U V Q U N [ Tl O O [ ` N Q U N [ T ¥ [ V Q T X O _ ` ` S O O [ V [ V � Q T N ° Q U N [ T § U \ S T N T S ^ ^ S ` U ª ¤ \ S R S Q R � N T S ^ [ V O _ W P N U U N T � U \ S R N O p _ U S
282

ITEM  25.



U [ P S R N Q U N [ T ` Q T W S ` \ Q T � S R N ^ U \ S p Q V U N S O P _ U _ Q � � X Q � V S S N T Y V N U N T � U [ S © U S T R U \ S U N P S W S U Y S S TV S ` S N p U [ ^ T [ U N ` S Q T R O _ W P N O O N [ T U [ P S R N Q U N [ T ª ¤ \ S S © p S T O S O [ ^ U \ S P S R N Q U [ V O \ Q � � W S O \ Q V S R q np S V ` S T U W X f ¡ ¢ m £ e ¤ l ¢ ¤ Q T R q n p S V ` S T U W X U \ S f e ] b ¢ ¤ ª ¤ \ N O V S ± _ N V S P S T U U [ O S S ´ P S R N Q U N [ T O \ Q � �W S Q ` [ T R N U N [ T V S ± _ N V S R W S ^ [ V S ^ N � N T � Q T Q ` U N [ T Q U � Q Y [ V N T S ± _ N U X ª Ý [ Y S c S V d p V N [ V U [ [ V R _ V N T � U \ ST S � [ U N Q U N [ T O [ V U \ S P S R N Q U N [ T S N U \ S V p Q V U X P Q X N T N U N Q U S � N U N � Q U N [ T U \ Q U Y [ _ � R [ U \ S V Y N O S W S W Q V V S R W X QO U Q U _ U S [ ^ � N P N U Q U N [ T O d Q T R f ¡ ¢ m £ e ¤ l ¢ ¤ P Q X p _ V O _ S Q T X p V [ p S V U X � N S T O [ V [ U \ S V V N � \ U O N U P Q X \ Q c SU [ [ W U Q N T O S ` _ V N U X ^ [ V U \ S p Q X P S T U [ ^ N U O N T c [ N ` S O ª¤ \ N O l � V S S P S T U O \ Q � � W S � [ c S V T S R W X U \ S � Q Y O [ ^ U \ S m U Q U S [ ^ ] [ Y Q Q T R Q T X Q ` U N [ T Q U � Q Y [ V [ U \ S V¯ _ R N ` N Q � p V [ ` S S R N T � Q V N O N T � ^ V [ P U \ N O l � V S S P S T U O \ Q � � W S N T O U N U _ U S R N T Ï � Q ` ´ Ý Q Y ´ f [ _ T U X Þ N O U V N ` Uf [ _ V U d ß Q U S V � [ [ d ] [ Y Q ªØ � � � � Ì � � � � ¬ ¬ G � � � « �¥ Q § ¤ \ N O l � V S S P S T U ` [ T O U N U _ U S O U \ S S T U N V S Q � V S S P S T U W S U Y S S T U \ S p Q V U N S O \ S V S U [ Q T RO _ p S V O S R S O Q T X [ V Q � [ V Y V N U U S T V S p V S O S T U Q U N [ T O d _ T R S V O U Q T R N T � O d p V [ p [ O Q � O d [ V` [ P P _ T N ` Q U N [ T O \ S V S U [ ^ [ V S S T U S V S R N T U [ W X [ V [ T Q ` ` [ _ T U [ ^ U \ S p Q V U N S O Q T R P Q X T [ U W S` \ Q T � S R d P [ R N ^ N S R d [ V Q P S T R S R S © ` S p U N T Y V N U N T � O N � T S R W X U \ S p Q V U N S O \ S V S U [ ª ] T U \ S S c S T U[ ^ Q T X ` [ T ^ � N ` U W S U Y S S T U \ N O ` [ T U V Q ` U R [ ` _ P S T U Q T R Q T X [ ^ U \ S S © \ N W N U O \ S V S U [ d U \ S U S V P OQ T R ` [ T R N U N [ T O [ ^ b © \ N W N U f O \ Q � � ` [ T U V [ � ª ] T U \ S S c S T U [ ^ Q T X ` [ T ^ � N ` U Q P [ T � U \ S S © \ N W N U O db © \ N W N U f O \ Q � � ` [ T U V [ � ª¥ W § ¤ \ N O l � V S S P S T U O \ Q � � W S � [ c S V T S R W X U \ S � Q Y O [ ^ U \ S m U Q U S [ ^ ] [ Y Q ª¥ ` § f ¡ ¢ m £ e ¤ l ¢ ¤ P Q X O _ W ` [ T U V Q ` U Q T X p [ V U N [ T [ ^ U \ S m S V c N ` S O U [ Q O _ W ` [ T U V Q ` U [ V Q p p V [ c S RW X f e ] b ¢ ¤ ª ] T T [ ` Q O S O \ Q � � f e ] b ¢ ¤ ¨ O Q p p V [ c Q � [ ^ Q T X O _ W ` [ T U V Q ` U V S � N S c S f ¡ ¢ m £ e ¤ l ¢ ¤[ ^ Q T X [ ^ N U O [ W � N � Q U N [ T O _ T R S V U \ N O l � V S S P S T U ª¥ R § ] T U \ S S c S T U f e ] b ¢ ¤ _ O S O Q p _ V ` \ Q O S [ V R S V ^ [ V P U [ Q R P N T N O U S V U \ N O l � V S S P S T U d U \ S _ O S [ ^O _ ` \ ^ [ V P O \ Q � � W S ^ [ V ` [ T c S T N S T ` S p _ V p [ O S O [ T � X d Q T R Q T X U X p S R p V [ c N O N [ T N T ` [ T ^ � N ` U Y N U \U \ S U S V P O [ ^ U \ N O l � V S S P S T U Q T R Q � � p V S p V N T U S R U S V P O Q T R ` [ T R N U N [ T O ` [ T U Q N T S R N T [ V [ T O _ ` \^ [ V P O O \ Q � � W S R S S P S R O U V N ` ´ S T Q T R T _ � � Q T R c [ N R ª¥ S § ¤ \ N O l � V S S P S T U � N c S O T [ V N � \ U O [ V W S T S ^ N U O U [ Q T X [ T S [ U \ S V U \ Q T f e ] b ¢ ¤ Q T Rf ¡ ¢ m £ e ¤ l ¢ ¤ Q T R R [ S O T [ U ` V S Q U S Q T X U \ N V R p Q V U X W S T S ^ N ` N Q V N S O U [ U \ S l � V S S P S T U ª¥ ^ § b © ` S p U Q O P Q X W S S © p � N ` N U � X O S U ^ [ V U \ Q W [ c S d T [ U \ N T � ` [ T U Q N T S R N T U \ N O l � V S S P S T U [ V N U OS © \ N W N U O � N P N U O U \ S V N � \ U O Q T R V S P S R N S O d N T ` � _ R N T � V S P S R N S O V S � Q U S R U [ R Q P Q � S O d [ ^ S N U \ S Vp Q V U X U \ Q U Q V S Q c Q N � Q W � S U [ S N U \ S V p Q V U X _ T R S V U \ S � Q Y ª� � Ð � C � � � � Ð Í � � � � � d U \ S p Q V U N S O \ S V S U [ \ Q c S S © S ` _ U S R U \ N O Q � V S S P S T U [ T U \ S R Q X Q T R X S Q V Y V N U U S TW S � [ Y ªG � � � �   � � � � � � ¬ � � � C G � � � �   � � � � � � � � � « ¬ C G � CÏ X � Ï X �f N U X [ ^ f S R Q V Z Q � � O Z [ U \ ] T ^ V Q O U V _ ` U _ V S a b T c N V [ T P S T U d e e f² V N T U S R ¢ Q P S � ² V N T U S R ¢ Q P S � l Q V [ T à [ T N ° Q¤ N U � S � ¤ N U � S � m S T N [ V f � N S T U à Q T Q � S VÞ Q U S � Þ Q U S � á Ü q Ü h á
283

ITEM  25.



â ã ä å ã æ ç å æ ã ã å ç å æ ã ã å è é ê ë ã ì æ í î ã é åâ ã ï ê æ ð ê ñ ñ è ò ó í ô êâ õ å ö ì æ í î ã é å ÷ í ø ù â ú û û û ú ü ý û þ
ÿ � � � � �� � � � � � � � 	 
 � �  � � 	 � � � � �  � � �  � 
 	 �  	 � �  � � � 
  � � �  
 � � � 
 � 	 � � �  �  � �  � � � �   �� � �   � � 
 � �  � � 	 �  
 � � � � � � � �  ! " # $ % & ' � ( $ � ) � � � �  � � � � � � � � 	 
 � �  � � � � � � �*  �  � � �  � � � � �  �  � � + � 
 	 � � � � 
 � 	 � , - 	 � � . � � � � � � � � 
 � � �  / 0 � � � � 	 � �  � � 1 2 2 � 3 � � � �4 � � � *  �  � � 	 � � � � + 4 	 � 5 � 	 � � �  � � � 6 	 � �  � � � - � � � � � � �  � 
 	 � � � � 
 � 1 �  �  � � � � �  � 1 � � ! " 7 � 8 ) 9 : ; < � � = > ; � � ? = � �@ � � � 	 �  
 � A  � 
 � � � � � 	 �� � �   � � 
 � �  �  � � + � 4 � � � � � 
 � � � � � 6 � � �  � �  
 � � 	 � � � � � � � � � � +  � � � � 	 �  �  � � � 	 ��  � �  � � � �   � � � 	 � B 	 � � � � 	 � � � +  C 	 4 C 	 � � � 	 2 	 �  � �   C 	 � � � � � � 	 � � � � � � � � � � �  D �  � � � �  � 6 �  � �  4  � � �  E F � � B 	 � � � �  � � � � � � �  � �  � � � �   �- � � �  4 	 � 5 � � � � � 	 + � � � � � �  � � � � � � � � + 	 � � �  B 	 � � � �  � � � B  � + � * 	 � � 	 	 � � � �� �  + � � �  � 	 � � � � �  �  �  � 	 � �  � � � � � � � � � � � � � � 
 � � �  � � � � 	 �  �  � � � � � � - � � �  4 	 � 5 � � � � 	 � � � � �  � � � � � �  � � � � � 	 � 
 � � 	 � �  
 	 � � � � 	 � � � � � 	 �  �  � � � �� �  � 	 
 � � 	 � � � � � � � 	 �  
 � � � � 	 � � � � �  � 4 	 � 5 	 � � �  - � � �  4 	 � 5 � � � � 	 � � 6 1� 	 
 � � � � + 	 � � � �   � � 
 � � � � + � � � � � � � � � +  � � � � 	 �  �  � � � *  � 4   � � �   D � � � � � + � +  	 � � 	 � � 4 � 6 � � � � �  
 	 � � � � 	 � � � + � � G 	 � G 4 � 6 � � �  � � � 6 �  
  � � � 6 
 	 � � � � � 
 �  �� � � � � � 	 � � �  4  � � � � �  1 � �  �  �  � � � �  � � � � �  � � � � � � �  � 	 � � �  - � � �  4 	 � 5� � � � � H � � 
 	 � � � � 	 � � � � � � � � �  � � + � 4 � � � �   � � 	 � 
 
 	 � � 	 � � �  � � � � �  
  � � � 6� � � � � � �  � � �  � � � 6 � - � � � �  
 	 � � � � � 
 � � 	 � 	 � � �  
 	 � � � � 	 � � � � 	 � � � � � �  � � � � � � �� � �  1 � � � � 	 � + � � � �  � �  
 � � 	 � � � � � 	 �  �  � � � � �  � 	 *  
 	 � � � �  �  � 1 � � 
 � � � � � + �� 	 � � � � * 	 � � � � 2 	 �  � �   C 	 � � � � � 	 � � 4 � �  � � � � � +  �  � � � � � � 	 �  �  � � �
 	 � � � � � 
 � � �  �  � � * � � � � � � � 	 � 	 �  D � � � � � + � � � � � � � � � 
 � � �  
 	 � * � �  � 4 � � � + �   �� � � � � � � � � 
 � � �  �  
 � � 	 � 	 + �  � 1 � � � � �  � � � � �  � � + �  � � 	 *  � � � 
 
 	 � � 	 � � � � � � � �  � � * � � �  �  � 	 � �  � � � � 	 � + � �  
 	 � � � � 	 � � � �  � � 	 �  
 � � � � � 	 � 
 � 4 � � � � � � � 	�  � � �  � 	 � � �  � � 	 �  
 � + 	 � � � 	 � �  �  � � � � � � � � � 	 � � � � � 	 � � � � � 	 � � � � � 
 � � � � � � � � � � 
 1I  J � > K � L L ? M � � N 9 L : J J > � � L ? ! O I K I ; P L � � � � � ) 9 O > Q � � L : J M � > ; � = ? J I � ? O I ; K � L �  � ; �� � � 	 � + 	 � � + 	 �  � � � � � + 
 	 � � � 1 � � �  � � � � 
  � 
 	 � �  � 
 � � � � 
 
  � � �� � 	 �  
 � H * �  
 � � �  � R

·
� �  � �  � �  � �  	 � � � � 
  � � � 
 	 �  � �  � 	 � B 	 � � �  � � �  � � � - � � � �

·
. � �  + � � �  � � � � � � � � 6 � �  � � 1 
 	 � � � � � 
 � � 	 � �  � � 	 � � � � � � � �  � 	 4 � � � � 
 �+ �   � � � � � � � � � � 
 � � �  1 � � � � � � � � * �  � � � � � � � � � � � � �  �

·
� 	 � � �  �  � � �   � � � � � 
 � � �  � � 	 � � �  � � 	 � � � � � 	 �  � 	 � � � � � � � 	 � � � � � 	 �

284

ITEM  25.



â ã ä å ã æ ç å æ ã ã å ç å æ ã ã å è é ê ë ã ì æ í î ã é åâ ã ï ê æ ð ê ñ ñ è ò ó í ô êâ õ å ö ì æ í î ã é å ÷ í ø ù â ú û û û ú ü ý û þ
·

� �  �  � �  	 �  � � � � 
  1 � � � � � � � *  � � � 6 � � � 
 � � � � 
 � �  � � � � 	 � �  � � � � � �  � �� � � � 4 � � � � � �  � + � �  � � �  � � � � 	 � � � �  � + � * 	 � � 	 	 � �
·

. � � � 	 �  � �  
 	 � �  
 � � 	 � � 	 A 	 4 � � 	 4 � � � � �  � � � - � � � � � � � 4 � 	 � 
·

. � � � 	 �  � � �   � 
 � 	 � � � � + � � 5  6 � � �  � �  
 � � 	 � �
·

. � � � 	 �  � � 	 � � 4 � �  � � � � � +  �  � � � � 	 � + � �  
 	 � � � � 	 � 4 � � � � �  � 	 
 � � 	 �+ �   � � � � � � � � � � 
 � � � S � T  �  � � � � 
 	 �  	 � U 	 � 5� �  4 	 � 5 � 	 *  �  � � 	 � �  � * 6 � �  � 	 � � � � � � � � � � �  � � � � � � + �   �  � � � � � � � � 
 	 � � � � � � � � � � 
 � � �  �  � � � �  � 4 	 � 5 1 �  � � � 
  � 1 � � �  � � � � � 1  V � � � �  � � � � �� � � � � �  � �  
  � � � � 6 � 	 
 	 � � �  �  � �  � 	 � � 	 4 � � + � 
 	 �  	 � �  � � � 
  � � 	 � � �  � � 	 �  
 � �� �  � � 	 �  
 � 
 	 � � � � � � 	 � � �  �  �  � 	 � �  � � 	 � � 
 	 � � � � 	 � 
 	 � 
  � � * � �  � 	 � � � B 	 � � � �  � � � � � � �  � �  � � � �   � - � � �  4 	 � 5 � � � � , - � � �  4 	 � 5 � � � � 3 1 � � * � � 
� � � 	 � �  �  � � 1 � �  � � � � � � � 6 �  � � + � 1 � � � � � �  � � + � 1 * � � � � � + 1 � � � 
 	 � � � � � 
 � � 	 ��  � � � 
  � �� � 	 �  
 � @ � � � � � � � 	 � � R
·

C � � � � � � � � 	 � 
 � R @ � �  � � �  - � � �  4 	 � 5 � � � � 4 � � 
 	 � � �  �  � 1 � �  � � � 6� � �  � �  �  
 � � � 	 � � 	 � � 	 � � 
 � � �  
 � � * � � � + � � �  � 	 � � � � � 
 	 � � � � 	 � � �� � � � 	 � � �  � � � �  � � � � � 	 �  �  � � � � � 	 � � � � 	 � 4 � � � � � � 6 � � � � � � 
 � 	 � � G�  
 � � 	 � �
·

B 	 �  � � � �  � � � 
 V � � � � � � 	 � � �   �  � 1 	 � � 6 �  � �  � �  �  � � � � � 	 � � � � � � � �� 	 � �  � � �  � � � � � � � �  D � � * � � � � � � � 6 	 � �  � � � - � � � � 4 � � � � 	 � 
 V � � � � � � 	 � � �
·

U � � � � �  � � � 	 �  
  � � � 6 
 	 � � � � � 
 �  � � � � � � 	 � 4  � � � � � 
·

�  � �  � �  �  � � � 4 � � � 	 � � 6 *  �   �  � 	 �  � � � � � �  	 � 
 	 � � � � 	 �
·

C  
 	 � � � � � 
 � � 	 � 	 � �  � �  � � � �   � � 2 	 �  � �   C 	 � � � � �  � �  
 � � 	 � 4 � � � � 	 �*  � � � � 	 � � � � � � � 	 �  
 � , 	 � � 6 � 	 	 5 � � + � � 
 	 � 
  � � � � 	 � � � �  � �  
 � � 	 � 3 �
·

2 � + � � � � + R � � 	 �  
 � � 	 � � 
 � � �  � 	 � � 4 � 6 � � + � � � � + � � � � 	 � � � * � 6 �  �  � � � � � �� � + � � � � + � W �  � �  � � �  � � + � � � � + � � �  � � � � � � � � 	 4 � � 	 4 � �  � � � - � � � � � @ �� � � *   � � 	 �  � � � �  � � 	 � � �  � � � - � � � � � � 	 �  
 � � 1 � � � � � � � � �  � � � � ��  � � � - � � � � W � � � � � �  � , � - W 3 4 � � � 
 	 � � �  �  � �  
 � � 
 � � � � 6 �  � � + � � 	 � � � � � + � � � � + �
·

0 D � � � � � + �  �  � � � � � � � � + � � � � � T �   � @ �  � �  � 	 � � � 6 � � � � � 
  �
·

� 	 � � � � � 
 � � 	 � � � � �  �  � � � 
  � � � 
 � � �  � � � � � � � � � � � � 	 � 	 � � 6 � C  � � �  � �	 * �  � � � � � 	 � � � � 
 	 � � � � � 
 � � 	 � � � � �  6 �  � � � 
  � � �  � 	 � � � 
 � � �  � � . � 4 � � �*  �  �  � � � �  � � � � � � �  � � � �  � � � �  �  �  � � � 
  � � �  �   �  � * 6 � � � 	 � � � � � � � � �� �  4 	 � 5 � � 
 � � �  � 1 * � � � � � 	 � � � � � �  � � 	 R� �  � 	 � � � � � � � � 4 � � � 
 	 � � �  �  � �  � 	 � � 	 4 � � + � � 	 �  
 � 
 	 	 � � � � � � � 	 � � 
 � � � � � �  � �� � � 5 � G � � 	 �  
 � X � 
 5 	 � � Y   � � � +
285

ITEM  25.



â ã ä å ã æ ç å æ ã ã å ç å æ ã ã å è é ê ë ã ì æ í î ã é åâ ã ï ê æ ð ê ñ ñ è ò ó í ô êâ õ å ö ì æ í î ã é å ÷ í ø ù â ú û û û ú ü ý û þ� �  � 	 � � � � � � � � 4 � � � 
 	 � � � 
 � � � � � �  � � � � 5 � 
 5 G 	 � �  �  � � 4 � � � � �  � � 	 �  
 � �  � � �� �   �  � � � 4 � � � � � � 	 � �  � �  �  �  � 	 � �  � � 	 � � �  � � � � � � 
 � � 	 �  
 � � � � � 1 � � 
 � � � � � + �� � + � �  �  � � � � �  � � 
 �  � � �  1 �  � 	 � � 
  � � � � 1 � � � � � � 4 	 � 5 � � 	 4 � � � � � � � + * 	 � � � �� � � � � � 	 � 
 � � �  � � � 5 � �  � � � � � 
 � � � 	 � � � � � � � � + � � � 	 � � � � � 6 � � � � C  + � � � � � 6� 
 �  � � �  � � � � � � G � � �   � � � + � 1 
 	 � * � �  � 4 � � � � �  � � � � � � * 	 � � � 4 � � � *  � �  � � 	� � � � �  � �   � � � �  �  � � 	 � � �  � � 	 + �  � � 	 � � � 	 �  
 � � � �  � � 	 �  � �  � � �  � � * �  � 1� � � � � � � � � � �  � � �  � *  � � � � 5 
 	 � � �  � � 	 � � � � � 	 � � 
 � � � � � �  � �  	 �  � � � � �  � �
 	 � � � * 	 � � � � 	 � � - 	 � * � � +  � � � � � 	 �  � 1 � �  � � 	 �  
 � �  � � 4 � � � � 	 � � � 4 	 , E 3 � � 	 �  
 ��  �  � 	 � �  � � 5 � 
 5 	 � � �   � � � + � , � 3 � �  � � � � � � � 6 A  � � + � � � � , * 3 - � � � � A  � � + � � 	 �� � �  � � 	 �  � �  � � �  � � * �  � � � � � � � + � � � � � � � � 	 � � 	 � �  � Y � �   � � � + � �� � � 5 E Z � � 	 �  
 � Y � � � +  �  � � �  � � , � Y � 3 Y   � � � + �� �  � 	 � � � � � � � � 4 � � � � � � � � � � � 
 	 � � � � � 
 � � � 	 � � 4 � � � � �  � � � 6 	 � �  � � � - � � � � 1�  � � � - � � � W � � � � � �  � � � � 	 � �  � � � 	 �  � �  4 � � 	 + �  � � � � � � � � 
 � � � � �  
 � � � 
 �  �  � � � 	 � � �  � � 	 �  
 � �  � � + � � � � �  
  � �  � � �  
 � � 	 � � � 	 � � �  � � � 6 � � � �   � � � + � 4 � � � � � � 	 �  � �  � 	  � � � * � � � � � 
 �  � � �  � 1 �  �  � 	 � � � 	 �  
 � + 	 � � � 1 � � � * � � � � � � � � � � � �  � � + � � � � � �  �  � � 1 � � 	 � 	 �  � � � � � 	 + *  � 4   � � �  � � � � 	 � � � � � � �  � 1 � � � � 	 �  � �  �  
 � � � 	 � G � � 5 � � + � � 	 
  � � 1 � � �  D �  � � �  �  � � + ��  �  � 	 � �  � � � � �  � � �  � � � � �  � 	 � �   � � � + � � � � 5   � � 	 
 � �  � � � � � 	 � 	 � 	 � �  �
 	 � � � � � 
 � � � 	 � � �
· [ \ ] \ ^ _ ` a b c d e ^ f g h [ \ ] \ d i j d k l m [ k f n k f ^ f d l m o d p f d q r k s i d q n k t [ u s e
· [ \ ] \ ^ _ ` v w n k k f c n k s l l d l l i d e ^ m w n e x d y ^ c d p d u n y i d e ^
· [ \ ] \ ^ _ ` z w n e x d y ^ c d p d u n y i d e ^ m { d f _ | j n k | n n c \ ^ _ y u s e e f e _
· [ \ ] \ ^ _ ` } ~ ^ s t d | n u c d k g d d c j s x t m � d l f _ e c d p d u n y i d e ^
· [ \ ] \ ^ _ ` � o d x n i i d e c d c x n k k f c n k f i y k n p d i d e ^ l m [ k n _ k d l l � y c s ^ d
· [ \ ] \ ^ _ ` � w n � e x f u y k d l d e ^ s ^ f n e
· [ \ ] \ ^ _ ` � [ k n _ k d l l � y c s ^ d
· [ \ ] \ ^ _ ` � [ k n _ k d l l � y c s ^ d m w n e l ^ k � x ^ f n e y | s l d- 	 � * � � +  � � � � � 	 �  � 1 � �  � 	 � � � � � � � � 4 � � � � � �  � �  � + � � , ÿ 3 �   � � � + � � � � � 4 � � � * � � �  � �  � * 6 � � �   , � 3 � � � � � �  � *  � � 	 � � �  � 	 � � � � � � � � �� � � 5 � G W � � � � � 6 � 	 	 � � � � � � � 	 � Y   � � � + �@ � �  
  � � � � 6 1 � � � 
 � � � � 	 � � 4 � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � 6 
 	 � � � � �  � � 	 � � � �  � � � �  
 � � � 

 	 � � � � 
 � � 4 � � � 	 
 
 � � � � � � � � 	 � � Y � �   � � � + � �� � � 5 � G � � * � � 
 . � � 	 � � � � � 	 � Y   � � � + �� �  � 	 � � � � � � � � 4 � � � 
 	 � � � 
 � � 4 	 , E 3 � � * � � 
 � � � 	 � � � � � 	 � � � �   � � � + � � � � � 4 � � � * � � �  � �  � * 6 � 	 � � , � 3 � � � � � �  � *  � � 	 � � �  � 	 � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � 5 � � 
 � � �  �� �  � � � � � � 	 � 	 � � �  � � * � � 
 � 	 � � � � 
 � � � 	 � �  � �  � � � � � � � � 	 � � � � � 	 � � � � � 	 � � 	 � � � �   � � � + �
· \ d d ^ f e _ ` a � [ k d l d e ^ w n e x d y ^ l ^ n { d f _ | j n k | n n c � l l n x f s ^ f n e� \ d d ^ f e _ ` a f l ^ | d f e f ^ f s u i d d ^ f e _ q f ^ | ^ | d { n k ^ | w d c s k { d f _ | j n k | n n c� l l n x f s ^ f n e s e c ^ | d y � j u f x � ] | f l i d d ^ f e _ q f u u y k n p f c d s e n p d k p f d q n g^ | d _ n s u l s e c n j � d x ^ f p d l n g ^ | d y k n � d x ^ m k d p f d q ^ | d v � a a r k s i d q n k t[ u s e ^ n f c d e ^ f g h i s � n k s e c i f e n k g d s ^ � k d l n g ^ | d x n k k f c n k s e c

286

ITEM  25.



â ã ä å ã æ ç å æ ã ã å ç å æ ã ã å è é ê ë ã ì æ í î ã é åâ ã ï ê æ ð ê ñ ñ è ò ó í ô êâ õ å ö ì æ í î ã é å ÷ í ø ù â ú û û û ú ü ý û þe d f _ | j n k | n n c ^ n j d s c c k d l l d c j h ^ | d y k n � d x ^ m s e c y k n p f c d s en p d k p f d q n g ^ | d y k n � d x ^ l x | d c � u d �
· \ d d ^ f e _ ` v � � d e d k s u [ � j u f x \ d d ^ f e _� ] | d y � k y n l d n g ^ | f l i d d ^ f e _ q f u u j d ^ n y k d l d e ^ ^ | d y k d u f i f e s k h c d l f _ ex n e x d y ^ l s e c � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � �   � � � ¡ � � ¢ £� � ¤ �� �  �  �  � � � � + 	 � � �  �   � � � + � � 
 � � � � 6 � � � � � � * � � 
 � 	 � � � � 
 � � � 	 � 4 � � � *  
 	 � � �  �  �* 6 � �  � � � 6 �� � � 5 ¥ Z A  � � + � A  �  � 	 � �  � � � � 	 � � � � 	 � 0 D � � * � � � �  � � � � � � 	 �. � 
 � � �  � � �  
 �  � � � 	 � 	 � � � � � � � � � � 6 � � �  � � � � � �   �  � � 	 � � � * � � 
 �   � � � + � �0 D � � * � � � 	 � � �  �  � � + � �  �  � 	 � �  � � 4 � � � 
 	 � � � � � 	 � � � � � � G � � ¦  � � � � � � � 	 � 4 � � � � � � � � 	 � � � 	 �  
 � �  � � � �  � � � 	 4 � 	 � � �  �  � � � � � � 	 � 	 + � � � � � . � 
 � � �  � 
 	 � 	 � � � + 1�  � �  � � � + 1 � � � 	 � �  � �  
 � � � V �  � � 	 �  � � �  � �  � �  � � 	 � 	 �  � �  � � + � 
 	 � 
  � � � � � �� � + � � 	 � G 4 � 6 �   � � 1 � � 
 � � � � � + � 6 � � 
 � � �  
 � � 	 �  �  �  � � � 	 � � �  � 	 � � 4 � 6 � � � � 5� � � 	 � � 
 � � �  � � �  � � � � � � 	 � 	 � 
 	 � 	 � �  � �  � � � + � � � � � � � � � � 6 � � � �  �  
 � � 	 
 � � � 	 � �� 	 � � �  � � 
 	 � � � � � 
 � � � 	 � � � � � � � � � * � � 
 �   � � � + � � 	 � �  
 	 � �  � �  �� � � � 	 �  �  � � � �� � � 5 § Z � � * � � 
 � 	 � � � � � 
 � � � 	 � � 	 � �  � � A  �  � 	 � �  � �� � � " > ; L : O � ? ; � Q I O O ? L L I L � � � � " I � N I ; < � K � O > J I ; P = > ; � � ; � M > � � � � " I � N ¨ L Q � © L I � � ª� �  � � � 6 4 � � � � �  � �  � � 4  * � � �  � 	 � 	 � � � � 	 �  
 � � � � � �  � � � � 
 	 � �  � � �� � � 5 « G � � 	 �  
 � Y � � � +  �  � � , � § � 	 � � � 	 � �  � � E F � � G A  
 E F E F 3� �  � � 	 �  
 � � � � � +  � � 	 � � �  � 	 � � � � � � � � 4 � � � *  �  � � 	 � � � * �  � 	 � � � � � � � � � � � +
 	 	 � � � � � � � 	 � 4 � � � � �  � � � 6 1 � 	 � � � � 6 � � 	 + �  � � �  � 	 � � � � + 1 � � � � �  � 	 � �   � � � + � 1� � �  � 	 � � � 
  �  � 	 � � � � � 1 � � � � � 	 �  
 � � � � 	 � 
 � � + � � � � � � � � 5 � � � 	 � � 
 � � �  �� 
 �  � � � � � + 	 � � � � � � 1 �  � �  4 	 � � � 	 + �  � � 1 � � � �  � � 	 � �  � �  4 	 � �  � � �  � � * �  � �� �  � 	 � � � � � � � � 4 � � � �  � � 	 � � � �  � � � � � 	 � � � 
  � � � 5 � �  V � � �  � � 	 
 	 � �  
 � � � � � � � 	 � � �� 	 � 	 + � � � � � 
 � � � 	 � � � � � 	 � �   �  � �  
  � � � � 6 � 	 
 	 � � �  �  � �  � � 	 �  
 � � � �  � � � 64 � � � � � 	 � � �  �  � � � � � � 	 � 	 + � � � � � 
 � � � 	 � �  � � � � � � � * �  � � � � � � + 	 � � �  � � 	 �  
 �� �  � � � �  � �  
 � � � 
 � � � � �  �  � � � � � � � �  6 � � � 5 � � 	 *  �  � � 	 � �  � � � 
 � � �  � � � 	 � � 	 4 � � + R� � � 5 � G � 	 � � � 	 � � � � �  6� �  � 	 � � � � � � � � 4 � � �  � � � * � � � � � 	 � � ¦ 	 � � � � � � � �  � � � 
 � � 
 	 � � � 	 � � 	 � � �  � � 	 �  
 �� �  � � 0 � 
 � �  � � � �  � � 
 	 � � � 	 � � 	 � � � 	 � *  � 
 � � � � 5 4 � � � � � �  � 	 � � ¦ 	 � � � �
 	 	 � � � � � �  � 	 �  �  � � � � 	 � 1 �  
 	 �  � 6 � � � 	 � � � � � 	 � � � � � 	 � � �  � � �  � 
 � � � � � 	 � �@ 
 
 � � � �  �  � 
 � � � � � 	 � � 	 � � �  � 	 � � ¦ 	 � � � � 
 	 � � � 	 � � 	 � � � � � � � *  � 
 � � � � 5 � 4 � � � * 
 �  � �  � � � � �  
 	 � �  � 	 � � �  � � � � � �   � � �� � � 5 E G � 	 � 	 + � � � � � 
 � � � �  6� �  � 	 � � � � � � � � 4 � � � �  � � 	 � � � 	 � 	 + � � � � � 
 � � � �  6 � �  V � � �  � � 	 � � �  �  �  � 	 � �  � �	 � � �  � � 	 �  
 � � ¬ 	 � � ¦ 	 � � � � � � � �  � � � 
 � � � 
 
 � � � 
 �  � 4 � � � *  � �  V � � �  � 	 � � 	 � � 
 

287

ITEM  25.



â ã ä å ã æ ç å æ ã ã å ç å æ ã ã å è é ê ë ã ì æ í î ã é åâ ã ï ê æ ð ê ñ ñ è ò ó í ô êâ õ å ö ì æ í î ã é å ÷ í ø ù â ú û û û ú ü ý û þ� � � � � � � � � � 
 	 � � � � � * �  4 � � � � �  � 	 � 	 + � � � � � 
 � � � � � 	 � � � 
 	 � � 	 � � � � 	 � � � � 	 � �  D � � � � � + � � � � � � + �� � � 5 � G W � � � � � 6 � � � �  6� �  � 	 � � � � � � � � 4 � � � �  � � 	 � � � � � � � � 6 � � � �  6 � �  V � � �  � � 	 � � �  �  �  � 	 � �  � � 	 � � � � � 	 �  
 � � � 	 � � � 
 � � � � � � � 6 	 4 �  � � 	 � �  
 	 � � 	 � � �  . 	 4 � H �  � � � � �  � �  �  � � � � � �  1�  V �  � � � � � � * � � �  � � � � � � � �  � *  � � � 5  � � � � �  � �  � � � � � 	 * � � � �  D � � � � � + � � � � � � 6� � � � 0 � � � * � � � � 
 	 	 � � � � � �  � � � �  �  � � � � 	 � � , � � � 	 � � � * �  3 � 	 � � � � � � � �  � � � � � � � � �4 � � � � � � �  � � � � � � 	 � � �  � � 	 �  
 � � � � � �  � � � � * �  	 � � � �  *   � � � � 5  � 	 � � � + � 	 � � � * 6 � �  � � � � � � 6 	 4 �  � � � � 	 4 � � � � � � 6 � � �  � � � �  � 
 � � *  � �  � � � � � � 6 	 � � � � � � � � �� � � � � � � 5 
 	 � � � � � � 	 � � �  � � � � � �  6 � � � � 
 � � � � + � �  � 	 
 � � � 	 � 	 � � � � � � � �  � 4 � � � � � � �  D � � � � � + � � + � � G 	 � G 4 � 6 � 	 � � �  � � 	 �  
 � � � �  � 	 � � � � � � � � 4 � � � � �  � � � 	 
 � �  � � � � � � 6� 	 
 � � � 	 � �  � � � * � � � �  � * 6 	 � �  � �   D 
 � � � � � � + � 	  D � 	 �  * � � �  � � � � � � � �  � � � � 	 �� � � � 	 � � � � � 
 	 � � � � 
 � � W � � � � � �  � � 	 *  � � � �  6  � � � 
 � � �  � � 	 �  1 + � � 1 � � *  � 	 � � � 
 14 � �  � � � � � 1 	 �  � �  � � � � � �  � + � 	 � � �  �  
 � � � 
 � � 1 � � � � � � � 6 �  4  � � � � � � 	 � � �  4  �, � � 
 � � � � � + � 	 4  � � 	 �  � 1 �  �  � � � � � 1 � � � �  � � � � � � � � 	 �  � 3 � � � � � � � 
 � � �  � � � � * � � � � � � + � � � � 	 �  � � � � � � � 5   �  � � � � 	 � � � 	 �  D � � � � � + � � � � � � � 6 1 � � 	 � � �  4  � �� � � � 	 � � 4 � 6 
 � � �  � � � �� � � 5 � G � � 	 �  � � 6 H 4 �  � � � � � � � � C  �  � � 
 �C  �  � � 
 � � � � 6 � � � � 	 � � � 6 �  
 	 � � � � � 
 � � � � � + � � + � � G 	 � G 4 � 6 � � � � � � � � � 1� � * � � � � � � 	 � � � � � � 1 �  
 � � 	 � 
 	 � �  � � �  � 1 � � � � � � �  6 � 1 � 	 
 � �   D � � � � � + * 	 � � � � � 6
 	 � �  � � 	 � � �  � � � 1  � � � * � � � � � � 	 �  � � 6 � � �  � 1 � � + � � G 	 � G 4 � 6 � � �  � 1 �  
 � � 	 � � � �  � 1� � �  � �  �  � � � 1 �  �  � � � �  	 4 �  � � � � � 	 � � �  � � 	 �  � � �  � � � �  
 �  � * 6 � � � � 	 �  
 � � � �  � � �  � � � � 4 � � + 4 � � � � � 	 �  � � 6 � � �  � 1 � � + � � G 	 � G 4 � 6 � � �  � 1 �  
 � � 	 �� � �  � 1 � � �  � �  �  � � � 4 � � � � � � �  � � 	 �  
 � � �  � � � � � 	 4 � 	 � � �   D � � � � � + � � � � �� � � 	 � �  � � 	 
 � �  � � � 	 � �  
 	 � � � � 	 � + 4 � � � � �  � � � � 
 	 � �  � � 	 � � �  � � � � � �* 	 � � � � � 6 
 	 � �  � � 	 � � �  � � � � 	 
 � �  � � � � �  � � � C  � �  4 � � 	 �  � � 6 	 4 �  � � � � �� � � 	 � � � � � 	 � � � 	 � � � * � � 
 �  
 	 � � � � � � � � � � � 	 �  � � 6 	 4 �  � � � �  � � 	 � �  � � 	 �  
 �� � � � � � + � 	 � � � * � � 
 � � � � � � 6 � � � � � � � � �  � � � � � � 	 � � � � � 	 �  � �� � � 5 ¥ G C � + � � G 	 � G U � 6 � � � �  6� �  � 	 � � � � � � � � 4 � � � �  � � 	 � � � � + � � G 	 � G 4 � 6 � � � �  6 � � � �  V � � �  � � 	 � � � �  �  � 	 � �  � � 	 � � �  � � 	 �  
 � � � �  � � + � � G 	 � G 4 � 6 � � � �  6 � 4 � � � *  � � G �  � � � �  + � �� � � �  6 � � 	 � 4 � � 
 � �  � � 	 � � � 6  � �  �  � �  D � � * � � � � �  � 	 *  �  �  � 	 �  � �� � � � � � � 5 � � 
 � � �  � � � � 	 � 	 � + � �  � � 
 � 	 � � � � 6 1 � 	 � � � 6 � � � � � � �  �  
 	 � � � � 	�  � �  4 � � � � � � �  6 � 	 � �  
 	 � � �  � � � � � � � + � 	 � �  � � � �  6 
 	 � � � � 	 � 1 � � 
 � � � � � + � 	 � � � 6( : < I � > � ¨ L % : © < I K I L I > ; L ® O ? � L 9 > � I P I ; ? O P > K � � ;  � ; � L : � K � N L 9 � ? � O N L : � K � N L� � �  * 6 � 	 � � � 6 � � � �  6 	 � � 1 � � � � � �  + � � � � � � � � � � � �  6 � � � � 	 � �  � � � * � � � � �  � ��  
 	 � � � � � 	 � �  � 	 � � � 
 � �  
 	 � � � � �  � 	 *  � � 
 � � �  � � � � �  � � 	 �  
 � � � �  � 	 � � � � � � �  �  �  � 
  �
288

ITEM  25.



â ã ä å ã æ ç å æ ã ã å ç å æ ã ã å è é ê ë ã ì æ í î ã é åâ ã ï ê æ ð ê ñ ñ è ò ó í ô êâ õ å ö ì æ í î ã é å ÷ í ø ù â ú û û û ú ü ý û þ� � � � � � � 5 � � � 	 � � 
 � � �  � 	 * � � � � � � + � � � � � 
 �  � � � �  � � � � � � � 	 � 	 
 � �  	 �  � � � * � � � �� � 	 �  � � 6 � � �  � � � �  
 �  � * 6 � �  � � 	 �  
 � � 	  � � * �  � �  � �  � � � � � � 	 � 	 � � � � � � � 	 �  �  � � � � � � � � � � � � � � 
 � � �  � � 	 
 � � � � + �  
 � � 	 � 
 	 � �  � � 1 � � 	 �  � � 6 � � � � 1 � � �� � � � * �  � � �  � 	 � 	 
 
 � � � � � 	 � � � 
 � � � �  � 
  � 1 � �  � � � � � � � � 	 � � 	 � � � 6 	 � �  � � � �  � 1� � � � 
 � � � � + � 	 � �  � � � 	 � � @ � � � � +  � �  � � 	 � � � � � � *  � � �  � 	 �  
 	 �  �  D � � � � � + � � � �
 	 � �  � � 	 � � �  � � � �  
  � � � � 6 � 	 �  � 
 � � *  � �  � � + � � G 	 � G 4 � 6 � � 	 � + � �  � � 	 �  
 �
 	 � � � � 	 � �� �  � � � 5 � � 
 � � �  � � � 
 	 � � 	 � � � � 	 � 	 � � � 	 �  � � 6 � � �  � 1 � � + � � G 	 � G 4 � 6 � � �  � 1 � � �	 4 �  � � � � � 	 � � � 	 �  � � �  � � � �  
 �  � * 6 � �  � � 	 �  
 � � � � 	 � �  * � �  � � � � � � + � 	 � � � � � 	 �  
 � � � �  * � �  � � � � � � + 4 � � � � �  � � � � 6 � �  	 4 �  � � � � � � � � � 	 D � � � � * 	 � � � � � �  � 	 � � � � � � � � 	 � � � � �  � � � 
  � � 4 � � � � � � �  � � � �  6 � � � � � � �� � � 5 § G � � 	 �  
 � S � �  Y � �. � 
 	 � � 	 � � �  � �  � � � � � �  6 � � � � 	 � �  �  
 � � 	 � � 
 * � �  � � � � 	 *  � �  � � 	 � � � �  � � + � 	 � � �  � � 	 �  
 � � . � 
 	 � � 	 � � �  � � 	 �  � � 6 � � �  � 1 � � + � � G 	 � G 4 � 6 � � �  � 1 � � �� � 	 �  � � 6 	 4 �  � � � � � � 	 � � � � 
  � � � 	 
 � �  � 4 � � � � � � �  � � 	 �  
 � � � � � � � � � � 	 � �  * � � � � � �- 	 � * � � +  � � � 6 � � � � 	 �  � 1 � � � � � � � � �  � � � � � � � � � 6 G � 4 	 , ¥ E 3 � � � 
  � � � �  4 � � � � � � � � � 	 �  
 � � � � � � � �� � � 5 « G � �  � � � � � � 	 � 	 � 2  + � � A  � 
 � � � � � 	 � � � � � �  � � 	 � � � 6 0 � �  �  � � 0 D � � * � � �� �  � 	 � � � � � � � � 4 � � � � �  � � �  �  + � � �  � 
 � � � � � 	 � � � � � � � � 
  �  D � � * � � � � 	 ��  � � 	 � � � 6  � �  �  � � � � 	 *  � 
 V � � �  � � 	 � � �  � � 	 �  
 � � - 	 �  � � � � � � � � + � � � � 	 �  � 1� �  � 	 � � 	 4 � � + � � � *  � � 	 � � 
 V � � � � � � 	 � � � � � � � �  � � � � �  � � 	 � � � � � � + �   �  � � R
·

�  � � 	 � � � 6 � 	 � � � � � 
 � � 	 � 0 � �  �  � � � ¯ E F  � 
 �� � � 5 ÿ Z �  � � � �  � � Y 	 � � �  � � � � � 	 � 	 � C � + � � G 	 � G U � 6� � � � � � � 5 
 	 � � � � � � 	 � � 	 � � �  � � � � � 	 � 	 � � �  � � + � � G 	 � G 4 � 6 � 
 V � � �  � � � � � � � 	 �� � � � � � 	 �  
 � 4 � � 
 � 4 � � � *  �  � � 	 � �  � � � 	 � 
 	 � � �  � � 	 � 	 � 
 	 � � � � � 
 � � 	 � 	 � � � � � 	 � 	 �  � � � � � 	 �  �  � � � � � �  � 	 � � �  � � � � � 	 � 4 � � � 
 	 � � � 6 4 � � � �  V � � �  �  � � �	 � � �  . 	 4 � � 	 �  � � � 4 � � � *  �  � � 	 � �  � * 6 	 � � � �  � � �  � � �  
 � � � �  � � � � � 	 � 	 � �� � � 6 � � 
  � �  � � � � � � � � �  6 	 � � � �  � � �  � � 4 � 	 � � �  � � � �  	 � . 	 4 � �� � � � � � � 5 � � � 	 � � 
 � � �  � �  �  � � � � +  D � � � � � + � � + � � G 	 � G 4 � 6 � 	 � � �  � � � � � 	 � � 	 �� � 	 �  � � � 
  � � 4 � � � 	 � � 6 � �  � � 	 � � � 6 
 	 � � � � � 
 � � 	 �  � �  �  � � �� � � 5 � G � � * � � 
 B 	 � � 
  	 � � � 	 �  
 �� �  � 	 � � � � � � � � 4 � � � � �  � � �  � � � 	 �  
 � � 	 � � 
  �  � �  � � 	 � � � 	 �  � � 6 	 4 �  � � � � �  
 � � 6� � � � 
  � � � 	 � �  � � 	 �  
 � � � � � � �  � �  � 4 � � � � � 	 � � �  � * � �  � � � 	 �  
 � �  � 
 � � � � � 	 � 1� 	 � � � � 
 � � � 	 � 	 � � � 	 �  � � 6 � � � �  6 � 1 � � � � 
 � � � �  � � 
 �  � � �  � � � 
 	 � � � 
 � � � � 	 � � � � � 	 � �� �  � � � 6 4 � � � � � � � � � * � �  � �  � 	 � � 
  �  � �  � �
289

ITEM  25.



â ã ä å ã æ ç å æ ã ã å ç å æ ã ã å è é ê ë ã ì æ í î ã é åâ ã ï ê æ ð ê ñ ñ è ò ó í ô êâ õ å ö ì æ í î ã é å ÷ í ø ù â ú û û û ú ü ý û þ� �  � 	 � � � � � � � � 4 � � � �  � � 	 � � � �  � � � � � � � 6 �  � � + � �  � � � 
  � 4 � � � � �  � � � � � � 6� 	 
 � � 	 � � �  
 	 � � �  �  � � � �  � � � � 6 	 � � �  
 	 � � � � 	 � 1 � � 
 � � � � � + � � � � 	 � � � + 1� � 	 � � 4 � �  � � � � � +  �  � � � � � � 	 �  �  � � � 1 � � � 
 	 � � �  �  � � �   � � � � � � 	 �  �  � � �� � � � *  � � �   � � �  � � 	 �  
 � 	 * �  
 � � �  � � 0 �  �  � � � � 	 � � 
 	 � � 	 � � �  � � � 	 � �  �  � � + �� � 
 � � �  1 * � � � �  � 	 � � � � � �  � � 	 1 � � 	 � � �  � � � � � 	 �  �  � � � 1 � � �  � �  
 � � 	 �� � � � 	 �  �  � � � 1 �  
 	 � � � � �  � � � � � 
  � 1 � � � � � 
 � � � � + �  � � � �  � 1 *  � 
 �  � 1 4 � � � �  
  � � � 
 �  � 1 � � + � � +  1 * � 5  � � 
 5 � 1 �  
 	 � � � � �  � � + � � � � + 1 * � 	 � 4 � �  � 1 � � � � � � + � � � � 	 �  �  � � � 1 1 � � � � � �  4 � � 5 � � � � � � � 
 
 	 � � 	 � � � � 	 � � � . � 
 	 � � 	 � � �  � � � � � � 	 � � �� 	 �  � � � � �  �  �  � � � � � � � � � 6 � � �  
 � � �  
 	 � � � � 	 � � � � � 	 �  �  � � � 1 � � 
 � � � � � +� � 	 �  � � 6 � � � � 
 � � 1 
 	 � � � � � 
 � � 	 � � � � + � � + � � � � � � � � � 
 
 	 � � � 	 � 	 �  � � � � 	 � � � � � � 	 � � � � � � � � 4 � � � 
 	 � � �  �  � �  � � � � � � 	 � 	 � � �  � � � � � � � 6 �  � � + � � � � � � �  � � 
 � � � + � � � � 	 � 	 �  � �  � � + �  �  �  � � � 	 � � �  � � 	 �  
 � �� �  4 	 � 5 � 	 *  �  � � 	 � �  � * 6 � �  � 	 � � � � � � � � � � �  � � �  � �  � � � � � � � 6 A  � � + �� � � �  4 � � � 
 	 � � � � � 	 � � �  � 	 � � 	 4 � � + � � � 5 � R� � � 5 � G A  �  � 	 � A  � � + � � � � �  � � �� �  � 	 � � � � � � � � 4 � � � �  � �  4 � � � � � � � 6 ¦   D � � � � � + � � 	 � � 4 � �  � � � � � +  �  � �� 6 � �  � 1  D � � � � � + �  �  � � � � � � � � 
 � � � � �  � 1 � � � � 
 
  � � � 	 � � � � � � �  � � � * � � � � �  � � + �	 * �  
 � � �  � � 	 � � � � � 	 �  �  � � � � � � � �  � � � 4 � � � 
 	 � � 	 � � � 	 � W A @ � 1 @ A @
 	 � � � � � � 
  � � � � 
 
  � � � � � � +  �  � � � � � � � � � � � � � �  
 � � �  � � � � 	 *  � � � �  � �  �� � 
 � � �  R
·

- � � 
 � � 	 � � � 
 � � � � � � � 
 � � � 	 � � � � �  � � + � � 6 �  �
·

A  � � + � � �   � � � � C  + � � � � 	 � 6 � �   � �
·

A  � � + � �  � � 
 �  � � 	 � � � �  � �  
 � � 	 � �  � � + � �
·

U � � � � � 	 � � � � 5 � � + � �  � � � � � � � + � � G 	 � G 4 � 6 �
·

� �  �  � �  � � �  � � ° 	 �  � @ 
 
  � � � * �  � �  � � ° 	 �  �  V � � �  �  � � � �
·

� � 	 � � � � 	 � � � 	 � �  �  � � � � � � � � � � � 	 � * � 
 6 
 �  � �
·

� � �   � � � + � � � � + �  V � � �  �  � � � �
·

W � � � � � 6 
 	 � � � � 	 � � 	 
 � � � 	 � � �� � � 5 E G � �  � � � � � � � 6 � 6 � � 
 � � �  
 � � 	 � �A  �  � 	 � � 6 � � 
 � � �  
 � � 	 � � � 	 � � �  � � �   � � 
 � � � � + � � � � 	 �  �  � � � � � � � � � � � 5� � 
 � � �  �  D � � � � � + � � �  4 � � � � � 1 � � 	 � � �  � 4 � � � � � 1 � � �  4 � � 5 4 � � � � � 1 � � + � � G 	 � G 4 � 64 � � � � � 1 � � �  �  � � � 6 �  � � � � 
 �  � � G ¦ 	 �  � � � � � � � � � 5 � � � 	 � � 
 � � �  � � �  � � � � 6 � � +� 	 �  � � � � � � � 	 � � 4 � �  � � � � � +  �  � � � � � � 	 �  �  � � � � � � � �  � � � � 6 � � + � �  � 	 
 � � � 	 �	 �  D � � � � � + � � � � � � � 6 �  4  � 1 4 � �  � � � � � � � � 	 � �  � � � � � � � 6 � 	 
 � � � 	 � � � � � � �  �  � 	 � �  � � 	 � � �  � 6 � � 
 � � �  
 � � 	 � � �� � � 5 � Z � �  � � � � � � � 6 C 	 � � � � * 	 � � T  	 �  � � � 
 �� �  � � � � � � � 6 � 	 � � � � * 	 � � +  	 �  � � � 
 � 4 � � � *  �  �  � 	 �  � � 	 � � �  � � �  � �  
 � � 	 � 	 �2 	 �  � �   C 	 � � � � � �  � �  � � � �   � * � �  � 	 � � � 	 � 	 �  � � � � � � � �  � � � 
 	 � � � + � � � � � 	 � � � � � � 	 �  � � � +  � � 	 � � � � � � � + � �  � � � � 	 � � � � �  � 	 � � 4 � �  � Y 	 �  � � � +4 � � � *  � 	 �  � � � � + � � 	 �  
 �  � � � �  � �  
 � � 	 � � � � � � � + � 	 �  �  � � � � 	 � � �  @ Y � � �� Y �  � 5 � 	 � � � � 	 � � �  � + �   � � � 	 � �  � � + � 6  � � 1 � 6 � � 
 � � � 6 E F 6  � � � � � 	 �
290

ITEM  25.



â ã ä å ã æ ç å æ ã ã å ç å æ ã ã å è é ê ë ã ì æ í î ã é åâ ã ï ê æ ð ê ñ ñ è ò ó í ô êâ õ å ö ì æ í î ã é å ÷ í ø ù â ú û û û ú ü ý û þ
 	 � � � � � 
 � � 	 � � H � � �  � 5 � 	 � � � � � 6 � � � 	 *  � 	 �  �  � � 	 � � �  
 � � �  �  � � � 	 �� � � � � � � � � � � � � 
 � � � �  � � � � � �  � � � � � � � 6 +  	 �  � � � 
 � 4 � � � � � � 	 � � 5  � � � 	 � 
 
 	 � � � D � � � � � + � 	 � � 4 � 6 � � � + � �  � � � � � � � � 	 � � �  � 1 �  � � + � �  � � 
 �  � 1  � � � � 	 � �  � � � �
 	 � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � �  � �� � � 5 � Z � �  � � � � � � � 6 @ 
 
  � � � � � � � �  A  �  � 	 � �  � � Y 	 � � � � 
 � � � 	 � A  � � + �A  �  � 	 � � �  � � � � � � � 6 �  � � + � � � 6 	 � � � 	 � � 
 
  � � � � � � � �  �  �  � 	 � �  � �� 	 � � � � 
 � � � 	 � � � @ � � � 6 ¦   � �  
 � � � �  � � 	 � 	 �  � � � � � 	 �  �  � � � 4 � � � � � �  	 �� � � � � � +  1 + � � �  � � � � 	 � G � � �  � � � � � � 
 
 � � 
 � � � � � 	 � � � � �  � � � �� � � 5 ¥ Z � �  � � � � � � � 6 � � 	 � � �  4  � A  � � + �. � �  � � 	 � 6  D � � � � � + � 6 � � 	 � 	 + � 
 � � � � 6 � � � � � � 
 
 	 � � � � � 	 � � � � � � � � � 6 ¦  � � � � � � 
 � � � �  � � 	 � 	 �  � � � � � 	 �  �  � � � 4 � � � � � �  	 � � �  � �  � 4 � �  � � � � � � + � � � �  � � � � H � 
  � �  � � � � 
 � � � � �  *   � V � � � � � � �  � 1 �  �  � 	 � ! P � � � ; ) � � 	 � �4 � �  � � � � � +  �  � � �  � � + � � � � � 	 �  �  � � � 1 � � 
 � � � � � + � 
 	 � * � � � � � 	 � 	 � � � 	 � ��  4  � � � � �  �  � � � 	 � � �  � � � � 
 � � � * � 	 G � 4 � �  � � � � � � � � + � � �  � � � C  � 	 � � � 	 �  � � � � � 
 	 � � � � 
 � � 4 � � � � � �  � + � 	 � � � � � � � � � �  � � � � 	 � �  � �  � � + �  �  �  � � � �� � � 5 § Z C 	 � � 4 � 6 2 � + � � � � + � � 	 � 	 �  � � � 
 A  � � + �� � � � � � � 5 
 	 � � � � � � 	 � �  �  
 � � 	 � 	 � � � + � � � � + � 	 �  � � � � � � D � � �  � 6 �  � 1 �  � � + � � � �� � � 4 � � + � �  � � � � � � 	 � 	 � � � �  � � � � � � � 6 � � 6 	 � � 1 � �  � � � � � � 	 � 	 � � � 	 � 	 �  � � � 
� � � � 6 � � � � � � �  � 	 � � � � � � � � � � � 5 � 	  � � 	 � � � 
 � � �  � � 6  �  
 � � � 
 � � 
 � � 
 � � � �  � � + � �� �  � 	 � � � � � � � � 4 � � � 4 	 � 5 
 � 	 �  � 6 4 � � � � �  � � � 6 � � � �  � � � - � � � � W � � � � � �  � � 	 � � � �  � � � � � �  � � 	 � 	 �  � � � + � � � � + � 6 � �  � � � 
 	 � � � � � * �  4 � � � � �  	 �  � � � � � � 	 �  
 ��  � � + � 1 � � � � � � � � � 4 � � � �   � � �  �   � � 	 � � �  � � � 6 �� � � 5 « G W � � � � � 6 C  �  � � 
 �� �  � 	 � � � � � � � � 4 � � � �   � 4 � � � � �  � � � � � � 6 
 	 � � � � �  � 1 � � 
 � � � � � + � � � 6 � � � � � � �  � � 	 �� � � 	 � � � � � 	 � 4 � � � � � � �  � � 	 �  
 � 
 	 � � � � 	 � �  + � � � � � + � � � � � � � � � � 	 � 1 � � � � � � * � � � 	 � � � ��  � � � 
  � � �  � � � � � � � � � � � 
 � � �  � � � � 	 � � � � � 	 � �  � � �  � � 	  D � � � � � + � � 
 � � � � �  � � � �� � 
 � � � � �  � � � � � �  � � 	 � 
 	 � � � � � 
 � � 	 � � � � � � + � �  � � 	 � 	 �  � � � � � 	 �  �  � � � �� � � 5 ÿ G W � � � � � 6 � 	 � � � � 
 � . �  � � � � � 
 � � � 	 �� �  � 	 � � � � � � � � 4 � � � � �  � � � � 6 � � � � � � 6 
 	 � � � � 
 � � * � �  � � � 	 � � �  � �  � � � � � � � 6 �  � � + �� � 6 	 � � � � � �  �  � 	 � � � � * � � � � � 	 � 4 � � � � � � � � �   �  D � � * � � � � 	 � � �  � � � � 	 �  � 	 �4 	 � 5 � � + � � � 	 � + � 
 	 � � � � 
 � �  � 	 � � � � 	 � � � � � � � � � 5 � � 
 � � �  � � � 	 � � �  4  � 1 4 � �  �� � � � 1 � � � � � � � 6 �  4  � � � � � � � � � � � � �  � � � � � � �  � � � 
 � � � � � + + � � 1  �  
 � � � 
 � � �
 	 � � � � � 
 � � � 	 � � �� � � 5 � Z � 	 � � � � � 
 � � 	 � � � � + � � + � � � � A  �  � 	 � �  � �� �  � 	 � � � � � � � � 4 � � � �  �  � 	 � � � �  � � � � � � � 6 � � � � � � 
 
 	 � � � 	 � 
 	 � 
  � � � 	 � � � � 
 � � � 	 4 � �  � � 	 �  
 � 4 � � � +  �  � � � � 6 *  
 	 � � � � � 
 �  � � � � � � � � � � 
 4 � � � *  � � � � � � � �  �� � � � � + 
 	 � � � � � 
 � � 	 � � � �  
 	 � � � � � 
 � � 	 � � � � + � � + � � � � 4 � � � � � 5  � � � 	 
 	 � � � �  � � � � 	 �� � �  �  �  � � � 	 � 
 	 � � � � � 
 � � 	 � � � 
 � � � � � + � � � � � � �  � � � � � �  � � �   � � 	 � � 4 � 6 � 1� � 	 � � 4 � �  � � � � � +  �  � � � � � � 	 �  �  � � � 1 � � 	 �  � � 6 � 
 
  � � 1 � � � � � � � � �  � � � � � � 6
291

ITEM  25.



â ã ä å ã æ ç å æ ã ã å ç å æ ã ã å è é ê ë ã ì æ í î ã é åâ ã ï ê æ ð ê ñ ñ è ò ó í ô êâ õ å ö ì æ í î ã é å ÷ í ø ù â ú û û û ú ü ý û þ�  � 	 
 � � � 	 � � � U � � � �  � � �  �  � � � � � � � 
 
  � � � � 
  * 6 � �  � � � 6 1 � �  
 	 � 
  � � ��  �  � 	 �  � � � � �  � � � � � � � 6 � � � � � 4 � � � �  � �  � � � �  * � � � � � 	 � � �  � � � � � + � �  � � � � �� � � � � � 
 
 	 � � � 	 � � � � � � � � � � � � �  � � + � �� � � 5 � F Z @ 
 V � � � � � � 	 � C  V � � �  �  � � � . �  � � � � � 
 � � � 	 �� �  � 	 � � � � � � � � 4 � � � � �  � � � � 6 �  � � 	 � � � 6  � �  �  � � �   � � * � �  � 	 � � � � �  � � � � � � � 6 �  � � + � �  �  � 	 � �  � � � � �  �  V � � �  �  � � � 4 � � � � � 5  � � � 	
 	 � � � �  � � � � 	 � � � � 	 � 	 �  � � � � � � � �  � 1 
 	 � � � � � 
 � � 	 � � � � + � � + � � � � 
 
  � � 1 � � � � � � 6�  � 	 
 � � � 	 � � � � � 	 � �  � 
 � � � � 
 � � 
 	 � � � � � 
 � � 	 �  �  �  � � � �� � � 5 � � G � �  � � � � � � � 6 � � � � � �  � � � � � � 	 � , H 
 � 	 *  � E F � � � 	 ± � � � � � 6 E F E F 3W � 	 � 
 	 � � �  � � 	 � 	 � � �  � �  � � � � � � � 6 � � � � � 1 � �  �  � � + � � � � � � 4 � � � * � � � � 	 D � � � �  � 6 § F �  � 
  � � 
 	 � � �  �  � � �  4 	 � 5 � 	 *  �  � � 	 � �  � * 6 � � � 	 � � � � � � � � � � �  � � �  � � � � � � � 6 A  � � + � 4 � � � 
 	 � � � � � 	 � � �  � 	 � � 	 4 � � + � � � 5 � R² ³ ´ µ ¶ · ¸ ¹ º ´ ³ µ ³ ´ » ¼ ½ ¸ ¾ µ ³ ¿ ´ À Á ¶ ¶ ´ Â Ã Ä À Á ¶ ¶ ´ Â Å² Á ³ Â ´ · Â Æ ¿ ½ ¸ Â ³ Â ´ Â ½ ¾ · Â Â ¶ Ç È µ ³ ¸ É ´ Á ¶ Ê Ë ¶ µ ³ Ç ³ ¸ · Ë » ´ ³ ´ µ ¶ · ¸ ¹ É ¶ ¸ ¶ Ë · µ ³ ¸ ¾ ½ Ë Ç · ´ ³ ½ ¸ Â Á ¶ ¶ ´ Â Ì ² Á ¶Ê Ë ¶ µ ³ Ç ³ ¸ · Ë » ´ ³ ´ µ ¶ Â Á ¶ ¶ ´ Â Í ³ µ µ ³ ¸ ¿ µ Î ¹ ¶ ´ Á ¶ ¾ ½ µ µ ½ Í ³ ¸ É Ï Ð ¸ ¹ ¶ Ñ ½ ¾ À Á ¶ ¶ ´ Â Ò Ó ¶ É ¶ ¸ ¹ Ò Ó ½ ¿ · ´ ³ ½ ¸ Ô · Ê ÒÕ Ë ½ Ö ¶ ¿ ´ × Î Ç È ¶ Ë Ò Ø Ñ ³ Â ´ ³ ¸ É ² Ë · ¾ ¾ ³ ¿ ¹ · ´ · Ì Ð ¸ ¿ µ Î ¹ ¶ Â Î ´ ³ µ ³ ´ » ¿ ½ ¸ ¾ µ ³ ¿ ´ ³ ¹ ¶ ¸ ´ ³ ¾ ³ ¿ · ´ ³ ½ ¸ ´ · È Î µ · ´ ³ ½ ¸ Â · ¸ ¹Ê µ · ¸ ¹ ¶ Â ³ É ¸ ¶ Ñ Á ³ È ³ ´ Â Á ¶ ¶ ´ Â ÌÕ Ë ¶ µ ³ Ç ³ ¸ · Ë » ² » Ê ³ ¿ · µ ¼ Ë ½ Â Â À ¶ ¿ ´ ³ ½ ¸ Â Ã Ù À Á ¶ ¶ ´ Â Å² Á ³ Â ´ · Â Æ ¿ ½ ¸ Â ³ Â ´ Â ½ ¾ · Â Â ¶ Ç È µ ³ ¸ É ´ Á ¶ ² » Ê ³ ¿ · µ ¼ Ë ½ Â Â À ¶ ¿ ´ ³ ½ ¸ Â ´ ½ È ¶ Î Â ¶ ¹ ¾ ½ Ë ´ Á ¶ Ê Ë ½ Ê ½ Â ¶ ¹³ Ç Ê Ë ½ Ú ¶ Ç ¶ ¸ ´ Â · Â Í ¶ µ µ · Â · Ê Ë ¶ µ ³ Ç ³ ¸ · Ë » ¹ ¶ ´ ¶ Ë Ç ³ ¸ · ´ ³ ½ ¸ ½ ¾ ´ Á ¶ µ ³ Ç ³ ´ Â ´ Á · ´ ¶ · ¿ Á ² » Ê ³ ¿ · µ À ¶ ¿ ´ ³ ½ ¸Í ³ µ µ · Ê Ê µ » Ì ² Á ¶ ² » Ê ³ ¿ · µ ¼ Ë ½ Â Â À ¶ ¿ ´ ³ ½ ¸ Â Í ³ µ µ ³ ¸ ¿ µ Î ¹ ¶ È Î ´ ¸ ½ ´ È ¶ µ ³ Ç ³ ´ ¶ ¹ ´ ½ ´ » Ê ³ ¿ · µ Â ¶ ¿ ´ ³ ½ ¸ Â ¾ ½ Ë ´ Á ¶Ê Ë ½ Ê ½ Â ¶ ¹ É Ë · ¹ ³ ¸ É Ò ¹ Ë · ³ ¸ · É ¶ · ¸ ¹ Ê ¶ ¹ ¶ Â ´ Ë ³ · ¸ ³ Ç Ê Ë ½ Ú ¶ Ç ¶ ¸ ´ Â ÌÕ Ë ¶ µ ³ Ç ³ ¸ · Ë » À ´ Ë ¶ ¶ ´ Â ¿ · Ê ³ ¸ É Õ µ · ¸ Ã Û · ¸ ¹ Ø À Á ¶ ¶ ´ Â Å² Á ³ Â ´ · Â Æ ¿ ½ ¸ Â ³ Â ´ Â ½ ¾ ´ Á ¶ ¹ ¶ Ú ¶ µ ½ Ê Ç ¶ ¸ ´ ½ ¾ Ê Ë ¶ µ ³ Ç ³ ¸ · Ë » Ê µ · ¸ Â Á ¶ ¶ ´ Â ´ Á · ´ Í ³ µ µ Â Á ½ Í ´ Á ¶ ¶ Ñ ³ Â ´ ³ ¸ É´ ½ Ê ½ É Ë · Ê Á » · µ ½ ¸ É Í ³ ´ Á ´ Á ¶ Ê Ë ½ Ê ½ Â ¶ ¹ ¿ ½ Ë Ë ³ ¹ ½ Ë · ¸ ¹ Â ´ Ë ¶ ¶ ´ Â ¿ · Ê ³ ¸ É ³ Ç Ê Ë ½ Ú ¶ Ç ¶ ¸ ´ Â Ò ³ ¸ ¿ µ Î ¹ ³ ¸ ÉÊ ¶ ¹ ¶ Â ´ Ë ³ · ¸ ¾ · ¿ ³ µ ³ ´ ³ ¶ Â Ò · ¿ ¿ ¶ Â Â Ê ½ ³ ¸ ´ Â Ò · ¸ ¹ É · ´ ¶ Í · » Ü Ë ½ · ¹ Í · » Ç · Ë Æ ¶ Ë Â ÌÕ Ë ¶ µ ³ Ç ³ ¸ · Ë » Ý ³ É Á ´ Þ ½ ¾ Þ ß · » Ã à À Á ¶ ¶ ´ Â Å² Á ¶ Ê Ë ¶ µ ³ Ç ³ ¸ · Ë » Ê µ · ¸ Â Í ³ µ µ ³ ¸ ¿ µ Î ¹ ¶ · ¸ ½ Í ¸ ¶ Ë Â Á ³ Ê Ë ¶ ¾ ¶ Ë ¶ ¸ ¿ ¶ Ê µ · ¸ ¶ Ñ Á ³ È ³ ´ Â Á ½ Í ³ ¸ É É ¶ ¸ ¶ Ë · µ Ê · Ë ¿ ¶ µ³ ¸ ¾ ½ Ë Ç · ´ ³ ½ ¸ ÌÕ Ë ¶ µ ³ Ç ³ ¸ · Ë » ² Ë · ¾ ¾ ³ ¿ ¼ ½ ¸ ´ Ë ½ µ · ¸ ¹ À ´ · É ³ ¸ É Ã á À Á ¶ ¶ ´ Â ÅÛ ¶ Ú ¶ µ ½ Ê Â Î ³ ´ · È µ ¶ Ê µ · ¸ ¾ ½ Ë ¿ ½ ¸ Â ´ Ë Î ¿ ´ ³ ½ ¸ Â ¿ Á ¶ ¹ Î µ ³ ¸ É · ¸ ¹ Â ´ · É ³ ¸ É ½ ¾ ´ Á ¶ Õ Ë ½ Ö ¶ ¿ ´ · ¸ ¹ ¾ ½ Ë ´ Ë · ¾ ¾ ³ ¿¿ ½ ¸ ´ Ë ½ µ Ç ¶ · Â Î Ë ¶ Â ´ ½ È ¶ ³ Ç Ê µ ¶ Ç ¶ ¸ ´ ¶ ¹ ¹ Î Ë ³ ¸ É ¿ ½ ¸ Â ´ Ë Î ¿ ´ ³ ½ ¸ Ì À ´ · É ³ ¸ É Ê µ · ¸ Í ³ µ µ ³ ¸ ¿ µ Î ¹ ¶ Ê Ë ½ Ú ³ Â ³ ½ ¸ Â¾ ½ Ë Ç · ³ ¸ ´ · ³ ¸ ³ ¸ É · ¿ ¿ ¶ Â Â ´ ½ · ¹ Ö · ¿ ¶ ¸ ´ Ê Ë ½ Ê ¶ Ë ´ ³ ¶ Â ¹ Î Ë ³ ¸ É ¿ ½ ¸ Â ´ Ë Î ¿ ´ ³ ½ ¸ ÌÕ Ë ¶ µ ³ Ç ³ ¸ · Ë » â ¶ ½ Ç ¶ ´ Ë ³ ¿ Ò À ´ · Æ ³ ¸ É · ¸ ¹ á ½ ³ ¸ ´ ³ ¸ É Ã Ó À Á ¶ ¶ ´ Â ÅÛ ¶ Ú ¶ µ ½ Ê · ¸ ¹ Ë ¶ ¾ ³ ¸ ¶ É ¶ ½ Ç ¶ ´ Ë ³ ¿ µ · » ½ Î ´ Â · ¸ ¹ Ê Ë ½ Ú ³ ¹ ¶ · ¹ ¹ ³ ´ ³ ½ ¸ · µ Á ½ Ë ³ ã ½ ¸ ´ · µ · ¸ ¹ Ú ¶ Ë ´ ³ ¿ · µ Â Î Ë Ú ¶ »³ ¸ ¾ ½ Ë Ç · ´ ³ ½ ¸ ¸ ¶ ¶ ¹ ¶ ¹ ´ ½ ¿ ½ ¸ Â ´ Ë Î ¿ ´ ³ ¸ ´ ¶ Ë Â ¶ ¿ ´ ³ ½ ¸ ³ Ç Ê Ë ½ Ú ¶ Ç ¶ ¸ ´ Â ÌÕ Ë ¶ µ ³ Ç ³ ¸ · Ë » Ó · ¸ ¹ Â ¿ · Ê ³ ¸ É Õ µ · ¸ Â Ã Ó À À Á ¶ ¶ ´ Â ÅÛ ¶ Ú ¶ µ ½ Ê ¹ ¶ Â ³ É ¸ µ · » ½ Î ´ · ¸ ¹ ¹ ¶ ´ · ³ µ Â ¾ ½ Ë Ê µ · ¸ ´ ³ ¸ É Â Ò Â ³ ´ ¶ ¾ ¶ · ´ Î Ë ¶ Â Ò ¾ Î Ë ¸ ³ Â Á ³ ¸ É Â Ò · ¸ ¹ µ · ¸ ¹ Â ¿ · Ê ³ ¸ É ÌÕ Ë ¶ µ ³ Ç ³ ¸ · Ë » À ´ ½ Ë Ç À ¶ Í ¶ Ë Õ µ · ¸ · ¸ ¹ Õ Ë ½ ¾ ³ µ ¶ Â Ã Ô À Á ¶ ¶ ´ Â ÅÛ ¶ Ú ¶ µ ½ Ê Ê Ë ¶ µ ³ Ç ³ ¸ · Ë » Ê µ · ¸ · ¸ ¹ Ê Ë ½ ¾ ³ µ ¶ Â Á ¶ ¶ ´ Â ¾ ½ Ë Â ´ ½ Ë Ç Â ¶ Í ¶ Ë µ · » ½ Î ´ ³ ¸ ¾ ½ Ë Ç · ´ ³ ½ ¸ ÌÕ Ë ¶ µ ³ Ç ³ ¸ · Ë » Ó ³ É Á ´ ³ ¸ É Ó · » ½ Î ´ À Á ¶ ¶ ´ Â Ã Õ À Á ¶ ¶ ´ Â Å
292

ITEM  25.



â ã ä å ã æ ç å æ ã ã å ç å æ ã ã å è é ê ë ã ì æ í î ã é åâ ã ï ê æ ð ê ñ ñ è ò ó í ô êâ õ å ö ì æ í î ã é å ÷ í ø ù â ú û û û ú ü ý û þ² Á ³ Â ´ · Â Æ ¿ ½ ¸ Â ³ Â ´ Â ½ ¾ ¹ ¶ Ú ¶ µ ½ Ê Ç ¶ ¸ ´ ½ ¾ Ê Ë ¶ µ ³ Ç ³ ¸ · Ë » µ ³ É Á ´ ³ ¸ É µ · » ½ Î ´ Ê µ · ¸ Â Á ¶ ¶ ´ Â Â Á ½ Í ³ ¸ ÉÊ Á ½ ´ ½ Ç ¶ ´ Ë ³ ¿ · ¸ · µ » Â ³ Â ÌÕ Ë ¶ µ ³ Ç ³ ¸ · Ë » Ý ¶ Ç ½ Ú · µ Õ µ · ¸ Â Ã Ý À Á ¶ ¶ ´ Â Å² Á ³ Â ³ ´ ¶ Ç ¿ ½ ¸ Â ³ Â ´ Â ½ ¾ Ê Ë ¶ µ ³ Ç ³ ¸ · Ë » µ · » ½ Î ´ ½ ¾ ´ Á ¶ Ê Ë ½ Ö ¶ ¿ ´ Ë ¶ Ç ½ Ú · µ Ê µ · ¸ ÌÕ Ë ¶ µ ³ Ç ³ ¸ · Ë » À ³ ¹ ¶ Í · µ Æ Õ µ · ¸ Â Ã À À Á ¶ ¶ ´ Â ÅÛ ¶ Ú ¶ µ ½ Ê Ê Ë ¶ µ ³ Ç ³ ¸ · Ë » ¿ Î Ë È Ë · Ç Ê µ · » ½ Î ´ · ¸ ¹ · ¿ ¿ ¶ Â Â ³ È µ ¶ ¿ Î Ë È Ë · Ç Ê ¹ ¶ Â ³ É ¸ ³ ¸ · ¿ ¿ ½ Ë ¹ · ¸ ¿ ¶ Í ³ ´ Á¼ Á · Ê ´ ¶ Ë ä å ½ ¾ Ð ½ Í · À º Û Ä À Û ¶ Â ³ É ¸ Ô · ¸ Î · µ Ì Û ¶ Â ³ É ¸ Ë · Ç Ê É ¶ ½ Ç ¶ ´ Ë ³ ¿ ¿ ½ ¸ ¾ ³ É Î Ë · ´ ³ ½ ¸ Â· µ ´ ¶ Ë ¸ · ´ ³ Ú ¶ Â Ò ³ ¹ ¶ ¸ ´ ³ ¾ » Â Î Ë ¾ · ¿ ¶ Ë ¶ æ Î ³ Ë ¶ Ç ¶ ¸ ´ Ò Ë ¶ Ú ³ ¶ Í É ¶ ¸ ¶ Ë · µ Á ½ Ë ³ ã ½ ¸ ´ · µ ¿ Î Ë È ½ Ê ¶ ¸ ³ ¸ É Â Ò ¿ Ë ½ Â ÂÂ µ ½ Ê ¶ Â Ò Ë Î ¸ ¸ ³ ¸ É Â µ ½ Ê ¶ Ò · ¸ ¹ ³ ¹ ¶ ¸ ´ ³ ¾ » Â ³ ¹ ¶ Í · µ Æ Í ³ ¹ ´ Á · ¸ ¹ Ê · Â Â ³ ¸ É Â Ê · ¿ ¶ Í ³ ´ Á ³ ¸ ´ Á ¶ ¿ ½ Ë Ë ³ ¹ ½ Ë ÌÕ Ë ¶ µ ³ Ç ³ ¸ · Ë » ¼ Ë ½ Â Â À ¶ ¿ ´ ³ ½ ¸ Â Ã ß · ¸ ¹ ç À Á ¶ ¶ ´ Â Å² Á ³ Â ´ · Â Æ ¿ ½ ¸ Â ³ Â ´ Â ½ ¾ ´ Á ¶ ¹ ¶ Â ³ É ¸ · ¸ ¹ ¹ Ë · ¾ ´ ³ ¸ É · Â Â ½ ¿ ³ · ´ ¶ ¹ Í ³ ´ Á ´ Á ¶ · Â Â ¶ Ç È µ » ½ ¾ ¹ ¶ ´ · ³ µ ¶ ¹ ¿ Ë ½ Â Âè é ê ë ì í î è ï ð ñ ò ì î ê ó é ô é î ë è õ ë í ì ö ö ÷ è ë ó ø ë é ë ù ú ³ ¿ · µ ¿ ½ ¸ ¹ ³ ´ ³ ½ ¸ Â Ò ¹ Ë · ³ ¸ · É ¶ ¹ ¶ Â ³ É ¸ Â Ò · ¸ ¹ ¸ ½ ¸ Þ ´ » Ê ³ ¿ · µ¿ ½ ¸ ¹ ³ ´ ³ ½ ¸ Â · Â ¸ ¶ ¶ ¹ ¶ ¹ ¾ ½ Ë É Î ³ ¹ · ¸ ¿ ¶ ¹ Î Ë ³ ¸ É ¹ ¶ Â ³ É ¸ Ò Ë ¶ Ú ³ ¶ Í Ò · ¸ ¹ æ Î · ¸ ´ ³ ´ » ¶ Â ´ ³ Ç · ´ ³ ¸ É Ê Î Ë Ê ½ Â ¶ Â Ì� � � 5 � E G � �  � � � � � � � 6 - �  � � C  � �  4@ � �  � � �  � �  4 4 � � � *  �  � � 4 � � � � �  � � 	 �  
 � �  � � � 	 � � � 
 � � � 5  6 � � � �  � � � ��  � � + � 
 	 � 
  � � � 1 � � 
 � � � � � + � � � � � � +  1 � 
 
  � � 
 	 � � � 	 � 1 � � � � � � 
 
 	 � � � 	 � � � � � + 
 	 � � � � � 
 � � 	 � � � � � � + � � 	 � G 4 � 6 � � �  �  � �  4 4 � � � �  �  � � � �  � �  
 	 � � �  � � 	 � 	 � � � � � � � �  � � + � 1 � �  � � � � 6 �   �  � � � � � � � �  � � � � 	 � � � � � � ¦  � 	 �  � � � � � � � 	 �  � � 6� � � � 
 � � � � 
 	 � � � � � � �  � � 	 � 	 �  � � � � + � � + � � � � � � C  � � � � 	 � � 4 � � � *  � 	 �  � � 	 �� �  � � � � � � 	 � 	 � � �  � � � � � �  � � + � � � 	 � � �  � � 	 � 	 � � �  � �  � � �  � �  4 4 � � � � � � 	 4� �  � � � � � � 	 � � 	 � - � � � � � � � � � �� � � 5 � � G S � � +  � C  � �  4� �  � 	 � � � � � � � � 4 � � � � �  � � �  � � �  � � � � � � � 6 	 � � � � 	 � 	 � � � 	 * � * �  
 	 � � � � � 
 � � 	 �
 	 � � � 	 � � � � J � > û � = � ? ; < = >  J ? � � � � � = > L � � > � � � " I � N ¨ L = : � � � ; � ® � > û � = � © : < P � � ª. � �  
  � � � � 6 1 � �  � 	 � � � � � � � � 4 � � � � � 5  �  
 	 � �  � � � � � 	 � � �  � � � � � � � + � 	� 	 � � � � 
 � � � 	 � � � � � �  � � 	 �  
 � � � 	 � �  � � 	 � � � �  � � * � � +  � � � 6 
 	 � 
  � � � �� �  � � � � � � � 6 
 	 � �  � � � � � �  � 4 � � � *  * � �  � 	 � �  � �  �  � � � � � �  � � � 	 � � � 	 �  
 � �  �  � � � � � � �  
  � � * � � � � � 	 � � � � � 	 � � A  � � � �  � V � � � � � � 6 � � 5  	 � � � 4 � � � � 	 � * �  �  � 	 �  � � 	 � � �  � �  � � � � � � � 6 
 	 � �  � � � � � �  �S � �  � � � 	 � � � � � 	 �  � � �  � � � � � � � 6 �  � � + � 1 � �  � �  D � � 1 � � � � � * � � 
 � � � 	 � � � � � 	 � � ��   � � � + � 1 � �  � 	 � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � * �  V �  � � � 6 � � 	 
   � 4 � � � � � � � � �  � � + � 1
 	 � � � � 
 � � � � 4 � � + � 1 � �  
 � � � 
 � � � 	 � � 1 � � � 	 � � � � 	 � 	 � � � 	 * � * �  
 	 � � � � � 
 � � 	 � 
 	 � � �� 	 � � �  � 4 � � � 	 � � � � � + �  � 	 � � � � 
 � � 	 � � �  
 	 � � � � � 
 � � 	 � 	 � � �  � � 	 � 	 �  �� � � � 	 �  �  � � � � � 	 � �  � � � �  
  � �  � � � 	 � � �  � �  � � � � � � � 6 A  � � + � � � � �  � � � � �4 � � � *  � � � �  �  � �  � � � � �  - � � � � A  � � + � � � � �  � � � � � � � �  4 	 � 5 � � � 5 � � 	 * �  � � 	 � �  � � � 
 � � �  � �  � 	 � � 	 4 � � + R� � � 5 � G - � � � � � 	 � � � � � 
 � � 	 � � � � � � , -  * � � � � 6 E F E F � 	 Y � 6 E F E F 3� �  � 	 � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � 	 � � �  � �  � � � 6 4 � � � � �  � 	 � � 	 4 � � + �  � � �  � � * �  � Rü ³ ¸ · µ ² ³ ´ µ ¶ À Á ¶ ¶ ´ Â Ã Ä À Á ¶ ¶ ´ Â Å
293

ITEM  25.



â ã ä å ã æ ç å æ ã ã å ç å æ ã ã å è é ê ë ã ì æ í î ã é åâ ã ï ê æ ð ê ñ ñ è ò ó í ô êâ õ å ö ì æ í î ã é å ÷ í ø ù â ú û û û ú ü ý û þü ³ ¸ · µ ³ ã ¶ ´ ³ ´ µ ¶ Â Á ¶ ¶ ´ Ì ² Á ¶ ´ ³ ´ µ ¶ Â Á ¶ ¶ ´ Â Í ³ µ µ ³ ¸ ¿ µ Î ¹ ¶ ´ Á ¶ ¾ ½ µ µ ½ Í ³ ¸ É Ï Ð ¸ ¹ ¶ Ñ ½ ¾ À Á ¶ ¶ ´ Â Ò Ó ¶ É ¶ ¸ ¹ ÒÓ ½ ¿ · ´ ³ ½ ¸ Ô · Ê Ò Õ Ë ½ Ö ¶ ¿ ´ × Î Ç È ¶ Ë · ¸ ¹ Ø Ñ ³ Â ´ ³ ¸ É ² Ë · ¾ ¾ ³ ¿ Û · ´ · Ìü ³ ¸ · µ ² » Ê ³ ¿ · µ À ¶ ¿ ´ ³ ½ ¸ Â · ¸ ¹ ü ³ ¸ · µ Û ¶ ´ · ³ µ Â Ã Ù À Á ¶ ¶ ´ Â Å² Á ³ Â ³ ´ ¶ Ç ¿ ½ ¸ Â ³ Â ´ Â ½ ¾ ¾ ³ ¸ · µ ¹ ¶ Â ³ É ¸ · ¸ ¹ ¹ Ë · ¾ ´ ³ ¸ É ½ ¾ ´ » Ê ³ ¿ · µ ¿ Ë ½ Â Â Â ¶ ¿ ´ ³ ½ ¸ Â · ¸ ¹ Â ´ · ¸ ¹ · Ë ¹ ¹ ¶ ´ · ³ µ Â ´ ½È ¶ Î ´ ³ µ ³ ã ¶ ¹ ¾ ½ Ë ´ Á ¶ ³ Ç Ê Ë ½ Ú ¶ Ç ¶ ¸ ´ Â Ìü ³ ¸ · µ ý Î · ¸ ´ ³ ´ ³ ¶ Â · ¸ ¹ ü ³ ¸ · µ Ø Â ´ ³ Ç · ´ ¶ ½ ¾ Ô ³ Â ¿ ¶ µ µ · ¸ ¶ ½ Î Â ý Î · ¸ ´ ³ ´ ³ ¶ Â Ã ¼ À Á ¶ ¶ ´ Â Å² Á ³ Â ³ ´ ¶ Ç ¿ ½ ¸ Â ³ Â ´ Â ½ ¾ ¾ ³ ¸ · µ È ³ ¹ ³ ´ ¶ Ç Â ´ ½ È ¶ ³ ¸ ¿ µ Î ¹ ¶ ¹ ³ ¸ ´ Á ¶ Õ Ë ½ Ö ¶ ¿ ´ Ò · Â Í ¶ µ µ · Â ¾ ³ ¸ · µ æ Î · ¸ ´ ³ ´ »´ · È Î µ · ´ ³ ½ ¸ Â Ò · ¸ ¹ ´ Á ¶ ¹ ¶ Ú ¶ µ ½ Ê Ç ¶ ¸ ´ ½ ¾ ´ Á ¶ É ¶ ¸ ¶ Ë · µ ¸ ½ ´ ¶ Â · ¸ ¹ ¶ Â ´ ³ Ç · ´ ¶ Ë ¶ ¾ ¶ Ë ¶ ¸ ¿ ¶ ³ ¸ ¾ ½ Ë Ç · ´ ³ ½ ¸ Ì² Á ³ Â ³ ´ ¶ Ç · µ Â ½ ³ ¸ ¿ µ Î ¹ ¶ Â ´ Á ¶ ¾ ³ ¸ · µ ¹ ¶ Â ³ É ¸ · ¸ ¹ ¹ Ë · ¾ ´ ³ ¸ É ½ ¾ ¶ Ë ½ Â ³ ½ ¸ ¿ ½ ¸ ´ Ë ½ µ Ç ¶ · Â Î Ë ¶ Â ´ ½ È ¶Ê Ë ½ Ú ³ ¹ ¶ ¹ ½ ¸ ´ Á ¶ Õ Ë ½ Ö ¶ ¿ ´ Ìü ³ ¸ · µ À ´ Ë ¶ ¶ ´ Â ¿ · Ê ³ ¸ É Õ µ · ¸ Ã Û · ¸ ¹ Ø À Á ¶ ¶ ´ Â Å² Á ³ Â ³ ´ ¶ Ç ¿ ½ ¸ Â ³ Â ´ Â ½ ¾ ´ Á ¶ ¾ ³ ¸ · µ ¹ ¶ Â ³ É ¸ · ¸ ¹ ¹ Ë · ¾ ´ ³ ¸ É ½ ¾ ¿ ½ Ë Ë ³ ¹ ½ Ë · ¸ ¹ Â ´ Ë ¶ ¶ ´ Â ¿ · Ê ³ ¸ É³ Ç Ê Ë ½ Ú ¶ Ç ¶ ¸ ´ Â Ò ³ ¸ ¿ µ Î ¹ ³ ¸ É ´ Á ¶ ¹ ¶ ´ · ³ µ ³ ¸ ¾ ½ Ë Ç · ´ ³ ½ ¸ Ë ¶ æ Î ³ Ë ¶ ¹ ¾ ½ Ë Ê µ · ¸ · Ê Ê Ë ½ Ú · µ Â Ò Ê ¶ Ë Ç ³ ´ ´ ³ ¸ É Ò · ¸ ¹¿ ½ ¸ Â ´ Ë Î ¿ ´ ³ ½ ¸ ½ ¾ ´ Á ¶ Ê Ë ½ Ê ½ Â ¶ ¹ ³ Ç Ê Ë ½ Ú ¶ Ç ¶ ¸ ´ Â ÌÝ ¶ ¾ ¶ Ë ¶ ¸ ¿ ¶ ² ³ ¶ Â · ¸ ¹ Ù ¶ ¸ ¿ Á Ô · Ë Æ Â Ã â À Á ¶ ¶ ´ Â Åü ³ ¸ · µ ³ ã ¶ ´ Á ¶ Ê µ · ¸ ¿ ½ ¸ ´ Ë ½ µ Ê ½ ³ ¸ ´ Â · ¸ ¹ ´ Á ¶ È ¶ ¸ ¿ Á Ç · Ë Æ ¹ · ´ · Î Â ¶ ¹ ´ ½ ¹ ¶ Ú ¶ µ ½ Ê ´ Á ¶ Ê µ · ¸ Â · ¸ ¹ ´ ½ È ¶Ê Ë ¶ Â ¶ Ë Ú ¶ ¹ ´ Á Ë ½ Î É Á ½ Î ´ ¿ ½ ¸ Â ´ Ë Î ¿ ´ ³ ½ ¸ ½ ¾ ´ Á ¶ Ê Ë ½ Ö ¶ ¿ ´ ÌÝ ³ É Á ´ Þ ½ ¾ Þ ß · » À Á ¶ ¶ ´ Â Ã à À Á ¶ ¶ ´ Â Åü ³ ¸ · µ ³ ã ¶ Ý ³ É Á ´ Þ ½ ¾ Þ ß · » Â Á ¶ ¶ ´ Â Â Á ½ Í ³ ¸ É ´ Á ¶ ¶ Ñ ³ Â ´ ³ ¸ É Ë ³ É Á ´ Þ ½ ¾ Þ Í · » · ¸ ¹ ´ ¶ Ç Ê ½ Ë · Ë » ¶ · Â ¶ Ç ¶ ¸ ´³ ¸ ¾ ½ Ë Ç · ´ ³ ½ ¸ ³ ¸ Ë ¶ µ · ´ ³ ½ ¸ ´ Á ¶ Ê Ë ½ Ê ½ Â ¶ ¹ ¿ ¶ ¸ ´ ¶ Ë µ ³ ¸ ¶ Ò ¿ ½ ¸ ´ Ë ½ µ Ê ½ ³ ¸ ´ Â · ¸ ¹ Ê Ë ½ Ê ¶ Ë ´ » ½ Í ¸ ¶ Ë Â Á ³ Ê Ì² Ë · ¾ ¾ ³ ¿ ¼ ½ ¸ ´ Ë ½ µ Ò À ´ · É ³ ¸ É Ò Õ · Ú ¶ Ç ¶ ¸ ´ Ô · Ë Æ ³ ¸ É Â · ¸ ¹ ² Ë · ¾ ¾ ³ ¿ À ³ É ¸ ³ ¸ É Ã á À Á ¶ ¶ ´ Â Å² Á ³ Â ³ ´ ¶ Ç ¿ ½ ¸ Â ³ Â ´ Â ½ ¾ ¾ ³ ¸ · µ ¹ ¶ Â ³ É ¸ · ¸ ¹ ¹ Ë · ¾ ´ ³ ¸ É ½ ¾ ´ Á ¶ ´ Ë · ¾ ¾ ³ ¿ ¿ ½ ¸ ´ Ë ½ µ Ò Â ´ · É ³ ¸ É Ò Ê ¶ Ë Ç · ¸ ¶ ¸ ´Ê · Ú ¶ Ç ¶ ¸ ´ Ç · Ë Æ ³ ¸ É · ¸ ¹ ´ Ë · ¾ ¾ ³ ¿ Â ³ É ¸ ³ ¸ É Ê µ · ¸ Â Ìü ³ ¸ · µ â ¶ ½ Ç ¶ ´ Ë ³ ¿ À ´ · Æ ³ ¸ É Ò á ½ ³ ¸ ´ ³ ¸ É Ò · ¸ ¹ Ø ¹ É ¶ Õ Ë ½ ¾ ³ µ ¶ Â Ã Ó À Á ¶ ¶ ´ Â Å² Á ³ Â ³ ´ ¶ Ç ¿ ½ ¸ Â ³ Â ´ Â ½ ¾ ´ Á ¶ ¾ ³ ¸ · µ ¹ ¶ Â ³ É ¸ · ¸ ¹ ¹ Ë · ¾ ´ ³ ¸ É ½ ¾ Ö ½ ³ ¸ ´ ³ ¸ É ¹ ¶ ´ · ³ µ Â Ò Â Ê ½ ´ ¶ µ ¶ Ú · ´ ³ ½ ¸ Â Ò · ¸ ¹É ¶ ½ Ç ¶ ´ Ë ³ ¿ µ · » ½ Î ´ Â ¾ ½ Ë · µ µ ¸ ½ ¸ Þ ´ » Ê ³ ¿ · µ Ê · Ú ¶ Ç ¶ ¸ ´ · Ë ¶ · Â · ¸ ¹ ³ ¸ ´ ¶ Ë Â ¶ ¿ ´ ³ ½ ¸ ³ Ç Ê Ë ½ Ú ¶ Ç ¶ ¸ ´ Â Ìü ³ ¸ · µ Ó · ¸ ¹ Â ¿ · Ê ³ ¸ É Õ µ · ¸ Â Ã Ó À À Á ¶ ¶ ´ Â Åü ³ ¸ · µ ¹ ¶ Â ³ É ¸ µ · » ½ Î ´ · ¸ ¹ ¹ ¶ ´ · ³ µ Â ¾ ½ Ë Ê µ · ¸ ´ ³ ¸ É Â Ò Â ³ ´ ¶ ¾ ¶ · ´ Î Ë ¶ Â Ò ¾ Î Ë ¸ ³ Â Á ³ ¸ É Â Ò · ¸ ¹ µ · ¸ ¹ Â ¿ · Ê ³ ¸ É Ìü ³ ¸ · µ Û ¶ Â ³ É ¸ ½ ¾ À ´ ½ Ë Ç Û Ë · ³ ¸ · É ¶ À » Â ´ ¶ Ç Â Ã Ô À Á ¶ ¶ ´ Â Å² Á ³ Â ³ ´ ¶ Ç ¿ ½ ¸ Â ³ Â ´ Â ½ ¾ ¾ ³ ¸ · µ ¹ ¶ Â ³ É ¸ · ¸ ¹ ¹ Ë · ¾ ´ ³ ¸ É ½ ¾ Â ´ ½ Ë Ç Â ¶ Í ¶ Ë Â Ò Â ´ ½ Ë Ç Â ¶ Í ¶ Ë ³ ¸ µ ¶ ´ Â Ò Ç · ¸ Á ½ µ ¶ Â Ò¿ Î µ Ú ¶ Ë ´ Â Ò È ³ ½ Þ Â Í · µ ¶ Â Ò Ë · ³ ¸ É · Ë ¹ ¶ ¸ Â Ò · ¸ ¹ þ ÿ ó é é î � Â ´ ½ Ë Ç Í · ´ ¶ Ë Ç · ¸ · É ¶ Ç ¶ ¸ ´ ¹ ¶ Â ³ É ¸ Ìü ³ ¸ · µ Ý ¶ Ç ½ Ú · µ Õ µ · ¸ Â Ã Ý À Á ¶ ¶ ´ Â Å² Á ³ Â ³ ´ ¶ Ç ¿ ½ ¸ Â ³ Â ´ Â ½ ¾ ¾ ³ ¸ · µ µ · » ½ Î ´ ½ ¾ ´ Á ¶ Ê Ë ½ Ö ¶ ¿ ´ Ë ¶ Ç ½ Ú · µ Ê µ · ¸ ÌÄ ¿ ¿ ¶ Â Â ³ È µ ¶ ¼ Î Ë È Ý · Ç Ê Û ¶ Â ³ É ¸ Ã À À Á ¶ ¶ ´ Â ÅÛ ¶ Ú ¶ µ ½ Ê ¾ ³ ¸ · µ ¿ Î Ë È Ë · Ç Ê µ · » ½ Î ´ ³ ¸ · ¿ ¿ ½ Ë ¹ · ¸ ¿ ¶ Í ³ ´ Á ¼ Á · Ê ´ ¶ Ë ä å ½ ¾ Ð ½ Í · À º Û Ä À Û ¶ Â ³ É ¸Ô · ¸ Î · µ Ì ü ³ ¸ · µ ³ ã ¶ Ë · Ç Ê É ¶ ½ Ç ¶ ´ Ë ³ ¿ ¿ ½ ¸ ¾ ³ É Î Ë · ´ ³ ½ ¸ Â Ò ´ Ë · ¸ Â ³ ´ ³ ½ ¸ Â È ¶ ´ Í ¶ ¶ ¸ Â ³ ¹ ¶ Í · µ Æ Â · ¸ ¹¹ Ë ³ Ú ¶ Í · » Â Ò ¿ · µ ¿ Î µ · ´ ¶ Á ½ Ë ³ ã ½ ¸ ´ · µ ¿ Î Ë È ½ Ê ¶ ¸ ³ ¸ É Â Ò ¿ Ë ½ Â Â Â µ ½ Ê ¶ Â Ò Ë Î ¸ ¸ ³ ¸ É Â µ ½ Ê ¶ Ò · ¸ ¹ µ · È ¶ µÂ ³ ¹ ¶ Í · µ Æ Í ³ ¹ ´ Á · ¸ ¹ Ê · Â Â ³ ¸ É Â Ê · ¿ ¶ Í ³ ´ Á ³ ¸ ´ Á ¶ ¿ ½ Ë Ë ³ ¹ ½ Ë Ìü ³ ¸ · µ ¼ ½ ¸ Â ´ Ë Î ¿ ´ ³ ½ ¸ Û ¶ ´ · ³ µ Â Ã º À Á ¶ ¶ ´ Â Å² Á ³ Â ³ ´ ¶ Ç ¿ ½ ¸ Â ³ Â ´ Â ½ ¾ ´ Á ¶ ¾ ³ ¸ · µ ¹ ¶ Â ³ É ¸ · ¸ ¹ ¹ Ë · ¾ ´ ³ ¸ É ½ ¾ Â Ê ¶ ¿ ³ · µ Ê Ë ½ Ö ¶ ¿ ´ ¹ ¶ ´ · ³ µ Â ¸ ½ ´ ¿ ½ Ú ¶ Ë ¶ ¹ ³ ¸½ ´ Á ¶ Ë ³ ´ ¶ Ç Â Ì Ð ¸ ¿ µ Î ¹ ¶ ¹ · Ë ¶ Â Î ¿ Á ³ ´ ¶ Ç Â · Â Â Ê ¶ ¿ ³ · µ É Ë · ¹ ³ ¸ É ¹ ¶ ´ · ³ µ Â Ò Â Ê ¶ ¿ ³ · µ Â ´ ½ Ë Ç Í · ´ ¶ ËÇ · ¸ · É ¶ Ç ¶ ¸ ´ ¹ ¶ ´ · ³ µ Â ¸ ½ ´ ³ ¸ ¿ µ Î ¹ ¶ ¹ ³ ¸ ´ Á ¶ Â ´ · ¸ ¹ · Ë ¹ ¹ Ë · Í ³ ¸ É Â Ò · ¸ ¹ ½ ´ Á ¶ Ë Ë ¶ æ Î ³ Ë ¶ ¹ Ç ³ Â ¿ ¶ µ µ · ¸ ¶ ½ Î Â¹ ¶ ´ · ³ µ Â ¾ ½ Î ¸ ¹ ´ ½ È ¶ Ë ¶ æ Î ³ Ë ¶ ¹ ¾ ½ Ë ¿ ½ Ç Ê µ ¶ ´ ³ ½ ¸ ½ ¾ ´ Á ¶ Ê Ë ½ Ö ¶ ¿ ´ Ì
294

ITEM  25.



â ã ä å ã æ ç å æ ã ã å ç å æ ã ã å è é ê ë ã ì æ í î ã é åâ ã ï ê æ ð ê ñ ñ è ò ó í ô êâ õ å ö ì æ í î ã é å ÷ í ø ù â ú û û û ú ü ý û þü ³ ¸ · µ Û ¶ Â ³ É ¸ ¼ Ë ½ Â Â Þ À ¶ ¿ ´ ³ ½ ¸ Â Ã ß À Á ¶ ¶ ´ Â Å² Á ³ Â ³ ´ ¶ Ç ¿ ½ ¸ Â ³ Â ´ Â ½ ¾ ´ Á ¶ ¾ ³ ¸ · µ ¹ ¶ Â ³ É ¸ · ¸ ¹ ¹ Ë · ¾ ´ ³ ¸ É ½ ¾ ³ ¸ ¹ ³ Ú ³ ¹ Î · µ ¿ Ë ½ Â Â Â ¶ ¿ ´ ³ ½ ¸ Â ¾ ½ Ë ´ Á ¶ Ê Ë ½ Ö ¶ ¿ ´ Ì¼ Ë ½ Â Â Â ¶ ¿ ´ ³ ½ ¸ Â Í ³ µ µ È ¶ ¹ ¶ Â ³ É ¸ ¶ ¹ · ¸ ¹ ¹ Ë · Í ¸ · ´ � � Þ ¾ ½ ½ ´ Ç · Ñ ³ Ç Î Ç ³ ¸ ´ ¶ Ë Ú · µ Â Ò Í ³ ´ Á · ¹ ¹ ³ ´ ³ ½ ¸ · µ¿ Ë ½ Â Â Þ Â ¶ ¿ ´ ³ ½ ¸ Â ³ ¸ ¿ µ Î ¹ ¶ ¹ · Â ¸ ¶ ¿ ¶ Â Â · Ë » Ì ¼ Ë ½ Â Â Â ¶ ¿ ´ ³ ½ ¸ Â Í ³ µ µ Â Á ½ Í ´ Á ¶ ¶ Ñ ³ Â ´ ³ ¸ É É Ë ½ Î ¸ ¹¶ µ ¶ Ú · ´ ³ ½ ¸ Â · Â Í ¶ µ µ · Â ´ Á ¶ ¾ ³ ¸ · µ Ê Ë ½ Ö ¶ ¿ ´ É Ë · ¹ ³ ¸ É Ò ³ ¸ ¿ µ Î ¹ ³ ¸ É ¾ ½ Ë ¶ Â µ ½ Ê ¶ · ¸ ¹ È · ¿ Æ Â µ ½ Ê ¶³ ¸ ¾ ½ Ë Ç · ´ ³ ½ ¸ Ò · ¸ ¹ ½ ´ Á ¶ Ë Ê ¶ Ë ´ ³ ¸ ¶ ¸ ´ ³ ¸ ¾ ½ Ë Ç · ´ ³ ½ ¸ Ì� � � 5 E G . � 
 	 � � 	 � � �  � � � 6 � 	 � �  � � � � � 	 � - � � � � � � � � C  � �  4 � � * � � � � � �� �  � 	 � � � � � � � � 4 � � � *  � � 
 	 � � 	 � � �  � � � � � � � � � � �  � �  4 
 	 � �  � � � � � � 	 � �  � � � ��  � � � �  � 	 � � � � � � � � 4 � � � �  � � �  � � � � � 
 	 � � � � � 
 � � 	 � � � � � � � � � � �  
 � � � 
 � � � 	 � � 	� � 
 	 � � 	 � � �  � � � 6 
 	 � �  � � � �� � � 5 � G � � 	 �  
 � �  � � � � � � � +� �  � 	 � � � � � � � � 4 � � � � � � � � � � �  � � � 6 � � � �  � � � � � + � � � � � 
 � � � 	 � � � 	 � �  � � � � � � � 	 �+ 	 �  � � �  � � � � � � � � 	 � � � �  � � � � � � � �  � � � � � � � 
 � � 	 � � 	 � � � � 	 �  � �  �  � � + � 	 � � � � � 	 �  
 � � � � � � � � � 
 � � � �  � � 
 	 � � � � � � � � 	 � � 4 � � � � � 
 � � � � � 	 � � � �  � 1 � � �  
  � � � � 6 �� �  � 	 � � � � � � � � � � � � � � �  � � �  � �  � 	 � � 	 4 � � + � 	 
 � �  � � � � 	 � � �  � � 	 �  
 � R
·

. A B C B � A 0 � � � 	 � � 4 � �  � A � � 
 � � � +  �  � � � �
·

B 	 � � 
  	 � � � * � � 
 � � � 	 �
·

� 	 � � � � � 	 � � �  �  � � � 	 � � � � �@ � 6 �   � � 	 � 
 	 � � � � � 
 � � 	 � �  � � � � � 1 � � 
  � �  � 	 � 	 � �  � 
 	 � � � � � � 	 
 � � �  � 4 � � ��  � � � � � � � � � � � � 	 � � � � � � � � � *  � �  �  � � 	 � � � * � � � � 6 	 � � �  � � � 6 � � �  � 	 � � � � � � � �� � � � � � � 	 � � �  �  
 � � � 
 � � 
 � � �  � � � 1 4 � � � �  � �  � 
 � � � � � 	 � � � � � �  � � + � � � � � � 	 � � � " I � N ¨ L : L � I ; M I O I ; P � � � ? J J O I = ? � I > ; L M > � �  � � � � � � � �  � 	 � � � � � � � � � � � � � � �  � � � � �  �  � � � � � � � � � 
 � � � 	 � � � � � 	 � �  � � 	 
 � �  � � � � � 	 � �� � � 5 � G � � 	 �  
 � Y � � � � �� �  � � � 5 
 	 � � � � � � 	 � � �  � � � � � � 	 � 	 � � � � 	 �  
 � Y � � � � � � � � � � ¦ � � + � �  � � � � � � � �� � � 6 � � 	 � � G  � � � 	 
 � �  � � � 1 � � 
 � � � � � + B 	 � � 
  	 � ¬  � � � � + � � � 2  � � � � + 1 . � � � � � 
 � � 	 �� 	 S � � �  � � 1 S � � � 	 � � � 1 S 	 � � - 	 � � � 1 @ + �   �  � � - 	 � � � 1 T  �  � � � � 	 � � � � � 	 � � 	 �� 	 � � � � � 
 � � 	 � � 	 � � � � 
 � 1 � � � � �  �  � � � � 6 T  �  � � � � 	 � � � � � 	 � � 1 � � � A  � � � �  �� 	 � � � � � 
 � � 	 � � �  
 � � � 
 � � � 	 � � � @ � � 	 1 � �  � � � �  4 � �  W � * � � A  � � + � � � �� �  
 � � � 
 � � � 	 � � � � � � � *  � � � � � ¦  � � 	 � � � � � � � 	 �  
 � �� � � 5 ¥ G H � � � � 	 � 	 � � � 	 * � * �  � 	 � � � � � 
 � � 	 � � 	 � �� �  � 	 � � � � � � � � � � � � � � �  � � �  � - � � � � H � � � � 	 � 	 � � � 	 * � * �  � 	 � � � � � 
 � � 	 � � 	 � �� 	 � � �  � � 	 �  
 � � � � �  � � �  	 � 
 	 � � �  � � 	 � 	 � � �  � � � � � � � � � �  
 � � � 
 � � � 	 � � � � � H � � � � 	 � 	 � � � 	 * � * �  � 	 � � � � � 
 � � 	 � � 	 � � � � � � �  � �  � � 	 � � �  � �  	 � � �  � � � 6 � �� � � � � 
 � � + � �  � � 	 �  
 � �� �  � 	 � � � � � � � � 4 � � � 
 	 	 � � � � � �  � � � � � � � +  � �  �  � � � � + � � 	 
  � � � 	 � � �  � � 	 �  
 � �- 	 �  � � � � � � � � + � � � � 	 �  � 1 	 �  , � 3 �  � � � � + � � � *   � � � 
 � � �  � � � � � � � 	 � � � � �
295

ITEM  25.



â ã ä å ã æ ç å æ ã ã å ç å æ ã ã å è é ê ë ã ì æ í î ã é åâ ã ï ê æ ð ê ñ ñ è ò ó í ô êâ õ å ö ì æ í î ã é å ÷ í ø ù â ú û û û ú ü ý û þ@ + �   �  � � � � �  4 	 � 5 � � � 5 � � 	 *  �  � � 	 � �  � 	 � 
 	 	 � � � � � �  � * 6 � �  � 	 � � � � � � � �� � � � � � � 
 � � �  � �  � 	 � � 	 4 � � + R� � � 5 � G � � � � � � � + 	 � � � � � � � � � � �  
 � � � 
 � � � 	 � �� � � � � � � 5 
 	 � � � � � � 	 � � � � � � � � + � � � � � � � � � � + 	 � � �  � � � � � � � � � �  
 � � � 
 � � � 	 � � �- 	 � * � � +  � � � � � 	 �  � � � � �  � � � � � �  � � � � � � 4  � � 6 , E F 3 � � � � G L I � � � � � ) � � � ) � J O ? ;�  � � � � � � �  
 � � � 
 � � � 	 � � 4 � � � *  � � � � � 
 � �  � � � � � � �  � * �  � * 6 � �  � 	 � � � � � � � � �� � � � � � � 5 � � � 	 � � 
 � � �  � � � � �  � � � � � � 	 � 	 � � �  
 	 � � � � 
 � � 	 
 � �  � � � � � �� � � � � � � � � � + � � � � � � 	 � �  � � � � � � � � � � � + � �  * � � � � � + � � � �  �� � � 5 E G B 	 � � 
  	 � � � 	 �  
 �� �  � 	 � � � � � � � � � � � � � � �  � � �  	 � � �  � 	 � � � � B 	 � � 
  	 � ¬  � � � � + � � � 2  � � � � + � � � � � � 6 � � � � � � � � � �  � � * � � 
 � � � 	 � 	 � � �  B 	 � � 
  	 � ¬  � � � � + � � � 2  � � � � + �� � � 5 � G � � � � � � � � � � � 
 � � � 	 � � � � @ � �  � � �� �  � 	 � � � � � � � � � � � � � *  � � � � � � * �  � 	 � � � 4  � V �  � � � 	 � � � � 	 � 
 	 � � � � 
 � 	 � � � � � 	 �� 	 � �  �  � � � � + � � � � � � � � � � � �  � � �  � � � � � � � � � 	 � � � � �  � 	 � � �  � � �  � 1 
 � � � � � 6 	 � D �  � � � �  * � � � � � + � 	 
 � �  � � � �� � � 5 � G 2  � � � � + 1 S � � � � * � 1 � � � @ 4 � � � C  
 	 � �  � � � � � 	 �� �  � 	 � � � � � � � � � � � � � *  � �  � �  �  � � � � � �  � �  �  � � 4 �  � � �  * � � � � � �� � 	 � 	 � � � � � �  	 �  �  � 1 � � � � � � � 5  � � * � � � � � 	 � � 	 � * � � � 	 � � �  H 4 �  � 1 � � � � �� � � � �  � �  H 4 �  � 	 � � �  �  � � 	 � � � �  �  � � 	 � � �  * � � �  � � � � � � � � � � � � �  H 4 �  �� � � � 5 � � + � �  � 4 � � � 	 � 
 	 � � � � 
 � 1 � � 
 � � � � � + � �  � � � � � � 	 � 	 � �  
  � � � � 6 
 	 � � � � 
 �� 	 
 � �  � � � �� �  � 	 � � � � � � � � � � � � � 
 	 � � � � � 	 � � �  + � � � � * � � � � 4 � � � � �  � � � 6 � 	 
 � � � � � 6 � � �< � M I ; � � � � " I � N ¨ L � � 	 : I � �  � ; � L M > � � � � ® � > û  
 � � � � �  � �  4 � � � � � � * �  � � � � � � � � � � 6 � + �   � � 	 � � � � � � � � 	 � �  � 	 � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � 	 � � � � � 	 � 4 � � � �  � �  
 � � 	 � � " I � N ¨ L � � 	 : I � �  � ; � L 9 I ; = O : < I ; P ? ; N L J � = I ? O > � � � � � ? > � < I ; ? � N = > ; L I < � � ? � I > ; L M > �� �  � � 	 �  
 � 	 � � �  
 � � � �  � � � 
  � �   �  � 1 � � � � � � 	 � 	 � � 5  � � � � � � * �  �  � � � �  � � D � � � � � + � � � � � � �  � 	 � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � 	 � � �  � �  � 	 � � 	 4 � � + � 	 � � � � � 
 � � 	 � �  � � 	 ��  � � � 
  � R� � � 5 � Z � 	 � � � � � 
 � � 	 � @ � � � � � � � � � � � 	 �� 	 � � � � � 
 � � 	 � � � � � � � � � � � � � 	 � �  � � � 
  � � � � � � 
 	 � � � � � 	 � 	 � � � 
  * � �  � �  � � � 
  � � 	� � � � � � � �  � � � 6 � � � � � �  �  � � � � + � �  
 	 � � � � � 
 � � 	 � 
 	 � � � � 
 � � 	 � � � � � � � 	 �  
 � � � � 4 	 � 5 � � � 5 � � 	 *  �  � � 	 � �  � * 6 � �  � 	 � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � 
 � � �  R� �  G 
 	 � � � � � 
 � � 	 � Y   � � � +� �  � 	 � � � � � � � � � � � � � 
 	 � � � 
 � � � �  G 
 	 � � � � � 
 � � 	 � �   � � � + � � �  � � 4 � � � 	 �= > ; L � � : = � I > ; = > ; � � ? = � M > � � � � " I � N ¨ L " > ; � � ? = � > � 9 L : © = > ; � � ? = � > � L 9 : � I O I � N
 	 � � � � �  � 1 � � � 	 � �  � � � �  �  � �  � � � � � �  � �
296

ITEM  25.



â ã ä å ã æ ç å æ ã ã å ç å æ ã ã å è é ê ë ã ì æ í î ã é åâ ã ï ê æ ð ê ñ ñ è ò ó í ô êâ õ å ö ì æ í î ã é å ÷ í ø ù â ú û û û ú ü ý û þ� � 	 � A � � 4 � � + � � � * � � � � � � C  � �  4 �� �  � 	 � � � � � � � � � � � � � �  � �  4 � � 	 � � � � 4 � � + � 1 � � � � �  � 1 � � � 	 � �  � � � � � 4 � � 
 �� �  � 	 � � � � 
 � 	 � � � �  V � � �  � � 	 � � * � � � 1 * � � 	 � � 6 � 	 � 
 	 � � 	 � � � � 
  4 � � � �  � � + �
 	 � 
  � � 	 � � �  � � 	 �  
 � � � � 
 	 � � 	 � � � � 
  4 � � � � �  � � � 	 � � � � � 	 � + � �  � � � � � 
 	 � � � � 
 � � 	 
 � �  � � � � � �  � 	 � � � � � � � � � � � � �  � � � � � �  � � � �  �  � � � �  � � � 
 
  � � � * � � � � 6 	 � � � * � � � � � �  � � �  � � � � � � � �  V � � � �  � � � � 	 � 	 �  � * 6 � � � 	 � � � � 
 � 	 � � � �  � 	 � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � �  � � � � 	 � � � 6 � 	 �  V � � �  � �  
 � � � � � � �  
 � � 	 �	 � �  � � � � + 	 � � �  4 	 � 5 1 � � � � � � � � �  
  � �  � � � �  � �  4 � � � 
  � � � � � 
 � �  � 	 �� � � �  
 � � 	 � � 1 �  � � � � + 1 � � � � � � � 	 � � � � �  V � � �  � �0 � + � �   � � � �  
 � � � � �7 ; = > ; ; � = � I > ; Q I � � > © L � � K ? � I > ; L > M � � � " > ; � � ? = � > � ¨ L Q > � � Q � I O � I � I L I ;� � 	 + �  � � R� � � �  � 	 � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � 5  � � � � � � � 	 � �  � � �  � � � � �  � � � � � � � � � 	 � � � � �  � 	� �  � � � � 	 � � � � � +  � 	 � 
 	 � � � � � 
 � � 	 � � � � �  � 	 � � � � � � � � �   � � �  
  � � � � 6,  � � � � � �  � � 	 *  	 �  , � 3 � � �  � � � � � �  � � 	 � � � � � � � � � � 1 4 � � � � � � 	4   5 � 6 � � � � � � � � � � � + �  � 5 
 	 � � � � � 
 � � 	 � � 
 � � � � � 6 �  � � 	 � � 3 � � 	 � �  � � 		 * �  � �  � � � �  D �  � �  � 
  � � � � V � � � � � �  � �  � � + � � � 	 �  � � � 	 � � � � � � � 	 + �  � � � � � V � � � � � 6 	 � � �  � � � � 	 � � � � �  = � L > M � � � " > ; � � ? = � > � ¨ L Q > � � ªS � �  � 	 � � � � 	 � � � � � 	 � 	 * � � � �  � � � � � � + � � 
 � � � � � � � � � � 	 � � � 
 �	 * �  � � � � � 	 � � 1 � �  � 	 � � � � � � � � � � � � � �  �  � � � �  1 � � +  �  � � � 1 � � � � 
 � 4 	 � 5� � � � 	 
   � � � + � � � 
 
 	 � � � � 
  4 � � � � �  � � � � � 1 � � � � �  � 	 � � � � � � � � � � � � �5   � � �  � � � 6 � � � 	 � �  � 	 � � �  � � 	 + �  � � 	 � � �  4 	 � 5 �* � � � � J : � J > L � > M � � � " > ; L : O � ? ; � ¨ L K I L I � L � > � � � L I � � Q I O O © � � > � ; ? © O � � � �� 	 � � � � � � � � � 	 *  � �  � 
 � � � 6 	 � � � � � � � � �  � � � � �  � � 	 � � � * � � � � �  � � � � � � + � � 
 	 � � � � � 
 � � 	 � � � � �  � � � 1 � � � � � � � � 	 � 1 * 6  D  � 
 � �  	 � � �  " > ; L : O � ? ; � ¨ L � � 	 � � � � � � �  D �  � �  � 
  � � � � V � � � � � �  � �  � � + � � � 	 �  � � � 	 � � � 1 � 	 � � 	 � � � � 	 � � �  � � � 6 � + �  � �  � �  + �   	 � 
 	 � � � �  � 
  � � � � � �  
 	 � � �  �  � 4 	 � 5 	 �� �  � 	 � � � � 
 � 	 � 4 � � � 
 	 � � 	 � � � 	 � �  � � � � � 1 � � � � � � � � �  � � �  + � � � 6 	 � � � �  � � + � 
 	 � 
  � � � � �  � �  
 �  � � � � �  � � � � � � � � *   � � � � �  �  � �  � � � �� �  �  � �  � * 6 � �  � 	 � � � � 
 � 	 � �
 � � �  � 	 � � � � � � � � � � � � � � 	 � � � � � � + � � 
 � � � � � � � � � �  � � � �  1 � � �  
 � 1 	 � � � � = > ; � � > O > K � � � � � " > ; � � ? = � > � ¨ L Q > � � 9 ; > � L � ? O O � � � " > ; L : O � ? ; � � ? K �� � � � 	 � � � 6 	 �  � 	 � �  � � 	 � � � * � � � � 6 � 	 � � �  �  � � � 1 �  � � 	 � � 1 �  
 � � � V �  � 1�  V �  � 
  � 1 	 � � � 	 
  � � �  � 	 � 
 	 � � � � � 
 � � 	 � �  �  
 �  � * 6 � �  � 	 � � � � 
 � 	 �� 	 � � � �  � 6 � �  
 � � � � 	 � � � � � � � 	 + � � � � � � 
 � �  � � � 	 � �  4 	 � 5 	 � � 	 � � � 6� � � � � �  	 � � �  � 	 � � � � 
 � 	 � � 	 
 	 � � � 6 4 � � � � � 4 � 1 � � �  � 1 �  + � � � � � 	 � � 1	 � � � � � � 
  � 1 
 	 �  � 1 	 � 	 � �  � � � � � � � 
 � * �  � 	 � �  � 	 � � � � 
 � 	 � � � � � � � � � � +� � � �  � � 	 � � � � + � � � 4 	 � 5 �� � A � � � � + � � 
 � � � � � � � 1 � �  � 	 � � � � � � � � � � 6 � � � � � � � 	 �  	 � 	 � �  �  
 � � � " > ; � � ? = � > � ¨ L Q > � � Q � I O � I � I L I ; J � > P � � L L I M � � � " > ; L : O � ? ; � © � O I � K � L � � ? �
297

ITEM  25.



â ã ä å ã æ ç å æ ã ã å ç å æ ã ã å è é ê ë ã ì æ í î ã é åâ ã ï ê æ ð ê ñ ñ è ò ó í ô êâ õ å ö ì æ í î ã é å ÷ í ø ù â ú û û û ú ü ý û þ� � 
 � 4 	 � 5 4 � � � � 	 � � � 	 � � 
  � 
 	 � � �  �  � � � 	 �  
 � � � � � 
 	 � � 	 � � � � 	 � � � � � � � 1 	 � � � � � � � 4 � � � � �  � � � � 
  � �  � � �  + � � � 6 	 � � �  �  � � + � 
 	 � 
  � � 	 � � � � � 	 �  
 � � � �  � �  
 �  � � � � �  � � � � � �� � 	 + �  � � Y   � � � + �� �  � 	 � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � �  � � �  � � 	 � � 
 � � 	 + �  � � �   � � � + � 4 � � � � �  � � � 6 1� 	 � � � � 
 � 	 � 1 � � � W � � � � � 6 � 	 � � � � �  � � 	 �  � �  4 � � 	 + �  � � 1 � � � � �  � �  � � 	 �  
 �� 
 �  � � �  1 �  � 	 � �  
 	 � � � � 
 � � 1 � � � �  �  � � � �  � � 6 
 	 � �  
 � � �  � 
 � � 	 � � � � �  
  � � � � 6 �� �  � 	 � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � �  � 	 � � � � 
 � 	 � � � 
 	 � � � � � 
 � � � � + � � 
 	 � � � +
 	 � � � � � 
 � � 	 � � 
 � � � � � �  � 4 � � � � �  � � � � 
  � � * � � � �  � �  � � � � � � 	 �  � � 6 	 4 �  � � �� � 6 C  V �  � � � � � � � � � � +  H � �  � � �  � � � � � � 	 �� �  � 	 � � � � � � � � � � � � � � �  � � �  
 	 � � � � 
 � 	 � � � 6 �  V �  � � � � � � � � � �  �  
  � � � � 6� � �  � � �  � � � � 	 � � � � � 
 � � � � � � 
 � � � 	 � � 	 � � �  � � � � � 1 � � � � � 
 	 � �  
 � � 	 � � �  �  4 � � � 1� �  � � �  
 � � � +  	 � �  � � � � �  V � � �  � �- � � � � . � � �  
 � � 	 � � � � � � � 	 �  
 � � � 	 �  G H � �� �  � 	 � � � � � � � � � � � � � 
 	 � � � 
 � � � � � � �  
 � � 	 � � � � �  
 	 � � � � 6 	 � � �  � � � 6 � 	�  �  � � � �  � � � �  4 	 � 5 � � � � * � � � � � � � � � 6 
 	 � � �  �  � � � � � � � � � � � � �  
 � � 	 � � 	�  �  � � � �  � � � �  
 	 � � �  �  � 4 	 � 5 � � � 
 
  � � � * �  � � �  � 	 � � � � � � � � � � 6�  
 	 � �  � � 1 � � 4 � � � � � + 1 � � � � � � � 6 �  � � � 	 � �  � 	 � � � � 
 � 	 � � � � � � 6 + � �  4 � � � �  �� 	 � � 
  � 	 � �  � � � 6 � � � � �  � 	 � � � � 
 � 	 � � � � � � �  4 	 � 5 � � � 
 
  � � � * �  � � � � � � � � 5 4 � � �� � � 	 � � 
 � � �  � � �  � * � � � + � � � � � � � 	 �  
 � � 	 
 � �  � � � � � 	 � 1 
  � � � � � 
 � � � 	 � � 1 � � �� � �  � � � � 
  � � � �  � � 	 �  
 � � � � � � � �C  
 	 � � A � � 4 � � + �� � � � � � � 5 
 	 � � � � � � 	 � � �  � � � � � � 	 � 	 � 
 	 � � � � � 
 � � 	 � �  
 	 � � � � � 4 � � + � �  � � � � � + � � � 
 � � � � � 	 
 � � � 	 � 	 � � � � � 	 �  �  � � � � � � � � D � � �  � � � �  � 	 � � � � � � � � � � � � � � �  � � � �  
 	 � � � � � 4 � � + � � � 	 4 � � + � � 	 �  
 � � � +  � � � �  � � � � � + 
 	 � � � � � 
 � � 	 � 1 * � �  � 	 �� �  � � � 5  � G � � � � � 4 � � + � � � � 	 � �  � � � � � � � � � � � �  � * 6 � �  � 	 � � � � 
 � 	 � � � � � � C  � � �  � � � 	 � � � � � 
 � � 	 � H * �  � �  � � � �  � 	 � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � 	 � � �  � �  � � � 6 4 � � �	 �  , � 3 �  � � 	 � � 
 � * �  
 	 � 6 	 � � �  �  
 	 � � � � � 4 � � + � �� �  � * 	 �  � 	 � � � � � 
 � � 	 � @ � � � � � � � � � � � 	 � �  � � � 
  � � � � 	 � E F E F � � �  � � � � �  � �	 � � 6 � � � � � � � �  � 
 	 � � � � � 
 � � 	 � � � �  � � � �  	 � ± � �  � 	 �  � �  � *  � E F E F � . � � �  �  � � � �  
 	 � � � � � 
 � � 	 � �  � � 	 �  D 
   � � � �  
 	 � � � � 
 � 4 	 � 5 � � + � � 6 	 �� � � � � � 
 � � � �  � 
 	 � � � � � 	 � � �  V � � �  � 	 � � � � � 
 � � 	 � @ � � � � � � � � � � � 	 � � �  D 
  � � 	 � � � � � � � �  �  � � 	 � � 1 � �  � 	 � � � � � � � � � � � � � � 	 � � � 6 � �  � � � 6 � � � � � � � � 	 � 
 �  � � � � � � � � � �� � � �  �  � � � �  � �  � � � � � � 	 � � �  � � 	 � � � 	 
 	 � � �  �  � �  � � 	 �  
 � � � �  � 	 � � � � � � � �� � � � � � 6 � � � � � 4 	 � 5 � 	 �  �  � 	 � � � � � � � � �  � 	 � � � � 	 � � 	 � � �  �  � � � � � � +  � � 	 � � �� � � � 	 �  
 � �  � �� 	 � � � � � � � � � 
 	 �  � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � �  � ! " � � � # � � ! � � � � � " � � $ % � " �
298

ITEM  25.



â ã ä å ã æ ç å æ ã ã å ç å æ ã ã å è é ê ë ã ì æ í î ã é åâ ã ï ê æ ð ê ñ ñ è ò ó í ô êâ õ å ö ì æ í î ã é å ÷ í ø ù â ú û û û ú ü ý û þ# � � & ' � � � � � � ' � � � " � � ( ) " ! " � � " � � � * � � % ! � � + � $ � � � " � � � � � � �A � � 
 �  � � � � 	 � � � � 	 � @ � �  � � �  � � �  � �  � *  � � 	 H 
 � 	 *  � E F � �� �  � � � � � � � 6 A  � � + � H 
 � 	 *  � E F � � � 	 ± � � � � � 6 E F E F� � * � � 
 Y   � � � + � H 
 � 	 *  � E F � �� � * � � 
 Y   � � � + E ± � � � � � 6 E F E FC  
 	 � �  � � � � � 	 � � -  * � � � � 6 E F E F- � � � � A  � � + � -  * � � � � 6 � 	 Y � 6 E F E FS � � 2  � � � � + Y � 6 E F E F� 	 � � � � � 
 � � 	 � ± � �  � 	 A  
  � *  � E F E F0 � A  � � �  � � * �  �� �  � 
 	 �  	 � �  � � � 
  � � � � � � *  
 	 � � � �  �  � � 	 *  
 	 � � �  �  � � 	 � 
 	 � � �  � � 	 �� � � �  � � �  � 6 	 � � �  � 	 � � 	 4 � � + � �  � � � 	 � �  � � � � � � � 
 � � 	 � 	 � � �  � � � 6 R
·

�  � � 	 � � � 6 0 � �  �  � � � � � � �
·

# � I P I ; ? O , I ; ? O = > ; L � � : = � I > ; < � ? Q I ; P L � � � ) � � � ) � 9 , I ; ? O ® � > û � = � - ? ; : ? O 1 � � �H � � � � 	 � 	 � � � 	 * � * �  � 	 � � � � � 
 � � 	 � � 	 � �
·

C  
 	 � � A � � 4 � � + � � � � 
 � 	 �  G 	 � � � 	 
 � �  � � � � � 	 �- � � 	 � � � � +  � 
 6. � � � � � 6 � � �  � � � � � + � �  4 	 � 5 � �  � 	 � � � � � � � � �  �  � � � �  � � � � � � � � � 
 � � � � 
 	 � � �4 � � �  D 
   � � �   � � � � � �  � � 
 � � � � 
 	 � � � 1 � � � � �  
  � � � � � � � � + � �  � �  	 � �= > ; � I ; P � ; = N ?  > : ; � 9 I � Q I O O J � >  J � O N L > ; > � I M N � � � " I � N ¨ L ® � > û � = � - ? ; ? P � � I ;4 � � � � � + � � � �  � 
 � � *  4 � � � 
 	 � � � � �  
 � � � � � + � �  	 �  � � +  � � � � �  �  � � 	 � � � � � 	 � � � � � � � � � � � � � � 	 �  D 
   � � �   � � � � � �  � � 
 � � � � 
 	 � � � 4 � � � 	 � � � � � 	 � 4 � � � �  �? J J � > K ? O M � >  � � � " I � N ¨ L ® � > û � = � - ? ; ? P � � ? ; < " > ; � � ? = � ( <  I ; I L � � � ª. �  � � � � � � � � 6 
 � � �  � �  �   � � 	 � � � � � ¦  � �  � 	 � � � � +  � 
 6 � � 
 � � �  * � � � �  � 	 ��  
  � � � � � � 6 � � � � �  � � 	 � �  � 	 � � 	 4 � � + R A  � � + � 
 � � � +  � 1 � � � � � � 
 � � � �  � � �  � �
 	 � � � � � 	 � � ,  � + � � � 5 � 	 4 � � � � � � � 6 
 	 � � � � 
 � � 3 1 � � 
 �  � �  � � � � 
 	 �  � �  � V � � � � � � �  �*  6 	 � � � � 	 �  � � � �  � �  �  � � 1 � � � � � � � � 	 � � � 	 � � �  � 6  V � � � �  � � 
 � � � +  � 1� 	 � � � � 
 � 	 � 
 � � � +  � 1 � 	 � �  � � 	 � � � � 
  * 6 � � * 
 	 � � � � � � � � � 1  � 
 �T � @ � � � � � 	 � � � �  � � � 
  �B 	 � � � � � � 	 � � � �  � � � 
  � � �  � � 
 � � �  � � � � � � � � � �  � � �  6 � � 6 *  � � �  � � �  D � � �4 	 � 5 * 6 � � � � �  �  � � � � @ + �   �  � � 4 �  � � � � � 	 � � � � �  � 	 � �  � � 	 �  
 � � 
 �  � � �  �
·

C  � � 0 � � � �  @ 
 V � � � � � � 	 � �  � � � 
  �
·

0 � � � � 	 � �  � � � � 0 � � � � � � � 	 � 1 A 	 
 � �  � � � � � 	 � � � � Y � � � + � � � 	 �
·

T  	 �  
 � � � 
 � � 0 D � � 	 � � � � 	 �
·

0 �  
 � � � 
 � � � � � 
 � � � � 6 A  � � + � , � 	 *  
 	 � � �  �  � * 6 � - W 3
·

C � + � � 	 � U � 6 @ 
 � � � � � �  �. � �  � � � � � � 	 � 	 � �  � � � �  � � � 
 V � � � � � � 	 � � � � � � 	 
 � �  � � �
·

� 	 � � � � � 
 � � 	 � �  � � � 
  �
299

ITEM  25.



â ã ä å ã æ ç å æ ã ã å ç å æ ã ã å è é ê ë ã ì æ í î ã é åâ ã ï ê æ ð ê ñ ñ è ò ó í ô êâ õ å ö ì æ í î ã é å ÷ í ø ù â ú û û û ú ü ý û þ. C  � � �  � � 0 � + � �   � � � + � H * �  � � � � � 	 �. � 	 � � � � � 
 � � 	 � � � � �  6

300

ITEM  25.



/ 0 1 2 0 3 4 2 3 0 0 2 / 5 3 3 6 7 5 3 4 2 3 0 0 2 8 9 : ; 0 < 3 5 = 0 9 2/ 0 7 : 3 > : ? ? 8 @ A 5 B :/ 6 2 C < 3 5 = 0 9 2 D 5 E F / G H H H G I J H K
L M N M N O

P P P Q R S T U V W X Y Z [ \ V X \ ] S [ Z T \ R Z S [ T X ^ _ [ W Z ^ Z ` X S ^ Z Y Z [ \ T a V ^ _ ] ] b V [ \ ^ _ W \ V ^ T c R Vd e f g h f i j h f k g h f l m e n o l p h g n e q r f s r t t u v w m e l e f i x y h z l f r y l h f { r u | u e q o z l m o uU V W X Y Z [ \ T R _ ] ] } Z U Z a S [ Z U _ T \ R Z ~ Z [ Z ^ _ ] W V [ \ ^ _ W \ V ^ � _ ^ \ S T _ [ W V [ \ ^ _ W \ V ^ � V ^ U Z T S ~ [W V [ \ ^ _ W \ V ^ \ R _ \ c S ] ] } Z � Z ^ a V ^ Y S [ ~ c V ^ � a V ^ \ R Z b S \ � V a b Z U _ ^ � _ ] ] T X [ U Z ^ W V [ \ ^ _ W \ �N � � ] ] � V ] S W S Z T V a S [ T X ^ _ [ W Z ^ Z ` X S ^ Z U R Z ^ Z X [ U Z ^ T R _ ] ] } Z c S \ R _ [ S [ T X ^ Z ^_ X \ R V ^ S � Z U } � ] _ c \ V U V } X T S [ Z T T S [ � V c _ � � ] ] S [ T X ^ _ [ W Z � V ] S W S Z T T R _ ] ] } ZW V Y � _ [ S Z T T _ \ S T a _ W \ V ^ � \ V \ R Z b S \ � _ [ U R _ � Z _ ^ _ \ S [ ~ V a � � � � � � V ^ } Z \ \ Z ^ S [ \ R ZW X ^ ^ Z [ \ � � � � � Z T \ � _ \ S [ ~ � X S U Z �� � � ] ] b Z ^ \ S a S W _ \ Z T V a � [ T X ^ _ [ W Z ^ Z ` X S ^ Z U R Z ^ Z X [ U Z ^ T R _ ] ] S [ W ] X U Z \ R Zb _ [ W Z ] ] _ \ S V [ � � _ \ Z ^ S _ ] b R _ [ ~ Z � [ U V ^ T Z Y Z [ \ � � W V � � V a \ R S T Z [ U V ^ T Z Y Z [ \ S T_ \ \ _ W R Z U S [ � � R S } S \ N �� � b V [ \ ^ _ W \ V ^ T R _ ] ] a X ^ [ S T R _ T S ~ [ Z U b Z ^ \ S a S W _ \ Z V a � [ T X ^ _ [ W Z \ V \ R Z b S \ � V ab Z U _ ^ � _ ] ] T � � V c _ a V ^ \ R Z W V � Z ^ _ ~ Z ^ Z ` X S ^ Z U S [ � � R S } S \ N � � X W R b Z ^ \ S a S W _ \ Z T T R _ ] ]S [ W ] X U Z W V � S Z T V a \ R Z a V ] ] V c S [ ~ Z [ U V ^ T Z Y Z [ \ T �_ � b V Y Y Z ^ W S _ ] � Z [ Z ^ _ ] � S _ } S ] S \ � � V ] S W � S T � ^ S Y _ ^ � _ [ U [ V [ � W V [ \ ^ S } X \ S [ ~} � b V Y Y Z ^ W S _ ] � Z [ Z ^ _ ] � S _ } S ] S \ � _ U U S \ S V [ _ ] S [ T X ^ Z U Z [ U V ^ T Z Y Z [ \ � � Z Z� � R S } S \ NW � � V � Z ^ [ Y Z [ \ _ ] � Y Y X [ S \ S Z T � [ U V ^ T Z Y Z [ \ � � Z Z � � R S } S \ Nb V � S Z T V a _ U U S \ S V [ _ ] S [ T X ^ Z U Z [ U V ^ T Z Y Z [ \ T � Z � Z W X \ Z U } � _ [ _ X \ R V ^ S � Z U^ Z � ^ Z T Z [ \ _ \ S � Z a ^ V Y _ [ � [ T X ^ Z ^ U X ] � ] S W Z [ T Z U \ V \ ^ _ [ T _ W \ } X T S [ Z T T _ \ \ R Z ] V W _ \ S V [V a \ R Z � V } T S \ Z � Y X T \ } Z � ^ V � S U Z U � ^ S V ^ \ V \ R Z a S ^ T \ � _ � Y Z [ \ �b V [ \ ^ _ W \ V ^ T R _ ] ] � X � V [ ^ Z ` X Z T \ } � \ R Z b S \ � � � ^ V � S U Z b Z ^ \ S a S W _ \ Z T V a � [ T X ^ _ [ W Z a V ^_ ] ] T X } W V [ \ ^ _ W \ V ^ T _ [ U T X } � T X } W V [ \ ^ _ W \ V ^ T c R V � Z ^ a V ^ Y c V ^ � V ^ T Z ^ � S W Z T� X ^ T X _ [ \ \ V \ R Z � ^ V � S T S V [ T V a \ R S T W V [ \ ^ _ W \ �� � � _ W R W Z ^ \ S a S W _ \ Z T R _ ] ] } Z T X } Y S \ \ Z U \ V \ R Z b S \ � V a b Z U _ ^ � _ ] ] T �
301

ITEM  25.



/ 0 1 2 0 3 4 2 3 0 0 2 / 5 3 3 6 7 5 3 4 2 3 0 0 2 8 9 : ; 0 < 3 5 = 0 9 2/ 0 7 : 3 > : ? ? 8 @ A 5 B :/ 6 2 C < 3 5 = 0 9 2 D 5 E F / G H H H G I J H K� � � _ S ] X ^ Z \ V � ^ V � S U Z Y S [ S Y X Y W V � Z ^ _ ~ Z T R _ ] ] [ V \ } Z U Z Z Y Z U _ c _ S � Z ^ V a\ R Z T Z ^ Z ` X S ^ Z Y Z [ \ T } � \ R Z b S \ � V a b Z U _ ^ � _ ] ] T � � _ S ] X ^ Z \ V V } \ _ S [ V ^ Y _ S [ \ _ S [ \ R Z^ Z ` X S ^ Z U S [ T X ^ _ [ W Z T R _ ] ] } Z W V [ T S U Z ^ Z U _ Y _ \ Z ^ S _ ] } ^ Z _ W R V a \ R S T _ ~ ^ Z Z Y Z [ \ �� � � _ S ] X ^ Z V a \ R Z b V [ \ ^ _ W \ V ^ \ V Y _ S [ \ _ S [ \ R Z ^ Z ` X S ^ Z U S [ T X ^ _ [ W Z T R _ ] ]y h z u l o l | l e r q e g r | t l | z q e f l m o u n h z l f r y l � r z q r l n o l p � u h d l o h z � u m r t t r t t h j n o l p l h\ Z ^ Y S z r l e l m o u n h z l f r y l g h f y r | u e r z q � h f d | f y m r u e u r o q o z u | f r z y e r l n h z l f r y l h f � uZ � � Z [ T Z �  � b V [ \ ^ _ W \ V ^ T R _ ] ] } Z ^ Z ` X S ^ Z U \ V W _ ^ ^ � \ R Z a V ] ] V c S [ ~ Y S [ S Y X YW V � Z ^ _ ~ Z M ] S Y S \ T V ^ ~ ^ Z _ \ Z ^ � S a ^ Z ` X S ^ Z U } � ] _ c V ^ V \ R Z ^ ] Z ~ _ ] _ ~ ^ Z Z Y Z [ \ ¡ _ T � Z ^� � R S } S \ N �
Ø

Q R S T W V � Z ^ _ ~ Z T R _ ] ] } Z c ^ S \ \ Z [ V [ _ [ V W W X ^ ^ Z [ W Z � [ V \ W ] _ S Y T Y _ U Z a V ^ Y �� ] ] U Z � S _ \ S V [ T V ^ Z � W ] X T S V [ T a ^ V Y \ R Z T \ _ [ U _ ^ U � � ¢ W V Y Y Z ^ W S _ ] ~ Z [ Z ^ _ ]] S _ } S ] S \ � a V ^ Y b � £ £ N T R _ ] ] } Z W ] Z _ ^ ] � S U Z [ \ S a S Z U _ [ U T R _ ] ] } Z T X } � Z W \ \ V \ R Z^ Z � S Z c _ [ U _ � � ^ V � _ ] V a \ R Z b S \ � �
Ø

b V [ \ ^ _ W \ V ^ T R _ ] ] Y _ S [ \ _ S [ V [ ~ V S [ ~ b � � W V � Z ^ _ ~ Z a V ^ _ \ ] Z _ T \ � � Z _ ^ Ta V ] ] V c S [ ~ T X } T \ _ [ \ S _ ] W V Y � ] Z \ S V [ V a \ R Z ¤ V ^ � \ V W V � Z ^ ] S _ } S ] S \ � _ ^ S T S [ ~ a ^ V Y\ R Z � ^ V U X W \ T � W V Y � ] Z \ Z U V � Z ^ _ \ S V [ T R _ � _ ^ U _ [ U ] S _ } S ] S \ � _ T T X Y Z U X [ U Z ^ _ [S [ T X ^ Z U W V [ \ ^ _ W \ �
Ø

� V � Z ^ [ Y Z [ \ _ ] � Y Y X [ S \ � Z [ U V ^ T Z Y Z [ \ S U Z [ \ S W _ ] V ^ Z ` X S � _ ] Z [ \ \ V a V ^ Y_ \ \ _ W R Z U �
Ø

� U U S \ S V [ _ ] � [ T X ^ Z U � Z ` X S ^ Z Y Z [ \ � � Z Z � � R S } S \ N �Q R Z b S \ � V a b Z U _ ^ � _ ] ] T � S [ W ] X U S [ ~ _ ] ] S \ T Z ] Z W \ Z U _ [ U _ � � V S [ \ Z U V a a S W S _ ] T � _ ] ]S \ T Z Y � ] V � Z Z T _ [ U � V ] X [ \ Z Z ^ T � _ ] ] S \ T } V _ ^ U T � W V Y Y S T T S V [ T _ [ U M V ^_ X \ R V ^ S \ S Z T _ [ U \ R Z S ^ } V _ ^ U Y Z Y } Z ^ T � Z Y � ] V � Z Z T _ [ U � V ] X [ \ Z Z ^ T T R _ ] ] } Z[ _ Y Z U _ T _ [ _ U U S \ S V [ _ ] S [ T X ^ Z U V [ � Z [ Z ^ _ ] � S _ } S ] S \ � ¥ V ] S W S Z T a V ^ _ ] ] W ] _ T T Z TV a W V [ \ ^ _ W \ V ^ T �b V [ \ ^ _ W \ V ^ T T R _ ] ] S [ W ] X U Z W V � Z ^ _ ~ Z a V ^ \ R Z b S \ � V a b Z U _ ^ � _ ] ] T _ T _ [_ U U S \ S V [ _ ] S [ T X ^ Z U S [ W ] X U S [ ~ V [ ~ V S [ ~ _ [ U W V Y � ] Z \ Z U V � Z ^ _ \ S V [ T W V � Z ^ _ ~ ZZ ` X S � _ ] Z [ \ \ V � � � ¢ b � � £ N £ £   £ � P _ [ U � � ¢ b � � £ �   £   £ � P P¦ § ¨ © n ª « ¬  ¬ ¬ ® ¬ ¯ x ° q q o l o h z r t § z u | f e q � ¢ c [ Z ^ T � � Z T T Z Z T V ^b V [ \ ^ _ W \ V ^ T � ¨ y m e q | t e q ± e f u h z h f © f ² r z o ³ r l o h z {¦ ¦ § ¨ © n ª « ¬ ´ ® ¬ ® ¬ ¯ x ° q q o l o h z r t § z u | f e q � ¢ c [ Z ^ T � � Z T T Z Z T V ^b V [ \ ^ _ W \ V ^ T � n h i d t e l e q © d e f r l o h z u {
302

ITEM  25.



/ 0 1 2 0 3 4 2 3 0 0 2 / 5 3 3 6 7 5 3 4 2 3 0 0 2 8 9 : ; 0 < 3 5 = 0 9 2/ 0 7 : 3 > : ? ? 8 @ A 5 B :/ 6 2 C < 3 5 = 0 9 2 D 5 E F / G H H H G I J H KL � � ^ ^ V ^ T � ¢ Y S T T S V [ T � § g l m e y h z l f r y l � u u y h d e h g u e f µ o y e u o z y t | q e u q e u o ² zc V ^ � V ^ V \ R Z ^ � ^ V a Z T T S V [ _ ] T Z ^ � S W Z T � \ R Z [ b V [ \ ^ _ W \ V ^ T R _ ] ] Y _ S [ \ _ S [ S [ T X ^ _ [ W ZW V � Z ^ _ ~ Z a V ^ Z ^ ^ V ^ T � V Y S T T S V [ T _ [ U V \ R Z ^ c ^ V [ ~ a X ] _ W \ T V ^ V Y S T T S V [ T ¶ Z � W Z � \ a V ^S [ \ Z [ \ S V [ _ ] _ W \ T V ^ V Y S T T S V [ T � � _ ^ S T S [ ~ V X \ V a \ R Z � ^ V a Z T T S V [ _ ] T Z ^ � S W Z T � Z ^ a V ^ Y Z U} � b V [ \ ^ _ W \ V ^ � b V [ \ ^ _ W \ V ^ T R _ ] ] Y _ S [ \ _ S [ W V [ \ S [ X V X T � ^ ^ V ^ T � ¢ Y S T T S V [ TW V � Z ^ _ ~ Z a V ^ _ � Z ^ S V U W V Y Y Z [ W S [ ~ [ V ] _ \ Z ^ \ R _ [ \ R Z U _ \ Z V a \ R Z W V [ \ ^ _ W \ � _ [ UW V [ \ S [ X S [ ~ a V ^ _ � Z ^ S V U V a [ V ] Z T T \ R _ [ � � Z _ ^ T a ^ V Y \ R Z U _ \ Z V a W V Y � ] Z \ S V [ V a _ ] ]c V ^ � W V Y � ] Z \ Z U V ^ T Z ^ � S W Z T � Z ^ a V ^ Y Z U X [ U Z ^ \ R Z W V [ \ ^ _ W \ � Q R Z ] S Y S \ V a ] S _ } S ] S \ �T R _ ] ] [ V \ } Z ] Z T T \ R _ [ · N � £ £ £ � £ £ £ �O � ¨ e d r f r l o h z h g § z u | f e q � u ± f h µ o u o h z ¸ � a b V [ \ ^ _ W \ h f � u t o r ¹ o t o l p d h t o y o e u q h z h ly h z l r o z l m e u l r z q r f q § ¨ © u e d r f r l o h z h g o z u | f e q � u d f h µ o u o h z � h f r u | ¹ u l r z l o r t t pT S Y S ] _ ^ W ] _ X T Z � \ R Z � T R _ ] ] } Z Z [ U V ^ T Z U \ V � ^ V � S U Z W ^ V T T � ] S _ } S ] S \ � W V � Z ^ _ ~ Z �N £ � � S Y S \ T � � � ^ Z ` X S ^ S [ ~ \ R Z S [ T X ^ _ [ W Z _ T T Z \ V X \ S [ \ R S T b V [ \ ^ _ W \ � b S \ � U V Z T [ V \^ Z � ^ Z T Z [ \ \ R _ \ W V � Z ^ _ ~ Z _ [ U ] S Y S \ T c S ] ] [ Z W Z T T _ ^ S ] � } Z _ U Z ` X _ \ Z \ V � ^ V \ Z W \b V [ \ ^ _ W \ V ^ _ [ U T X W R W V � Z ^ _ ~ Z _ [ U ] S Y S \ T T R _ ] ] [ V \ } Z U Z Z Y Z U _ T _ ] S Y S \ _ \ S V [ V [n h z l f r y l h f � u t o r ¹ o t o l p | z q e f l m e o z q e i z o l o e u d f h µ o q e q l h n o l p o z l m o u n h z l f r y l v w m eb S \ � c S ] ] R _ � Z \ R Z ^ S ~ R \ _ \ _ [ � \ S Y Z \ V ^ Z ` X S ^ Z ] S _ } S ] S \ � S [ T X ^ _ [ W Z ~ ^ Z _ \ Z ^ \ R _ [ \ R _ \V \ R Z ^ c S T Z T � Z W S a S Z U S [ � � R S } S \ N � � a ^ Z ` X S ^ Z U � \ R Z _ U U S \ S V [ _ ] � ^ Z Y S X Y V ^ � ^ Z Y S X Y T� _ � _ } ] Z T R _ ] ] } Z _ U U Z U \ V \ R Z } S U � ^ S W Z �N N � � [ U Z Y [ S a S W _ \ S V [ ¶ º V ] U º _ ^ Y ] Z T T � ¥ ^ V � S T S V [ � Q V \ R Z a X ] ] Z T \ Z � \ Z [ \ � Z ^ Y S \ \ Z U} � ] _ c � \ R Z b V [ \ ^ _ W \ V ^ _ ~ ^ Z Z T \ V U Z a Z [ U � � _ � V [ } Z R _ ] a V a � S [ U Z Y [ S a � � _ [ U R V ] UR _ ^ Y ] Z T T \ R Z b S \ � V a b Z U _ ^ � _ ] ] T � � V c _ � S \ T Z ] Z W \ Z U _ [ U _ � � V S [ \ Z U V a a S W S _ ] T �U S ^ Z W \ V ^ T � Z Y � ] V � Z Z T � _ ~ Z [ \ T _ [ U � V ] X [ \ Z Z ^ T c V ^ � S [ ~ V [ } Z R _ ] a V a \ R Z b S \ � V ab Z U _ ^ � _ ] ] T � � V c _ _ ~ _ S [ T \ _ [ � _ [ U _ ] ] W ] _ S Y T � U Z Y _ [ U T � T X S \ T V ^ ] V T T � S [ W ] X U S [ ~_ [ � _ [ U _ ] ] V X \ ] _ � _ [ U Z � � Z [ T Z W V [ [ Z W \ Z U \ R Z ^ Z c S \ R � _ [ U a V ^ U _ Y _ ~ Z T c R S W RY _ � } Z _ T T Z ^ \ Z U � W ] _ S Y Z U V ^ ^ Z W V � Z ^ Z U _ ~ _ S [ T \ V ^ a ^ V Y \ R Z b S \ � V a b Z U _ ^ � _ ] ] T �� V c _ � S \ T Z ] Z W \ Z U _ [ U _ � � V S [ \ Z U V a a S W S _ ] T � U S ^ Z W \ V ^ T � Z Y � ] V � Z Z T � _ ~ Z [ \ T _ [ U� V ] X [ \ Z Z ^ T c V ^ � S [ ~ V [ } Z R _ ] a V a \ R Z b S \ � V a b Z U _ ^ � _ ] ] T � � V c _ � S [ W ] X U S [ ~ � } X \ [ V \] S Y S \ Z U \ V � U _ Y _ ~ Z T _ ^ S T S [ ~ } � ^ Z _ T V [ V a � Z ^ T V [ _ ] S [ � X ^ � � S [ W ] X U S [ ~ } V U S ] � S [ � X ^ � V ^U Z _ \ R � _ [ U � ^ V � Z ^ \ � U _ Y _ ~ Z T � c R S W R _ ^ S T Z T V X \ V a V ^ S T S [ _ [ � c _ � W V [ [ Z W \ Z U V ^_ T T V W S _ \ Z U c S \ R \ R Z c V ^ � _ [ U M V ^ T Z ^ � S W Z T � ^ V � S U Z U } � \ R Z b V [ \ ^ _ W \ V ^ \ V \ R Z b S \ � V ab Z U _ ^ � _ ] ] T � � V c _ � X ^ T X _ [ \ \ V \ R Z � ^ V � S T S V [ T V a \ R S T W V [ \ ^ _ W \ \ V \ R Z Z � \ Z [ \ _ ^ S T S [ ~V X \ V a \ R Z Z ^ ^ V ^ T � V Y S T T S V [ T V ^ [ Z ~ ] S ~ Z [ \ _ W \ T V a \ R Z b V [ \ ^ _ W \ V ^ � S \ T _ ~ Z [ \ T �Z Y � ] V � Z Z T � T X } W V [ \ ^ _ W \ V ^ T V ^ V \ R Z ^ T c V ^ � S [ ~ V [ } Z R _ ] a V a \ R Z b V [ \ ^ _ W \ V ^ � � \ S T\ R Z S [ \ Z [ \ S V [ V a \ R Z � _ ^ \ S Z T \ R _ \ \ R Z b S \ � V a b Z U _ ^ � _ ] ] T � � V c _ � S \ T Z ] Z W \ Z U _ [ U_ � � V S [ \ Z U V a a S W S _ ] T � U S ^ Z W \ V ^ T � Z Y � ] V � Z Z T � _ ~ Z [ \ T _ [ U � V ] X [ \ Z Z ^ T c V ^ � S [ ~ V [} Z R _ ] a V a \ R Z b S \ � V a b Z U _ ^ � _ ] ] T � � V c _ T R _ ] ] [ V \ } Z ] S _ } ] Z V ^ S [ _ [ � c _ �^ Z T � V [ T S } ] Z a V ^ \ R Z S [ � X ^ � � U _ Y _ ~ Z � ] S _ } S ] S \ � � ] V T T V ^ Z � � Z [ T Z S [ W X ^ ^ Z U } � \ R Zb V [ \ ^ _ W \ V ^ � S \ T V a a S W Z ^ T � Z Y � ] V � Z Z T � T X } W V [ \ ^ _ W \ V ^ T � _ [ U V \ R Z ^ T _ a a S ] S _ \ Z U c S \ R \ R Zb V [ \ ^ _ W \ V ^ U X Z \ V _ W W S U Z [ \ T � Y S T R _ � T � Y S T W V [ U X W \ � [ Z ~ ] S ~ Z [ W Z V ^ S [ � X ^ S Z T Z S \ R Z ^ S [� Z ^ T V [ V ^ � ^ V � Z ^ \ � ^ Z T X ] \ S [ ~ a ^ V Y \ R Z c V ^ � _ [ U M V ^ T Z ^ � S W Z T � Z ^ a V ^ Y Z U } � \ R Z
303

ITEM  25.



/ 0 1 2 0 3 4 2 3 0 0 2 / 5 3 3 6 7 5 3 4 2 3 0 0 2 8 9 : ; 0 < 3 5 = 0 9 2/ 0 7 : 3 > : ? ? 8 @ A 5 B :/ 6 2 C < 3 5 = 0 9 2 D 5 E F / G H H H G I J H Kb V [ \ ^ _ W \ V ^ � X ^ T X _ [ \ \ V \ R Z � ^ V � S T S V [ T V a \ R S T W V [ \ ^ _ W \ � Z � W Z � \ a V ^ _ [ U \ V \ R Z Z � \ Z [ \W _ X T Z U } � \ R Z [ Z ~ ] S ~ Z [ W Z V a \ R Z b S \ � V a b Z U _ ^ � _ ] ] T � � V c _ �Q R Z b V [ \ ^ _ W \ V ^ Z � � ^ Z T T ] � _ T T X Y Z T a X ] ] ^ Z T � V [ T S } S ] S \ � a V ^ U _ Y _ ~ Z T V ^ S [ � X ^ S Z Tc R S W R Y _ � ^ Z T X ] \ \ V _ [ � � Z ^ T V [ V ^ � ^ V � Z ^ \ � } � ^ Z _ T V [ V a V ^ S [ W V [ [ Z W \ S V [ c S \ R \ R Zc V ^ � _ [ U M V ^ T Z ^ � S W Z T � ^ V � S U Z U } � \ R Z b V [ \ ^ _ W \ V ^ \ V \ R Z b S \ � V a b Z U _ ^ � _ ] ] T � � V c _� X ^ T X _ [ \ \ V \ R S T W V [ \ ^ _ W \ \ V \ R Z Z � \ Z [ \ _ ^ S T S [ ~ V X \ V a \ R Z Z ^ ^ V ^ T � V Y S T T S V [ T V ^[ Z ~ ] S ~ Z [ \ _ W \ T V a \ R Z b V [ \ ^ _ W \ V ^ � S \ T _ ~ Z [ \ T � Z Y � ] V � Z Z T � T X } W V [ \ ^ _ W \ V ^ T V ^ V \ R Z ^ Tc V ^ � S [ ~ V [ } Z R _ ] a V a \ R Z b V [ \ ^ _ W \ V ^ � _ [ U _ ~ ^ Z Z T \ V � _ � \ R Z b S \ � V a b Z U _ ^ � _ ] ] T �� V c _ a V ^ _ ] ] U _ Y _ ~ Z T W _ X T Z U \ V \ R Z b S \ � V a b Z U _ ^ � _ ] ] T � � V c _ � ^ Z Y S T Z T ^ Z T X ] \ S [ ~a ^ V Y \ R Z c V ^ � _ [ U M V ^ T Z ^ � S W Z T V a \ R Z b V [ \ ^ _ W \ V ^ � S \ T V a a S W Z ^ T � Z Y � ] V � Z Z T �T X } W V [ \ ^ _ W \ V ^ T � _ [ U V \ R Z ^ T _ a a S ] S _ \ Z U c S \ R \ R Z b V [ \ ^ _ W \ V ^ \ V \ R Z Z � \ Z [ \ _ ^ S T S [ ~ V X \V a T X W R Z ^ ^ V ^ T � V Y S T T S V [ T V ^ [ Z ~ ] S ~ Z [ \ _ W \ T �Q R Z b V [ \ ^ _ W \ V ^ ^ Z � ^ Z T Z [ \ T \ R _ \ S \ T _ W \ S � S \ S Z T � X ^ T X _ [ \ \ V \ R Z � ^ V � S T S V [ T V a \ R S TW V [ \ ^ _ W \ c S ] ] } Z � Z ^ a V ^ Y Z U _ [ U T X � Z ^ � S T Z U } � _ U Z ` X _ \ Z ] � \ ^ _ S [ Z U _ [ U ` X _ ] S a S Z U� Z ^ T V [ [ Z ] � _ [ U \ R Z b V [ \ ^ _ W \ V ^ c S ] ] V } T Z ^ � Z � _ [ U W _ X T Z S \ T V a a S W Z ^ T � Z Y � ] V � Z Z T �T X } W V [ \ ^ _ W \ V ^ T _ [ U V \ R Z ^ T _ a a S ] S _ \ Z U c S \ R \ R Z b V [ \ ^ _ W \ V ^ \ V V } T Z ^ � Z _ ] ] _ � � ] S W _ } ] ZT _ a Z \ � ^ X ] Z T �N � � ¥ Z ^ a V ^ Y _ [ W Z _ [ U ¥ _ � Y Z [ \ � V [ U T � Q R Z b S \ � T R _ ] ] R _ � Z \ R Z ^ S ~ R \ \ V ^ Z ` X S ^ Z\ R Z b V [ \ ^ _ W \ V ^ \ V a X ^ [ S T R � Z ^ a V ^ Y _ [ W Z _ [ U � _ � Y Z [ \ } V [ U T a V ^ \ R Z a X ] ] _ Y V X [ \ V a\ R Z b V [ \ ^ _ W \ � ^ S W Z � Q R Z b V [ \ ^ _ W \ V ^ T R _ ] ] a X ^ [ S T R � } � _ T X ^ Z \ � _ [ U S [ _ a V ^ Yu r l o u g r y l h f p l h l m e n o l p � u | y m ¹ h z q u l h l m e n o l p � d f o h f l h l m e u l r f l h g n h z l f r y l h f � u¤ V ^ � � W V � Z ^ S [ ~ \ R Z � Z ^ a V ^ Y _ [ W Z V a \ R Z b V [ \ ^ _ W \ V ^ _ [ U \ R Z � _ � Y Z [ \ V a _ ] ]V } ] S ~ _ \ S V [ T _ ^ S T S [ ~ R Z ^ Z X [ U Z ^ � Q R Z b V [ \ ^ _ W \ V ^ � X � V [ ^ Z W Z S � \ V a \ R Z } V [ U T _ [ US [ � V S W Z a ^ V Y \ R Z T X ^ Z \ � � T R _ ] ] � _ � a V ^ \ R Z W V T \ V a T _ S U } V [ U T � � U U S \ S V [ _ ] } V [ U� ^ Z Y S X Y W V T \ T U X Z \ V Y V U S a S W _ \ S V [ T \ V \ R Z b V [ \ ^ _ W \ T R _ ] ] } Z S [ W ] X U Z U S [ \ R ZY V U S a S W _ \ S V [ _ Y V X [ \ T X } Y S \ \ Z U } � b V [ \ ^ _ W \ V ^ � _ [ U � _ S U } � b V [ \ ^ _ W \ V ^ �N � � ¤ _ S � Z ^ V a � X } ^ V ~ _ \ S V [ � Q V \ R Z Z � \ Z [ \ � Z ^ Y S \ \ Z U } � ] _ c � b V [ \ ^ _ W \ V ^ R Z ^ Z } �^ Z ] Z _ T Z T \ R Z b S \ � V a b Z U _ ^ � _ ] ] T � � V c _ � S \ T Z ] Z W \ Z U _ [ U _ � � V S [ \ Z U V a a S W S _ ] T � S \ TU S ^ Z W \ V ^ T � Z Y � ] V � Z Z T � _ ~ Z [ \ T _ [ U � V ] X [ \ Z Z ^ T c V ^ � S [ ~ V [ } Z R _ ] a V a \ R Z b S \ � V ab Z U _ ^ � _ ] ] T � � V c _ � a ^ V Y _ [ U _ ~ _ S [ T \ _ [ � _ [ U _ ] ] ] S _ } S ] S \ � V ^ ^ Z T � V [ T S } S ] S \ � \ V \ R Zb V [ \ ^ _ W \ V ^ V ^ _ [ � V [ Z W ] _ S Y S [ ~ \ R ^ V X ~ R V ^ X [ U Z ^ \ R Z b V [ \ ^ _ W \ V ^ } � c _ � V aT X } ^ V ~ _ \ S V [ V ^ V \ R Z ^ c S T Z � a V ^ _ [ � ] V T T V ^ U _ Y _ ~ Z \ V � ^ V � Z ^ \ � W _ X T Z U } � a S ^ Z V ^r z p h l m e f y r u | r t l p r z q g h f r z p t h u u q | e l h ¹ h q o t p o z » | f p l h n h z l f r y l h f � uZ Y � ] V � Z Z T � Q R S T � ^ V � S T S V [ T R _ ] ] } Z _ � � ] S W _ } ] Z _ [ U S [ a X ] ] a V ^ W Z _ [ U Z a a Z W \ V [ ] � c S \ R^ Z T � Z W \ \ V ] V T T V ^ U _ Y _ ~ Z V W W X ^ ^ S [ ~ U X ^ S [ ~ \ R Z \ S Y Z V a \ R S T W V [ \ ^ _ W \ V ^ _ ^ S T S [ ~ V X \V a l m e j h f k d e f g h f i e q | z q e f l m o u y h z l f r y l v w m e n h z l f r y l h f � u d h t o y o e u h g o z u | f r z y eT R _ ] ] W V [ \ _ S [ _ W ] _ X T Z V ^ Z [ U V ^ T Z Y Z [ \ \ V \ R Z Z a a Z W \ \ R _ \ T X W R ^ Z ] Z _ T Z T R _ ] ] [ V \_ U � Z ^ T Z ] � _ a a Z W \ V ^ S Y � _ S ^ T X W R � V ] S W S Z T V ^ � ^ Z � X U S W Z \ R Z ^ S ~ R \ V a \ R Z b V [ \ ^ _ W \ V ^ \ V^ Z W V � Z ^ \ R Z ^ Z X [ U Z ^ �
304

ITEM  25.



/ 0 1 2 0 3 4 2 3 0 0 2 / 5 3 3 6 7 5 3 4 2 3 0 0 2 8 9 : ; 0 < 3 5 = 0 9 2/ 0 7 : 3 > : ? ? 8 @ A 5 B :/ 6 2 C < 3 5 = 0 9 2 D 5 E F / G H H H G I J H K¼ ½ ¾ ¿ À Á Â Ã ½ Ä ¼ Å Á Æ Ç À Ã È Â
q

b Z ^ \ S a S W _ \ Z V a � S _ } S ] S \ � � [ T X ^ _ [ W Z ¶ � � _ ~ Z T �
q

� U U S \ S V [ _ ] � [ T X ^ Z U b � � £ N £ £   £ �
q

� U U S \ S V [ _ ] � [ T X ^ Z U b � � £ �   £   £ �
q

� V � Z ^ [ Y Z [ \ _ ] � Y Y X [ S \ S Z T � [ U V ^ T Z Y Z [ \

305

ITEM  25.



/ 0 1 2 0 3 4 2 3 0 0 2 / 5 3 3 6 7 5 3 4 2 3 0 0 2 8 9 : ; 0 < 3 5 = 0 9 2/ 0 7 : 3 > : ? ? 8 @ A 5 B :/ 6 2 C < 3 5 = 0 9 2 D 5 E F / G H H H G I J H K
b V Y Y Z ^ W S _ ] � Z [ Z ^ _ ] � S _ } S ] S \ �� Z [ Z ^ _ ] � ~ ~ ^ Z ~ _ \ Z · � � £ £ £ � £ £ £¥ ^ V U X W \ T � b V Y � ] Z \ Z U ¢ � Z ^ _ \ S V [ T � ~ ~ ^ Z ~ _ \ Z � S Y S \ · � � £ £ £ � £ £ £¥ Z ^ T V [ _ ] _ [ U � U � Z ^ \ S T S [ ~ � [ � X ^ � � S Y S \ · N � £ £ £ � £ £ £� _ W R ¢ W W X ^ ^ Z [ W Z � S Y S \ · N � £ £ £ � £ £ £� S ^ Z É _ Y _ ~ Z � S Y S \ ¶ _ [ � V [ Z V W W X ^ ^ Z [ W Z � · � £ � £ £ £� Z U S W _ ] ¥ _ � Y Z [ \ T · � � £ £ £� Ê Ë Ì Í Î Ï Ð Ñ Ò Ó Ï Ð Ô Õ Ñ Ö Ï Í Ï × Ø · N � £ £ £ � £ £ £� a \ R Z b V [ \ ^ _ W \ V ^ U V Z T [ V \ V c [ _ [ � � Z R S W ] Z T � W V � Z ^ _ ~ Z S T ^ Z ` X S ^ Z U V [ [ V [ � V c [ Z U_ [ U R S ^ Z U � Z R S W ] Z T �� \ _ \ X \ V ^ � a V ^ b V � Z ^ _ ~ Z �� Y � ] V � Z ^ T � S _ } S ] S \ � �� _ W R � W W S U Z [ \ · � £ £ � £ £ £� _ W R � Y � ] V � Z Z � É S T Z _ T Z · � £ £ � £ £ £¥ V ] S W � � S Y S \ � É S T Z _ T Z · � £ £ � £ £ £· � � £ £ £ � £ £ £Q R Z Ù Y } ^ Z ] ] _ M � � W Z T T � [ T X ^ _ [ W Z T R _ ] ] } Z c ^ S \ \ Z [ V [ _ � Z ^ V W W X ^ ^ Z [ W Z } _ T S T _ [ U S a\ R Z Ù Y } ^ Z ] ] _ M � � W Z T T S T [ V \ c ^ S \ \ Z [ V [ _ a V ] ] V c a V ^ Y } _ T S T S \ T R _ ] ] R _ � Z \ R Z T _ Y ZZ [ U V ^ T Z Y Z [ \ T _ T ^ Z ` X S ^ Z U V a \ R Z � ^ S Y _ ^ � � V ] S W � ¶ S Z T � � · N � £ £ £ � £ £ £

306

ITEM  25.



/ 0 1 2 0 3 4 2 3 0 0 2 / 5 3 3 6 7 5 3 4 2 3 0 0 2 8 9 : ; 0 < 3 5 = 0 9 2/ 0 7 : 3 > : ? ? 8 @ A 5 B :/ 6 2 C < 3 5 = 0 9 2 D 5 E F / G H H H G I J H KQ R Z b S \ � V a b Z U _ ^ � _ ] ] T � � V c _ � S [ W ] X U S [ ~ _ ] ] S \ T Z ] Z W \ Z U _ [ U _ � � V S [ \ Z U V a a S W S _ ] T � _ ] ]S \ T Z Y � ] V � Z Z T _ [ U � V ] X [ \ Z Z ^ T � _ ] ] S \ T } V _ ^ U T � W V Y Y S T T S V [ T _ [ U M V ^ _ X \ R V ^ S \ S Z T _ [ U\ R Z S ^ } V _ ^ U Y Z Y } Z ^ T � Z Y � ] V � Z Z T � _ [ U � V ] X [ \ Z Z ^ T � _ ^ Z S [ W ] X U Z U _ T � U U S \ S V [ _ ]� [ T X ^ Z U T � S [ W ] X U S [ ~ V [ ~ V S [ ~ V � Z ^ _ \ S V [ T b � � £ N £ £   £ � V ^ Z ` X S � _ ] Z [ \ � _ [ UW V Y � ] Z \ Z U V � Z ^ _ \ S V [ T b � � £ �   £   £ � V ^ Z ` X S � _ ] Z [ \ � � Z Z � � Z W S Y Z [ T �Q R S T W V � Z ^ _ ~ Z T R _ ] ] } Z � ^ S Y _ ^ � \ V \ R Z � U U S \ S V [ _ ] � [ T X ^ Z U T � _ [ U [ V \ W V [ \ ^ S } X \ S [ ~c S \ R _ [ � V \ R Z ^ S [ T X ^ _ [ W Z V ^ T S Y S ] _ ^ � ^ V \ Z W \ S V [ _ � _ S ] _ } ] Z \ V \ R Z � U U S \ S V [ _ ] � [ T X ^ Z U T �c R Z \ R Z ^ V \ R Z ^ _ � _ S ] _ } ] Z W V � Z ^ _ ~ Z } Z � ^ S Y _ ^ � � W V [ \ ^ S } X \ S [ ~ V ^ Z � W Z T T �
Ã Ä Æ À Ú Û Ã Ä ÜN � Ý V [ c _ S � Z ^ V a � V � Z ^ [ Y Z [ \ � Y Y X [ S \ � � Q R Z S [ T X ^ _ [ W Z W _ ^ ^ S Z ^ Z � � ^ Z T T ] �_ ~ ^ Z Z T _ [ U T \ _ \ Z T \ R _ \ \ R Z � X ^ W R _ T Z V a \ R S T � V ] S W � _ [ U \ R Z S [ W ] X U S [ ~ V a \ R Z b S \ � V ab Z U _ ^ � _ ] ] T � � V c _ _ T _ [ � U U S \ S V [ _ ] � [ T X ^ Z U U V Z T [ V \ c _ S � Z _ [ � V a \ R Z U Z a Z [ T Z T V a~ V � Z ^ [ Y Z [ \ _ ] S Y Y X [ S \ � _ � _ S ] _ } ] Z \ V \ R Z b S \ � V a b Z U _ ^ � _ ] ] T � � V c _ X [ U Z ^ b V U Z V a� V c _ � Z W \ S V [ �   £ � � _ T S \ [ V c Z � S T \ T _ [ U _ T S \ Y _ � } Z _ Y Z [ U Z U a ^ V Y \ S Y Z \ V \ S Y Z �� � b ] _ S Y T b V � Z ^ _ ~ Z � Q R Z S [ T X ^ _ [ W Z W _ ^ ^ S Z ^ a X ^ \ R Z ^ _ ~ ^ Z Z T \ R _ \ \ R S T � V ] S W � V aS [ T X ^ _ [ W Z T R _ ] ] W V � Z ^ V [ ] � \ R V T Z W ] _ S Y T [ V \ T X } � Z W \ \ V \ R Z U Z a Z [ T Z V a~ V � Z ^ [ Y Z [ \ _ ] S Y Y X [ S \ � X [ U Z ^ \ R Z b V U Z V a � V c _ � Z W \ S V [ �   £ � � _ T S \ [ V c Z � S T \ T_ [ U _ T S \ Y _ � } Z _ Y Z [ U Z U a ^ V Y \ S Y Z \ V \ S Y Z �� � � T T Z ^ \ S V [ V a � V � Z ^ [ Y Z [ \ � Y Y X [ S \ � � Q R Z b S \ � V a b Z U _ ^ � _ ] ] T � � V c _ T R _ ] ] } Z^ Z T � V [ T S } ] Z a V ^ _ T T Z ^ \ S [ ~ _ [ � U Z a Z [ T Z V a ~ V � Z ^ [ Y Z [ \ _ ] S Y Y X [ S \ � � _ [ U Y _ � U V T V_ \ _ [ � \ S Y Z _ [ U T R _ ] ] U V T V X � V [ \ R Z \ S Y Z ] � c ^ S \ \ Z [ ^ Z ` X Z T \ V a \ R Z S [ T X ^ _ [ W ZW _ ^ ^ S Z ^ � Ý V \ R S [ ~ W V [ \ _ S [ Z U S [ \ R S T Z [ U V ^ T Z Y Z [ \ T R _ ] ] � ^ Z � Z [ \ \ R Z W _ ^ ^ S Z ^ a ^ V Y_ T T Z ^ \ S [ ~ \ R Z U Z a Z [ T Z V a ~ V � Z ^ [ Y Z [ \ _ ] S Y Y X [ S \ � V [ } Z R _ ] a V a \ R Z b S \ � V a b Z U _ ^� _ ] ] T � � V c _ �� � Ý V [ � É Z [ S _ ] V a b V � Z ^ _ ~ Z � Q R Z S [ T X ^ _ [ W Z W _ ^ ^ S Z ^ T R _ ] ] [ V \ U Z [ � W V � Z ^ _ ~ ZX [ U Z ^ \ R S T � V ] S W � _ [ U \ R Z S [ T X ^ _ [ W Z W _ ^ ^ S Z ^ T R _ ] ] [ V \ U Z [ � _ [ � V a \ R Z ^ S ~ R \ T _ [ U} Z [ Z a S \ T _ W W ^ X S [ ~ \ V \ R Z b S \ � V a b Z U _ ^ � _ ] ] T � � V c _ X [ U Z ^ \ R S T � V ] S W � a V ^ ^ Z _ T V [ T V a~ V � Z ^ [ Y Z [ \ _ ] S Y Y X [ S \ � X [ ] Z T T _ [ U X [ \ S ] _ W V X ^ \ V a W V Y � Z \ Z [ \ � X ^ S T U S W \ S V [ R _ T^ X ] Z U S [ a _ � V ^ V a \ R Z U Z a Z [ T Z ¶ T � V a ~ V � Z ^ [ Y Z [ \ _ ] S Y Y X [ S \ � _ T T Z ^ \ Z U } � \ R Z b S \ � V ab Z U _ ^ � _ ] ] T � � V c _ �

307

ITEM  25.



/ 0 1 2 0 3 4 2 3 0 0 2 / 5 3 3 6 7 5 3 4 2 3 0 0 2 8 9 : ; 0 < 3 5 = 0 9 2/ 0 7 : 3 > : ? ? 8 @ A 5 B :/ 6 2 C < 3 5 = 0 9 2 D 5 E F / G H H H G I J H K� � Ý V ¢ \ R Z ^ b R _ [ ~ Z S [ ¥ V ] S W � � Q R Z S [ T X ^ _ [ W Z W _ ^ ^ S Z ^ _ [ U \ R Z b S \ � V a b Z U _ ^� _ ] ] T � � V c _ _ ~ ^ Z Z \ R _ \ \ R Z _ } V � Z � ^ Z T Z ^ � _ \ S V [ V a ~ V � Z ^ [ Y Z [ \ _ ] S Y Y X [ S \ S Z T T R _ ] ][ V \ V \ R Z ^ c S T Z W R _ [ ~ Z V ^ _ ] \ Z ^ \ R Z W V � Z ^ _ ~ Z _ � _ S ] _ } ] Z X [ U Z ^ \ R Z � V ] S W � �Q R S ^ \ � ¶ � £ � U _ � T � U � _ [ W Z ¤ ^ S \ \ Z [ Ý V \ S W Z V a b _ [ W Z ] ] _ \ S V [ � Ý V [ � � Z [ Z c _ ] �� Z U X W \ S V [ S [ W V � Z ^ _ ~ Z _ [ U M V ^ ] S Y S \ T _ [ U \ Z [ ¶ N £ � U _ � T c ^ S \ \ Z [ [ V \ S W Z V a [ V [ �� _ � Y Z [ \ V a � ^ Z Y S X Y T R _ ] ] } Z T Z [ \ \ V � � S T � � _ [ _ ~ Z Y Z [ \ ¢ a a S W Z � b S \ � V a b Z U _ ^� _ ] ] T � b S \ � º _ ] ] � � � £ b ] _ � � \ ^ Z Z \ � b Z U _ ^ � _ ] ] T � � V c _ � £ � N � � Q R S T Z [ U V ^ T Z Y Z [ \T X � Z ^ T Z U Z T \ R Z T \ _ [ U _ ^ U W _ [ W Z ] ] _ \ S V [ T \ _ \ Z Y Z [ \ V [ \ R Z b Z ^ \ S a S W _ \ Z V a � [ T X ^ _ [ W Z \ Vc R S W R \ R S T Z [ U V ^ T Z Y Z [ \ S T _ \ \ _ W R Z U � b V [ \ ^ _ W \ V ^ _ ~ ^ Z Z T \ V a X ^ [ S T R \ R Z b S \ � c S \ R � £U _ � T _ U � _ [ W Z c ^ S \ \ Z [ [ V \ S W Z V a W _ [ W Z ] ] _ \ S V [ � [ V [ � ^ Z [ Z c _ ] � ^ Z U X W \ S V [ S [ W V � Z ^ _ ~ Z_ [ U M V ^ ] S Y S \ T � _ [ U N £ U _ � T _ U � _ [ W Z c ^ S \ \ Z [ [ V \ S W Z V a [ V [ � � _ � Y Z [ \ V a � ^ Z Y S X Y �

308

ITEM  25.



309

ITEM  25.



310

ITEM  25.



311

ITEM  25.



312

ITEM  25.



313

ITEM  25.



314

ITEM  25.



315

ITEM  25.



316

ITEM  25.



317

ITEM  25.



318

ITEM  25.



319

ITEM  25.



320

ITEM  25.



321

ITEM  25.



Þ ß à á ß â ã á â ß ß á Þ ä â â å æ ä â ã á â ß ß á ç è é ê ß ë â ä ì ß è áÞ ß æ é â í é î î ç ï ð ä ñ éÞ å á ò ë â ä ì ß è á ó ä ô õ Þ ö ÷ ÷ ÷ ö ø ù ÷ ú
û ü ý ü ý þÿ � � � � � � � � � � � ÿ � � � � � � � 	 � 	 � � ÿ 
 � � � � � � � � � � ÿ � � � � � � �� � � � � � � � � � ÿ �  � � � � 
 � � � � � � 
 � ÿ ÿ 	 � � � � ÿ � � � 	 � � ÿ � � � �  � � 	 � � � 
� � � � � 
 � � � ÿ� � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � �  � �  ! � � � ! � �  � � " � � � � � � � � � # � !  � � " � � � !  � � � ! �$ � � % � ! # � ! � $ � ! & � ! � � ! ' � � � � # � ! � � � " � � ( � # " � �  ! )  � � � � � � � !  � � � � !  � � * � � � � � ! � +, - . / 0 1 2 3 0 . 1 4 5 2 6 7 6 8 9 : / 0 ; : 6 � � � � � � � � + � � � � � � � �  � � � < � � � � ! +  �  ! � � � � � � � +  � �  � ( � � � � !� � � � < � % ! � # � � � � � �  � % ! � ' � � � � < % ! � # � � � � � �  � � � ! ' � � � � � � � � � " � � ( � # " � �  ! )  � � � + = � $  +� � � � !  � � � � !  � � > ? � � � @ � � � � � � � � � � � ! � � � � � � � � � � !  � � � ! � A *B * � � � � " � � � !  � � �  ( � � � ? � � � � � # � � � � !  � � � � � � � @ � � % � ? (  $ ! � � � � < � � < � � �? (  �  � � � � ! � C � � ! � % ! � � � � �  � � ' � � # � � � " � � ( � # " � �  ! )  � � �  � � � # � � � " � � � !  � � � ! *D * � � � � � � � # � � � � � � � � � � � # � � � � " � � � !  � � *E * " � � � !  � � � ! � �  � � ? �  � � � � � % � � � � � � � � � � !  � � � ! $ � � � ! � � % � � � � � � � � � � ! ' � � � �� � ? � % � ! # � ! � � � � � � � ! � � � � " � � � !  � � * F � � � � � ! " � � � !  � � � ! � � ! � � � � � ? � � � � !  � � � ! � +  < � � � � +� ! � � % � � ( � � � + � �  � � ? � � � � � � � � � ? � � � % � � ( � � � � !  < � � � � � # � � � " � � ( *G * " � � � !  � � � ! � �  � � % � ! # � ! �  � � � � � � � � � �  � � � ! �  � � � $ � � �  � �  % % � � �  ? � �# � � � !  � + � �  � �  � � � � �  � �  $ �  � � ! � < � �  � � � � � *H * = # " � � � !  � � � ! ? ! �  � � � � � � � � " � � � !  � � + � � � " � � ( � �  � � �  ' �  � � ! � � � � � � � '  � �  ? � � � � � �  � �  $ � ! � � � I � � � ( *J * � � ' � !  ? � � � � ( * = #  � ( % ! � ' � � � � � � # � � � � " � � � !  � � � � � � � �  ! � � � � '  � � � + � � � � <  � + � !� � �  %  ? � � � # ? � � � < � � # � ! � � � ? (  � ( � � � ! � � # � � � % � � � � � K � ! � � � � � � � � � +  � � � # � � � ! � �  � � � � <% ! � ' � � � � � � � # � � � � " � � � !  � � � �  � � � � ' � ! � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � # � � � # � ! � �  � � � # # � � � +  � � � �% ! � ' � � � � � � �  � � ? � � � � � � � � � % � � � � � � � % � �  � ( � � � � ! % ! � ' � � � � � � � � � � � � � � @ % ! � � � � �� � ! � � � * L * M � � � < � � � � � * " � � � !  � � � ! �  ( � � �  � � � < � � � � � " � � � !  � � � !  � ( � # � � � ! � < � � �� ! � ? � � <  � � � � � � � ! � � � � � ! + $ � � � � � � � � � % ! � � ! $ ! � � � � � � � � � � � � � # � � � " � � ( + $ � � � � � � � � � � ��  ( ? � $ � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � �  � �  ? � � � � � � � � � � ! � � � � � � # � � � " � � ( *N * � � ! ' � '  � � # O ? � � <  � � � � � * M � � � ? � � <  � � � � �  � � � � � � � � $ � � � � ? ( � � � � ! �  � � ! �� @ � � � � ? � ( � � � � � � � � ! � � # � � � � " � � � !  � � � �  � � � � ! ' � ' � � � � � @ % � !  � � � � � ! � � ! � � �  � � � � � # � � � �" � � � !  � � *

322

ITEM  25.



Þ ß à á ß â ã á â ß ß á Þ ä â â å æ ä â ã á â ß ß á ç è é ê ß ë â ä ì ß è áÞ ß æ é â í é î î ç ï ð ä ñ éÞ å á ò ë â ä ì ß è á ó ä ô õ Þ ö ÷ ÷ ÷ ö ø ù ÷ úP * Q � ' � ! � � � < R  $ S T � ! � � � � � � � � � S U � � � �  � � � ! �  � * � � � � " � � � !  � � � �  � � ? �� � � � � ! � � � � �  � � � ! �  � � � $ � � � +  � �  � � � � � % � � � � � � ! � � � � � ! � �  � � ? � < � ' � ! � � � ? ( + � � � �  $ �� # � � � � �  � � � # = � $  + � @ � � � � � � < � � � � � � # � � � � � � # �  $ ! � � � � * � � � %  ! � � � � � � ! � � �  < ! � � � �  �� � � � @ � � � � � ' � K � ! � � � � � � � � �  � � ' � � � � � �  � � ? � � � � � � = � $  V � � � ! � � � " � � ! � # � ! W �  � & X  $ &" � � � � ( +  � � � � � � � � � � ! K � ! � � � � � � � � � � ! � � �  � � � � +  � � � �  � � � � � ? � ! � � � ' � � � � # � � � !  �� � � ! � * � � � %  ! � � � � � � ! � ? (  < ! � � � � $  � ' � � � � ! � < � � � � � ! �  � ? ( K � ! (  � �  < ! � � � � � � ? � � �  � �� � � % � � � � � �  � ! �  � ? ( K � � < �  � � � � * � � � %  ! � � � �  < ! � � � �  � � � � � � % � � � � � � � � ! � � � � " � � � !  � �� �  � � ? � � � ? � � � � � � � � ? � � � � � <  ! ? � � !  � � � � + ? � � �  ( ? � � � ? � � � � � � � � � � � �  � � � � ? ( � � � �  �� � � � � � � � # ? � � � %  ! � � � � *B Y * M � ( #  � � � ! � � # " � � � !  � � � ! � � � � � % � ( $ � � � � � � = � � � !  � � � Z � I � � ! � � � � � � # � !" � � � !  � � � ! � # � ! � � � " � � ( � # " � �  ! )  � � � � � � # � ! � � � � M � �  � � � � � � M + � �  � � � � � � � � � � � �  � � #  � � � � � � � ! � � � � " � � � !  � � *B B * [ 0 0 . 1 / 8 \ 6 ] ^ 8 8 6 _ ` / 0 ; 8 8 a 8 / 0 . b c : 0 : d 2 0 : . / 4 0 ; 8 - : 0 \ 6 ; 2 c c 7 / 9 8 1 / .3 : 1 3 7 e 6 0 2 / 3 8 6 f 8 . f c : d 2 0 8 9 b . 1 g 2 \ e 8 / 0 . b 2 / \ 2 0 0 . 1 / 8 \ 6 ] b 8 8 6 . b - . / 0 1 2 3 0 . 1 . 1 2 / \ . 0 ; 8 1%  ! � ( +  ! � � � � < � � � � # � � � � � � � � <  � � � � *B D * h 2 \ e 8 / 0 _ h 2 \ e 8 / 0 . b - . / 0 1 2 3 0 . 1 ] 6 : / a � � � � � � �  � � ? � � � � � � � � � � � ! � �  �� � � ! � ( > E Y A �  ( � # ! � � � � � �  � � � # � � ' � � � � * = � � � � � ' � � �  � ( � � ' � � � � �  ! � � � � %  � � $ � � � � �� � � ! � ( > E Y A �  ( � + � � � " � � ( � �  � � %  ( � � � � ! � � � � � � ! � � �  � � � � !  � � % ! � ' � � � � # � ! ? (� � � � � � � J J N * B E > E A + " � � � � # = � $  + � � � % � � � � � � � � � � ( *B E * � � � " � � ( � �  � � � � � ? � � ? � � <  � � � � � �  � � �  � � � � � # � � � � � �  � � � ( � # " � � � !  � � � !� � � � � � � � � � ! ! � � � ! � � � �  �  ! � # � ! � � � � � � � � � � � " � � ( � # � � � � � � � � � � � � �  ! � % � ? � � � ! � � � ! � �� � � � ! � � � = � $  O % � � Z � � � ! � � R  $ + " �  % � � ! D D + " � � � � # = � $  +  � � � � � " � � ( � �  � � �  ' �� � ! � � % � � � � ? � � � � ( � � " � � � !  � � � ! # � ! � � � � � � � � ! � � # � � � � ! � � � ! � � *B G * i � � � ! � � � � ! � � � � �  � � � � � �  � � � � � " � � ( $  � ' �  � ( �  �  < � �  <  � � � � � � �" � � � !  � � � ! � !  � ( � � � � ! %  ! � (  ! � � � � < � � � � #  � ( ? ! �  � � � # � � � � " � � � !  � � + $ � � � � � !� � � � � I � � � � �  � + � � � � ! � � � + � % � � �  � + � ! % � � � � � ' � �  �  < � � *B H * j / 9 8 1 / . 3 : 1 3 7 e 6 0 2 / 3 8 6 6 ; 2 c c 0 ; 8 - . / 0 1 2 3 0 . 1 ] 6 c : 2 f : c : 0 \ 0 . 0 ; 8 - : 0 \ f 8� � � � � � � � �  � ( � % � � � # � �  � � � � � � ! � � � + $ � � � � � ! � �  �  � � � � � � � � � � � � � % � � �  � � � � %  � � ? (� � � " � � ( � � � � � " � � � !  � � � ! � � � � ! � � � � " � � � !  � � + � ! � � � � � � �  !  � � � � � � # � � ' � !  < � % ! � ' � � � �# � ! � � � � � = � � � !  � � � Z � I � � ! � � � � � � # � ! " � � � !  � � � ! � # � ! � � � " � � ( � # " � �  ! )  � � � + M � �  � � � � � �M * B J * k . l 2 : a 8 1 . b 0 ; 8 - : 0 \ ] 6 6 7 f 1 . d 2 0 : . / 1 : d ; 0 6 2 d 2 : / 6 0 0 ; 8 - . / 0 1 2 3 0 . 1 . 1 2 / \� � � � ! %  ! � ( � �  � � � � � # � � � � $ � � � � � � % ! � ' � � � � � � � # � � � " � � ( = � � � !  � � � Z � I � � ! � � � � � � +M � �  � � � � � � M *B L * R � � � �  � � � � � m � ! � � � * � � � ! � � �  � � ? � � � � � � � �  � � � � + � @ � � % �  � % ! � ' � � � � # � ! ? (= � $  �  $ + � � � � � % � ! � � � � # � � � � $ � � � � � $ � � � � � � � " � � ( �  ( �  & �  � ( � �  � �  <  � � � � � � �" � � � !  � � � ! � ! � � � � ! %  ! � ( � � � � ! � � � % ! � ' � � � � � � � # � � � � " � � � !  � � *B N * � � � � " � � � !  � � � �  � � � � � ? � ? � � � � � < � � � � � " � � ( � � � � � �  � � � � � � �  % % ! � ' � �? ( � � � " � � ( " � � � � � � � # � � � " � � (  �  � � � ( � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � < +  � � � � < � � � ? ( � � � n  ( � ! � � " � � ( " � � ! & � # � � � " � � ( *
323

ITEM  25.



Þ ß à á ß â ã á â ß ß á Þ ä â â å æ ä â ã á â ß ß á ç è é ê ß ë â ä ì ß è áÞ ß æ é â í é î î ç ï ð ä ñ éÞ å á ò ë â ä ì ß è á ó ä ô õ Þ ö ÷ ÷ ÷ ö ø ù ÷ úB P * o  ! !  � � � � � * " � � � !  � � � ! ! � % ! � � � � � �  � � $  ! !  � � � � �  �  � � � � ! ' � � � �# � ! � � � � � � � � � � � " � � ( � � � � ! � � � � " � � � !  � � � �  � � ? � # � ! � � � � � � � �  � & � � � � �  � � $ � ! & �  � � � & ��  � � � ! + � �  � � � ! �  � � � $ � � � � � � � � < ! � � � # � & � � �  � � �  ! � � �  � � � ! � I � � ! � � ? ( � � ! ! � � � + < � � �2 / 9 6 . 7 / 9 g 1 2 3 0 : 3 8 6 2 g g c : 3 2 f c 8 0 . 0 ; 8 - . / 0 1 2 3 0 . 1 ] 6 : / 9 7 6 0 1 \ . 1 % ! � # � � � � � � +  � �  �� � � � ! $ � � � ! � I � � ! � � ? (  % % � � �  ? � � �  $ *D Y * ) � ! � � n  K � � ! � * F � � � � � ! %  ! � ( � � � � � � " � � � !  � � � �  � � ? � � �  ? � � � � � � � � � � � !%  ! � ( # � ! � � �  ( � � � % � ! # � ! � � � < � � � � � ! ' � � � � + � ! # � ! � � � � � ! � � � � ! � � � � ! � � � � � � � ! � � � � � � � < # ! � �� � � � � � �  ( � + � �  � �  ( ! � � � � � # ! � �  � � � � # Q � � +  � � � � # < � ' � ! � � � � �  �  � � � � ! � � � � � +� @ � !  � ! � � �  ! ( $ �  � � � ! � � � � � � � � � � � ! � � � � ! �  � � !  � �  �  � � ! � % � � � + � !  � ( � � � � ! �  � � �? � ( � � � � � � ! �  � � �  ? � � � � � � ! � � � ! � � � � � � % �  � � � � � # � � � � � ! %  ! � ( * p  � � %  ! � ( $ � � � �  & �! �  � � �  ? � � � � � % � � � � � � � <  � � � � � � � %  � � � #  � ( # � ! � � �  K � � ! � *

324

ITEM  25.



DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-273-8600 
Fax: 319-273-8610 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 

MEMORANDUM 
Planning & Community Services Division 

  

   

 

 

 
 
 
 

 TO: Honorable Mayor James P. Brown and City Council 

 FROM: Karen Howard, Planning & Community Services Manager 

 DATE: September 12, 2019 

 SUBJECT: Temporary Wheat-Pasting Murals in College Hill for UNI Homecoming 
 

 
REQUEST: 

 
Request to approve a College Hill Neighborhood Overlay District Site Plan for 
multiple temporary mural installations in the College Hill Business District 
(Project #DR19-007) 
 

PETITIONER: 
 

Fortepan Iowa / College Hill Partnership 

LOCATION: Multiple locations  
 

 

 
PROPOSAL 
This request is quite unique and is time-sensitive. It involves multiple temporary mural 
installations around the College Hill Business District to celebrate the history of UNI and College 
Hill. The murals are made of a biodegradable, non-destructive artform called wheatpasting, 
which adheres large prints of paper to the exterior facades of buildings. These installations do 
not damage or change the façades of the building and can be removed by power washing. This 
project is funded in part by an Iowa Arts Council Grant, the University of Northern Iowa Alumni 
Foundation, and the College Hill Partnership.  
 
BACKGROUND 
The artist, Mr. Isaac Campbell, will collaborate with professors at UNI and the College Hill 
Partnership and participating College Hill property owners to select a series of historic images to 
be featured. In the words of the applicants, “the pastings will be connected with a tasteful, 
unifying theme.”  They will be installed by volunteers on October 5 in conjunction with UNI 
Homecoming festivities.  
 
ANALYSIS 
The applicants have submitted a proposal for up to 5 separate installations with a number of 
potential façade locations throughout the College Hill Business District. It is anticipated that the 
locations and the proposed images will be determined by September 16 and will be presented to 
the Council at the Committee of the Whole meeting prior to consideration of a resolution to 
approve at the formal Council meeting. Potential locations are included in the applicant’s 
proposal, which is attached. Staff notes that while this proposal is for a temporary installation of 

325

ITEM  26.



public art, it was worthy of public discussion. The locations are all located within the College Hill 
Neighborhood Overlay Zoning District, which requires review of murals by the Planning & 
Zoning Commission and the City Council.  
 
The applicable section of the College Hill Overlay Zoning District review standards for the 
commercial district, states in relevant part, “Exterior mural wall drawings, painted artwork and 
exterior painting of any structure within the commercial district shall be subject to review by the 
Planning and Zoning Commission and approval by the City Council for the purpose of 
considering scale, context, coloration, and appropriateness of the proposal in relation to nearby 
facades and also in relation to the prevailing character of the commercial district.”  
 
Staff finds that the proposal to install photographic images showcasing life in and around 
College Hill and UNI using wheat-pasting, is an excellent example of public art used for 
community building. The wheatpastings are consistent with the intent of the ordinance, given 
these images are not painted or otherwise permanently affixed to building facades, will not 
damage the building facades, and can be removed by simply washing them off at any time 
deemed appropriate due to deterioration or for any other reason determined by the property 
owner. Staff also notes that the images will be chosen by the artist in consultation with 
professors from UNI and the College Hill Partnership and property owners. Given the short 
timeframe, staff has suggested to the applicants that a more specific proposal for locations and 
images be prepared for presentation to the City Council at the Committee of the Whole meeting 
on September 16 with consideration of a resolution for approval at the formal meeting to follow. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
The proposed request to install wheat-pasted murals meets all of the College Hill Neighborhood 
Overlay Zoning District and Zoning Ordinance requirements and would not be out of character 
for this neighborhood. Staff recommends approval of the proposal for installation of wheat-
pasted murals in the College Hill Business District, subject to review of the particular images 
and locations by the City Council.  
 
PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION 
Discussion/Vote 
9/11/2019 

Howard introduced the item and noted that a representative from Fortepan 
Iowa was present and prepared to make a presentation about the mural 
project. Holst invited the applicant to speak. Bettina Fabos, professor at UNI, 
presented an overview of Fortepan Iowa and the specific proposal to install 
wheat-pastings in the College Hill Business District in time for the UNI 
Homecoming Festivities. She noted that a more specific proposal would be 
determined to present to the City Council.  
 
Commission members expressed support for the project.  The Commission 
voted 7-0 (Adkins absent) to recommend approval of DR19-007, a request to 
install wheat-pasted murals in the College Hill District. 

 

326

ITEM  26.



PROPOSAL 
PASTING COLLEGE HILL | HOMECOMING 2019 

 
INSTALL DATE: OCTOBER 5TH, 2019 
 
OVERVIEW 

To celebrate the 2019 Homecoming festivities, we are proposing a series of 
temporary mural installations throughout the College Hill district. The murals are made 
of a biodegradable, non destructive artform called wheatpasting - where water and flour 
are combined to create a glue which adheres large prints of paper to the exterior 
facades of buildings. The prints can be removed with a power washer if they become 
damaged. The project will be lead by UNI Graduate Student Isaac Campbell, whose 
work has been featured both locally and internationally, and who most recently 
collaborated with world renowned street artist JR on an installation at the Louvre in 
Paris, France. This project is funded in part by an Iowa Arts Council Grant, the 
University of Northern Iowa Alumni Foundation, and the College Hill Partnership.  
 
DETAILS 

Mr. Campbell will collaborate with the Fortepan Iowa Team (Dr. Bettina Fabos 
and Professor Noah Doely) to select a series of historic images, primarily of people - to 
be featured as the subjects for the installations. The pastings will be connected with a 
tasteful, unifying theme. The pastings will be installed by Mr. Campbell and a small 
team of volunteers on October 5th, in conjunction with the Homecoming Parade and 
Homecoming Festivities. 
 
PRICING 

Pricing is listed for one pasting and an entire project estimate. All prices are 
approximated. Printing will be done at Copyworks on the Hill. Boom lift quote is from 
Black Hawk Rentals in Cedar Falls. Additional suggestions for cheaper boom lift rates 
are appreciated and welcomed. Artist honorarium ($1,250) is being provided at no cost 
with support from the University of Northern Iowa Communications Department for Mr. 
Campbell’s work as a graduate assistant.  
 

One pasting pricing is given to reference the suggested project estimate of 5 
pastings. The total number of pastings is up for discussion. 
 
 
 

327

ITEM  26.



 
ONE PASTING (estimate as sizes may vary) 
------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------ 
Printed Materials (Copyworks) $0.50 per square foot + tax 

9’ x 25’         $125.00 
Water & Flour           $10.00 
Boom Lift (per day)          $200.00 
Boom Lift Delivery         $225.00 
Artist Honorarium (time to prepare and install)    -no charge- 

  
GRAND TOTAL         $560.00  

 
 
 
 

 
 

PROJECT ESTIMATE ( 5 installations - estimate as sizes may vary) 
------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------ 
Printed Materials (Copyworks) $0.50 per square foot + tax 

(9’ x 25’) x 5         $625.00 
Water & Flour           $40.00 
Boom Lift (per day)          $200.00 
Boom Lift Delivery         $225.00 
Artist Honorarium    -no charge- 

 
SUBTOTAL      $1,090.00 
 
University of Northern Iowa Alumni Association                 (-$300.00) 
Iowa Arts Council Funding     (-$150.00) 

 
GRAND TOTAL         $640.00 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

328

ITEM  26.



LOCATION SUGGESTIONS 
Below are suggestions for potential pasting locations. All pasting locations will be 

secured with permission from building owners through the College Hill Partnership.  
 

 

329

ITEM  26.



 

330

ITEM  26.



331

ITEM  26.



332

ITEM  26.



333

ITEM  26.



334

ITEM  26.



335

ITEM  26.



 

336

ITEM  26.



DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-273-8600 
Fax: 319-273-8610 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 

MEMORANDUM 

Administration Division 

  

  

 

 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 TO: Mayor Brown and City Council  

 FROM: Stephanie Houk Sheetz, AICP, Director of Community Development 

 DATE: September 12, 2019 

 SUBJECT: Amendment to HOME Investment Partnership Program Consortium  
  Cooperation Agreement 
   
 
In July, Council approved a new 3-year HOME Investment Partnership Program 
Consortium Cooperation Agreement.  City of Waterloo is the administrator of the HOME 
Consortium and they provided a copy to HUD.  They were recently notified by the U.S. 
Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD) of several changes needed to 
the agreement.  The changes do not concern staff, but given City Council had already 
approved the agreement, we are seeking Council review and approval of the amended 
agreement.  A tracked changes version has been attached as well as a clean copy. 
 
The Department of Community Development recommends the City Council approve the 
amended HOME Investment Partnership Program Consortium Cooperation Agreement. 
 
Please contact me with any questions.   Thank you. 

337

ITEM  27.



  

1 of 8 

 

HOME INVESTMENT PARTNERSHIP PROGRAM 

CONSORTIUM COOPERATION AGREEMENT 

FEDERAL FISCAL YEARS 2020, 2021 AND 2022 

    (July October 1, 2019 to June September 30, 2022 ) 

 
Federal City Program Years 2019, 2020, 2021 

(October July 1, 2019 to September June 30, 2022) 

 
 

THIS CONSORTIUM COOPERATION AGREEMENT is entered into by and between 

the City of Cedar Falls, a Municipal Corporation in Black Hawk County, Iowa (sometimes 

hereinafter referred to as the "City") and the City of Waterloo, a Municipal Corporation in Black 

Hawk County, Iowa (hereinafter referred to as the "Lead Entity") for the purpose of continuing a 

HOME Consortium pursuant to the HOME Investment Partnerships Act (hereinafter referred to 

as the "HOME Program"); Title II of the Cranston-Gonzales National Affordable Housing Act, 

as amended (42 U.S.C. 12701 et seq.) (hereinafter referred to as the "Act"). 

 

WHEREAS, Section 216(2) of the Act provides that a consortium of geographically 

contiguous units of general local government is considered a unit of general local government for 

purposes of the Home Investment Partnerships Program if the Secretary of the U.S. Department 

of Housing and Urban Development (hereinafter referred to as "HUD") determines that the 

consortium has sufficient authority and administrative capability to carry out the purposes of the 

Act on behalf of its member jurisdictions and will direct its activities to the alleviation of housing 

problems within States; and, 

 

WHEREAS, in accordance with Section 217(b)(3) of the Act, HUD will include, as 

jurisdictions eligible to receive allocations of HOME funds by formula, approved consortia of 

units of general local government; and, 

 

WHEREAS, the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, and the City of Waterloo, Iowa, desire to 

enter into a HOME Program Consortium Agreement for the purpose of expanding the supply of 

decent, safe, sanitary and affordable housing for low and moderate-income residents. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of these mutual covenants, the City of Cedar 

Falls, Iowa, and the City of Waterloo, Iowa do hereby agree as follows: 

 

SECTION 1.     DEFINITIONS-ABBREVIATIONS 

 

1.1 "City" shall mean - the City of Cedar Falls, an Iowa Municipal Corporation. 

 

1.2 "Lead Entity" shall mean - the City of Waterloo, an Iowa Municipal Corporation. 

 

1.3 "HUD" shall mean - the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development. 

 

1.4 "Act" shall mean - the Cranston-Gonzales National Affordable Housing Act, as amended 

338

ITEM  27.



  

2 of 8 

 

(42 U.S.C. 12701 et seq.). 

 

1.5 "HOME Program" shall mean - the program conducted under the provision of the 

Cranston-Gonzales National Affordable Housing Act, Title II, Subtitle A - HOME 

Investment Partnerships Program (P.L. 101-625) and the Code of Federal Regulations 

(24 CFR Part 92). 

 

1.6 "HOME Funds" shall mean - HOME Program Entitlement Grant Funds awarded by the 

Secretary of HUD to the Consortium in accordance with the allocation formula 

prescribed by HUD. 

 

1.7 "Consortium" or "HOME Consortium" shall mean - a consortium of geographically 

contiguous units of general local government, which HUD treats as a single unit of local 

government under the HOME Program, formed for the purpose of furthering the 

objectives of the HOME Program.  Under this Agreement, the cities of Cedar Falls and 

Waterloo comprise the HOME Consortium. 

 

1.8 "Housing Unit or Units" shall mean - decent, safe, sanitary and affordable housing 

developed or assisted with HOME Funds pursuant to this Agreement. 

 

1.9 "Qualification Period" shall mean - the Federal Fiscal Years for which the HOME 

Consortium is to qualify to receive allocations as a participating jurisdiction in the 

HOME Program. 

 

SECTION 2.     RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE PARTIES 

 

2.1 Pursuant to this Agreement, the City and the Lead Entity agree to cooperate to undertake 

or to assist in undertaking housing assistance activities for the HOME Program. 

 

2.2 The Lead Entity shall act in a representative capacity for all member units of general 

local government, or the Consortium members, for the purposes of the HOME Program. 

 

2.3 The Lead Entity shall assume overall responsibility for ensuring that the Consortium's 

HOME Program is carried out in compliance with the requirements of the HOME 

Program, including requirements concerning a Consolidated Submission of Community 

Planning and Development Programs ("Consolidated Plan") in accordance with HUD 

regulation in 24 CFR Parts 91 and 92.   

 

2.3.1 This Agreement does not contain a provision for veto or other restriction that 

would allow any member unit of local government to obstruct the implementation of the 

Consortium's approved Consolidated Plan. 

 

2.3.2 The 5- Year Consolidated Plan document shall be prepared by Lead Entity in 

collaboration with staff from City.  If a consulting firm is hired to prepare said document, 

Lead Entity and City will come to a mutually acceptable agreement to split the cost of the 

339

ITEM  27.



  

3 of 8 

 

consulting firm.   

 

2.3.3 Lead Entity and City agree that necessary adjustments to the Consolidated Plan 

development process will be made when necessary as required by the United States 

Department of Housing and Urban Development, including, but not limited to, any 

Consolidated Plan process. 

 

2.3.4 The Lead Entity shall initiate the 5-Year Consolidated Plan and Annual Action 

Plans in IDIS for Lead Entity and City, and submit to HUD on IDIS.   Annual reporting 

(CAPER) will be completed by each entity separately in IDIS. 

 

2.4 The Lead Entity and/or City if necessary, shall secure from the State of Iowa a written 

certification that the Consortium will direct its activities to the alleviation of housing 

problems within the State of Iowa. 

 

 

2.5 The Lead Entity shall submit to HUD the required HOME Consortia qualification 

documents including required certifications and a fully executed Consortium Cooperation 

Agreement. 

 

2.6 The Lead Entity and the City shall act affirmatively to further fair housing by: 

 

2.6.1 Employing affirmative marketing procedures in the advertising and marketing 

of Housing Units, and 

 

2.6.2 Conforming to the non-discrimination provisions hereinafter set forth. 

 

2.7 Lead Entity, after approval by City, is hereby authorized to amend this Consortium 

Agreement, on behalf of the Consortium, for the purpose of adding new members to the 

Consortium. 

 

 2.7.1 Should it become necessary to change the language of this Agreement to meet 

HUD approval, without making major changes and without altering the intent of the 

Agreement, such changes may be made administratively with written consent of the 

Consortium staff. 

 

 2.7.2 This Agreement may be amended for purposes other than those described in 2.7 

and 2.7.1 above by written Agreement of the Lead Entity and City. 

 

2.8 Lead Entity and City each shall be solely responsible for such individual financial and/or 

legal responsibilities which may arise from participation as a member of this Consortium. 

 

2.9 Lead Entity and City each shall be solely responsible for the administration of their 

respective HOME Programs including: 

 

340

ITEM  27.



  

4 of 8 

 

 

 

2.9.1 The development of Housing Units within their respective jurisdictions, and the 

use of any public or private funds or loans, or other means of financial 

assistance. 

 

2.9.2 Additionally, any real or personal property acquired pursuant to this Agreement 

shall be acquired and maintained in the name of the individual Consortium 

member performing the acquisition. 

 

2.9.3 Members will abide by their own local codes and standards but acknowledge 

that in federally funded projects, they are subject to the regulations for 

addressing lead-paint hazards. 

 

2.10  Match obligations will be met for City by using carryover match funds reported by Lead 

Entity. 

 

2.11  Program Income generated by Lead Entity or City with HOME funds will be accounted 

for in IDIS reporting and used for eligible activities by each agency separately. 

 

2.12  It is the City’s responsibility to assure compliance with all HOME requirements during 

project implementation and the affordability period.  The Lead Entity has the right to monitor 

projects compliance.  City will submit to Lead Entity the Environmental Review (ER) for each 

HOME project, and Lead Entity will approve the ER, before said project begins by City.   

 

2.13 City and Lead Entity will follow the regulations of the HOME Final Rule of 2013.   

 

  

SECTION 3.     PROVISIONS OF THE AGREEMENT 

 

3.1 Lead Entity and City agree that the Consortium start date shall be July 1, 2019, and that 

they, and any new members added to this Consortium, pursuant to Section 2.7 above, 

shall establish July 1 through June 30 as their respective fiscal year for the following 

Federal programs:  1) the Community Development Block Grant under Title I of the 

Housing and Community Development Act of 1974, as amended (PL 93-383),   2) the 

Home Investment Partnership Program under Title II of the Cranston-Gonzalez National 

Affordable Housing Act, as amended, (PL 101-625),  3) the Emergency Shelter Grant 

Program under Subtitle B of Title IV of the Stewart B. McKinney Homeless Assistance 

Act of 1988, as amended (PL 100-628), and  4) the Housing Opportunities for Persons 

With Aids Program under Title II of the Cranston-Gonzalez National Affordable Housing 

Act, as Amended, (PL 101-625), as applicable. 

 

3.2 Though this Agreement may be amended, no Consortium member, including any new 

member added pursuant to Section 2.7 above, may withdraw from this Agreement while 

it remains in effect.  A member desiring to terminate the Agreement and its participation 

341

ITEM  27.



  

5 of 8 

 

in the Waterloo HOME Consortium may do so by giving no less than 6 months prior 

written notice.  The notice must be sent to the Lead Entity at the addresses appearing on 

the signature page and the notice must specify the effective date of the termination.  The 

Agreement will terminate on the effective date specified in the notice.   

 

3.3 For the Lead Entity and City, this Agreement is made and entered into pursuant to: 

 

3.3.1 Iowa Code, Chapter 364 (2015), entitled "Powers and Duties of Cities”. 

 

3.4 The parties to this Agreement shall not, in the performance of this Agreement, 

discriminate or permit discrimination in violation of Federal or other laws or local 

ordinances because of race, color, handicap, familial status, sex, age, political or religious 

opinions, affiliations or national origin.  

 

SECTION 4.     DISTRIBUTION OF HOME FUNDS 

 

4.1 Lead Entity shall be the recipient of each annual allocation of HOME Funds awarded to 

the Consortium by HUD and shall secure such funds in a manner prescribed by HUD. 

 

4.2 For each annual allocation of HOME Funds, funds will be disbursed as follows: 

 

4.2.1 10% of the entire annual HOME allocation will go to Lead Entity for allowable 

administration/planning costs of the HOME Program. 

 

 

4.2.2 The annual HOME allocation will be allocated 72% to Lead Entity and 28% to 

City unless an alternate mutually agreeable allocation formula is approved by 

Lead Entity and City. Formula breakdown is based on HUD FY18 HOME 

Consortium Share Report.  

 

 

4.2.3 15% of each annual HOME allocation after 72/28 split goes to local Community 

Housing Development Organization(s) (CHDO). The CHDO may use each 

allocation in the corresponding jurisdiction. If the CHDO is unable to use the 

City’s allocation in City’s jurisdiction it may be used in the Lead Entity’s 

jurisdiction.  The Lead Entity will oversee the CHDO requirements. Please see 

Appendix A for a sample breakdown of funding. 

 

4.2.4 The allocation formula listed in 4.2.2 will be revised should additional members 

be added to the HOME Consortium.  The revised allocation formula must be 

approved by Lead Entity and City before any additional members may be 

added. 

 

4.2.5 City may not expend HOME Funds for any administrative or planning 

expenses. 

342

ITEM  27.



  

6 of 8 

 

4.2.6 HOME Funds shall be allocated to City through a subsequent subrecipient 

agreement, or agreements, between City and Lead Entity.  

  

                                                             

4.3 Some members existing programs may need to be modified if carried out with HOME 

funds, but the Consortium Activities do not impact CDBG-funded programs.   

 

SECTION 5.     TERM OF THE AGREEMENT/QUALIFICATION PERIOD 

 

5.1 This Agreement shall be in full force and effect for a period of three years beginning on 

October 1, 2019, and ending September 30, 2022, said period comprising the 

Qualification Period, or until such time the HOME Funds are closed out as specified in 

Section 5.3, below. City fiscal program years are July 1, 2019 to June 30, 2022.  

  

 By the date specified in HUD’s consortia designation notices, the consortium lead entity 

will notify each participating unit of general local government in writing of its right not 

to participate for the successive three-year qualification periods. 

 

 The consortium will adopt any amendment to the agreement incorporating changes 

necessary to meet the requirements for cooperation agreements set forth in a Consortia 

Qualification Notice applicable for a subsequent three-year consortia qualification period, 

and to submit the amendment to HUD as specified in the Consortia Qualification Notice 

for that period, and that failure to comply will void the automatic renewal of the consortia 

agreement. 

 

5.2 The Federal fiscal years of this Agreement shall include federal fiscal yearsFY 202019, 

202120, and 202221. 

 

5.3 Notwithstanding the above, this Agreement shall remain in effect until the HOME Funds  

from each of the Federal Fiscal Years of the Qualification Period are closed out pursuant 

to 24 CFR 92.507. 

 

 

SECTION 6.     AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVES 

 

In further consideration of the mutual covenants herein contained, the parties hereto 

expressly agree that for purposes of notice, including legal service of process, during the term of 

this Agreement, and for the period of any applicable statute or limitations thereafter, the 

following named individuals or their successors shall be authorized representatives of the parties: 

 

(1) Quentin Hart, Mayor 

City of Waterloo 

715 Mulberry Street 

 Waterloo, Iowa  50703 

(2) James P. Brown, Mayor 

343

ITEM  27.



  

7 of 8 

 

City of Cedar Falls 

220 Clay Street 

Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 

 

 

With copies to: 

 

(3) Rudy D. Jones 

 Community Development Director 

620 Mulberry Street 

Waterloo, Iowa  50703 

 

and 

 

(4) Stephanie Sheetz 

Director of Community Development 

220 Clay Street 

Cedar Falls, Iowa  50613 

 

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this Agreement as of the date 

indicated below. 

 

ATTEST:      CITY OF WATERLOO: 

 

 

_________________________________  ____________________________________ 

City Clerk      Quentin Hart, Mayor 

City of Waterloo, Iowa    City of Waterloo, Iowa 

 

 

_________________________________  ____________________________________ 

Date       Date 

 

 

ATTEST:      CITY OF CEDAR FALLS 

 

 

_________________________________  ____________________________________ 

City Clerk      James P. Brown, Mayor 

City of Cedar Falls, Iowa    City of Cedar Falls, Iowa 

 

 

_________________________________  ____________________________________ 

Date       Date 

344

ITEM  27.



  

8 of 8 

 

                                        Appendix A 
 

                                                          Sample 

                                    Annual HOME Allocation $453,196.00 

 

 

 

Waterloo Allocation 72%    Cedar Falls Allocation 28% 

                                       

                                   Administration Fee Calculation 

 

$453,196.00                                                                $453,196.00 

X            .72       Allocation %                                          X            .28     Allocation %  

$326,301.00                                                                 $126,895.00 

X            .10      minus 10% Admin to Lead Entity                   X            .10     minus 10% Admin to Lead Entity 

  $32,630.00                                                                   $12,689.00 

 

                                                      $32,630.00 

                                                      $12,689.00 

 Total Admin to Lead Entity =     $45,319.00 

 

 

   CHDO Allocation Calculation 

 

$453,196.00      $453,196.00 

X            .72    Allocation %      X            .28   Allocation % 

$326,301.00                                 $126,895.00  

X            .15    Min. CHDO Allocation                                X            .15   Min. CHDO Allocation  

  $48,945.00                                                                  $19,034.00 

 

  

 $48,945.00   - Must be used in Lead Entity’s jurisdiction 

 $19,034.00   - May be used in City’s jurisdiction. If no project is feasible funds may be  

Total CHDO allocation =         $67,979.00     used in Lead Entity’s jurisdiction. 

 

 

 

    Net Allocations 
 

 

$326,301.00 72% Allocation           $126,895.00 28% Allocation   

- $32,630.00    Admin                                                 - $12,689.00 Admin 

- $48,945.00    CHDO                                                 - $19,034.00 CHDO  

 

$244,726.00       $95,172.00 
  Lead Entity City 

345

ITEM  27.



  

1 of 8 

 

HOME INVESTMENT PARTNERSHIP PROGRAM 

CONSORTIUM COOPERATION AGREEMENT 

FEDERAL FISCAL YEARS 2020, 2021 AND 2022 

    (October 1, 2019 to September 30, 2022 ) 

 
City Program Years  

(July 1, 2019 to June 30, 2022) 

 
 

THIS CONSORTIUM COOPERATION AGREEMENT is entered into by and between 

the City of Cedar Falls, a Municipal Corporation in Black Hawk County, Iowa (sometimes 

hereinafter referred to as the "City") and the City of Waterloo, a Municipal Corporation in Black 

Hawk County, Iowa (hereinafter referred to as the "Lead Entity") for the purpose of continuing a 

HOME Consortium pursuant to the HOME Investment Partnerships Act (hereinafter referred to 

as the "HOME Program"); Title II of the Cranston-Gonzales National Affordable Housing Act, 

as amended (42 U.S.C. 12701 et seq.) (hereinafter referred to as the "Act"). 

 

WHEREAS, Section 216(2) of the Act provides that a consortium of geographically 

contiguous units of general local government is considered a unit of general local government for 

purposes of the Home Investment Partnerships Program if the Secretary of the U.S. Department 

of Housing and Urban Development (hereinafter referred to as "HUD") determines that the 

consortium has sufficient authority and administrative capability to carry out the purposes of the 

Act on behalf of its member jurisdictions and will direct its activities to the alleviation of housing 

problems within States; and, 

 

WHEREAS, in accordance with Section 217(b)(3) of the Act, HUD will include, as 

jurisdictions eligible to receive allocations of HOME funds by formula, approved consortia of 

units of general local government; and, 

 

WHEREAS, the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, and the City of Waterloo, Iowa, desire to 

enter into a HOME Program Consortium Agreement for the purpose of expanding the supply of 

decent, safe, sanitary and affordable housing for low and moderate-income residents. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of these mutual covenants, the City of Cedar 

Falls, Iowa, and the City of Waterloo, Iowa do hereby agree as follows: 

 

SECTION 1.     DEFINITIONS-ABBREVIATIONS 

 

1.1 "City" shall mean - the City of Cedar Falls, an Iowa Municipal Corporation. 

 

1.2 "Lead Entity" shall mean - the City of Waterloo, an Iowa Municipal Corporation. 

 

1.3 "HUD" shall mean - the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development. 

 

1.4 "Act" shall mean - the Cranston-Gonzales National Affordable Housing Act, as amended 

346

ITEM  27.



  

2 of 8 

 

(42 U.S.C. 12701 et seq.). 

 

1.5 "HOME Program" shall mean - the program conducted under the provision of the 

Cranston-Gonzales National Affordable Housing Act, Title II, Subtitle A - HOME 

Investment Partnerships Program (P.L. 101-625) and the Code of Federal Regulations 

(24 CFR Part 92). 

 

1.6 "HOME Funds" shall mean - HOME Program Entitlement Grant Funds awarded by the 

Secretary of HUD to the Consortium in accordance with the allocation formula 

prescribed by HUD. 

 

1.7 "Consortium" or "HOME Consortium" shall mean - a consortium of geographically 

contiguous units of general local government, which HUD treats as a single unit of local 

government under the HOME Program, formed for the purpose of furthering the 

objectives of the HOME Program.  Under this Agreement, the cities of Cedar Falls and 

Waterloo comprise the HOME Consortium. 

 

1.8 "Housing Unit or Units" shall mean - decent, safe, sanitary and affordable housing 

developed or assisted with HOME Funds pursuant to this Agreement. 

 

1.9 "Qualification Period" shall mean - the Federal Fiscal Years for which the HOME 

Consortium is to qualify to receive allocations as a participating jurisdiction in the 

HOME Program. 

 

SECTION 2.     RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE PARTIES 

 

2.1 Pursuant to this Agreement, the City and the Lead Entity agree to cooperate to undertake 

or to assist in undertaking housing assistance activities for the HOME Program. 

 

2.2 The Lead Entity shall act in a representative capacity for all member units of general 

local government, or the Consortium members, for the purposes of the HOME Program. 

 

2.3 The Lead Entity shall assume overall responsibility for ensuring that the Consortium's 

HOME Program is carried out in compliance with the requirements of the HOME 

Program, including requirements concerning a Consolidated Submission of Community 

Planning and Development Programs ("Consolidated Plan") in accordance with HUD 

regulation in 24 CFR Parts 91 and 92.   

 

2.3.1 This Agreement does not contain a provision for veto or other restriction that 

would allow any member unit of local government to obstruct the implementation of the 

Consortium's approved Consolidated Plan. 

 

2.3.2 The 5- Year Consolidated Plan document shall be prepared by Lead Entity in 

collaboration with staff from City.  If a consulting firm is hired to prepare said document, 

Lead Entity and City will come to a mutually acceptable agreement to split the cost of the 

347

ITEM  27.



  

3 of 8 

 

consulting firm.   

 

2.3.3 Lead Entity and City agree that necessary adjustments to the Consolidated Plan 

development process will be made when necessary as required by the United States 

Department of Housing and Urban Development, including, but not limited to, any 

Consolidated Plan process. 

 

2.3.4 The Lead Entity shall initiate the 5-Year Consolidated Plan and Annual Action 

Plans in IDIS for Lead Entity and City, and submit to HUD on IDIS.   Annual reporting 

(CAPER) will be completed by each entity separately in IDIS. 

 

2.4 The Lead Entity and/or City if necessary, shall secure from the State of Iowa a written 

certification that the Consortium will direct its activities to the alleviation of housing 

problems within the State of Iowa. 

 

 

2.5 The Lead Entity shall submit to HUD the required HOME Consortia qualification 

documents including required certifications and a fully executed Consortium Cooperation 

Agreement. 

 

2.6 The Lead Entity and the City shall act affirmatively to further fair housing by: 

 

2.6.1 Employing affirmative marketing procedures in the advertising and marketing 

of Housing Units, and 

 

2.6.2 Conforming to the non-discrimination provisions hereinafter set forth. 

 

2.7 Lead Entity, after approval by City, is hereby authorized to amend this Consortium 

Agreement, on behalf of the Consortium, for the purpose of adding new members to the 

Consortium. 

 

 2.7.1 Should it become necessary to change the language of this Agreement to meet 

HUD approval, without making major changes and without altering the intent of the 

Agreement, such changes may be made administratively with written consent of the 

Consortium staff. 

 

 2.7.2 This Agreement may be amended for purposes other than those described in 2.7 

and 2.7.1 above by written Agreement of the Lead Entity and City. 

 

2.8 Lead Entity and City each shall be solely responsible for such individual financial and/or 

legal responsibilities which may arise from participation as a member of this Consortium. 

 

2.9 Lead Entity and City each shall be solely responsible for the administration of their 

respective HOME Programs including: 

 

348

ITEM  27.



  

4 of 8 

 

 

 

2.9.1 The development of Housing Units within their respective jurisdictions, and the 

use of any public or private funds or loans, or other means of financial 

assistance. 

 

2.9.2 Additionally, any real or personal property acquired pursuant to this Agreement 

shall be acquired and maintained in the name of the individual Consortium 

member performing the acquisition. 

 

2.9.3 Members will abide by their own local codes and standards but acknowledge 

that in federally funded projects, they are subject to the regulations for 

addressing lead-paint hazards. 

 

2.10  Match obligations will be met for City by using carryover match funds reported by Lead 

Entity. 

 

2.11  Program Income generated by Lead Entity or City with HOME funds will be accounted 

for in IDIS reporting and used for eligible activities by each agency separately. 

 

2.12  It is the City’s responsibility to assure compliance with all HOME requirements during 

project implementation and the affordability period.  The Lead Entity has the right to monitor 

projects compliance.  City will submit to Lead Entity the Environmental Review (ER) for each 

HOME project, and Lead Entity will approve the ER, before said project begins by City.   

 

2.13 City and Lead Entity will follow the regulations of the HOME Final Rule of 2013.   

 

  

SECTION 3.     PROVISIONS OF THE AGREEMENT 

 

3.1 Lead Entity and City agree that the Consortium start date shall be July 1, 2019, and that 

they, and any new members added to this Consortium, pursuant to Section 2.7 above, 

shall establish July 1 through June 30 as their respective fiscal year for the following 

Federal programs:  1) the Community Development Block Grant under Title I of the 

Housing and Community Development Act of 1974, as amended (PL 93-383),   2) the 

Home Investment Partnership Program under Title II of the Cranston-Gonzalez National 

Affordable Housing Act, as amended, (PL 101-625),  3) the Emergency Shelter Grant 

Program under Subtitle B of Title IV of the Stewart B. McKinney Homeless Assistance 

Act of 1988, as amended (PL 100-628), and  4) the Housing Opportunities for Persons 

With Aids Program under Title II of the Cranston-Gonzalez National Affordable Housing 

Act, as Amended, (PL 101-625), as applicable. 

 

3.2 Though this Agreement may be amended, no Consortium member, including any new 

member added pursuant to Section 2.7 above, may withdraw from this Agreement while 

it remains in effect.  A member desiring to terminate the Agreement and its participation 

349

ITEM  27.



  

5 of 8 

 

in the Waterloo HOME Consortium may do so by giving no less than 6 months prior 

written notice.  The notice must be sent to the Lead Entity at the addresses appearing on 

the signature page and the notice must specify the effective date of the termination.  The 

Agreement will terminate on the effective date specified in the notice.   

 

3.3 For the Lead Entity and City, this Agreement is made and entered into pursuant to: 

 

3.3.1 Iowa Code, Chapter 364 (2015), entitled "Powers and Duties of Cities”. 

 

3.4 The parties to this Agreement shall not, in the performance of this Agreement, 

discriminate or permit discrimination in violation of Federal or other laws or local 

ordinances because of race, color, handicap, familial status, sex, age, political or religious 

opinions, affiliations or national origin.  

 

SECTION 4.     DISTRIBUTION OF HOME FUNDS 

 

4.1 Lead Entity shall be the recipient of each annual allocation of HOME Funds awarded to 

the Consortium by HUD and shall secure such funds in a manner prescribed by HUD. 

 

4.2 For each annual allocation of HOME Funds, funds will be disbursed as follows: 

 

4.2.1 10% of the entire annual HOME allocation will go to Lead Entity for allowable 

administration/planning costs of the HOME Program. 

 

 

4.2.2 The annual HOME allocation will be allocated 72% to Lead Entity and 28% to 

City unless an alternate mutually agreeable allocation formula is approved by 

Lead Entity and City. Formula breakdown is based on HUD FY18 HOME 

Consortium Share Report.  

 

 

4.2.3 15% of each annual HOME allocation after 72/28 split goes to local Community 

Housing Development Organization(s) (CHDO). The CHDO may use each 

allocation in the corresponding jurisdiction. If the CHDO is unable to use the 

City’s allocation in City’s jurisdiction it may be used in the Lead Entity’s 

jurisdiction.  The Lead Entity will oversee the CHDO requirements. Please see 

Appendix A for a sample breakdown of funding. 

 

4.2.4 The allocation formula listed in 4.2.2 will be revised should additional members 

be added to the HOME Consortium.  The revised allocation formula must be 

approved by Lead Entity and City before any additional members may be 

added. 

 

4.2.5 City may not expend HOME Funds for any administrative or planning 

expenses. 

350

ITEM  27.



  

6 of 8 

 

4.2.6 HOME Funds shall be allocated to City through a subsequent subrecipient 

agreement, or agreements, between City and Lead Entity.  

  

                                                             

4.3 Some members existing programs may need to be modified if carried out with HOME 

funds, but the Consortium Activities do not impact CDBG-funded programs.   

 

SECTION 5.     TERM OF THE AGREEMENT/QUALIFICATION PERIOD 

 

5.1 This Agreement shall be in full force and effect for a period of three years beginning on 

October 1, 2019, and ending September 30, 2022, said period comprising the 

Qualification Period, or until such time the HOME Funds are closed out as specified in 

Section 5.3, below. City program years are July 1, 2019 to June 30, 2022.  

  

 By the date specified in HUD’s consortia designation notices, the consortium lead entity 

will notify each participating unit of general local government in writing of its right not 

to participate for the successive three-year qualification periods. 

 

 The consortium will adopt any amendment to the agreement incorporating changes 

necessary to meet the requirements for cooperation agreements set forth in a Consortia 

Qualification Notice applicable for a subsequent three-year consortia qualification period, 

and to submit the amendment to HUD as specified in the Consortia Qualification Notice 

for that period, and that failure to comply will void the automatic renewal of the consortia 

agreement. 

 

5.2 The Federal fiscal years of this Agreement shall include FY 2020, 2021, and 2022. 

 

5.3 Notwithstanding the above, this Agreement shall remain in effect until the HOME Funds  

from each of the Federal Fiscal Years of the Qualification Period are closed out pursuant 

to 24 CFR 92.507. 

 

 

SECTION 6.     AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVES 

 

In further consideration of the mutual covenants herein contained, the parties hereto 

expressly agree that for purposes of notice, including legal service of process, during the term of 

this Agreement, and for the period of any applicable statute or limitations thereafter, the 

following named individuals or their successors shall be authorized representatives of the parties: 

 

(1) Quentin Hart, Mayor 

City of Waterloo 

715 Mulberry Street 

 Waterloo, Iowa  50703 

(2) James P. Brown, Mayor 

City of Cedar Falls 

351

ITEM  27.



  

7 of 8 

 

220 Clay Street 

Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 

 

 

With copies to: 

 

(3) Rudy D. Jones 

 Community Development Director 

620 Mulberry Street 

Waterloo, Iowa  50703 

 

and 

 

(4) Stephanie Sheetz 

Director of Community Development 

220 Clay Street 

Cedar Falls, Iowa  50613 

 

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this Agreement as of the date 

indicated below. 

 

ATTEST:      CITY OF WATERLOO: 

 

 

_________________________________  ____________________________________ 

City Clerk      Quentin Hart, Mayor 

City of Waterloo, Iowa    City of Waterloo, Iowa 

 

 

_________________________________  ____________________________________ 

Date       Date 

 

 

ATTEST:      CITY OF CEDAR FALLS 

 

 

_________________________________  ____________________________________ 

City Clerk      James P. Brown, Mayor 

City of Cedar Falls, Iowa    City of Cedar Falls, Iowa 

 

 

_________________________________  ____________________________________ 

Date       Date 

                                        Appendix A 

352

ITEM  27.



  

8 of 8 

 

 
                                                          Sample 

                                    Annual HOME Allocation $453,196.00 

 

 

 

Waterloo Allocation 72%    Cedar Falls Allocation 28% 

                                       

                                   Administration Fee Calculation 

 

$453,196.00                                                                $453,196.00 

X            .72       Allocation %                                          X            .28     Allocation %  

$326,301.00                                                                 $126,895.00 

X            .10      minus 10% Admin to Lead Entity                   X            .10     minus 10% Admin to Lead Entity 

  $32,630.00                                                                   $12,689.00 

 

                                                      $32,630.00 

                                                      $12,689.00 

 Total Admin to Lead Entity =     $45,319.00 

 

 

   CHDO Allocation Calculation 

 

$453,196.00      $453,196.00 

X            .72    Allocation %      X            .28   Allocation % 

$326,301.00                                 $126,895.00  

X            .15    Min. CHDO Allocation                                X            .15   Min. CHDO Allocation  

  $48,945.00                                                                  $19,034.00 

 

  

 $48,945.00   - Must be used in Lead Entity’s jurisdiction 

 $19,034.00   - May be used in City’s jurisdiction. If no project is feasible funds may be  

Total CHDO allocation =         $67,979.00     used in Lead Entity’s jurisdiction. 

 

 

 

    Net Allocations 
 

 

$326,301.00 72% Allocation           $126,895.00 28% Allocation   

- $32,630.00    Admin                                                 - $12,689.00 Admin 

- $48,945.00    CHDO                                                 - $19,034.00 CHDO  

 

$244,726.00       $95,172.00 
  Lead Entity City 

353

ITEM  27.



1 

 

   DEPARTMENT OF FINANCE AND BUSINESS OPERATIONS 
 

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 
220 CLAY STREET 
CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 50613 
PHONE 319-273-8600 
FAX 319-268-5126 

     M E M O R A N D U M 
Legal Services Division 

 TO: Mayor Brown, City Council 

 FROM: Kevin Rogers, City Attorney 

 DATE: September 10, 2019 

 SUBJECT:  Monument Mailbox Ordinance 
 
During the June 3, 2019, regular Council meeting, Council referred to staff a directive to 

draft an ordinance allowing monument mailboxes and limiting the City’s liability.  

 

Such a proposed ordinance is presented with this Memorandum. 

 

City staff is opposed to adoption of such an ordinance due to the issues raised during 

the Committee of the Whole meeting on June 3, 2019, relative to safety concerns, 

increased potential liability to the City while working in the right-of-way, and the 

increased costs to the taxpayers caused by monument style mailboxes interfering with 

City construction and utility work. 

 

It should be noted as well that CFU has indicated that it does not favor allowing new 

monument style mailboxes in the right-of-way due to similar concerns. 

 

Also, as was stated by the local postmaster during the Committee of the Whole meeting 

on June 3, 2019, the USPS prefers break away style mailboxes, and in some cases, 

cluster style mailboxes, but not monument style mailboxes. 

 

Staff has taken the position that it will not order removal of monument style mailboxes 

already existing at the time they were banned in 2008, unless removal is absolutely 

necessary due to conflict with City services, facilities, or operations.  Also, City staff has 

never prevented an owner from repairing an already existing monument style mailbox 

unless the mailbox is damaged or destroyed beyond use. 

 

Finally there has been a misconception that all or most cities in Iowa allow monument 

style mailboxes.  That is not the case.  Attached please find a summary of regulation of 

monument style mailboxes by larger cities in Iowa.  As can be seen, a majority of the 

larger cities do not allow such mailboxes in city right-of-way.  Cites that do allow such 

mailboxes decide on a case-by-case basis, and impose specific standards of 

354

ITEM  28.



2 

 

construction if allowed. 

 

For all of the foregoing reasons, City staff does not recommend adoption of the 

proposed ordinance. 

 

Please feel free to contact me or other staff if you have any questions.  

355

ITEM  28.



SUMMARY OF REGULATION OF MONUMENT-STYLE MAILBOXES 

LARGER IOWA CITIES 

 

Des Moines:  Addressed in ordinance.  Not allowed since 2003. 

Cedar Rapids:  Not addressed in ordinances (rewrite coming in January, 2020).  Not allowed.  

Controlled through R-O-W regulation. 

Sioux City:  Not addressed in ordinances.  Not allowed.  Controlled through R-O-W regulation. 

Iowa City:   Not addressed in ordinances.  Not allowed.  Controlled through R-O-W regulation. 

Waterloo:  Not addressed in ordinances.  Strongly discouraged.  Controlled through R-O-W 

regulation. 

Ames:  Not addressed in ordinances.  Case-by-case through encroachment permit.  Liability 

insurance required if allowed.  Not stated in policy but Ames considers damage to be owner’s 

assumption of risk for placing it in the right-of-way. 

West Des Moines:  Not addressed in ordinances.  Not allowed.  Controlled through R-O-W 

regulation. 

Ankeny:  very similar to Urbandale (see below).  

Council Bluffs:  Not addressed in ordinances.  Allowed.  Regulated through construction permit 

process.  Plans submitted, reviewed and approved.  If approved, a license is granted to occupy 

the R-O-W with an annual fee.  Indemnification and liability insurance required.  Damage by City 

on a case-by-case basis. 

Dubuque:  Addressed in ordinance.  Not allowed.  Only break away allowed via ordinance.  If 

present they are declared a nuisance and may be removed.  Permits required for all mailboxes.  

Urbandale:  Addressed in ordinances.  Allowed.  Very specific requirements citing AASHTO 

standards and USPS regulations.  If damaged by City, only pay the replacement cost of a break 

away mailbox.  Liability placed on owner.  Very similar to Ankeny. 

Bettendorf:  Addressed in ordinances.  Not allowed since 2008. 

Mason City:  Addressed in ordinance.  Allowed.  R-O-W obstruction permit not required for 

mailboxes.  By administrative policy liability is on the owner, and reimbursement for damage is 

limited to $50 for breakaway post mailboxes only.  

Of those I spoke to, all stated that sometimes residents construct these types of mailboxes 

without informing the City.  They try to avoid the situation of forcing them to be removed but 

upon a complaint, or if circumstances require such as reconstruction of a street, they reserve 

the right to order removal.   

356

ITEM  28.



1 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Prepared by: Kevin Rogers, City Attorney, 220 Clay Street, Cedar Falls, IA  50613, (319)273-8600 

 

ORDINANCE NO. ________ 

AN ORDINANCE (1) ENACTING NEW DIVISION 2, MAILBOXES, CONSISTING OF NEW 

SECTION 19-53, DEFINITIONS, NEW SECTION 19-54, VISIBILITY; OBSTRUCTIONS, 

NEW SECTION 19-55, PERMIT REQUIRED, NEW SECTION 19-56, CONFLICT WITH 

CITY SERVICES; OPERATIONS, AND NEW SECTION 19-57, RESPONSIBILITY OF 

OWNER, OF ARTICLE II, PARKINGS, OF CHAPTER 19, STREETS AND SIDEWALKS, 

OF THE CODE OF ORDINANCES OF THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA; and (2) 

REPEALING SUBSECTION (e) OF SECTION 19-47, PLANTINGS BY PROPERTY 

OWNERS OR PARTIES IN POSSESSION, OF ARTICLE II, PARKINGS, OF CHAPTER 

19, STREETS AND SIDEWALKS, OF THE CODE OF ORDINANCES OF THE CITY OF 

CEDAR FALLS, IOWA, AND ENACTING IN LIEU THEREOF NEW SUBSECTION (e) OF 

SECTION 19-47, PLANTINGS BY PROPERTY OWNERS OR PARTIES IN POSSESSION. 

  

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA: 

       Section 1.  Article II, Parkings, of Chapter 19, Streets and Sidewalks, of the Code of 

Ordinances of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa is hereby amended by enacting a new Division 2, 

Mailboxes, containing New Section 19-53, Definitions, New Section 19-54, Visibility; 

Obstructions, New Section 19-55, Permit Required, New Section 19-56, Conflict with City 

Services; Operations, New Section 19-57, Responsibility of Property Owner, as follows: 

 

DIVISION 2.  MAILBOXES 

Sec. 19-53. Definitions. 

     The following words, terms and phrases, when used in this division, shall have the meanings 

ascribed to them in this section, except where the context clearly indicates a different meaning: 

357

ITEM  28.



2 
 

     Breakaway support post means a supporting post which shall be no larger than a 4-inch by 

4-inch wood post or a metal post with a strength no greater than a 2-inch diameter schedule 40 

steel pipe and which is buried no more than 24 inches deep.  Such a support post shall not be 

set in concrete unless specifically designed as a breakaway support system as defined in A 

Guide for Erecting Mailboxes on Highways published by the American Association of State 

Highway and Transportation Officials, May 24, 1984 (ASHTO). 

     Cluster-style mailbox means a style whereby mailboxes, meeting the specifications of the 

United States Postal Service (USPS) with the inscription plainly legible “U.S. MAIL” and 

“APPROVED BY THE POSTMASTER GENERAL,” are assembled and grouped together on a 

single area of land so that they are regarded as one unit. 

     Curbside mailbox means a mailbox consisting of a lightweight sheet metal or plastic box 

meeting the specifications of the United States Postal Service (USPS) with the inscription plainly 

legible “U.S. MAIL” and “APPROVED BY THE POSTMASTER GENERAL,” which is erected at 

the edge of a roadway or curbside of a street and is mounted on a breakaway support post, and 

is intended or used for the collection of mail and is to be served by a mail carrier from a vehicle. 

     Custom-built mailbox means a mailbox installed adjacent to the owner’s property at the edge 

of a roadway or curbside of a street and is constructed using materials that do not meet the 

definition of a curbside mailbox. 

     Clear sight area means the area or space between the curb line and abutting property 

owner’s lot line where clear vision is required to be maintained as described in section 19-47. 

Sec. 19-54.  Visibility; obstructions 

       (a)  All mailboxes must be installed away from any location where, by reason of the 

position, shape, or color, it may interfere with, obstruct the view of, or be confused with any 

authorized traffic control device. 

       (b)  In addition to the requirements in subpart (a), cluster-style mailboxes and custom-built 

mailboxes must be installed outside of clear sight areas. 

Sec. 19-55.  Permit required for custom-built mailboxes. 

       An excavation permit must be obtained from the city prior to installation in the public right-

of-way of any cluster-style or custom-built mailbox in the public right-of-way.  The city shall not 

be responsible for determining compliance with USPS or ASHTO standards as part of the 

permitting process for any mailbox.  The owner of the property adjacent to the mailbox shall be 

responsible for any damage to public infrastructure caused by installation of any mailbox in the 

public right-of-way. 

Sec. 19-56.  Conflict with city services; operations. 

       If any mailbox is determined by the city to be interfering with city services, facilities or 

operations, or with any other authorized user of the public right-of-way, or the maintenance or 

repair of public infrastructure is or would be interfered with because of the presence of any 

358

ITEM  28.



3 
 

mailbox, then the owner of the property adjacent to the mailbox shall be notified by the city  to 

remove the mailbox at the owner’s expense  In an emergency or if the owner fails to timely 

remove the mailbox after notification from the city, the city may remove the mailbox at the 

owner’s expense with notice of removal given as soon as practicable.  If such owner fails to pay 

the cost of removal of the mailbox within 30 days of notification by the city, such costs shall be 

assessed to the property adjacent to the mailbox for collection in the same manner as a 

property tax.  If a mailbox is required to be removed under this section, the city, at the option of 

the owner, shall either replace the mailbox with a curbside mailbox regardless of the type of 

mailbox removed, or else pay the fee, as of the date of removal, for mailbox replacement as set 

forth in the City’s fee schedule, to the owner of the property adjacent to the mailbox. 

Sec. 19-57.  Responsibility of owner. 

       (a)  The owner of the property adjacent to a mailbox located in the public right-of-way shall 

be responsible for regular maintenance and repair of such mailbox. 

       (b)  If damage to a mailbox is caused by the fault the city or its authorized contractors in the 

course of street maintenance, including snow removal, street sweeping, street cleaning, or 

similar work, or any repair, replacement, construction or reconstruction of city streets, alleys, 

subdrains, storm sewer pipes, conduits or other similar structures, or other city work within the 

public right-of-way, then the city shall repair the damage at a cost not to exceed the 

replacement cost of a curbside mailbox as set forth in the City’s fee schedule. If a mailbox is 

destroyed beyond use under such circumstances, then it shall be replaced  with a curbside 

mailbox, regardless of the type of mailbox destroyed, or else, at the option of the owner of the 

property adjacent to the mailbox, such owner shall be paid the fee, as of the date of destruction, 

for mailbox replacement as set forth in the City’s fee schedule.  If weather conditions prevent 

immediate repair or replacement the city may install a temporary mailbox. 

       (c)  The city shall bear no responsibility or liability whatsoever for personal injury or death to 

any person, or damage to any property, caused by a mailbox located in the public right-of-way. 

       (d)  Any and all damages to persons or property caused by the presence of a custom-built 

mailbox in the city’s right-of-way shall be the responsibility of the owner of the property adjacent 

to the custom-built mailbox. 

 

       Section 2.  Subsection (e) of Section 19-47, Plantings by Property Owners or Parties in 

Possession, of Article II, Parkings, of Chapter 19, Streets and Sidewalks, of the Code of 

Ordinances of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, is hereby repealed in its entirety and a new 

Subsection (e) of Section 19-47, Plantings by Property Owners or Parties in Possession is 

enacted in lieu thereof, as follows: 

       (e)  It shall be unlawful for the owner or party in possession of lots or parcels of ground in 
the city to fail to keep in good order or to maintain the area between the curb line and the 
property line abutting their property including keeping said area free of holes, pitfalls, 
stumps of trees, fences, brick, stone, cement, or other monument-type mail boxes, stakes, 

359

ITEM  28.



4 
 

posts or rods to which a metal, plastic or similar receptacle designed to hold newspapers 
are affixed, private irrigation or sprinkler systems, retaining walls, landscaping brick, block, 
stone, timber or other similar material, or any other similar obstructions. In the event plant 
material described in subsection (a) of this section or any of the obstructions described in 
this subsection are damaged or destroyed by the city, its employees, agents or contractors, 
in the course of street maintenance, including snow removal, street sweeping, street 
cleaning, and other similar work, or any repair, replacement, construction or reconstruction 
of city streets, subdrains, storm sewer pipes, conduits or other similar structures, or other 
city work within the public right-of-way, including the area between the curb line and the 
abutting private property line, the city, its employees, agents and contractors shall have no 
liability to the private property owner or party in possession of the property adjacent to 
which such obstructions or plant material are located, for any damage to or destruction of 
such obstructions or plant material. The owner or party in possession of the land referred to 
above shall comply with the city ordinances pertaining to the trimming of trees, and other 
ordinances affecting the maintenance of said area of ground lying between the curb line 
and the property line abutting their property. 

 

INTRODUCED:     September 16, 2019   

PASSED 1ST CONSIDERATION:      

PASSED 2ND CONSIDERATION:      

PASSED 3RD CONSIDERATION:     

ADOPTED:        

 

 

____________________________ 

       James P. Brown, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

 

________________________________ 

Jacqueline Danielsen, MMC, City Clerk  

360

ITEM  28.


	Top
	1. Regular Meeting of September 3, 2019
	190903MINUTES

	2. PH-Future Land Use amendment
	1 CC staff Report on west fork land use amendment 9-11-19
	2 ZoningLocationMap
	3 Land Use Map Amendment
	CC Resolution West Fork Crossing land use amendment

	3. Res-Land Use Map Amendment
	4. PH-Rezoning-A-1 to R-1
	1 CC staff Report on west fork rezoning 9-11-19
	2 ZoningLocationMap
	3 West Fork Rezoning Plat with districts
	Ord-Rezoning A1 to R1-West Fork

	5. Ord-Rezoning-A1 to R1-West Fork
	6. Ord. 2950-PPTE ACOH
	2950-PPTE ACOH

	7. Ord. 2952-PPTE FN Investors
	2952-PPTE FN Investors

	8. Ord. 2954-48-hour parking
	2954-48 Hr Parking

	9. Appointment 9/16/19
	1-Appointments Council Memo
	2-P&amp;Z - Lynch 8-15-19

	10. 9/3/19 Committee of the Whole Minutes
	Comm of the Whole 09 03 19

	11. FY19 Annual Report of the Public Works & Parks Division
	FY19 MOP annual CC

	12. Liquor Licenses 9/16/19
	Liquor Beer 9-16-19

	13. FY2019 Annual Street Finance Report
	FY2019 Annual Street Finance Report

	14. Vendor Managed Fleet Inventory Contract
	VMI contract CC 2019

	15. Compost Facility Contract Services
	2019Compost Contract CC 

	16. Wastewater Treatment Alternatives PSA
	1-PSA Memo
	2-PSA
	3-Attachments

	17. Joint Funding Agreement - USGS River Gauge
	1. 2020 River Gauge Agreement memo
	2. Agreement

	18. Contract - 2019 Sidewalk Assessment
	1. Contract Memo 19 Sidewalk
	2. Contract
	3. Inurance
	4. Maintenance Bond
	5. Form of Proposal

	19. Supplemental Agreement 1A for Gateway Business Park
	1. Memo-Supplemental Agreement 1A
	2. Supplemental Agreement No. 1A - Gateway

	20. PSA University Avenue Traffic Counts
	1. Memo - University Ave Traffic Counts
	2. Agr-2019-0911-2019 Traffic Counts-University Ave-combined-CutePDF

	21. ARVIG Fiber Optic License Agreement
	1. Memo Arvig Cedar Heights
	2. License Agreement - ARVIG Cedar Heights
	3. Exhibit A - #68030
	4. Exhibit B - 2019.09.06 - Greenhill Rd to Orchard Hill #68030

	22. CBD Site Plan for façade improvements at 311 Main Street
	1_P&Z Staff report Pump Haus-CutePDF
	2. planning and zoning letter july 2019
	3_ garage door flyer-FINAL
	4. sidewalk cafe detials

	23. College Hill Neighborhood site plan for façade improvements at 2211 College St
	1_CC Staff report 2211 College Street

	24. PO-1 Zoning District site plan for signage at 915 Hudson Road
	1 CC staff report for All Smiles sign on 9-12-19

	25. PSA with Foth for the Center Street Corridor Streetscape Project
	CC memo on Center Street Foth contract 9-12-19
	Agr-2019-0905-Center Street-combined-CutePDF

	26. College Hill Overlay District Site Plan - Temporary Wheat Pasted Murals
	1_Council Staff report temporary murals CHP
	2_College Hill Proposal

	27. Amendment to HOME Investment Partnership Prog Consortium Cooperation Agrmt
	1. Council memo HOME Agreement FFY19-21 9-12-19
	2. HOME CONSORTIUM AGR 2020-2022 9-12-13_redline
	3. HOME CONSORTIUM AGR 2020-2022 9-12-13_clean

	28. Ordinance-Mailboxes
	Memo to Mayor, Council Form monument mailboxes
	MAILBOXES-SUMMARY OF REGULATION
	Ord-Mailbox-Redline

	29. Allow Bills and Payroll of September 16, 2019
	Bottom

